
 
 

5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 
831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  

 

This meeting has been noticed 
according to the Brown Act 
rules.  The Board of Directors 
meets regularly on the third 
Monday of each month, except 
in January, February.  The 
meetings begin at 7:00 PM.  

 

  
 AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 
Board of Directors 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
****************** 

Monday, July 16, 2018, 7:00 pm 
Conference Room, Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA 
 

Staff notes will be available on the District web site at 
http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/ 

by 5 PM on Friday, July 13, 2018 

The meeting will be televised on Comcast Channels 25 & 28.  Refer to broadcast schedule on page 3. 
  
 CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
  
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
 ADDITIONS AND CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA - The Clerk of the Board will announce agenda 

corrections and proposed additions, which may be acted on by the Board as provided in Sections 54954.2 of 
the California Government Code. 

  
 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - Anyone wishing to address the Board on Consent Calendar, Information 

Items, Closed Session items, or matters not listed on the agenda may do so only during Oral 
Communications.  Please limit your comment to three (3) minutes.  The public may comment on all other 
items at the time they are presented to the Board.   

  
 CONSENT CALENDAR - The Consent Calendar consists of routine items for which staff has prepared a 

recommendation.  Approval of the Consent Calendar ratifies the staff recommendation.  Consent Calendar 
items may be pulled for separate consideration at the request of a member of the public, or a member of the 
Board.  Following adoption of the remaining Consent Calendar items, staff will give a brief presentation on 
the pulled item.  Members of the public are requested to limit individual comment on pulled Consent Items 
to three (3) minutes.  Unless noted with double asterisks “**”, Consent Calendar items do not constitute a 
project as defined by CEQA Guidelines section 15378. 

 1. Consider Adoption of Minutes of the June 18, 2018 Regular Board Meetings 
 2. Consider Approval of Amendment to License Agreement with California American Water for the 

Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Facility Upgrade 
   
  

Board of Directors 
Andrew Clarke, Chair – Division 2 

Ralph Rubio, Vice Chair - Mayoral Representative 
Brenda Lewis – Division 1 
Molly Evans – Division 3 
Jeanne Byrne – Division 4 

Robert S. Brower, Sr. – Division 5 
Mary Adams, Monterey County Board of 

Supervisors Representative 
 

General Manager 
David J. Stoldt 

 

  
This agenda was posted at the District office at 5 Harris Court, Bldg. G 
Monterey on Thursday, July 12, 2018.  Staff reports regarding these 
agenda items will be available for public review on Friday, July 13, at the 
District office and at the Carmel, Carmel Valley, Monterey, Pacific Grove 
and Seaside libraries. After staff reports have been distributed, if 
additional documents are produced by the District and provided to a 
majority of the Board regarding any item on the agenda, they will be 
available at the District office during normal business hours, and posted 
on the District website at www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-
directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/.  Documents distributed at the 
meeting will be made available in the same manner. The next regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for August 20, 2018 at 7 
pm. 

http://www.mpwmd.net/
http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/
http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/
http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/


MPWMD Regular Board Meeting 
July 16, 2018 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 
 
 

 3. **Consider Expenditure to Contract for Construction and Related Services to Complete the Carmel 
River Bank Stabilization at Rancho San Carlos Road Project (CEQA: An Addendum for this project 
was approved by the Board on March 19, 2018.) 

 4. Consider Contract with Pueblo Water Resources to Provide Aquifer Storage and Recovery 
Operational Support  

 5. Consider Authorizing Monterey Bay Analytical Services to Provide Laboratory Support for 
Watermaster Water Quality Monitoring 

 6. Consider Authorizing Monterey Bay Analytical Services to Provide Laboratory Support for Aquifer 
Storage and Recovery Project Operations  

 7. Consider Expenditure to Contract with Normandeau Associates, Inc. for Carmel River IFIM for 
IFIM Model Support 

 8. Receive Draft Water Year 2017 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project Summary of Operations 
Report 

 9. Consider Adoption of Treasurer's Report for May 2018 
  
 GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 10. Status Report on California American Water Compliance with State Water Resources Control 

Board Order 2016-0016 and Seaside Groundwater Basin Adjudication Decision 
  
 ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 11. No report for July 16, 2018 
  
 DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (INCLUDING AB 1234 REPORTS ON TRIPS, CONFERENCE 

ATTENDANCE AND MEETINGS) 
 12. Oral Reports on Activities of County, Cities, Other Agencies/Committees/Associations 
   
 PUBLIC HEARINGS – Public comment will be received on each of these items.  Please limit your 

comment to three (3) minutes per item. 
 13. Consider First Reading of Ordinance No. 179 – Clarifying Rules Related to the Rebate 

Program, Permits, and Water Waste (CEQA:  Exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 
15301) 

  Action:  The Board will consider first reading of an ordinance that amends and clarifies Rules 
related to the Rebate Program, Water Permits, and Water Waste.  

   
 14. Consider Certification of Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Addendum for 

Los Padres Dam Gravel Augmentation Program Including Adoption of CEQA Findings and 
Mitigation Measures (CEQA Sections 15063, Initial Study; 15070, Negative Declaration; and 
15162(b), Addendum. Adoption is final Board action in the CEQA process.)  

  Action:  The Board will consider certification of the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
and Addendum for the Los Padres Dam Gravel Augmentation Program. 

   
 15. Consider Approval of a CEQA Addendum to the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the 

Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility Upgrade (CEQA: Approve Addendum to the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility Raw Water 
Intake and Water Supply System Upgrade Under CEQA Guideline Sections 15162 and 15164) 

  Action:  The Board will consider approval of a CEQA Addendum to the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration for an upgrade to the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility raw water intake 
system. 

   
 16. Consider Approval of a CEQA Addendum to the ASR EIR/EA for the Backflush Basin 

Expansion (CEQA: Approve Addendum to the ASR EIR/EA for the Backflush Expansion under 
CEQA Guideline Sections 15162 and 15164) 

  Action:  The Board will consider approval of a CEQA Addendum for the Backflush Basin 
Expansion which will be identified as Addendum 4 to the ASR EIR/EA. 

   



MPWMD Regular Board Meeting 
July 16, 2018 
Page 3 of 4 

17. Consider Declaring Monterey County Zoning Ordinance Inapplicable to the Sleepy Hollow
Steelhead Rearing Facility Upgrade (CEQA: Does not constitute a “Project” per California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines 15378 (b))
Action:  The Board will consider whether to exempt construction activities proposed to upgrade the
Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility from complying with Monterey County zoning
ordinances under Government Code Section 53096.

ACTION ITEMS – Public comment will be received on each of these items.  Please limit your comment to 
three (3) minutes per item. 
18. Consider Expenditure to Contract for Construction and Related Services for the Sleepy

Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility Raw Water Intake and Water Supply System Upgrade
Project (CEQA: The Board certified the Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for
this project and adopted the Mitigation and Monitoring and Reporting Plan on November 14,
2016.)
Action:  The Board will consider approval of a contract to upgrade the raw water intake and water
supply system at the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility.

19. Consider Expenditure for the Santa Margarita Backflush Basin Expansion Project
Construction and Support Services (CEQA: A Resolution to adopt an addendum to the ASR
EIR/EA for this project will be presented to the Board on July 16, 2018 in advance of the request
for the Board to approve this project. See agenda item 16.)
Action:  The Board will consider approval of funds to complete the Santa Margarita Backflush
Expansion Project.  See related agenda item 16.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS - The public may address the Board on Information 
Items and Staff Reports during the Oral Communications portion of the meeting.  Please limit your 
comments to three minutes. 
20. Letters Received
21. Committee Reports
22. Monthly Allocation Report
23. Quarterly Water Use Credit Transfer Status Report
24. Water Conservation Program Report
25. Carmel River Fishery Report
26. Quarterly Carmel River Riparian Corridor Management Program Report
27. Monthly Water Supply and California American Water Production Report

ADJOURNMENT 

Board Meeting Broadcast Schedule – Comcast Channels 25 & 28 
View Live Webcast at Ampmedia.org 

Ch. 25, Mondays, 7 PM Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, Pacific Grove, Sand City, Seaside 
Ch. 25, Mondays, 7 PM Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 

Pebble Beach, Sand City, Seaside 
Ch. 28, Mondays, 7 PM Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 

Pebble Beach, Sand City, Seaside   
Ch. 28, Fridays, 9 AM Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 

Pebble Beach, Sand City, Seaside   

Upcoming Board Meetings 
Monday, August 20, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 7:00 pm District conference room 
Monday, September 17, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 7:00 pm District conference room 
Monday, October 15, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 7:00 pm District conference room 

Supplemental Letter Packet



MPWMD Regular Board Meeting 
July 16, 2018 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 
 
 

 Upon request, MPWMD will make a reasonable effort to provide written 
agenda materials in appropriate alternative formats, or disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to 
enable individuals with disabilities to participate in public meetings. 
MPWMD will also make a reasonable effort to provide translation services 
upon request.  Please submit a written request, including your name, mailing 
address, phone number and brief description of the requested materials and 
preferred alternative format or auxiliary aid or service by 5:00 PM on  
Thursday, July 12, 2018.  Requests should be sent to the Board Secretary, 
MPWMD, P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA, 93942.  You may also fax your 
request to the Administrative Services Division at 831-644-9560, or call 831-
658-5600.  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\July-16-2018-Board-Mtg-Agenda.docx 



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF MINUTES OF THE JUNE 18, 2018 REGULAR 

BOARD MEETING 
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:    
 
Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:   N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  Attached as Exhibit 1-A are draft minutes of the June 18, 2018 Regular meeting 
of the Board. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends approval of the minutes with adoption of 
the Consent Calendar. 

 
EXHIBIT 
1-A Draft Minutes of the June 18, 2018 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors  
  

 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ConsentClndr\01\Item-1.docx 

 
 
 
  

1



2



 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA93940P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA93942-0085 

831-658-5600 Fax  831-644-9560http://www.mpwmd.net 
 

 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Regular Meeting 

Board of Directors 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

June 18, 2018 
 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm in the MPWMD 
conference room. 
 

 CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Directors Present: 
Andrew Clarke – Chair, Division 2 
Ralph Rubio – Vice Chair, Mayoral Representative 
Brenda Lewis, Division 1 
Mary Adams – Monterey County Board of Supervisors Rep. 
 
Directors Absent:   
Molly Evans – Division 3  
Jeanne Byrne – Division 4 
Robert S. Brower, Sr. –Division 5 
 
General Manager present:  David J. Stoldt 
 
District Counsel present:  David Laredo 

  

   
The assembly recited the Pledge of Allegiance.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
   
On a motion by Rubio and second of Lewis, an Attorney’s 
Report was added to the Board meeting agenda so that 
District Counsel could report on the 6:30 pm Closed Session.  
The motion was approved unanimously on a vote of 4 – 0 by 
Directors Adams, Clarke, Lewis and Rubio.  Directors 
Brower, Byrne and Evans were absent.  

 ADDITIONS AND CORRECTIONS TO 
AGENDA 

   
The following comments were directed to the Board during 
Oral Communications.  (A) Dan Turner referenced a 
document titled “Top Ten Most Expensive Water Providers 
in the Country: 2017 Update” which categorized California-
American Water as number 1 on the list.  He noted that 
agencies shown as numbers 2 and 3 on the list advised him 
that their costs were high because of water purchases from 
the State due to drought conditions.  Mr. Turner stated that 
Cal-Am does not purchase the water it distributes to local 
water users, yet costs to the ratepayer are high.  (B) Tom 
Rowley stated that he could not trust the accuracy of data 
compiled by Food and Water Watch that was referenced by 
Dan Turner. 

 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

   
On a motion by Adams and second of Rubio, the Consent 
Calendar was adopted unanimously on a vote of 4 – 0 by 
Directors Adams, Rubio, Clarke and Lewis.  Directors 
Brower, Byrne and Evans were absent. 

 CONSENT CALENDAR 

EXHIBIT 1-A 

3

http://www.mpwmd.net/


Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – June 18, 2018 -- 2 of 6 
 
 

 
  

 
Adopted.  1. Consider Adoption of Minutes from 

the May 21, 2018 Regular Meeting of 
the Board of Directors 

    
Adopted.  2. Consider Adoption of Resolution 

2018-11 to Provide Further Direction 
to Monterey County Elections 
Department Related to the Public 
Water Now Initiative 

    
Approved expenditure of $160,000.  3. Consider Approval of Service 

Agreement for the Provision of 
Election Services with Monterey 
County Registrar of Voters for 
November 6, 2018 General Election 
 

    
Approved increase in indemnification level up to $300,000.  4. Consider Authorizing the General 

Manager to Increase the Level of 
Indemnification in a Right-of-Entry 
and Project Permission Agreement 
with Quail Lodge, Inc. for the Carmel 
River Bank Stabilization Project at 
Rancho San Carlos Road 

    
Approved expenditure of $60,000.  5. Consider Approval of Expenditure 

for Phone System and Server 
Network Upgrade 

    
Approved expenditure of $70,000.  6. Consider Approval of Amendment 

No. 2 to Agreement with Regional 
Government Services Authority for 
Management and Administrative 
Services 

    
Approved expenditure of $25,000.  7. Consider Expenditure for Temporary 

Agency Employee to Assist with 
Electronic Document Storage During 
FY 2018-2019 

    
Approved expenditure of $35,000.  8. Consider Approval of Agreement 

with Lynx Technologies for 
Geographic Information System 
(GIS) Services 

    
Approved expenditure of $46,500.  9. Authorize Funds to Contract for 

Limited-Term Field Positions During 
FY 2018-2019 

    
Approved expenditure of $50,000.  10. Consider Approval of Three 

Temporary Field Staff Positions 
Funded Through the Interagency 
Contract Between MPWMD and 
NMFS to Provide for a Cooperative 
Research and Monitoring Projects 

4



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – June 18, 2018 -- 3 of 6 
 
 

 
  

    
Approved expenditure of $20,000.  11. Consider Approval to Purchase 

Expendable PIT Tags and Other 
Disposable Tagging Supplies for the 
Remainder of Calendar Year 2018 

    
Approved expenditure of $14,000.  12. Consider Renewal of Standard 

License Agreement with CoreLogic 
Information Solutions, Inc. 

    
Approved expenditure of $40,000.  13. Approve Expenditure to Corporation 

Service Company - Recording Fees 
 
 

   

Approved expenditure of $97,600.  14. Authorize Expenditure for Software 
Maintenance Agreements for FY 
2018-2019 

    
Approved expenditure of $25,000.  15. Consider Expenditure for Water 

Conservation Messaging Materials 
    
Approved expenditure of $700,000.  16. Consider Funding Rebates in the 

California American Water System 
Between July 1, 2018 and the 
Availability of Funding from the Cal-
Am General Rate Case 

    
Approved expenditure of $60,000.  17. Consider Continuance of Contract 

with Zone 24x7 for Water Demand 
Database Improvements and 
Maintenance 

    
Approved expenditure of $2,000.  18. Consider Expenditure to Amend 

Contract with Pueblo Water 
Resources to Provide Hydrogeologic 
Review for Water Distribution 
System Permits 

    
Approved expenditure of $35,000.  19. Consider Renewal of Contract with 

JEA & Associates for Legislative and 
Administrative Services 

    
Approved expenditure of $99,500.  20. Consider Renewal of Contract with 

Ferguson Group for Legislative and 
Administrative Services 

    
Approved expenditure of $19,652.  21. Consider Entering Into an 

Agreement for an Addendum to the 
MPWMD Aquifer Storage and 
Recovery Project Environmental 
Impact Report/Environmental 
Assessment 

    
Approved expenditure of $44,000.  22. Consider Entering Into Agreements 

for ASR Expansion Project Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention Plan 

5



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – June 18, 2018 -- 4 of 6 
 
 

 
  

Development and Monitoring 
Services 

 
 
 

   

Approved expenditure of $42,000.  23. Consider Renewal of Contract for 
District Public Outreach and 
Communications Services with TBC 
Communications and Media 

    
Adopted.  24. Consider Adoption of Resolution 

2018-12 Certifying Compliance with 
State Law with Respect to the 
Levying of General and Special 
Taxes, Assessments, and Property-
Related Fees and Charges 

    
Adopted.  25. Consider Adoption of Resolution 

2018-13 Establishing Article XIII (B) 
Fiscal Year 2018-2019 
Appropriations Limit 

    
Adopted.  26. Consider Adoption of Resolution 

2018-14 Update to Rule 24, Table 3, 
Capacity Fee History 

    
Adopted.  27. Consider Adoption of Treasurer's 

Report for April 2018 
    
  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
A summary of General Manager Stoldt’s report is on file at 
the District office and can be viewed on the agency’s website. 
Mr. Stoldt noted that in May 2018, production from the Sand 
City Desalination plant was 25 acre-feet, which is the first 
month in 2018 that the project has produced the budgeted 
amount.  For the period of October 1, 2017 the June 1, 2018, 
rainfall totaled 13.52 inches which is 65% of the long-term 
average and is defined as dry-year conditions.  For the same 
time period, streamflow was measured at 30,000 acre-feet 
which is 40% of long-term average and is defined as below 
normal conditions.  Storage remains at 96% of long-term 
average.  

 28. Status Report on California 
American Water Compliance with 
State Water Resources Control 
Board Order 2016-0016 and Seaside 
Groundwater Basin Adjudication 
Decision 

    
A summary of General Manager Stoldt’s report is on file at 
the District office and can be viewed on the agency’s website.  
He noted that by August 1, 2018 the California Public 
Utilities Commission (CPUC) should issue a proposed 
decision on a Certificate of Public Necessity and 
Convenience for the desalination plant proposed by 
California-American Water.  In September 2018 the final 
decision should be issued.   

 29. Update on Development of Water 
Supply Alternatives 

    
  ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
District Counsel Laredo reported that he provided a status 
report to the Board on Item 3 and received general direction.  
No reportable action was taken. 

  Report on 6:30 pm Closed Session of 
the Board 

6



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – June 18, 2018 -- 5 of 6 
 
 

 
  

  3. Conference with Legal Counsel – 
Existing Litigation (Gov. Code 
54956.9(a)) 

   Application of California American 
Water to CPUC (No. 12-04-019) – 
Monterey Peninsula Water Supply 
Project 

   
  DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (INCLUDING 

AB 1234 REPORTS ON TRIPS, 
CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE AND 
MEETINGS) 

No reports were presented.  30. Oral Reports on Activities of County, 
Cities, Other Agencies/Committees/ 
Associations 

   
  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
On a motion by Rubio and second of Lewis, the July through 
September 2018 Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and Budget 
was adopted on a unanimous vote of 4 – 0 by Directors 
Adams, Clarke, Lewis and Rubio.  Directors Brower, Byrne 
and Evans were absent. No comments were directed to the 
Board during the public hearing on this item. 

 31. Consider Adoption of July through 
September 2018 Quarterly Water 
Supply Strategy and Budget 
 

    
On a motion by Rubio and second of Adams, the FY 2018-19 
MPWMD Budget and Resolution No. 2018-10 were adopted 
on a unanimous vote of 4 – 0 by Directors Adams, Clarke, 
Lewis and Rubio.  Directors Brower, Byrne and Evans were 
absent.  No comments were directed to the Board during the 
public hearing on this item. 

 32. Consider Adoption of Proposed FY 
2018-19 MPWMD Budget and 
Resolution 2018-10 
Not a project – CEQA Section 15378 

    
  ACTION ITEMS 
Director Rubio offered a motion that was seconded by 
Director Lewis to authorize $2 million from reimbursement 
of preconstruction costs to be reserved as contingency for 
Monterey One Water to be used towards the Pure Water 
Monterey Project.  The motion was approved on a unanimous 
vote of 4 – 0 by Directors Adams, Clarke, Lewis and Rubio. 
Directors Brower, Byrne and Evans were absent. 
 
Tom Rowley, representing the Monterey Peninsula 
Taxpayers Association (MPTA), addressed the Board during 
the public comment period on this item. He stated that the 
entire cost for Pure Water Monterey Project (PWM) 
construction was not clearly defined, because the cost for 
construction of a new pipeline that would be used by PWM 
and the MPWSP desalination plant is being charged to the 
desalination project.  Rowley opined that funding a project 
without voter approval was a violation of the District’s 
enabling legislation. 

 33. Consider Authorization to Provide 
Funds to Monterey One Water for 
the Pure Water Monterey Project 

    
There was no discussion of these items.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF 

REPORTS 
  34. Letters Received 
  35. Committee Report 
  36. Monthly Allocation Report 

7



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – June 18, 2018 -- 6 of 6 
 
 

 
  

  37. Water Conservation Program Report 
  38. Carmel River Fishery Report 
  39. Monthly Water Supply and 

California American Water 
Production Report  

   
The meeting was adjourned at 8:05 pm.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 

 Arlene M. Tavani, Deputy District Secretary 
  
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ConsentClndr\01\Item-1-Exh-A.doc 

8



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
2. CONSIDER APROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH 

CALIFORNIA AMERICAN WATER FOR THE SLEEPY HOLLOW 
STEELHEAD FACILITY UPGRADE 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:       
 
Prepared By: Larry Hampson Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 
General Counsel Approval:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on July 
10, 2018 and recommended approval.  
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  This item is to request authority for the General Manager to execute an 
amendment to an existing license agreement with California American Water (Cal-Am) to allow 
an upgrade of the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility (SHSRF).  A draft amendment is 
attached as Exhibit 2-A. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize the General Manager to amend an existing license 
agreement with California American Water to allow the District to upgrade the Sleepy Hollow 
Steelhead Rearing Facility.   
 
DISCUSSION:  An upgrade of the intake at the SHSRF was first identified in 2001 and has 
been a high priority project to improve management of steelhead since 2005.  The National 
Marine Fisheries Service and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife have requested that 
MPWMD allow steelhead to remain longer at the facility than current operational capability 
allows.  The upgrade project addresses three conditions that can force a shutdown of the facility: 
1) extreme low flow during droughts; 2) increased sediment and debris flow since the removal of 
San Clemente Dam; and 3) high flows in early winter before steelhead are ready to be released.  
 
IMPACT TO STAFF/RESOURCES:  There are no immediate costs associated with this 
agreement.  If Cal-Am is sued in the future over the upgrade project, the District would be 
obligated to defend Cal-Am against claims for damages.  
 
EXHIBIT 
2-A First Amendment to License Agreement for Sleepy Hollow Fish Rearing Facility 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ConsentClndr\02\Item-2.docx 

9



10



CR1303-1 

Sleepy Hollow Fish Rearing Facility 
First Amendment to License Agreement Page 1 of 3 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
LICENSE AGREEMENT 

FOR SLEEPY HOLLOW FISH REARING FACILITY  

This First Amendment to License Agreement for Sleepy Hollow Fish 
Rearing Facility (“First Amendment”) is entered into by and between 
California-American Water Company, a California corporation (“Company”), 
and the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, a governmental entity  
(“District”) (each of whom is sometimes individually referred to herein as a 
“Party” and collectively as the “Parties”), with reference to the following: 

WHEREAS, effective May 5, 1994, Company and District entered into a 
License Agreement pursuant to which District constructed and operates a fish 
rearing and holding facility located on certain real property owned by Company 
(“Agreement”);  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2 of the Agreement, the term has been 
renewed by District four (4) times, with the current five (5) year renewal period 
expiring December 4, 2020;  

WHEREAS, District desires to construct the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead 
Rearing Facility Raw Water Intake and Water Supply System Upgrade Project  
(“Project”) on the Licensed Property, and to use other Company property 
identified herein for disposal of soil from Project excavations;  

WHEREAS, the Agreement provides that District is prohibited from 
making any improvements on the Licensed Property without the prior written 
consent of Company, which consent may be withheld or granted in Company’s 
sole and absolute discretion; and 

WHEREAS, Company is willing to consent to District’s construction  and 
operation of the Project on the Licensed Property and disposal of excavated 
soil from the Project site under the terms and conditions set forth in this First 
Amendment.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above Recitals, which are 
true and correct and incorporated herein by this reference, and of the mutual 
covenants and conditions set forth herein, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the Parties agree as follows: 

AMENDMENT 

1. Consent to Project. In accordance with Section 5(f) of the Agreement,
Company hereby consents to construction and operation of the Project on the
Licensed Property as the Project is described in that certain Initial
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration, Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing
Facility Raw Water Intake and Water Supply System Upgrade Project  dated
February 2017 (“MND”), which MND was certified by District on November 14,
2016, corrected in an addendum thereto certified by District on January 25,

EXHIBIT 2-A 11



CR1303-1 

Sleepy Hollow Fish Rearing Facility 
First Amendment to License Agreement Page 2 of 3 

2017, modified in an addendum thereto certified by the State Coastal 
Conservancy on November 30, 2017, and modified by an addendum thereto 
certified by District on July 16, 2018, all of which are incorporated herein by 
this reference. This consent is subject to the conditions subsequent that 
District and its contractors shall: (a) only access the Licensed Property using 
the Tularcitos High Road; (b) at all times comply with Company’s security 
procedures; (c) not use any portion of Assessor’s Parcel Number 197 -081-033-
000 (“Parcel 033”) for Project staging or storage without the prior written 
approval of Company, which approval may be withheld in Company’s sole 
discretion. 

2. Disposal of Excavated Soil. Company hereby consents to the disposal of
soil excavated from the Project site on Parcel 033, subject to the conditions
precedent that District shall: (a) obtain Company’s written approval of a soil
disposal plan (“Disposal Plan”); and (b) implement the Disposal Plan to the
reasonable satisfaction of Company. At a minimum, the Disposal Plan must
identify: (i) pre-Project and post-Project erosion control measures; (ii) specific
disposal location(s); (iii) dimensions of soil deposits; (iv) planting requirements
for each disposal location; and (v) plant establishment period(s).

3. Indemnification. As a material part of the consideration to Company for
the consent provided in paragraphs 1 and 2 of this First Amendment , and
notwithstanding any provision in the Agreement to the contrary, District agrees,
to the fullest extent permitted by law, to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless
Company, including its directors, officers, employees and agents, from and
against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, direct, indirect or
consequential (including, but not limited to, fees and charges of engineers,
architects, attorneys and other professionals and court and arbitration or other
dispute resolution costs) arising out of, resulting from, or related in any way to
the Project (collectively, “Claims”) (including any Claims related to compliance
with the California Environmental Quality Act, use of access roads or Company
property, or the disposal of soil excavated from the Project site) , excepting
therefrom any Claims caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of
Company.

4. Insurance. Section 12 of the Agreement, Company as Additional
Insured, is amended by adding the following:

12. Effective July 1, 2018, in lieu of the foregoing,  at all times during
the term of the Agreement, Company and District shall respectively: (i) keep in 
force at a minimum the insurance coverages in the amounts set forth on 
Exhibit INS-1; and (ii) include the other as additional insured as set forth on 
Exhibit INS-1. Further, District shall: (a) require its contractors performing any 
work on the Licensed Property to obtain and keep in force at a minimum the 
insurance coverages in the amounts set forth on Exhibit INS-2, or as otherwise 
accepted in writing by Company; and (b) require its contractors to include 
Company as additional insured as set forth on Exhibit INS-2.  

5. Compliance with Law. District shall comply, and shall require its
contractors and agents to comply, with all laws applicable to construction and
operation of the Project.

EXHIBIT 2-A 12



CR1303-1 

Sleepy Hollow Fish Rearing Facility 
First Amendment to License Agreement Page 3 of 3 

6. Definitions. All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the
meanings set forth in the Agreement.

7. Exhibits. All Exhibits referenced in this First Amendment are attached
hereto and incorporated herein.

8. Continuity. Except as expressly and explicitly set forth in this First
Amendment, all terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain and
continue in full force and effect.

9. Effective Date. This First Amendment shall be effective on the date it
has been executed by both Parties.

10. Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed in counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one
and the same instrument and the signature of a Party may be sent by facsimile
or other electronic transmission and shall be deemed to constitute an original
and fully effective signature of such Party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this First Amendment has been executed by the duly 
authorized representatives of the Parties. 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER 
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

CALIFORNIA-AMERICAN WATER 
COMPANY 

By: _________________________ 

Its: _________________________ 

Date:________________________ 

By: _________________________ 

Its: _________________________ 

Date: _______________________ 

EXHIBIT 2-A 13



CR1303-1 

Sleepy Hollow Fish Rearing Facility 
First Amendment to License Agreement 
Exhibit INS-1 

EXHIBIT INS-1 

EXHIBIT 2-A 14



CR1303-1 

Sleepy Hollow Fish Rearing Facility 
First Amendment to License Agreement 
Exhibit INS-2 

EXHIBIT INS-2 

EXHIBIT 2-A 15



16



ITEM:       CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
3. CONSIDER EXPENDITURE TO CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION AND 

RELATED SERVICES TO COMPLETE THE CARMEL RIVER BANK 
STABILIZATION AT RANCHO SAN CARLOS ROAD PROJECT (CEQA: An 
Addendum for this project was approved by the Board on March 19, 2018.) 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   Yes, partially 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, 

General Manager 
Program/ Protect Environmental 

Quality  
  Line Item No.:   2-2-1 
 
Prepared By:                    Larry Hampson Cost Estimate:   Up to $907,000 
 
General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on July 
10, 2018 and recommended approval. 
CEQA Compliance:  An Addendum for this project was approved by the Board on March 
19, 2018. 
 
SUMMARY:  Staff proposes to complete a streambank stabilization project along the Carmel 
River downstream of the Rancho San Carlos Road Bridge, about four miles east of the Pacific 
Ocean.  Project work includes 300 cubic yards of excavation, 225 cubic yards of imported fill, 
import and placement of 950 tons of rock riprap, installation of 160 lineal feet of log crib wall, 
installation of 60 lineal feet of logs and boulders, seeding and installation of erosion control fabric.  
The District advertised for bids during the month of June 2018 and received three bids, with the 
lowest bidder being Empire Landscaping, Inc. at a cost of $517,365 as shown in Exhibit 3-A.   
Additional work and the total estimated costs to construct the project with the low bidder are 
$632,000, which includes a contingency amount of $82,635 or about 15% of the project cost.  The 
cost of completing the project with the next highest bidder is estimated at $907,000, which is 
$107,000 more than the FY 2018-19 budget for the project.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Board of Directors should take the following action: 
 

1. Authorize the General Manager to enter into a contract with Empire Landscaping, Inc., for 
construction of the Carmel River Bank Stabilization at Rancho San Carlos Road Project at 
a cost of $517,365. 

 
2. Authorize the General Manager to approve service contracts for associated tasks for up to 

$32,000. 
 

3. Authorize the General Manager to approve change orders to the construction and service 
contracts or for new service contracts for the Project to allow for unforeseen items up to a 
total amount of $82,635. 
 

17



4. Should the District be unable to contract with Empire Landscaping, Inc, and need to 
contract with the next highest bidder, the General Manager would be authorized to execute 
contracts for up to $907,000. 

 
DISCUSSION:  The proposed Carmel River Bank Stabilization at Rancho San Carlos Road 
Project (RSC Project) is located at River Mile 3.8 (measured from the Pacific Ocean) just 
downstream of the Rancho San Carlos Road Bridge. The project area contains two eroding stream 
banks almost opposite from each other. Concern for the stability of the right bank (looking 
downstream) on APN 015-251-027, Moratz Property started in 2011 and interim measures such as 
jute netting, willow planting, and irrigation were carried out in an effort to stabilize the bank. In 
February of 2017, during a high flow event of 9,570 cubic feet per second at the U.S.G.S Near 
Carmel gage, the left bank along APN 157-121-027, Quail Lodge Property experienced significant 
erosion and up to about 55 feet of streambank was eroded along 300 lineal feet.  
 
During the high flows, numerous large cottonwood trees toppled out of the river bank and 
culturally significant Santa Barbara Sedge beds were lost. Currently, the left bank is vulnerable to 
erosion from high flows because it has lost its protective vegetative cover and is on the outside of 
a meander bend in an area that can erode during high flows.  Because these vulnerable streambanks 
are so close together, work on one bank can impact the other. Therefore, a comprehensive project 
addressing both banks is being proposed.  
 
A log crib wall will protect the most severely damaged portion of the left bank.  Logs with 
rootwads and boulders will be placed along the right side of the project area to protect the 
streambank.  Disturbed areas will be seeded and replanted with native riparian cuttings.  An 
irrigation system will be installed and maintained by the District.  
 
Staff has applied for necessary permits from local, state and federal agencies.  At their March 19, 
2018 meeting, the Board of Directors adopted findings and certified an Addendum to the Carmel 
River Management Program Environmental Impact Report.  MPWMD has requested affected 
property owners enter into a 10-year maintenance and access agreement to carry out the project.  
All authorizations will need to be complete before the Contractor is given a Notice to Proceed with 
the Project.   

Table 1 – Summary of Costs for Low Bidder 
 

Construction  $              517,365   
Establish Survey 
Control  

 $                  2,000  

Inspection/testing  $                   5,000  
Record Drawings  $                  25,000  
Contingency 
(15%) 

 $                82,635  

Total  $              632,000     
 
The District received two additional bids from the Mercer-Fraser Company for $794,980 and from 
Graniterock for $799,677.50.  The low bidder, Empire Landscaping, Inc., clarified bid documents 
by informing the District about which firms would be used for archeological monitoring and 

18



testing services. 
 
Should the District be unsuccessful in executing a contract with Empire Landscaping, Inc., the 
District could elect to contract with the next highest bidder.  The estimated costs of the project for 
contracting with the Mercer-Fraser Company would be $827,000 and would include a 10% 
contingency as shown in Table 2 below.   
 

Table 2 – Summary of Costs for Next Highest Bidder 
 

Construction  $              794,980 
Establish Survey 
Control  

 $                  2,000  

Inspection/testing  $                   5,000  
Record Drawings  $                  25,000  
Contingency  $                80,020  
Total  $              907,000     

 
IMPACTS ON STAFF AND RESOURCES:  The FY 2018-19 budgeted amount for this project 
is $800,000.  Several District staff will be involved in the project assisting with project 
management, inspections, permit compliance, fish rescue, revegetation, and monitoring. The work 
will be performed under the direction of the District Engineer. 
 
EXHIBITS 
3-A Bid for Construction from Empire Landscaping, Inc. 
3-B Email correspondence concerning services  
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ConsentClndr\03\Item-3.docx 

19



20



EXHIBIT 3-A
21



EXHIBIT 3-A
22



EXHIBIT 3-A
23



EXHIBIT 3-A
24



EXHIBIT 3-A
25



EXHIBIT 3-A
26



EXHIBIT 3-A
27



EXHIBIT 3-A
28



EXHIBIT 3-A
29



EXHIBIT 3-A
30



EXHIBIT 3-A
31



EXHIBIT 3-A
32



EXHIBIT 3-A
33



EXHIBIT 3-A
34



From:   Ahmet Gulcu <empirelandscaping@icloud.com>
Sent:   Monday, July 09, 2018 3:31 PM
To:     Thomas Christensen
Cc:     Larry Hampson; Ahmet Gulcu
Subject:        Re: Carmel River Bank Stabilization at Rancho San Carlos Road Project

Tomas, 

We will be using  for Archaeological monitoring 

Stella D’Oro
Senior Archaeologist M.A RPA
Albion
1414 Sequel Avenue Suite 205
 Sant Cruz CA 95062
831-245-7504 

For Soil compaction testing
Taylor
Soil Survey Group Inc
103 Church Street
Salinas CA 93901
Ph 831-757-2172

Let me know if you need more information Thank you Ahmet Gulcu Empire Landscaping Inc
530-400-3943

EXHIBIT 3-B
35



36



 
SUMMARY:  The District’s Carmel River Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) project is 
operated under a cooperative agreement between the District and California American Water 
(Cal-Am.)  Under this agreement, the District operates the wells during the injection season and 
collects the data required to meet permit requirements for the State Water Resources Control 
Board Division of Water Rights (DWR) and the Regional Water Quality Control Board.  The 
District also provides data to the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster (Watermaster) related 
to the Storage and Recovery agreement between Cal-Am and the Watermaster.  Pueblo Water 
Resources (PWR) is used to support District staff with the field work, data collection, and report 
preparation to operate the wells while injecting and comply with permit requirements. 
 
DISCUSSION:  Due to the seasonal nature of work associated with ASR operations, the District 
has opted to not hire full time operators, but to hire PWR as support staff on an as-needed basis.  
PWR will assist in field work, support data networks, and assist in the preparation of compliance 
reports.  PWR has 15 years of experience in supporting this project and is familiar with the ASR 
procedures and regulations.  Staff proposes to retain PWR to support the District with operations 
on an as-needed basis for the WY 2019 ASR season. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Board should authorize the General Manager to enter into an 
agreement on an as-needed basis, not to exceed $70,000 with PWR to support the District with 
WY 2019 ASR operations. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The District completes annual water quality monitoring at the ASR facilities 
as outlined in the ASR Sample and Analysis Plan, which is a requirement for project operations 
by the Regional Water Quality Control Board.  The District also monitors and reports streamflow 
and diversion volumes to the DWR, NOAA Fisheries, and State Department of Fish and Wildlife 
for permit compliance.  In addition, the District reports volumes of water injected and recovered 
to the Watermaster as required by the Storage and Recovery agreement between Cal-Am and the 

ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4. CONSIDER CONTRACT WITH PUEBLO WATER RESOURCES TO PROVIDE 

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY OPERATIONAL SUPPORT  
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   Yes 
 
From: David J. Stoldt Program/ Water Supply Projects 
 General Manager Line Item No.: 1-2-1 
   
Prepared By: Jonathan Lear Cost Estimate: $70,000 
 
General Counsel  Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on July 
10, 2018 and recommended approval. 
CEQA Compliance:   This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15378. 

37



Watermaster.  The District has used PWR for 15 years to support the development and operation 
of the Carmel River ASR project. 
 
IMPACT TO STAFF/RESOURCES:  Funds for this project are included in the FY 2018-19 
budget under “Water Supply Projects,” line item 1-2-1.  Funds expended to complete this work 
will be shared between the District and Cal-Am through the ASR Management and Operations 
agreement between the District and Cal-Am. Staff time will be utilized to aid consultant in 
sample collection. 
 
EXHIBIT 
4-A Sample and Analysis Plan outlining annual ASR project monitoring as required by the 

Regional Water Quality Control Board 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ConsentClndr\04\Item-4.docx 

38



MONTEREY PENINSULA 

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY PROJECT  

SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS PLAN 

Prepared for: 

December 2012 

EXHIBIT 4-A 39



December 2012 
Project No. 06-0025 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project – Sampling and Analysis Plan 

- 1 -

MONTEREY PENINSULA 

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY PROJECT 

GROUNDWATER SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS PLAN 

INTRODUCTION 

This Groundwater Sampling and Analysis Plan (SAP) has been developed for the 
Monterey Peninsula Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Project.  The project is cooperatively 
implemented by the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD or District) and 
California American Water (CAW), and generally involves the diversion of excess winter/spring 
flows from the Carmel River system for recharge, storage and subsequent recovery in the 
Seaside Groundwater Basin (SGB).  Treated (potable) drinking water from the CAW distribution 
system is injected into the Santa Margarita Sandstone aquifer in the SGB via three existing ASR 
wells located at two ASR facilities in the SGB.  The injected water is stored within the aquifer 
and subsequently recovered into the CAW distribution system during dry periods.   The overall 
objective of the project is to facilitate the conjunctive use of water supplies in the Carmel River 
system and SGB that will benefit the resources of both systems.   

  ASR operations generally consist of three components or phases: (1) injection of 
drinking-quality water into the aquifer through the ASR wells; (2) storage of the injected water 
within the aquifer; and, (3) recovery of the stored water by pumping at one or more of the ASR 
wells.  Periodic samples of the injected, stored, and recovered waters are to be collected from 
the ASR wells and associated monitoring wells and analyzed for a variety of water-quality 
constituents pursuant to requirements of the Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (RWQCB) for the project.  The purpose of this SAP is to identify the locations, sample 
collection frequency, and parameters to be monitored as part of the project’s ongoing water-
quality data collection program.  The project location and associated wells in the SGB are 
shown on Figure 1 – Project Location Map.   

GROUNDWATER MONITORING 

Groundwater Monitoring Wells 

ASR Project On-Site Wells.  There are two ASR facilities located in the SGB; the Santa 
Margarita and Seaside Middle School ASR Facilities.  Groundwater monitoring wells for 
collection of on-site water-quality samples include three ASR wells and two associated 
monitoring wells that have been constructed at the two ASR facilities.  Two of the ASR wells are 
located at the Santa Margarita (SM) ASR Facility and are designated as SM ASR-1 and SM 
ASR-2.  This facility is also referred to as the Phase 1 ASR Project.  The third existing ASR well 
is located at the Seaside Middle School (SMS) ASR Facility and is designated as SMS ASR-3. 

EXHIBIT 4-A 40



 
December 2012 
Project No. 06-0025 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project – Sampling and Analysis Plan 
 

 

- 2 - 

This facility is also referred to as the Phase 2 ASR Project1.  All three existing ASR wells are 
completed solely within the Santa Margarita Sandstone (Tsm) aquifer.   

In addition to the ASR wells, there are two on-site monitoring wells (one located at each 
ASR facility) that are also completed solely within the Tsm aquifer.  SM MW-1 is located at the 
SM ASR Facility and is located in between SM ASR-1 and SM ASR-2, at distances of 
approximately 90 and 190 feet, respectively.  SMS Deep MW is located at the SMS ASR Facility 
at a distance of approximately 20 feet from SMS ASR-3.  An additional monitoring well is also 
located at the SMS ASR Facility that is completed within the overlying Paso Robles aquifer, 
designated as SMS Shallow MW.  This well is instrumented with a submersible water-level 
transducer/data logger unit to observe the water-level response of this aquifer to ASR 
operations (it is not designed or equipped for collection of water-quality samples).  The locations 
of the ASR wells and on-site monitoring wells are shown on Figure 2 – Site Location Map.  A 
summary of the on-site wells is presented in Table 1 below: 

Table 1.  On-Site Wells Summary 

Well ID 

Distance from ASR Well 

(feet) Aquifer 

Completed 
SM ASR-1 SM ASR-2 SMS ASR-3 

SM ASR-1 -- 280 1,380 Tsm 

SM ASR-2 280 -- 1,235 Tsm 

SM MW-1 90 190 1,325 Tsm 

SMS ASR-3 1,380 1,235 -- Tsm 

SMS Deep MW 1,380 1,240 20 Tsm 

SMS Shallow MW 1,415 1,265 25 QTp 

Table 1 Notes: 

Tsm  – Santa Margarita Sandstone aquifer 
QTp  – Paso Robles aquifer 

 
 

Off-Site SGB Wells In addition to the on-site wells at the two ASR facility sites, 
submersible water-level transducer/data logger units have been installed at seven off-site 
District monitoring well sites in the SGB to observe the water-level response of the aquifer 
system to ASR operations.  The locations of the off-site monitoring wells are shown on Figure 

1.  The distances from each of the project sites and aquifers monitored by the off-site wells are 
summarized in Table 2 below:  

                                                 
1 The Phase 2 ASR Project will consist of two ASR wells and associated facilities at the SMS ASR Facility.  SMS 

ASR-4 is currently planned to be installed during summer/fall of 2012 and will be added to the SAP when 
completed and equipped for operation. 

EXHIBIT 4-A 41



 
December 2012 
Project No. 06-0025 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project – Sampling and Analysis Plan 
 

 

- 3 - 

Table 2.  Off-site Monitoring Wells Summary 

Well ID 

Distance from ASR Site

(feet) Aquifer 

Monitored 
SM SMS 

Paralta Test 680 740 QTp & Tsm 

Ord Grove Test 1,540 2,535 QTp & Tsm 

Ord Terrace (Deep) 2,275 2,910 Tsm 

FO-7 (Deep) 
4,265 3,700 

Tsm 

FO-7 (Shallow) QTp 

PCA East (Deep) 
6,390 6,200 

Tsm 

PCA East (Shallow) QTp 

FO-9 (Deep) 7,290 6,125 Tsm 

FO-8 (Deep) 7,585 6,450 Tsm 

Table 2 Notes: 

Monitoring well distances are measured to centroid of each ASR site. 
Tsm  – Santa Margarita Sandstone aquifer 
QTp  – Paso Robles aquifer 

In addition to water-level monitoring at the above off-site monitoring wells, CAW’s 
Paralta well and PCA East Deep have been designated as off-site monitoring wells for periodic 
water-quality sampling as part of this SAP (refer to Table 4). 

Groundwater Monitoring Equipment 

The equipment required to perform the groundwater monitoring as prescribed in the SAP 
includes: 

 Sampling Pumps 
 Pressure Transducers/Data Loggers 
 Electric Water Level Sounder 
 Field Water Quality Monitoring Devices 
 Flow-Thru Cell Device(s) 
 Sample Containers 
 Coolers and Ice 

Each of the on-site wells is equipped with a dedicated pump.  The ASR wells are 
equipped with water-lubricated, vertical line-shaft turbine pumps.  SM MW-1, SMS Deep MW, 
and PCA East Deep are equipped with submersible sampling pumps.  The flow rates for each 
monitored wells are measured using in-line flow meters.  Sampling ports on the well-head piping 
at each well allow for the collection of grab samples during injection and pumping operations.   

EXHIBIT 4-A 42



 
December 2012 
Project No. 06-0025 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project – Sampling and Analysis Plan 
 

 

- 4 - 

Field water-quality monitoring is to be performed using various instruments that allow for 
the field analysis of a variety of constituents, including but not limited to:  chlorine residual, 
conductivity, dissolved oxygen, pH, temperature, redox/ORP, and Silt Density Index (SDI). The 
field water-quality monitoring devices are to be routinely calibrated as prescribed in the 
operating procedures manual for each device.   

All of the ASR and monitoring wells are instrumented with dedicated pressure/level 
transducers and dataloggers.  Reference-point elevations have been established by surveying 
on each of the monitored wells.  Static water-levels in each of the wells are to be measured with 
an electric sounder on a quarterly basis (minimum) and the transducers calibrated accordingly.  
The transducers are to be programmed with the reference static water-level and the data-
collection interval, which will measure and record the water level in each of the wells a minimum 
of four times per day. 

Purging and Sampling 

During injection periods, samples of the injectate are to be collected directly at one of 
the ASR wellheads while active injection is occurring.  During storage periods, each of the ASR 
wells that has been utilized for injection during the season will be periodically purged and 
sampled.  During recovery periods, one or more of the ASR well pumps will be operating and 
purging is continuous and sustained.  Groundwater samples are also to be collected routinely 
during all three ASR periods (i.e., injection, storage and recovery) from both the on-site 
monitoring wells (SM MW-1 and SMS Deep MW) and periodically from the far-field off-site 
monitoring wells (Paralta and PCA-E Deep).   

The existing pumps will be used to purge a volume equivalent to a minimum of three (3) 
casing volumes from the well prior to sampling.  Purge water from the ASR wells during 
backflushing and sampling is to be discharged to the backflush pit at the SM ASR Facility and 
percolated back into the SGB.  Water produced by the ASR well(s) during recovery period  
operations is to be discharged to the CAW potable water supply system (in accordance with 
Department of Public Health approvals).  Purge water from the monitoring wells will be directed 
to either the SM backflush pit or to the ground away from the wellheads and percolated back 
into the SGB.   

During purging and prior to sampling, field water-quality parameters of temperature, pH 
and specific conductance are to be monitored.  Stabilization of these water-quality parameters 
will indicate when collection of a representative sample is obtainable.   

Chain-of-Custody, Sample Handling, and Transport 

All samples collected will be labeled in a clear and precise way for proper identification 
in the field and for tracking in the laboratory.  All sample shipments for analyses will be 
accompanied by a chain-of-custody record.  Forms will be completed and sent with the samples 
for each shipment.  The chain-of-custody form will identify the contents of each shipment and 

EXHIBIT 4-A 43



 
December 2012 
Project No. 06-0025 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project – Sampling and Analysis Plan 
 

 

- 5 - 

maintain the custodial integrity of the samples.  Samples will be placed in a cooler for delivery to 
the laboratory. 

Documentation Procedures 

Field data will be recorded by field personnel on the attached Field Sampling Log Form 
and routinely submitted to the Project Manager for review and QA/QC.  Field data will include 
the completed field sampling-log form and chain-of-custody records.  At a minimum, 
documentation of each monitoring and sampling event will include the following information: 

 Sample location and description 
 Sampler's name(s) 
 Date and time of sample collection 
 Type of sampling equipment used 
 Field instrument calibration procedures and results 
 Field instrument readings 
 Field observations and details related to analysis or integrity of samples (e.g., 

weather conditions, noticeable odors, colors, etc.) 
 Sample preservation  
 Shipping arrangements  
 Name(s) of recipient laboratory 
 Any deviations from SAP procedures   

Project information will be filed by Water Year.  The project file will contain project field 
data, correspondence, survey reports, laboratory reports, charts, tables, permits, and other 
project-related information.  This information will be utilized in the preparation of the annual 
Summary of Operations Reports for the project.   

LABORATORY PROGRAM 

A complete list of constituents and constituent “groups” to be monitored as part of the 
ASR Project for injected, stored, and recovered waters is presented in Table 3 below.  Table 4 
summarizes the planned sample constituent group frequencies for each source for the injection, 
storage, and recovery periods. 

EXHIBIT 4-A 44



 
December 2012 
Project No. 06-0025 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project – Sampling and Analysis Plan 
 

 

- 6 - 

Table 3.  Analytic Testing Program Constituent Summary 

Constituent PQL 
General 

Parameters 
Disinfection 
Byproducts 

Supple-
mental 

Field
1
 

Group ID  G-1 DBP S-1 F-1 

Major Cations      
Calcium (Ca) 1 mg/L     
Magnesium (Mg) 1 mg/L     
Sodium (Na) 1 mg/L     
Potassium (K) 0.5 mg/L     
Major Anions      
Total Alkalinity (as CaCO3) 10 mg/L     
Sulfate (SO4) 1 mg/L     
Chloride 1 mg/L     
Nitrate as (NO3) 1 mg/L     
Nitrite as (Nitrogen) 0.1 mg/L     
General Physical      
pH 0.1 units     
Temperature 0.5 0C     
Specific Conductance (EC) 10 uS     
ORP (redox potential / Eh)2 10 mV     
Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) 10 mg/L     
Metals      
Arsenic (As) 1 ug/L     
Barium (Ba) 0.5 mg/L     
Iron (Fe) (Total and Dissolved) 50 ug/L     
Lithium (Li) 5 ug/L     
Manganese (Mn) (Total and Dissolved) 10 ug/L     
Molybdenum (Mo) 5 ug/L     
Nickel (Ni) 10 ug/L     
Selenium (Se) 5 ug/L     
Strontium (Sr) 5 ug/L     
Uranium (U) 1 pCi/L     
Vanadium (V) 5 ug/L     
Zinc (Zn) 0.5 ug/L     

Miscellaneous      
Ammonia (as N) 0.05 mg/L     
Boron (B) 0.05 mg/L     
Chlorine residual (free) 0.1 mg/L     

EXHIBIT 4-A 45



 
December 2012 
Project No. 06-0025 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project – Sampling and Analysis Plan 
 

 

- 7 - 

Constituent PQL 
General 

Parameters 
Disinfection 
Byproducts 

Supple-
mental 

Field
1
 

Group ID  G-1 DBP S-1 F-1 

Chloramines 50 ug/L     
Dissolved Methane 0.5 ug/L     
Dissolved Oxygen (DO)2 0.025 mg/L     
Gross Alpha 1 pCi/L     
Hydrogen Sulfide (H2S) 0.05 mg/L     
Total Nitrogen (N) 0.2 mg/L     
Total Phosphorous 0.05 mg/L     
Orthophosphate as P 0.05 mg/L     
Radium 226 1 pCi/L     
Silt Density Index (SDI) 0.1 units     
Total Kjehldahl N (TKN) 0.2 mg/L     
Organic Analyses      
Total trihalomethanes 1 ug/L     

Bromodichloromethane 1 ug/L     
Bromoform 1 ug/L     
Chloroform 1 ug/L     

Dibromochloromethane 1 ug/L     
Haloacetic Acids (HAA) 1 ug/L     

Monobromoacetic Acid 1 ug/L     
Monochloroacetic Acid 1 ug/L     

Dibromoacetic Acid 1 ug/L     
Dichloroacetic Acid 1 ug/L     
Trichloroacetic Acid 1 ug/L     

Total organic carbon (TOC) 0.1 mg/L     
Dissolved organic carbon (DOC) 0.1 mg/L     
Table 3 Notes: 

1 – Field Parameters (Group F-1) must be taken concurrently with collection of all laboratory samples.  
2 – ORP and DO must be analyzed utilizing a flow-thru cell device. 

 

EXHIBIT 4-A 46



 
December 2012 
Project No. 06-0025 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project – Sampling and Analysis Plan 
 

 

- 8 - 

Table 4.  Analytic Testing Program Schedule 

INJECTION PERIOD (active injection) 

Analyte 

Group 
Injectate SM MW-1 

SMS Deep 

MW 

PCA East 

(deep) 

F-1 Bi-Weekly Bi-Weekly Bi-Weekly  Semiannually 

DBP Monthly Quarterly Quarterly Semiannually 

G-1 Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Semiannually 

S-1 Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Semiannually 

STORAGE PERIOD (one month duration or longer) 

Analyte 

Group 

SM 

ASR-1 

SM  

ASR-2 

SMS 

ASR-3 
SM MW-1 

SMS Deep 

MW 

PCA East 

(deep) 

F-1 Monthly Monthly Monthly Quarterly Quarterly Semiannually 

DBP Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Semiannually 

G-1 Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Semiannually Semiannually Semiannually 

S-1 Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Semiannually Semiannually Semiannually 

RECOVERY PERIOD 

Analyte 

Group 

SM 

ASR-1
1
 

SM  

ASR-2 

SMS 

ASR-3 
SM MW-1 

SMS Deep 

MW 
Paralta 

PCA East 

(deep) 

F-1 Bi-Weekly Monthly Monthly Quarterly Quarterly Semiannually2 Semiannually 

DBP Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Semiannually Semiannually Semiannually2 Semiannually 

G-1 Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Semiannually Semiannually Semiannually2 Semiannually 

S-1 Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Semiannually Semiannually Semiannually2 Semiannually 
Table 4 Notes: 

1 – SM ASR-1 is currently the only ASR well authorized by DPH to recover into the CAW distribution system. 
2 – Near the beginning and end of the SGB production/recovery season (e.g., in June and November). 
 

EXHIBIT 4-A 47



!A!A

!A

!A

!A

!A

!A

!A

!A

!A

PCA-E
FO-07

FO-09

FO-08

Ord Terrace

Paralta Test

Ord Grove Test
SM ASR-1

SM ASR-2

SMS ASR-3

FIGURE 1.  PROJECT LOCATION MAP
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project

Sampling and Analysis Plan

December 2012
Project No. 06-0025

Project Location

_̂

INSET MAP

Legend
!A ASR Well
!A Off-Site MW

0 2,000
Feet
²

EXHIBIT 4-A 48



!A

!A

!A

!A

!A
!A

!ASM MW-1

SMS Deep MW
SMS Shallow MW

Paralta Test

SM ASR-1

SM ASR-2

SMS ASR-3

FIGURE 2.  SITE LOCATION MAP
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project

Sampling and Analysis Plan

December 2012
Project No. 06-0025

Legend
!A ASR Well
!A On-Site MW
!A Off-Site MW

0 200
Feet
²

Seaside Middle School ASR Facility

Santa Margarita ASR Facility

EXHIBIT 4-A 49



Monterey Peninsula ASR Project
Field Sampling Log Form

Water Year:

Well ID:

Observer:

Date:

Observation Period: Start: Stop:
Weather:

Purging & Water-Level Data  Notes:

ASR  Period (injection, storage, recovery)

Well Status (injecting, idle, pumping)

Purge Rate (gpm)

Totalizer Reading Start (gals)

Totalizer Reading at Sampling (gals)

Purge Volume (gals)

Totalizer Reading End (gals)

Static Water Level (ft btoc)1

Datalogger Water Level (ft btoc)

Field Water-Quality Parameter Data
Time:

Elapsed Time:

Temperature (oC)

Conductivity (umhos/cm)

pH

ORP (mV)2

Free Chlorine Residual (mg/L)

Dissolved Oxygen (mg/L)2

Silt Density Index

Gas Volume (mL)

H2S (mg/L)
Visual Observations

Sampling and Laboratory Data
Collection Time Laboratory Laboratory Analyses Requested (analyte group or other constituents) 

Additional Information and Observations

Notes: 
1 -  Pump must be off a minimum of 10 minutes prior to measuring.
2 - ORP and Dissolved Oxygen must be analyzed utilizing a flow-thru cell device

EXHIBIT 4-A 50



 
SUMMARY:  Staff proposes to use Monterey Bay Analytical Services (MBAS) to complete water 
quality analysis in support of the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster (Watermaster).   The 
District currently has a business relationship with MBAS and is billed on a net 30 following 
completion of laboratory analysis. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to spend 
up to $10,000 to complete laboratory analysis related to the Watermaster in WY 2019.   
 
BACKGROUND:  The District provides water quality monitoring and data management support 
to the Watermaster to meet the requirements outlined in the Seaside Groundwater Basin 
Monitoring and Management Plan.  The Plan is a requirement outlined in the 2007 Adjudication 
Decision.  The Monitoring and Management plan was adopted by the Monterey County Superior 
Court in 2008 and outlines a series of monitor and production wells to be sampled each water year.  
The District has a contract with the Watermaster to carry out this work on their behalf.   District 
staff uses MBAS to complete the laboratory analysis for the sampling required by the Plan. 
 
EXHIBIT 
None 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ConsentClndr\05\Item-5.docx 

ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
5. CONSIDER AUTHORIZING MONTEREY BAY ANALYTICAL SERVICES TO 

PROVIDE LABORATORY SUPPORT FOR WATERMASTER WATER 
QUALITY MONITORING 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   No 
 
From: David J. Stoldt Program/ Water Supply Projects 
 General Manager Line Item: N/A 
   
Prepared By: Jonathan Lear Cost Estimate: $10,000 
 
General Counsel  Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on July 
10, 2018 and recommended approval. 
CEQA Compliance:   This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15378. 

51



52



 
SUMMARY:  Staff proposes to use Monterey Bay Analytical Services (MBAS) to complete water 
quality analysis in support of the Regional Water Quality Control Board’s (RWQCB) Sample and 
Analysis (SAP) plan required to operate the Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) project.   The 
District currently has a business relationship with MBAS and is billed on a net 30 following 
completion of laboratory analysis. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to spend 
funds up to $60,000 to complete laboratory analysis related to the SAP in WY 2019.   
 
BACKGROUND:  The District operates the ASR project and is required by the RWQCB to 
complete and submit an Annual Operations Report.  A component of this report requires various 
water quality sampling from injected water to off-site wells to characterize and monitor the water 
quality of the Seaside Groundwater Basin.  Staff utilizes MBAS to complete the water quality 
analysis outlined in the SAP.  The District has been working with MBAS for over a decade to 
support this function.  All funds spent for laboratory analysis related to the SAP are reimbursed  
by California American Water (Cal-Am) through the ASR Operations Agreement between the 
District and Cal-Am. 
 
EXHIBIT 
None 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ConsentClndr\06\Item-6.docx 

ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
6. CONSIDER AUTHORIZING MONTEREY BAY ANALYTICAL SERVICES TO 

PROVIDE LABORATORY SUPPORT FOR AQUIFER STORAGE AND 
RECOVERY PROJECT OPERATIONS 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   No 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ Water Supply Projects 
 General Manager Line Item: N/A 
   
Prepared By: Jonathan Lear Cost Estimate: $60,000 
 
General Counsel  Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on July 
10, 2018 and recommended approval. 
CEQA Compliance:   This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15378. 

53



54



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

7. CONSIDER EXPENDITURE TO CONTRACT WITH NORMANDEAU 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR CARMEL RIVER IFIM FOR IFIM MODEL SUPPORT 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   Yes 
 

From: David J. Stoldt, 
General Manager 

Program/ Protect Environmental 
Quality  

  Line Item No.:   1-8-1 A 
 
Prepared By:                    Larry Hampson Cost Estimate:   $20,000 
 
General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on July 
10, 2018 and recommended approval. 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  The District completed the Carmel River Instream Flow Incremental Method 
(IFIM) Study and associated 1-dimensional and 2-dimensionsal hydraulic models in November 
2017.  Subsequently, the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) conducted additional 
review of the study and had several comments and concerns about its use in evaluating 
alternatives for management of Los Padres Dam.  This item is to request $20,000 to address 
NMFS comments, revise the IFIM study, and to allow expenditures to revise the IFIM model in 
response to information provided from ongoing analysis of Los Padres Dam alternatives. 
 
If this item is adopted with the Consent Calendar, the General Manager will be authorized to 
expend up to $20,000 for support from Normandeau Associates, Inc., for continued development 
of the Carmel River Instream Flow Incremental Method Study. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval. 
 
DISCUSSION:  The Board has authorized $251,000 over the previous five fiscal years to 
develop the Carmel River IFIM Study, which was completed in November 2017 after input on 
all aspects of the study and review of draft products by California American Water, California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife, and the National Marine Fisheries Service.  In November 2017, 
NMFS chose to carry out another review by staff who had not been involved in the project 
previously.  Their review resulted in several comments on the study that will need to be 
addressed.  The IFIM model may also need to be modified for use with some of the alternatives 
that are being considered for Los Padres Dam.  In particular, dam removal may result in channel 
changes downstream of the dam that are outside of the range of conditions that the present IFIM 
model can evaluate.   
 
IMPACTS ON STAFF AND RESOURCES:  District staff will be involved with project 
management and ongoing discussion about use of and results from the IFIM model. 

55



EXHIBIT 
None 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ConsentClndr\07\Item-7.docx 

56



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
8. RECEIVE DRAFT WATER YEAR 2017 AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY 

PROJECT SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS REPORTS 
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted: N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ 1-2-1 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 
Prepared By: Jonathan Lear Cost Estimate: N/A 
 
General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  A draft report documenting the summary of operations for Water Year 2017 at the 
Monterey Peninsula Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Project sites has been prepared by the 
District’s technical consultant on the project, Pueblo Water  Resources,  Inc.  The  draft report is 
provided as Exhibit 8-A. The report documents the ASR activities conducted cooperatively with 
California American Water (CAW) at  the  Phase  1  and  2  ASR  sites  during WY 2017, including: 
(a) summary of project status and injection well performance, (b) seasonal recharge operations, 
and (c) water-quality monitoring. During WY 2017, a volume of 2,345 acre-feet (AF) of Carmel 
River Basin source water was injected and stored in the Seaside Basin during the winter high-flow 
season. The completion of this annual report is a requirement of the Central Coast Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (RWQCB) as part of their ongoing oversight of the ASR program in the 
Seaside Basin. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Board should receive the draft report documenting ASR activities 
at the ASR project sites during WY 2017. If this item is adopted along with the Consent Calendar, 
the report will be finalized and distributed, subject to inclusion of comments from the District, Cal-
Am or other interested parties. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The District has been pursuing Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) in the 
Seaside Basin since 1996. The project concept entails diverting excess winter flows from the 
Carmel River Basin approximately six miles through existing Cal-Am distribution system 
pipelines to the hydrologically-separate Seaside Basin, where the water is injected into specially- 
constructed ASR wells, for later recovery during dry periods. Prior to injection, the diverted water 
is treated at Cal-Am’s Begonia Iron Removal Plant in Carmel Valley so that it meets potable 
drinking water standards. In 1998, the District constructed a pilot injection well, known as the Paso 
Robles Test Injection Well (PRTIW) in the northeastern portion of the City of Seaside. The 460-
feet deep pilot well was screened in the Paso Robles Formation aquifer. Subsequent injection 
testing at the pilot well provided data that allowed the District to proceed with construction of a 
larger injection test well, SMTIW No. 1 (now referred to as ASR-1), for which construction was 
completed in 2002 on the former Fort Ord Military Reservation,  approximately 300 feet east of 
the PRTIW. This site is known as the Phase 1 or Santa Margarita ASR facility. ASR-1 is an 18 

57



inch-diameter, 720 feet deep stainless steel well screened in the Santa Margarita Sandstone aquifer. 
The Santa Margarita aquifer has more favorable hydrogeologic characteristics, and is therefore 
more conducive to a full-scale ASR project in the basin. ASR-2 was drilled in 2007 and equipped 
with permanent pump and motor in 2008. ASR- 2 is larger and deeper, at 22 inches in diameter 
and 790 feet deep. In recent years, District staff has been working with the City of Seaside and the 
Fort Ord Reuse Authority in order to expand the Santa Margarita ASR site to incorporate needed 
space for pipelines, treatment equipment, and well backflushing capacity. 
 
Also in 2008, the District began negotiations with the Monterey Peninsula Unified School District 
(MPUSD) for potential use of an unused portion of the Seaside Middle School property for a 
second phase of ASR expansion. This was followed by successful exploration work at the site in 
2009 and an easement for the site was acquired by Cal-Am in 2011.  The District has  been working 
under contract with Cal-Am to complete construction of ASR wells 3 and 4       and the permanent 
ASR facilities at this Phase 2 ASR site. 
 
The draft WY 2017 report has been provided to Cal-Am staff for their review and comment. The 
report, once finalized, will be posted and available on the District’s website. The report will also 
be a useful reference document to support future operations and testing at the ASR Project sites. 
 
IMPACT ON STAFF/RESOURCES:  A significant staff effort has been expended planning, 
coordinating, and overseeing work on the District’s ASR program in the Seaside Basin. It is 
planned to continue this level of effort during the remainder of this year and into the next recharge 
season. 
 
EXHIBIT 
8-A 2017 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project Summary of Operation Report 

(A print out of the report is available for review at the MPWMD office and can be provided 
upon request.) 

 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ConsentClndr\08\Item-8.docx 

58



4478 Market Street, Suite 705  Ventura, California 93003 
805-644-0470  Fax 805-644-0480

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS 

MONTEREY PENINSULA 
ASR PROJECT 

WATER YEAR 2017 

Prepared for: 

JUNE 2018 
DRAFT 

EXHIBIT 8-A 59



4478 Market Street, Suite 705  Ventura, California 93003 
805-644-0470  Fax 805-644-0480 

June 30, 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Post Office Box 85 
Monterey, California 93942-0085 

Attention: Mr. Jonathan Lear, Senior Hydrogeologist 

Subject: Monterey Peninsula ASR Project; Draft Water Year 2017 Summary of Operations 
Report 

Dear Jon: 

We are transmitting one digital image (PDF) of the subject draft report documenting 
operations of the Monterey Peninsula ASR Project during Water Year 2017 (WY 2017) for your 
review and comments.  WY 2017 was classified as an “Extremely Wet” Water Year on the on 
the Monterey Peninsula, and as a result a commensurately significant volume of water totaling 
2,345 acre-feet (af) was able to be diverted from the Carmel River system for recharge in the 
Seaside Groundwater Basin (SGB) via the ASR-1 through ASR-4 wells.  To date, a total volume 
of approximately 7,430 of excess Carmel River system water has been successfully injected, 
stored, and recovered in the SBG since the ASR project was initiated in 2001.   

We appreciate the opportunity to provide ongoing assistance to the District on this 
important community water-supply project.  Please contact us with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

PUEBLO WATER RESOURCES, INC. 

Robert C. Marks, P.G., C.Hg. 
Principal Hydrogeologist 

Stephen P. Tanner, P.E. 
Principal Engineer 

Copies submitted:  1 digital (PDF) 

EXHIBIT 8-A 60



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_toc.doc 

- i -

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................ 1 
GENERAL STATEMENT ................................................................................. 1 
BACKGROUND ............................................................................................... 1 
PURPOSE AND SCOPE ................................................................................. 2 

FINDINGS ...................................................................................................................  3 
WY 2017 ASR OPERATIONS ......................................................................... 3 

General Recharge Procedures ............................................................. 3 
Injection Operations Summary ............................................................. 4 
Recovery Operations Summary ........................................................... 5 

WELL PERFORMANCE .................................................................................. 5 
Injection Performance .......................................................................... 5 
ASR-4 Baseline Injection Testing ......................................................... 10 
Pumping Performance and Residual Plugging ..................................... 15 

AQUIFER RESPONSE TO INJECTION .......................................................... 17 
WATER QUALITY ........................................................................................... 18 

General ................................................................................................ 18 
Injection Water Quality ......................................................................... 19 
Water Quality During Aquifer Storage .................................................. 19 
Water Quality at Off-Site Monitoring Wells ........................................... 28 
Additional Water Quality Observations ................................................. 28 

CONCLUSIONS .......................................................................................................... 36 

RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................................................... 39 

CLOSURE  ............................................................................................................ 41 

REFERENCES ........................................................................................................... 42 

TABLES 

1 WY 2017 Injection Operations Summary  ........................................................ 4 
2 Injection Performance Summary - ASR-1 ........................................................ 6 
3 Injection Performance Summary - ASR-2 ........................................................ 8 
4 Injection Performance Summary - ASR-3 ........................................................ 9 
5 ASR-4 Baseline Baseline Injection Testing Specific Injectivity Summary ......... 12 
6 ASR-4 10-minute Specific Capacity Summary ................................................. 13 
7 ASR-4 Summary of SDI Test Results  ............................................................. 14 
8 Injection Performance Summary - ASR-4 ........................................................ 15 
9 Pumping Performance and Residual Plugging Summary  ............................... 16 
10 Aquifer Response Summary ............................................................................ 18 

EXHIBIT 8-A 61



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_toc.doc 

- ii -

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) 

11 Summary of WY 2017 Water-Quality Data - Injectate  ..................................... 20 
12 Summary of WY 2017 Water-Quality Data - ASR-1  ........................................ 21 
13 Summary of WY 2017 Water-Quality Data - ASR-2  ........................................ 22 
14 Summary of WY 2017 Water-Quality Data - ASR-3  ........................................ 23 
15 Summary of WY 2017 Water-Quality Data - ASR-4  ........................................ 24 
16 Summary of WY 2017 Water-Quality Data - SM MW-1  ................................... 25 
17 Summary of WY 2017 Water-Quality Data – SMS Deep  ................................ 26 
18 Summary of WY 2017 Water-Quality Data - Off-Site MWs  ............................. 29 
19 Hg “Cycle Test” Data Summary  ...................................................................... 32 

FIGURES 

Site Location Map ....................................................................................................... 1 
ASR-1 As-Built Schematic .......................................................................................... 2 
ASR-2 As-Built Schematic .......................................................................................... 3 
ASR-3 As-Built Schematic .......................................................................................... 4 
ASR-4 As-Built Schematic .......................................................................................... 5 
Summary of ASR Operations (WY 2001 – WY 2017) .................................................. 6 
ASR-1 Water-Level Data  ............................................................................................ 7 
ASR-2 Water-Level Data  ............................................................................................ 8 
ASR-3 Water-Level Data  ............................................................................................ 9 
ASR-4 Water-Level Data  ............................................................................................ 10 
ASR-4 Baseline Injection Testing – 8-hr Step-Rate Injection Test  .............................. 11 
ASR-4 Baseline Injection Testing – 24-hr Constant-Rate Injection Test  ..................... 12 
ASR-4 Baseline Injection Testing – 6-day Constant-Rate Injection Test...................... 13 
SMS Water-Level Data  .............................................................................................. 14 
SM MW-1 Water-Level Data  ...................................................................................... 15 
Paralta Test Water-Level Data .................................................................................... 16 
Ord Grove Test Water-Level Data ............................................................................... 17 
Ord Terrace Water-Level Data .................................................................................... 18 
FO-7 Water Level-Data ............................................................................................... 19 
FO-9 Water Level-Data ............................................................................................... 20 
PCA-East Water-Level Data ........................................................................................ 21 
FO-8 Water Level-Data ............................................................................................... 22 
ASR-1 Disinfection By-Products Parameters .............................................................. 23 
ASR-2 Disinfection By-Products Parameters .............................................................. 24 
ASR-3 Disinfection By-Products Parameters .............................................................. 25 
ASR-4 Disinfection By-Products Parameters .............................................................. 26 
SM MW-1 Disinfection By-Products Parameters ......................................................... 27 
SMS Deep Disinfection By-Products Parameters ........................................................ 28 
ASR-4 Hg Monthly Storage Data ................................................................................ 29 
ASR-4 – ASR-3 Hg “Breakthrough” Monitoring Data ................................................... 30 

EXHIBIT 8-A 62



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_toc.doc 

- iii -

APPENDICES 

(NOT INCLUDED IN DRAFT) 

Field Data  ..................................................................................................................  A 
Water Quality Laboratory Reports ............................................................................... B 
High-Frequency Injectate Sampling Data .................................................................... C 
Backflush Residue Sampling Laboratory Reports ....................................................... D 

EXHIBIT 8-A 63



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 1 - 

INTRODUCTION 

GENERAL STATEMENT 

Presented in this report is a summary of operations of the Monterey Peninsula Aquifer 
Storage and Recovery (ASR) Project during Water Year 2017 (WY 2017)1. During WY 2017, 
approximately 2,345 acre-feet (af) of excess flows were diverted from the Carmel River system 
for recharge, storage, and subsequent recovery in the Seaside Groundwater Basin (SGB).  This 
report presents a summary of the project operations during WY 2017, an assessment of ASR 
well performance, aquifer response and water-quality data, and provides recommendations for 
ongoing operation of the project. 

BACKGROUND 

The Monterey Peninsula ASR Project is cooperatively implemented by the Monterey 
Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD or District) and California American Water 
(CAW) and involves the diversion of excess winter and spring time flows from the Carmel River 
system for recharge and storage in the Seaside Groundwater Basin (SGB).  The excess water is 
captured by CAW wells in the Carmel Valley during periods when flows in the Carmel River 
exceed fisheries bypass flow requirements, treated to potable drinking water standards, and then 
conveyed through CAW’s distribution system to ASR facilities in the SGB.   

Aquifer recharge is accomplished via injection of these excess flows into specially 
designed ASR wells drilled in the SGB.  The locations of the ASR wells and associated project 
monitoring wells in the SGB are shown on Figure 1.  The recharged water is temporarily stored 
underground utilizing the available storage space within the aquifer system.  During periods of 
high demand, other existing CAW production wells in the SGB and/or the ASR wells can be used 
to recover the previously recharged water, which in turn allows for reduced extractions from the 
Carmel River system during seasonal dry periods. 

The District and CAW have been cooperatively developing an ASR project on the 
Monterey Peninsula since 1996.  These efforts have evolved over time, from the performance of 
various technical feasibility investigations, leading to the construction and testing of pilot- and 
then full-scale ASR test wells to demonstrate the viability and operational parameters for ASR 
wells in the SGB.  Based on the success of the ASR demonstration testing program, MPWMD 
and CAW are in the process of implementing a full-scale permanent ASR Project.   

The Phase 1 ASR Project (a.k.a. Water Project 1) includes two ASR wells (ASR-1 and 
ASR-2) located at the Santa Margarita (SM) ASR Facility at 1910 General Jim Moore Blvd. in 
Seaside.  The Phase 1 Project is capable of recharging up to the State Water Resources Control 

                                                
1 Water Year 2017 is the period of October 1, 2016 through September 30, 2017. 

EXHIBIT 8-A 64



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 2 -

Board (SWRCB) water right2 maximum annual diversion limit of 2,426 acre-feet per year (afy) at 
a combined permitted injection rate of approximately 3,000 gallons per minute ([gpm] maximum 
diversion rate of 6.7 cubic feet per second [cfs]), with an average annual yield of approximately 
920 afy.  ASR-1 is designed for an injection capacity of 1,000 gpm and ASR-2 is designed for an 
injection capacity of 1,500 gpm.  As-built schematics of ASR-1 and ASR-2 are presented on 
Figures 2 and 3, respectively. 

The Phase 2 ASR Project (a.k.a. Water Project 2) also includes two ASR wells (ASR-3 
and ASR-4) located at the Seaside Middle School (SMS) ASR Facility at 2111 General Jim 
Moore Blvd. in Seaside.  The Phase 2 Project is designed to be capable of recharging up to the 
SWRCB water right3 maximum annual diversion limit of 2,900 afy at a combined permitted 
injection rate of approximately 3,600 gpm (maximum diversion rate of 8.0 cfs), with an average 
annual yield of approximately 1,000 afy.  ASR-3 and ASR-4 are both designed for injection 
capacities of 1,500 gpm.  As-built schematics of ASR-3 and ASR-4 are presented on Figures 4 

and 5, respectively.   

A graphical summary of historical ASR operations in the SGB is shown on Figure 6.  
Shown are the annual injection and recovery volumes since the inception of injection operations 
at the Santa Margarita ASR Facility in WY 2001 through the current period of WY 2017.  Also 
presented is a delineation of the various phases of project implementation, starting with the 
Santa Margarita Test Injection Well (SMTIW) in 2001, which became ASR-1 as the project 
transitioned from a testing program to a permanent project in WY 2008 (Phase 1 ASR Project), 
through construction and operation of the second well (ASR-2) at the facility in 2010.  As shown, 
having the Santa Margarita Facility in full operation with both ASR-1 and ASR-2 injecting 
simultaneously in WY 2010 and WY 2011 (combined with above normal rainfall and Carmel 
River flows during those years) resulted in significant increases in the annual volume injected.  
During WY 2012 through WY 2015, relatively low volumes were injected due to the extended 
drought conditions during that period.   

WY 2017 was the first year of above normal rainfall and Carmel River flows with all four 
ASR wells in full operation, and as shown on Figure 6 over 2,300 af of excess river flows were 
captured and successfully injected into the SGB.  This volume represents over twice the previous 
largest annual volumes injected (in WY 2010 and WY 2012), and approximately one quarter of 
the Monterey Peninsula’s average annual water supply.  Commensurate annual injection 
volumes are expected to occur in the future (depending on hydrologic conditions in any given 
year) as the project continues to operate at full capacity. 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

The overall purpose of the ongoing ASR program is to recharge the SGB with excess 
treated Carmel River system water when it is available during wet periods for storage and later 

2 SWRCB water right 20808A for the Phase 1 ASR Project is held jointly by MPWMD and CAW. 
3 The SWRCB water right 20808C for the Phase 2 ASR Project is held jointly by MPWMD and CAW. 

EXHIBIT 8-A 65



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 3 -

extraction (recovery) during dry periods.  ASR benefits the resources of both systems by raising 
water levels in the SGB during the recharge and storage periods and reducing extractions from 
the Carmel River System during dry periods.   

The scope of the ongoing data collection, analysis, and reporting program for the ASR 
program can be categorized into issues generally associated with:  

1) ASR well hydraulics and performance;

2) Aquifer response to injection, and;

3) Water-quality issues associated with geochemical interaction and mixing of injected
and native groundwaters.

The ongoing data collection and reporting program is intended to monitor and track ASR 
well performance and aquifer response to injection (both hydraulic and water quality) and to 
comply with the requirements of the Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(RWQCB) for submitting annual technical reports for the project pursuant to Section 13267 of the 
California Water Code4 and the existing General Waiver for Specific Types of Discharges 
(Resolution R3-2008-0010).  

FINDINGS 

WY 2017 ASR OPERATIONS 

General Recharge Procedures 

Recharge of the SGB occurs via injection of diverted flows from the CAW distribution 
system into ASR wells during periods of available excess Carmel River system flows.  The ASR 
recharge source water is potable (treated) water provided from the CAW distribution system.  
The water is currently diverted by various production well sources in Carmel Valley and (after 
treatment and disinfection to potable standards) then conveyed through the Segunda-Crest 
pipeline network to the ASR Pipeline in General Jim Moore Blvd and then to the Santa Margarita 
and Seaside Middle School ASR facilities.   

Injection water is introduced into the ASR wells via the pump columns.  Injection rates are 
controlled primarily by downhole flow control valves (FCV’s) installed on the pump columns, and 
secondarily by modulating the automatic flow control valves (i.e., Cla-Vals) installed on the ASR 
wellhead piping.  Injection flow rates and total injected volumes are measured with rate and 
totalizing meters at each of the wellheads.  Positive gauge pressures are maintained at the 
wellheads during injection to prevent cascading of water into the wells (which can lead to air-
binding). Continuous water-level data at each of the ASR wells are collected with submersible 
pressure transducer data loggers. 

4 Letter from Roger W. Briggs, Executive Officer of the Central Coast RWQCB, to Joseph Oliver, Water 
Resources Manager for MPWMD, dated April 29, 2009. 

EXHIBIT 8-A 66



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 4 - 

Injection generally occurs at each of the ASR wells on a continuous basis when flows are 
available, interrupted only for periodic backflushing, which typically occurs on an approximate 
weekly basis.  Most sources of injection water contain trace amounts of solids that slowly 
accumulate in the pore spaces in the well’s gravel pack and adjacent aquifer materials, and the 
CAW source water is no exception.  Periodic backflushing of the ASR wells is therefore 
necessary to maintain well performance by removing materials deposited/accumulated around 
the well bore during injection.  The procedure is similar to backwashing a media filter to remove 
accumulated material deposited during filtration. 

The trigger for backflushing is when the amount of water-level drawup during injection 
equals the available drawdown (as measured from the static water level to the top of the pump 
bowls) in the well for backflushing, or one week of continuous injection, whichever occurs first.  
This helps to avoid over-pressurization and compression of plugging materials, thereby 
maximizing the efficiency of backflushing and limiting the amount of residual plugging.  This 
factor is the basis for the maximum recommended drawup levels referenced in the following 
section. 

The general procedure consists of temporarily stopping injection and then pumping the 
wells at rates of approximately 2,000 to 3,000 gpm (i.e., at least twice the rate of injection) for a 
period of approximately 15 to 20 minutes, and repeated as necessary to effectively remove 
particulates from the well screen / gravel pack / aquifer matrix.  Backflush water is discharged to 
the Santa Margarita ASR Facility backflush pit, where it percolates back into the groundwater 
basin. 

Injection Operations Summary 

A summary of injection operations at the four ASR wells is presented in Table 1 below.  
Field data collected during injection operations are presented in Appendix A (not included in 
draft). 

Table 1.  WY 2017 Injection Operations Summary 

 

As shown in Table 1, recharge operations were performed nearly continuously in WY 
2017 during the period December 17, 2016 through May 31, 2017.  WY 2017 was classified as 

Active Total Vol

Well Start End Days Min Max Avg (af)

ASR-1 12/20/16 5/31/17 93 270        1,868      1,434      543.0
ASR-2 12/17/16 5/30/17 155 337        1,944      1,449      981.6
ASR-3 12/17/16 5/22/17 134 600        1,405      996         577.9
ASR-4 4/5/17 5/19/17 45 142        1,590      1,257      242.9

Total 2345.4

Injection Season Injection Rate (gpm)

EXHIBIT 8-A 67



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 5 -

an “Extremely Wet” Water Year5 on the Carmel River with up to 155 days of active injection and 
a total volume of approximately 2,345 acre-feet (af) of water was available for diversion from the 
CAW system for recharge in the SGB.  The recharge water was injected at all four ASR wells 
into the Santa Margarita Sandstone aquifer with per-well average injection rates ranging from 
approximately 140 to 1,950 gpm (approximately 0.62 to 8.6 acre-feet per day [afd]).  

It is noted that the variability in injection rates at the ASR wells during the injection 
season is controlled by various factors, including the number of active sources to the CAW 
system, customer demands on the CAW system, and the ability of CAW’s distribution system to 
maintain piping pressure at the ASR wellheads. 

 Water-level data collected at ASR-1 through ASR-4 during WY 2017 are presented in 
Figures 7 through 10, respectively, and briefly summarized below: 

• ASR-1: The minimum injection water-level was approximately 250 feet below
ground surface (bgs) on a relatively consistent basis during the injection season,
corresponding to a maximum water-level drawup of approximately 110 feet, which
exceeded the maximum recommended drawup level of approximately 100 by 10
feet.

• ASR-2: The minimum injection water-level was approximately 220 feet bgs on a
relatively consistent basis during the injection season, corresponding to a
maximum water-level drawup of approximately 160 feet, which exceeded the
maximum recommended drawup level of approximately 130 by 30 feet.

• ASR-3: The minimum injection water-level was approximately 170 feet bgs on a
relatively consistent basis during the injection season, corresponding to a
maximum water-level drawup of approximately 190 feet, which exceeded the
maximum recommended drawup level of approximately 170 feet by 20 feet.

• ASR-4: The minimum injection water-level was typically maintained approximately
200 to 300 feet bgs, corresponding to water-level drawup of approximately 60 to
160 feet, well below the maximum recommended drawup level of approximately
200 feet; however, on one occasion the injection water level reached a maximum
drawup of approximately by 200 feet with a minimum depth to water of
approximately 160 ft bgs.

In summary, injection water levels at ASR-1 through ASR-3 frequently exceeded the 
respective maximum drawup levels by approximately 10 to 30 feet during WY 2017.  Injection 
water levels at ASR-4 were generally maintained below the recommended minimum level below 
ground surface.  The effects of these injection water levels on residual well plugging and well 
performance is discussed below. 

5 Based on 196,291 af of unimpaired Carmel River flow at the Sleepy Hollow Weir in WY 2017. 

EXHIBIT 8-A 68



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 6 -

Recovery Operations Summary 

When the injected water is recovered via delivery through the CAW system, the 
recovered water is offset by reduced pumping by CAW from the Carmel River system during the 
low-flow, high demand periods of the year.  During WY 2017, other CAW wells in the SGB were 
utilized for recovery of previously injected water (ASR-1 was inactive due to a failed FCV).   As 
shown on Figure 6, 1,182 af of water recharged during WY 2017 was recovered into the CAW 
system, with 1,163 af left in aquifer storage and carried over into WY 2018.    

It is noted that in this context, ASR recovery is essentially an accounting / allocation of 
CAW’s various water rights and pumping from the SGB and does not represent a “molecule-for-
molecule” recovery of the injected water.  Rather, the volume recharged in any given year 
increases the operational yield of the SGB by the same amount and can be “recovered” by any 
of CAW’s wells in the SGB and / or the ASR wells themselves.   

WELL PERFORMANCE 

Well performance is generally measured by specific capacity (pumping) and / or specific 
injectivity (injection), which is the ratio of flow rate (pumping or injection) to water-level change in 
the well (drawdown or drawup) over a specific elapsed time.  The value is typically expressed as 
gallons per minute per foot of water level change (gpm/ft).  The value normalizes well 
performance by taking into account differing static water levels and flow rates.  As such, specific 
capacity / injectivity data are useful for comparing well performance over time and at differing 
flow rates.  Decreases in specific capacity / injectivity are indicative of decreases in the hydraulic 
efficiency of a well due to the effects of plugging and/or particle rearrangement. 

Injection Performance 

Injection performance has been tracked at ASR-1 since the inception of the ASR program 
in WY 2002 by measurement and comparison of 24-hour injection specific injectivities (a.k.a. 
injection specific capacity).   

ASR-1.  A summary of 24-hour specific injectivity for ASR-1 for WY 2002 through 2017 is 
presented in Table 2 below: 

Table 2.  Injection Performance Summary - ASR-1 

Water Year 
Injection 

Rate 
(gpm) 

24-hour
DUP
(feet)

Specific 
Injectivity 
(gpm/ft) 

Water 
Year 

Change 
Comments 

WY2002 

Beginning Period 1,570 81.7 19.2 FCV not installed yet in WY2002. 
No recovery pumping performed. Ending Period 1,164 199.8 6.4 -67%

WY2003 

Beginning Period 1,070 70.0 15.5 Recovery pumping performed following 

EXHIBIT 8-A 69



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 7 - 

Water Year 
Injection 

Rate 
(gpm) 

24-hour  
DUP 
(feet) 

Specific 
Injectivity 
(gpm/ft) 

Water  
Year 

Change 
Comments 

Ending Period 1,007 49.7 20.3 +31% WY2003 Injection 

WY2004      

Beginning Period 1,383 183.4 7.5  Recovery pumping performed following 
WY2004 Injection Ending Period 1,072 67.4 15.9 +112% 

WY2005      

Beginning Period 1,045 46.6 22.4  Injectate dechlorinated in WY2005.  No 
recovery pumping performed. Ending Period 976 94.1 10.4 -54% 

WY2006      

Beginning Period 1,039 71.5 15.0  Injection procedures consistent and 
performance stable in WY2006.  No 
recovery pumping performed. Ending Period 1,008 62.2 17.5 +17% 

WY2007      

Beginning Period 1,098 92.4 11.9  Only one injection period in WY2007. 
No recovery pumping performed. Ending Period -- -- -- -- 

WY2008      

Beginning Period 979 25.5 38.4  Formal rehabilitation performed prior to 
WY2008 injection Ending Period 1,063 33.4 31.8 -17% 

WY 2009      

Beginning Period 1,119 56.1 19.9  Beginning period low specific injectivity 
due to high plugging rate during initial 
injection period.  No recovery pumping 
performed. Ending Period 1,069 34.3 31.1 +56% 

WY 2010      

Beginning Period 1,080 35.6 30.3  Observed decline in performance due 
to residual plugging. Ending Period 1,326 54.0 24.6 -19% 

WY 2011      

Beginning Period 1,367 53.0 25.8  Observed decline in performance due 
to residual plugging. Ending Period 1,454 63.7 22.8 -10% 

WY 2012      

Beginning Period NA NA NA  
No injection at this well this year. 

Ending Period NA NA NA NA 

WY 2013      

Beginning Period NA NA NA  
No injection at this well this year. 

Ending Period NA NA NA NA 

EXHIBIT 8-A 70



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 8 -

Water Year 
Injection 

Rate 
(gpm) 

24-hour
DUP
(feet)

Specific 
Injectivity 
(gpm/ft) 

Water 
Year 

Change 
Comments 

WY 2014 

Beginning Period NA NA NA 
No injection at this well this year. 

Ending Period NA NA NA NA 

WY 2015 

Beginning Period NA NA NA No beginning period due to datalogger 
malfunction. Ending Period 1,018 40.7 25.0 NA 

WY 2016 

Beginning Period NA NA NA No beginning period due to datalogger 
malfunction. Ending Period 460 14.4 31.9 NA 

WY 2017 

Beginning Period 970 39.5 24.6 
See discussion below 

Ending Period 1,295 60.2 21.5 -13%

As shown in Table 2, the 24-hour specific injectivity at the beginning of WY 2017 was 
24.6 gpm/ft and at the end of WY 2017 it was 21.5 gpm/ft, representing a decrease of 
approximately 13 percent, indicating that some residual plugging occurred at ASR-1 over the 
course of the WY 2017 injection season (discussed further in a following section). 

ASR-2.  A summary of the beginning and ending injection performance at ASR-2 for WY 
2010 through WY 2017 is presented in Table 3 below:   

Table 3.  Injection Performance Summary - ASR-2 

Water Year 
Injection 

Rate 
(gpm) 

24-hour
DUP
(feet)

Specific 
Injectivity 
(gpm/ft) 

Water 
Year 

Change 
Comments 

WY 2010 

Beginning Period 1,017 156.5 6.5 
Significant residual plugging. 

Ending Period 237 85.0 2.8 -57%

WY 2011 

Beginning Period 1,497 39.5 37.9 Significant improvement as a result 
of well rehabilitation.  No residual 
plugging during year. Ending Period 1,292 34.3 37.7 -0.5%

WY 2012 

Beginning Period 1,830 56.1 32.6 Observed decline in performance 
due to residual plugging. Ending Period 1,817 63.4 28.7 -12%

WY 2013 

EXHIBIT 8-A 71



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 9 -

Water Year 
Injection 

Rate 
(gpm) 

24-hour
DUP
(feet)

Specific 
Injectivity 
(gpm/ft) 

Water 
Year 

Change 
Comments 

Beginning Period 1,087 32.7 33.2 
No residual plugging during year. 

Ending Period 1,508 44.2 34.1 +3%

WY 2014 

Beginning Period NA NA NA 
No injection at this well this year. 

Ending Period NA NA NA NA 

WY 2015 

Beginning Period 1,456 38.9 37.4 Observed decline in performance 
due to residual plugging. Ending Period 1,574 49.1 32.1 -14%

WY 2016 

Beginning Period 1,270 34.9 36.4 Observed decline in performance 
due to residual plugging. Ending Period 1,620 63.9 25.4 -30%

WY 2017 

Beginning Period 822 24.2 33.9 
See discussion below 

Ending Period 907 30.7 29.5 -13%

As shown in Table 3, the 24-hour specific injectivity at the beginning of WY 2017 was 
33.9 gpm/ft and at the end of WY 2017 it was 29.5 gpm/ft, representing a decrease of 
approximately 13 percent, indicating that some residual plugging occurred at ASR-2 over the 
course of the WY 2017 injection season (discussed further in a following section). 

ASR-3.  A summary of the beginning and ending injection performance at ASR-3 for WY 
2013 through WY 2017 is presented in Table 4 below:  

Table 4.  Injection Performance Summary – ASR-3 

Water Year 
Injection 

Rate 
(gpm) 

24-hour
DUP
(feet)

Specific 
Injectivity 
(gpm/ft) 

Water 
Year 

Change 
Comments 

WY 2013 

Beginning Period 1,044 87.0 12.0 
See discussion below. 

Ending Period 822 99.6 8.3 -31%

WY 2014 

Beginning Period NA NA NA 
No injection at this well this year. 

Ending Period NA NA NA NA 

WY 2015 

Beginning Period NA NA NA No beginning period data. 

EXHIBIT 8-A 72



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 10 - 

Water Year 
Injection 

Rate 
(gpm) 

24-hour  
DUP 
(feet) 

Specific 
Injectivity 
(gpm/ft) 

Water  
Year 

Change 
Comments 

Ending Period 892 90.3 9.9 NA 

WY 2016      

Beginning Period 948 83.6 11.3  
Slight increase observed. 

Ending Period 897 74.1 12.1 +7% 

WY 2017      

Beginning Period 936 107.5 8.7  
See discussion below. 

Ending Period 986 105.2 9.4 +8% 

As shown in Table 4, the 24-hour specific injectivity at the beginning of WY 2017 was 8.7 
gpm/ft and at the end of WY 2017 it was 9.4 gpm/ft, representing a slight increase of 
approximately 8 percent, indicating that no residual plugging occurred at ASR-3 over the course 
of the WY 2017 injection season.   

ASR-4 Baseline Injection Testing 

WY 2017 was the first year that ASR-4 was able to be placed in full operational mode 
following the injection “conditioning” conducted at the well in WY 2016 (refer to the WY 2016 
Summary of Operations Report).  Prior to long-term continuous injection operations in WY 2017, 
a baseline injection testing program was conducted.  The primary purpose of the baseline 
injection testing was to establish the baseline injection well hydraulics and performance of the 
new well.  Primary issues to be investigated include: 

• Determination of injection well efficiency and specific injectivity; 

• Evaluation of injection well plugging rates (both active and residual); 

• Determination of optimal rates, frequency, and duration of backflushing in order to 
maintain long-term injection capacity, and;  

• Determination of long-term sustainable injection rates. 

The baseline testing program included the following steps: 

1. Pre-injection pumping performance testing; 

2. 8-hr step-rate injection testing; 

3. 24-hr constant-rate injection test; 

4. 6-day constant-rate injection test; 

5. Backflushing between each injection test, and; 

6. Post-injection pumping performance testing 

EXHIBIT 8-A 73



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 11 - 

Pre-Injection Pumping Performance Test.  A pre-injection performance test was 
conducted on April 4, 2016, which consisted of a 10-minute specific capacity test.  As discussed 
in the following section, 10-minute specific-capacity tests are typically performed at all project 
ASR wells following routine backflushing operations to track well pumping performance (and 
evaluate residual plugging), similar to the tracking of injection performance from 24-hour specific 
injectivity discussed above.     

The static water level in ASR-4 prior to pumping was approximately 333.7 feet bgs6. The 
discharge was maintained at an average rate of approximately 3,000 gpm during the 10-minute 
test.  The pumping level after 10-minutes was approximately 455.5 feet bgs, corresponding to a 
drawdown of 121.8 feet and a 10-minute specific capacity of approximately 24.6 gpm/ft. 

8-hr Step-Rate Injection Test.  A variable rate injection test was performed on April 5, 
2016.  The primary purpose of the test was to assess variations in well specific injectivity (the 
converse of specific capacity) at differing injection rates and to determine a suitable rate for long-
term injection testing.  The test consisted of four steps, each at a successively higher rate.  The 
duration of each step was 2 hours.  The four test rates were approximately 740, 1130, 1500, and 
1860 gpm (i.e., approximately 50, 75, 100 and 125 percent of the design injection capacity of 
1,500 gpm).  The static water level in the well prior to the test was 331.3 feet bgs.  The resulting 
water-level drawup and specific injectivities associated with each of these steps are shown on 
Figure 11 and are summarized below in Table 5.   

24-hr Constant-Rate Injection Test.  Following the step-rate injection test, backflushing 
(discussed below), and a period of water level recovery overnight, a 24-hour constant rate 
injection test was initiated on April 6, 2018.  This phase of testing consisted of a continuous rate 
injection test performed at an average injection rate of approximately 1,506 gpm (i.e., the design 
injection rate).  Water-level data for the 24-hour constant-rate injection test are graphically 
presented on Figure 12.   

As shown, the static water level in the well prior to injection was 335.9 feet bgs.  The 
injection water level recorded after 24 hours was 244.6 feet bgs, corresponding to a drawup of 
91.3 feet and a 24-hour specific injectivity of approximately 16.5 gpm/ft.  This value represents 
approximately 56 percent of the 24-hour pumping specific capacity of 29.4 gpm/ft7.    

6-day Constant Rate Injection Test.  A 6-day constant-rate injection was initiated on 
April 9 and continued until April 25, 2017.  This phase of testing consisted of a continuous rate 
injection test performed at an average injection rate of approximately 1,490 gpm, with a total 
volume of approximately 38.2 af injected.   

                                                
6 ASR-3 was actively injecting at approximately 1,000 during the ASR-4 Baseline Injection Testing 
program, which causes approximately 30 feet in water level interference (drawup) at ASR-4.  Typical static 
water levels at ASR-4 are approximately 360 feet bgs. 
7 Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2015), Summary of Operations, Well Construction and Testing, Seaside 
Middle School ASR-4 Well, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District. 

EXHIBIT 8-A 74



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 12 -

During injection, drawup in the well was approximately 66.1, 79.8 and 115.5 feet after 100 
minutes, 24 hours and 6 days of injection; respectively, corresponding to specific injectivities of 
approximately 22.6, 18.7 and 12.9 gpm/ft, respectively.  The 24-hour value during this test (18.7 
gpm/ft) was slightly greater than the specific injectivities observed during the 24-hour injection 
test (16.5 gpm/ft), indicating that backflushing of the well between tests (discussed below) was 
effective at removing plugging materials.   

The resulting drawup and specific injectivities associated with each of the various ASR-4 
baseline injection tests are summarized below in Table 5: 

Table 5.  ASR-4 Baseline Injection Testing Specific Injectivity Summary 

Rate Drawup Q/s

Test Duration (gpm) (ft) (gpm/ft)

Step-Rate
Step 1 2 hrs 742         21.8 34.0
Step 2 2 hrs 1,133      43.7 25.9
Step 3 2 hrs 1,500      76.5 19.6
Step 4 2 hrs 1,858      124.7 14.9

24-hr Constant 1 day 1,506      91.3 16.5
6-day Constant 6 days 1,493      115.7 12.9

As presented in Table 5, the specific injectivity ranged between approximately 12.9 and 
34.0 gpm/ft, depending on the injection rate and duration of injection.  It is important to note that 
according to well hydraulic theory, specific injectivity is expected to generally decrease with 
increasing injection rate and duration of injection; therefore, it is important to consider the test 
duration and injection rate when comparing specific injectivity values. 

Backflushing.  Following each injection test, backflushing was performed on the well. 
Backflushing operations consisted of pumping the well to waste at a rate of approximately 3,000 
for 20 minutes until discharge clarity had significantly improved.  The pump was then stopped 
and the well allowed to recover for approximately 20 minutes, then the pump was restarted and 
run for another 20 minutes as described above.  This process was performed a total of three 
times (i.e., a triple-backflush).   

During backflushing after the 8-hr step- and 24-hr constant-rate injection tests, the well 
discharge was initially only slightly turbid (approximately 10 to 20 NTU) followed by a decrease in 
turbidity to less than 3 NTU after 20 minutes.  Discharge water during the subsequent (second 
and third) pumping/surging cycles was essentially clear, indicating that the majority of 
particulates were removed from the well during the initial 20 minutes of backflushing.  After the 6-
day constant-rate injection test, however, the initial backflushing discharge was very turbid (73 
NTU), but became essentially clear by the end of the third backflush cycle.  

EXHIBIT 8-A 75



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 13 - 

Following each backflushing event, controlled 10-minute specific capacity tests were 
performed to track well performance and the efficacy of backflushing.  The 10-minute specific 
capacity results are summarized in Table 6 below: 

Table 6.  ASR-4 10-Minute Specific Capacity Summary 

 Rate Drawdown Q/s %

Test (gpm) (ft) (gpm/ft) Change
1

Pre-Injection 3000 121.8 24.6 --
Post 8-hr Step-Rate Injection 3000 187.5 16.0 -35.0

Post 24-hr Constant-Rate Injection 3000 200.1 15.0 -39.1
Post 6-Day Constant-Rate Injection 3100 222.9 13.9 -43.5

Notes:
1 - Compared to pre-injection baseline.  

As shown, the well displayed a pre-injection 10-minute specific capacity of approximately 
24.6 gpm/ft.  Following the initial 8-hr step-rate injection test, the 10-minute specific had declined 
to approximately 16.0 gpm/ft, representing a loss in performance of approximately  35 percent, 
indicating that that backflushing was not effective at restoring performance, despite the relatively 
low turbidity levels observed during backflushing (discussed above).  Following the 6-day 
constant-rate injection test, the specific capacity had declined to 13.9 gpm, representing a total 
loss in performance over the course of the baseline injection testing program of approximately 44 
percent.  It is notable that the majority of the total performance occurred after the relatively short-
duration 8-hr step-rate injection test.  This observation, combined with the very low particulate 
levels in the injectate throughout the baseline injection testing period, suggest that the loss in 
performance is not due to particulate plugging, but some other mechanism, such as particle 
rearrangement and/or geochemical reactions (e.g., solids precipitation or clay swelling).       

Plugging Rate Analysis.  Experience at injection sites around the world shows that all 
injection wells are subject to some amount of plugging because no water source is completely 
free of particulates.  During injection, trace amounts of suspended solids are continually being 
deposited in the gravel pack and aquifer pore spaces, much as a media filter captures 
particulates in the filter bed.  The effect of plugging is to impede the flow of water from the 
injection well into the aquifer, causing increased injection heads in the well to maintain a given 
injection rate, or reduced injection rates at a given head level.  Well plugging reduces injection 
and extraction capacity, and consequently, well life.  

Plugging can occur due to poor water quality, improper system operation, or poor design 
practices.  In general, plugging issues fall into four general categories: physical plugging (by 
particulate matter), chemical reaction (between the injectate and native waters or aquifer 
minerals), biofouling (the proliferation of bacteria in the gravel pack or aquifer), and gas binding 
(the vapor locking of the aquifer by entrained or evolved gasses in the injectate).   

Relative measurements of the particulate matter in the injectate were made through silt 
density index (SDI) testing during injection.  The SDI was originally developed to quantitatively 

EXHIBIT 8-A 76



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 14 -

assess particulate concentrations in reverse osmosis feed waters.  The SDI involves pressure 
filtration of source water through a 0.45 micron membrane, and observation of the decrease in 
flow over time; the resulting value of SDI is dimensionless, and used as a comparative value for 
tracking relative well plugging rates versus water quality or other parameters.  SDI test results 
are summarized in Table 7 below:   

Table 7.  ASR-4 Summary of Silt Density Index (SDI) Test Results 

Injection No. of Values
1

Test Tests High Low Average

8-hr Step-Rate 2 2.42 0.88 1.65
24-hr Constant-Rate 2 0.46 0.20 0.33
6-Day Constant-Rate 1 0.20 0.20 0.20

Notes:
1 - Dimensionless

As shown in Table 7, SDI values during injection testing consistently decreased with 
duration of the testing program, ranging between approximately 0.2 and 1.7.  Values within this 
range are generally representative of source waters with a very low amount of particulates. 

Plugging rate during injection testing of ASR-4 was estimated utilizing the Graphical 
Observed vs. Theoretical Drawup Method.  Water-level rise in an injection well is a combination 
of both aquifer response and well losses.  Theoretically, at any given constant injection rate, well 
losses should remain constant; therefore, in the absence of plugging, any water level rise in the 
well would be due only to aquifer response.  The difference between the theoretical water level 
and the observed water can be presumed to be caused by plugging. 

It is important to note that the theoretical water level rise corresponds to the water level 
that would occur if well losses were negligible and well efficiency was 100 percent.  In order to 
account for well efficiency losses, the graphical method involves drawing a straight line through 
moderate elapsed time data points (e.g., 10 to 1,000 minutes).  Assuming no plugging is 
occurring, the theoretical water level rise during injection would plot on along a straight line on a 
semi-log plot.  The variance from the straight line is assumed to be indicative of the amount of 
plugging. 

The amount of plugging, in feet of water level rise, was calculated for the 6-day constant-
rate injection test and the plugging rate analysis is presented graphically on Figure 13.  As 
shown, there was approximately 28 feet of plugging observed during the 6-day injection test.   

ASR-4 WY 2017 Injection Performance.  Following the Baseline Injection Testing 
Program, ASR-4 was placed into injection operational mode.  WY 2017 was the first injection 
season when 24-hr continuous injection operations occurred at ASR-4, and a summary of the 
beginning and ending injection performance for WY 2017 is presented in Table 8 below:  

EXHIBIT 8-A 77



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 15 -

Table 8.  Injection Performance Summary – ASR-4 

Water Year 
Injection 

Rate 
(gpm) 

24-hour
DUP
(feet)

Specific 
Injectivity 
(gpm/ft) 

Water 
Year 

Change 
Comments 

WY 2017 

Beginning Period 1,506 91.3 16.5 
See discussion below. 

Ending Period 1,068 41.3 25.9 +58%

As shown in Table 8, the 24-hour specific injectivity at the beginning of WY 2017 was 
16.4 gpm/ft and at the end of WY 2017 it was 23.8 gpm/ft, representing a significant increase of 
approximately 58 percent. 

Injection Performance Summary. The above results indicate a pattern in ASR well 
performance, with ASR-1 through ASR-4 all having experienced comparably significant declines 
in performance following initial injection (i.e., the initial variable-rate injection tests performed at 
each well), followed by a period of relative stability in performance.   It was hypothesized that the 
observed loss in performance may be due to particle rearrangement (mechanical jamming) 
and/or geochemical reactions (e.g., solids precipitation and/or clay swelling), as opposed to the 
normal and relatively slow plugging caused by particulates. This phenomenon is the reason for 
the well “conditioning” effort performed at ASR-4 during WY 2015 and WY 2016.   

As shown in Tables 5 and 6 previously, however, ASR-4 appeared to experience the 
same initial decline in performance as the other three ASR wells despite the thorough condition 
effort.  These findings suggest that the initial and significant decline in performance consistently 
observed at all four ASR wells following initial injection testing is likely not due to particle 
rearrangement, but rather due to a geochemical reaction(s) (e.g., solids precipitation and/or clay 
swelling).   It is also noted that while ASR-3 and ASR-4 have experienced a significant decline in 
performance following initial injection, (which limits their injection capacities) it is expected that 
rehabilitation will result in significantly improved performance as has been observed at both 
ASR-1 and ASR-2.   

Pumping Performance and Residual Plugging 

Experience at injection well sites around the world shows that all injection wells are 
subject to some amount of plugging, because no water source is completely free of particulates, 
bionutrients, or oxidants, all of which can contribute to well plugging; the CAW source water is no 
exception.  During injection, trace amounts of suspended solids are continually being deposited 
in the gravel pack and aquifer pore spaces, much as a media filter captures particulates in the 
filter bed.  The effect of plugging is to impede the flow of water from the injection well into the 
aquifer, causing increased injection heads in the well to maintain a given injection rate, or 
reduced injection rates at a given head level.  Well plugging reduces injection and extraction 
capacity and can result in decreased useful well life if not mitigated.   

EXHIBIT 8-A 78



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 16 - 

Relative measurements of the particulate matter in the injectate have historically been 
made at the Santa Margarita site through Silt Density Index (SDI) testing during the injection 
season.  The SDI was originally developed to quantitatively assess particulate concentrations in 
reverse-osmosis feed waters.  The SDI test involves pressure filtration of source water through a 
0.45-micron membrane, and observation of the decrease in flow rate through the membrane over 
time; the resulting (dimensionless) value of SDI is used as a comparative value for tracking 
relative declines in well plugging rates associated with particulate plugging during an injection 
season (i.e., plugging rates tend to increase directly with SDI).  During WY 2017 injection 
operations, SDI values were only measured at the beginning of the injection season and was 
approximately 4.1 at that time.  Other than the SDI testing conducted during the ASR-4 baseline 
injection testing discussed previously, the SDI during the remainder of the injection season is not 
known (was not measured).   

Following routine backflushing operations and periods of water-level recovery, controlled 
10-minute specific-capacity tests are typically performed to track well pumping performance, 
similar to the tracking of injection performance from 24-hour specific injectivity discussed above.  
Residual plugging is the plugging that remains following backflush pumping.  Residual plugging 
increases drawdown during pumping and drawup during injection and is manifested as declining 
specific capacity / injectivity.  The presence of residual plugging is indicative of incomplete 
removal of plugging particulates during backflushing and has the cumulative effect of reducing 
well performance and capacity over time. 

As discussed previously, routine 10-minute specific capacity tests were performed at the 
ASR wells as part of backflushing events during WY 2017.  Presented in Table 9 below is a 
summary of the residual plugging calculations for the ASR wells during WY 2017.   

Table 9.  Pumping Performance and Residual Plugging Summary 

 Pumping 10-min 10-min Normaliz- Normalized Residual

Rate Drawdown Q/s
1

ation Drawdown
2

Plugging

Well Test (gpm) (ft) (gpm/ft) Ratio
2

(ft) (ft)

Pre-Injection 4,600 116.7 39.4 0.65 76.1 --
Post-Injection 3,200 103.0 31.1 0.94 96.6 20.5
Pre-Injection 2,600 76.7 33.9 1.15 88.5 --
Post-Injection 2,700 100.2 26.9 1.11 111.3 22.8
Pre-Injection 1,500 82.9 18.1 1.33 110.5 --
Post-Injection 1,600 117.0 13.7 1.25 146.3 35.7
Pre-Injection 3,000 121.8 24.6 1.00 121.8 --
Post-Injection 2,900 164.4 17.6 1.03 170.1 48.3

Notes:
1 - Specific Capacity.  Ratio of pumping rate to drawdown.
2 - Normalized based on ratio of 3,000 gpm to actual test pumping rate for ASR-1, -2 and -4.  Based on 2,000 gpm for ASR-3.

ASR-1

ASR-2

ASR-3

ASR-4

 

As shown on Figures 7 through 9, injection water levels were not maintained below the 
recommended maximum available drawup levels at ASR-1 through ASR-3 during WY 2017, and 

EXHIBIT 8-A 79



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 17 - 

as shown in Table 9, all three wells experienced residual plugging ranging between 
approximately 20 and 50 feet and commensurate declines in pumping specific capacity.  
Although as shown on Figure 10 and discussed previously, injection water levels and 
performance at ASR-4 were generally maintained at acceptable levels throughout most of WY 
2017, based on the pumping performance shown in Table 9, ASR-4 also experienced residual 
plugging of approximately 50 feet.  These results indicate that: 

1. Injection water levels should be maintained below the recommended minimum levels 
below ground surface during the injection season to avoid excessive drawup and over 
pressurization of plugging constituents.  These thresholds should not be adjusted 
during the injection season due to apparent changes in static water levels, and;  

2. More intensive backflushing (e.g., multiple backflush cycles as opposed to a single 
cycle) should be implemented at all four ASR wells during WY 2018 to limit residual 
plugging and maintain performance. 

AQUIFER RESPONSE TO INJECTION 

The response of the regional aquifer system to injection has been monitored since the 
SMTIW project was initiated in WY 2002.  Submersible water-level transducer/data logger units 
have been installed at seven offsite monitoring well locations in the SGB as well as three onsite 
monitoring wells.  The locations of each offsite monitoring well are shown on Figure 1, and 
water-level hydrographs for the monitoring wells during WY 2017 are graphically presented on 
Figures 14 through 22.  A summary of the regional water-level observations during the WY 
2017 injection season is presented in Table 10 below.  

As shown on the water-level hydrographs, water levels in the Santa Margarita Sandstone 
(Tsm) aquifer at the start of the WY 2017 recharge season ranged between approximately 20 to 
50 feet below sea level.  Positive response to injection during WY 2017 was observed at 8 of the 
9 monitoring wells completed in the Santa Margarita Sandstone aquifer, with apparent water-
level responses ranging between approximately 11 to 92 feet, generally decreasing with distance 
from the ASR wells, which is the typical and expected aquifer response to hydraulic stresses 
(i.e., injection or pumping).  The WY 2017 responses are comparable to those observed in 
previous water years.   

The available water-level data also continue to show that at the majority of the offsite 
Tsm-only monitoring wells, water levels consistently remained below sea level throughout the 
injection season.  Notable exceptions included the Paralta Test and FO-9 wells, which showed 
water levels as much as approximately 10 to 8 feet above sea level, respectively.  Under these 
overall basin water-level conditions, little to no offshore groundwater flow from the Tsm aquifer 
would be expected to occur and any “losses” associated with ASR project operations from water 
potentially migrating offshore are likely limited. 

 

EXHIBIT 8-A 80



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 18 -

Table 10.  Aquifer Response Summary 

Well ID 

Distance from 
Nearest Active 

ASR Well 
(feet) 

Aquifer 
Monitored 

Fig. 
No. 

Pre-
Injection 

DTW 
(ft. bgs) 

Shallowest 
Injection 

DTW 
(ft. bgs) 

Maximum 
Drawup 

Response 
(ft.) 

SMS (Shallow) 
25 (ASR-3) 

QTp 
14 

No Discernable Response 

SMS (Deep) Tsm 371.4 279.7 91.7 

SM MW-1 190 (ASR-2) Tsm 15 363.7 313.3 50.4 

Paralta Test 650 (ASR-2) QTp & Tsm 16 348.3 318.9 29.4 

Ord Grove Test 1,820 (ASR-2) QTp & Tsm 17 No Discernable Response 

Ord Terrace (Shallow) 2,550 (ASR-2) Tsm 18 258.0 246.9 11.1 

FO-7 (Shallow) 
3,700 (ASR-3) 

QTp 
19 

No Discernable Response 

FO-7 (Deep) Tsm 496.4 472.7 23.7 

FO-9 (Deep) 6,130 (ASR-3) Tsm 20 33.8 10.0 23.8 

PCA East (Shallow) 
6,200 (ASR-3) 

QTp 
21 

No Discernable Response 

PCA East (Deep) Tsm 94.9 70.2 24.7 

FO-8 (Deep) 6,450 (ASR-3) Tsm 22 404.9 384.1 20.8 

Notes: 
QTp – Quaternary / Tertiary-age Paso Robles Formation aquifer 
Tsm – Tertiary-age Santa Margarita Sandstone aquifer 
DTW – Depth to Water 

The limited available data for wells completed in the Paso Robles Formation (QTp) also 
continue to show no discernible response to injection and water levels in this aquifer remained 
above the water levels in the underlying Tsm aquifer during WY 2016.  Under these water-level 
conditions, little to no flow of water from the Tsm to the QTp aquifer would be expected to occur.   

It is further noted that the Ord Grove Test monitoring well (Figure 17) continues to show 
no discernible response to injection operations, as has been observed during previous injection 
seasons.  In addition, most project monitoring wells show no discernible response to the 
pumping of CAW’s Ord Grove production well.  These observations suggest that the Ord Terrace 
Fault or a parallel branch of the fault may represent a hydraulic barrier in the Tsm aquifer. 

WATER QUALITY 

General 

Source water for injection is supplied from the CAW municipal water system, primarily 
from Carmel River system wells, which is treated at the CAW Begonia Iron Removal Plant 
(BIRP) for iron and manganese removal. The BIRP product water is also disinfected and 
maintains a free chlorine residual.  A phosphate-based corrosion inhibitor (Zinc Orthophosphate) 
is also added to the filtered water before entering the CAW distribution system.  The finished 

EXHIBIT 8-A 81



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 19 - 

product water meets all California Department of Public Health (CADPH) Primary and Secondary 
water quality standards. 

As in previous years, water quality was routinely monitored at the ASR well sites during 
WY 2017 injection and aquifer storage operations.  Far-field water quality was also monitored at 
the CAW Paralta production well and at the PCE-East Deep monitoring well (PCA-E Deep).  
Summaries of the collected water-quality data during WY 2017 are presented in Tables 11 

through 18 below.  Analytic laboratory reports are presented in Appendix B (not included in 
draft).  A discussion of the water-quality data collected during WY 2017 is presented below. 

Injection Water Quality 

Injection water quality from the CAW system during WY 2017 is presented in Table 11 

below, and the data show injection water quality was typical of recent years.  Levels of 
Trihalomethanes (THM) and Haloacetic Acid (HAA) compounds, as well as bionutrients (oxygen, 
nitrogen, phosphorous, and organic carbon), were all present at levels similar to previous years. 

Water Quality During Aquifer Storage 

Tables 12 through 15 present summaries of water-quality data collected at the four ASR 
wells. Tables 16 and 17 present similar data collected at the on-site monitoring wells SM MW-1 
and SMS Deep, respectively; and Table 18 presents the water-quality data collected at the off-
site monitoring wells (PCA-E Deep and Paralta).  Data for the ASR wells include baseline water 
quality taken prior to WY 2017 injection (end of WY 2016 Storage) and stored water quality (WY 
2017 Storage) collected periodically from the aquifer after WY 2017 injection operations were 
terminated.   

Review of water-quality parameters gathered at the ASR wells, including major anions 
and cations, redox potential (ORP), and conductivity all showed relatively limited effects of 
dilution / intermixing of injected water with native groundwater (NGW) during aquifer storage 
compared to previous water years.  The apparent lack of mixing during the WY 2017 storage 
period is not unexpected, given the significantly greater volume and duration of injection, and the 
associated relatively short storage period, compared to previous years.    

Disinfection Byproducts (DBPs) parameters for the on-site wells collected during the WY 
2017 storage period are graphically presented on Figures 23 through 28 and are summarized 
below: 

• ASR-1:  One sample was collected from ASR-1 after approximately 30 days of 
storage, which showed significant ingrowth of THMs at 89 micrograms per liter (ug/L), 
exceeding the Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) of 80 ug/L.  As a result of a failure 
of the pump assembly FCV, no additional samples were collected from this well 
during WY 2017. 

 

EXHIBIT 8-A 82



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 20 - 

Table 11.  Summary of WY 2017 Water Quality Data – Injectate 

Parameter Unit PQL MCL 12/16/16 1/17/17 3/10/17 4/11/17

Major Cations

Calcium mg/L 0.5 49 33
Magnesium mg/L 0.5 16 12
Potasium mg/L 0.5 3.2 2.6
Sodium mg/L 0.5 55 1
Major Anions

Alkalinity, Total (as CaCO3) mg/L 2 144 127
Chloride mg/L 1 250 32 27 27
Sulfate mg/L 1 250 85 66
Nitrate (as NO3) mg/L 1 45 ND 1
Nitrite (as NO2-N) mg/L 1 1 0.3 0.5
General Physical

pH Std Units  7.6 7.4
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1 900 555 466
Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 10 500 348 280
Metals

Arsenic (Total) ug/L 1 10 ND ND
Barium (Total) ug/L 10 1000 0.061 57
Iron (Dissolved) ug/L 10 ND ND
Iron (Total) ug/L 10 300 10 ND
Lithium ug/L 1 10 6
Manganese (Dissolved) ug/L 10 ND ND
Manganese (Total) ug/L 10 50 13 ND
Mercury ug/L 0.5 2 ND ND
Molybdenum ug/L 1 1000 ND 2
Nickel ug/L 10 100 ND ND
Selenium ug/L 2 50 ND 2
Strontium (Total) ug/L 5 270 230
Uranium (by ICP/MS) ug/L 1 30 ND ND
Vanadium (Total) ug/L 1 1000 ND ND
Zinc (Total) ug/L 10 5000 243 268
Miscellaneous

Ammonia-N mg/L 0.05 ND ND
Boron mg/L 0.05 ND ND
Chloramines mg/L 0.05 0.12 0.06 0.18 0.18
Gross Alpha pCi/L 15 1.23 +/- 1.13 1.27 +/- 1.09
Kjehldahl Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 ND 0.5
Methane ug/L 0.1 2.7 1.3
Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 ND 1.3
o-Phosphate-P mg/L 0.05 0.4 0.2
Phosphorous (Total) mg/L 0.03 0.46 0.4
Radium 226 pCi/L 3 0.295 +/- 0.246 0.066 +/- 0.129
Organic Analyses

Haloacetic Acids (Total) ug/L 1.0 60.0 23.0 9.0 11.9 8.0
Dibromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 3.0 2.0 2.1 2.0
Dichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 10 4.0 5.5 2.0

Monobromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 1.0 ND ND ND
Monochloroacetic Acid ug/L 2.0 ND ND ND ND

Trichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 9.0 3.0 4.3 4.0
Organic Carbon (Dissolved) mg/L 0.2 1.5 1.5
Organic Carbon (Total) mg/L 0.2 1.4 1.5
Trihalomethanes (Total) ug/L 1.0 80.0 47.9 23.1 23.4 18.7

Bromodichloromethane ug/L 0.5 15.4 8.0 7.8 6.3
Bromoform ug/L 0.5 1.8 1.0 0.69 0.7
Chloroform ug/L 0.5 18.8 7.2 9.2 6.9

Dibromochloromethane ug/L 0.5 11.9 6.9 5.7 4.8
Field Parameters

Temperature 0 C 0.1 12.9 14.9 15.8 14.8
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1.0 900 491 458 450 442
pH Std Units 0.1 6.5 - 8.5 7.4 7.0 7.1 7.4
ORP mV 1.0 507 664 727 717
Free Chlorine Residual mg/L 0.1  2 - 5 1.0 1.9 1.1 1.3
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L 0.01 5.2 3.9 4.1 3.6
Silt Density Index Std Units 0.1 4.1
H2S mg/L 0.1 ND ND ND
Notes:

Constituents exceeding MCLs denoted in BOLD type

Sample Description

Results

CAW Injectate

Injectate

 

EXHIBIT 8-A 83



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 21 -

Table 12.  Summary of WY 2017 Water-Quality Data – ASR-1 

Parameter Unit PQL MCL 3/21/01 9/21/16 12/2/16 6/28/17

NGW WY 2017 Storage

Elapsed Storage Time  Days -- 170 242 29

Major Cations

Calcium mg/L 0.5 85 68 81 41
Magnesium mg/L 0.5 19 17 20 13
Potasium mg/L 0.5 5.3 4 4.6 2.8
Sodium mg/L 0.5 88 71 72 43
Major Anions

Alkalinity, Total (as CaCO3) mg/L 2 224 180 228 138
Chloride mg/L 1 250 120 72 112 28
Sulfate mg/L 1 250 95 96 100 68
Nitrate (as NO3) mg/L 1 45 ND 1 1.0 1
Nitrite (as NO2-N) mg/L 1 1 0.3 0.3 0.2
General Physical

pH Std Units 7.1 7.4 7.2 7.5
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1 900 1015 763 962 496
Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 10 500 618 471 583 320
Metals

Arsenic (Total) ug/L 1 10 ND 1 1 1
Barium (Total) ug/L 10 1000 52 55 71 58
Iron (Dissolved) ug/L 10 ND 12 ND
Iron (Total) ug/L 10 300 120 ND 16 20
Lithium ug/L 1 19 29 7
Manganese (Dissolved) ug/L 10 ND 22 ND
Manganese (Total) ug/L 10 50 40 ND 21 ND
Mercury ug/L 0.5 2 ND ND ND
Molybdenum ug/L 1 1000 6 7 3
Nickel ug/L 10 100 ND ND 2
Selenium ug/L 2 50 ND 2 2 6
Strontium (Total) ug/L 5 308 402 210
Uranium (by ICP/MS) ug/L 1 30 1 1 ND
Vanadium (Total) ug/L 1 1000 ND ND 1
Zinc (Total) ug/L 10 5000 10 87 70 202
Miscellaneous

Ammonia-N mg/L 0.05 0.33 ND 0.09 0.1
Boron mg/L 0.05 0.14 0.08 0.11 ND
Chloramines mg/L 0.05 ND ND ND
Gross Alpha pCi/L 15 2.52 +/- 1.55 2.64 +/- 1.89 1.97 +/- 1.27
Kjehldahl Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 ND 0.5 ND
Methane ug/L 0.1 2.2 3.9 0.77
Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 0.5 1 0.5
o-Phosphate-P mg/L 0.05 0.46 0.1 ND 0.3
Phosphorous (Total) mg/L 0.03 0.13 0.13 0.3
Radium 226 pCi/L 3 0.758 +/- 0.437 1.33 +/- 0.340 0.044 +/- 0.104
Organic Analyses

Haloacetic Acids (Total) ug/L 1.0 60.0 ND 0 6
Dibromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND
Dichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND 2

Monobromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND
Monochloroacetic Acid ug/L 2.0 ND ND ND

Trichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND 4
Organic Carbon (Dissolved) mg/L 0.2 1.0 1.4 1.8
Organic Carbon (Total) mg/L 0.2 6.3 1.0 1.3 1.5
Trihalomethanes (Total) ug/L 1.0 80.0 28.9 14.8 89

Bromodichloromethane ug/L 0.5 7.6 4.0 22
Bromoform ug/L 0.5 0.5 ND 1
Chloroform ug/L 0.5 18.8 10.1 56

Dibromochloromethane ug/L 0.5 2 0.7 10
Field Parameters

Temperature 0 C 0.1 19.4 16.6
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1.0 900 1015 667 440
pH Std Units 0.1 6.5 - 8.5 7.1 7.03 7.3
ORP mV 1.0 -243 220
Free Chlorine Residual mg/L 0.1  2 - 5 ND 0.23
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L 0.01 1.17 3.12
Silt Density Index Std Units 0.1
H2S mg/L 0.1 1.5 ND ND
Notes:

Constituents exceeding MCLs denoted in BOLD type

Results

SM ASR-1

ASR Operational Phase WY 2016 Storage

EXHIBIT 8-A 84



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 22 -

Table 13.  Summary of WY 2017 Water Quality Data – ASR-2 

Parameter Unit PQL MCL 9/27/2016 12/6/16 6/28/17 10/4/17

Elapsed Storage Time  Days 176 246 29 127

Major Cations

Calcium mg/L 0.5 60 66 41 38
Magnesium mg/L 0.5 19 19 13 14
Potasium mg/L 0.5 3.8 4.5 2.9 2.8
Sodium mg/L 0.5 64 59 44 43
Major Anions

Alkalinity, Total (as CaCO3) mg/L 2 180 209 134 134
Chloride mg/L 1 250 64 102 28 28
Sulfate mg/L 1 250 81 71 69 70
Nitrate (as NO3) mg/L 1 45 1 ND 1 0.2
Nitrite (as NO2-N) mg/L 1 1 0.3 0.3 0.2 ND
General Physical

pH Std Units 7.5 7.3 7.5 7.4
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1 900 707 864 488 495
Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 10 500 431 514 308 297
Metals

Arsenic (Total) ug/L 1 10 1 1 ND ND
Barium (Total) ug/L 10 1000 83 106 59 62
Iron (Dissolved) ug/L 10 ND ND ND 11
Iron (Total) ug/L 10 300 66 67 57 66
Lithium ug/L 1 14 26 6 7
Manganese (Dissolved) ug/L 10 10 15 ND ND
Manganese (Total) ug/L 10 50 11 16 ND ND
Mercury ug/L 0.5 2 2 ND ND
Molybdenum ug/L 1 1000 6 10 4 6
Nickel ug/L 10 100 ND ND 2 2
Selenium ug/L 2 50 2 2 2 3
Strontium (Total) ug/L 5 300 374 210 208
Uranium (by ICP/MS) ug/L 1 30 1 1 ND 2.4
Vanadium (Total) ug/L 1 1000 ND ND 1 ND
Zinc (Total) ug/L 10 5000 317 360 257 272
Miscellaneous

Ammonia-N mg/L 0.05 ND 0.08 0.1 ND
Boron mg/L 0.05 0.06 0.07 ND ND
Chloramines mg/L 0.05 ND ND ND ND
Gross Alpha pCi/L 15 2.59 +/- 2.16 2.24 +/- 1.91 0.775 +/- 0.946 2.04 +/- 1.15
Kjehldahl Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 1 0.9 ND ND
Methane ug/L 0.1 1.7 1.9 1.5 0.7
Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 1.5 1.3 ND ND
o-Phosphate-P mg/L 0.05 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.26
Phosphorous (Total) mg/L 0.03 0.25 0.23 0.4 0.3
Radium 226 pCi/L 3 0.000 +/- 0.246 0.170 +/- 0.132 0.109 +/- 0.128 0.090 +/- 0.124
Organic Analyses

Haloacetic Acids (Total) ug/L 1.0 60.0 0.0 0.0 30.0 4.0
Dibromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND 2.0 ND
Dichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND 14.0 ND

Monobromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND ND
Monochloroacetic Acid ug/L 2.0 ND ND ND ND

Trichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND 14.0 4.0
Organic Carbon (Dissolved) mg/L 0.2 1.2 2.0 1.4
Organic Carbon (Total) mg/L 0.2 1.10 1.2 1.5 1.9
Trihalomethanes (Total) ug/L 1.0 80.0 47.9 25.3 97.0 87.0

Bromodichloromethane ug/L 0.5 12.0 6.7 26.0 21.0
Bromoform ug/L 0.5 0.60 ND 1.0 1.00
Chloroform ug/L 0.5 29.8 15.4 58.0 55.0

Dibromochloromethane ug/L 0.5 5.5 3.2 12.0 10.0
Field Parameters

Temperature 0 C 0.1 18.0 20.4 16.4 19.4
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1.0 900 610 568 460 428.0
pH Std Units 0.1 6.5 - 8.5 6.5 7.2 7.3 7.1
ORP mV 1.0 -202.5 -232 470
Free Chlorine Residual mg/L 0.1  2 - 5 0.24 ND 0.2
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L 0.01 1.01 3.98 3.28 2.03
Silt Density Index Std Units 0.1
H2S mg/L 0.1 0.02 0.09 ND
Notes:

Constituents exceeding MCLs denoted in BOLD type

WY 2017 StorageASR Operational Phase

Results

SM ASR-2

WY 2016 Storage

EXHIBIT 8-A 85



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 23 -

Table 14.  Summary of WY 2017 Water Quality Data – ASR-3 

Parameter Unit PQL MCL 10/22/10 9/21/16 12/9/16 6/27/17 9/6/17

NGW

Elapsed Storage Time  Days 170 249 28 99

Major Cations

Calcium mg/L 0.5 76 53 60 43
Magnesium mg/L 0.5 18 17 18 14
Potasium mg/L 0.5 5 4 4 3.0
Sodium mg/L 0.5 102 59 66 46
Major Anions

Alkalinity, Total (as CaCO3) mg/L 2 304 171 178 134
Chloride mg/L 1 250 107 58 75 28 36
Sulfate mg/L 1 250 56 72 71 71 68
Nitrate (as NO3) mg/L 1 45 1 1 ND 1
Nitrite (as NO2-N) mg/L 1 1 ND 0.3 0.3 0.2
General Physical

pH Std Units 7.7 7.5 7.3 7.5
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1 900 954 657 740 497 507
Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 10 500 575 426 437 314
Metals

Arsenic (Total) ug/L 1 10 4 6 5 6
Barium (Total) ug/L 10 1000 50 78 88 61
Iron (Dissolved) ug/L 10 21 ND 13 ND ND
Iron (Total) ug/L 10 300 21 56 208 173
Lithium ug/L 1 36 14 22 6
Manganese (Dissolved) ug/L 10 27 12 15 10 ND
Manganese (Total) ug/L 10 50 27 13 16 10
Mercury ug/L 0.5 2 1 ND ND
Molybdenum ug/L 1 1000 -- 21 9 56
Nickel ug/L 10 100 ND ND ND 2 2.9
Selenium ug/L 2 50 ND 3 3 8
Strontium (Total) ug/L 5 403 281 322 211
Uranium (by ICP/MS) ug/L 1 30 -- 3 2 1
Vanadium (Total) ug/L 1 1000 -- ND ND 1
Zinc (Total) ug/L 10 5000 -- 266 241 256 250
Miscellaneous

Ammonia-N mg/L 0.05 249 ND ND 0.1
Boron mg/L 0.05 ND 0.05 0.07 ND
Chloramines mg/L 0.05 0.08 ND ND ND
Gross Alpha pCi/L 15 -- 4.28 +/- 1.73 4.79 +/- 1.87 0.894 +/- 0.980
Kjehldahl Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 ND 1 ND ND
Methane ug/L 0.1 ND 1.4 0.31 1.7
Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 ND 1.5 ND ND
o-Phosphate-P mg/L 0.05 ND 0.2 0.2 0.1
Phosphorous (Total) mg/L 0.03 0.03 0.27 0.19 0.37
Radium 226 pCi/L 3 -- 0.178 +/- 0.302 0.100 +/- 0.139 0.066 +/- 0.114
Organic Analyses

Haloacetic Acids (Total) ug/L 1.0 60.0 ND 3 0.0 17.0
Dibromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND 1 ND ND
Dichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND 2 ND 2.0

Monobromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND ND
Monochloroacetic Acid ug/L 2.0 ND ND ND ND

Trichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND 15
Organic Carbon (Dissolved) mg/L 0.2 0.71 0.9 1.3 2.0
Organic Carbon (Total) mg/L 0.2 0.70 1.00 1.4 1.6 1.0
Trihalomethanes (Total) ug/L 1.0 80.0 ND 61.40 46.2 112.0

Bromodichloromethane ug/L 0.5 ND 15.9 12.0 28.0
Bromoform ug/L 0.5 ND 0.8 0.6 1.0
Chloroform ug/L 0.5 ND 36.7 27.3 71.0

Dibromochloromethane ug/L 0.5 ND 8 6.3 12.0
Field Parameters

Temperature 0 C 0.1 26.2 17.3 19.9 18.1 19.4
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1.0 900 991 588 426 462 467
pH Std Units 0.1 6.5 - 8.5 7.0 7.07 7.0 7.1 7.1
ORP mV 1.0 -82 -171.0 -93 166 85
Free Chlorine Residual mg/L 0.1  2 - 5 ND ND ND 0.23 0.26
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L 0.01 -- 4.67 3.74 3.26 3.58
Silt Density Index Std Units 0.1 --
H2S mg/L 0.1 0.60 ND ND ND ND
Notes:

Constituents exceeding MCLs denoted in BOLD type

ASR Operational Phase

Results

SMS ASR-3

WY 2017 StorageWY 2016 Storage

EXHIBIT 8-A 86



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 24 -

Table 15.  Summary of WY 2017 Water Quality Data – ASR-4 

Parameter Unit PQL MCL 9/21/2016 12/2/2016 3/7/2017 6/27/2017 10/4/17

Elapsed Storage Time  Days 170 242 337 28 127

Major Cations

Calcium mg/L 0.5 76 68 49 40 36
Magnesium mg/L 0.5 16 14 6 13 13
Potasium mg/L 0.5 4.6 4.0 4.2 2.8 2.7
Sodium mg/L 0.5 103 88 76 42 39
Major Anions

Alkalinity, Total (as CaCO3) mg/L 2 234 231 176 134 134
Chloride mg/L 1 250 121 123 77 27 27
Sulfate mg/L 1 250 55 53 48 69 70
Nitrate (as NO3) mg/L 1 45 1.0 2.0 1.0 1 0.2
Nitrite (as NO2-N) mg/L 1 1 0.3 0.3 ND 0.2 ND
General Physical

pH Std Units 7.5 7.3 7.6 7.5 7.5
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1 900 924 937 689 497 487
Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 10 500 563 537 437 311 297
Metals

Arsenic (Total) ug/L 1 10 5 5 7 22 8
Barium (Total) ug/L 10 1000 54 52 29 58 60
Iron (Dissolved) ug/L 10 ND 23 ND ND 18
Iron (Total) ug/L 10 300 144 153 135 114 201
Lithium ug/L 1 32 34 24 7 7
Manganese (Dissolved) ug/L 10 21 21 ND ND 13
Manganese (Total) ug/L 10 50 21 22 ND ND 14
Mercury ug/L 0.5 2 ND 0.2 ND ND
Molybdenum ug/L 1 1000 6 6 24 62 55
Nickel ug/L 10 100 58 68 25 9 23
Selenium ug/L 2 50 2 2 5 12 10
Strontium (Total) ug/L 5 444 497 456 214 206
Uranium (by ICP/MS) ug/L 1 30 1 1 3 1 1.7
Vanadium (Total) ug/L 1 1000 ND 7 5 1 ND
Zinc (Total) ug/L 10 5000 ND ND 20 190 104
Miscellaneous

Ammonia-N mg/L 0.05 ND ND ND 0.1 ND
Boron mg/L 0.05 0.11 0.09 0.08 ND ND
Chloramines mg/L 0.05 ND ND ND ND ND
Gross Alpha pCi/L 15 3.01 +/- 2.64 3.91 +/- 2.17 1.01 +/- 1.67 5.07 +/- 1.71 2.02 +/- 1.14
Kjehldahl Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 0.5 1.3 0.8 ND ND
Methane ug/L 0.1 1.7 1.20 0.51 1.5 0.98
Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 1.00 2.1 1.1 ND ND
o-Phosphate-P mg/L 0.05 ND ND 0.1 ND 0.16
Phosphorous (Total) mg/L 0.03 ND 0.04 0.03 0.24 0.17
Radium 226 pCi/L 3 0.760 +/- 0.438 0.578 +/- 0.234 0.318 +/- 0.171 0.000 +/- 0.074 0.000 +/- .088
Organic Analyses

Haloacetic Acids (Total) ug/L 1.0 60.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 12.0 2.0
Dibromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND ND ND
Dichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND 2.0 ND

Monobromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND ND ND
Monochloroacetic Acid ug/L 2.0 ND ND ND ND ND

Trichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND 10 2.0
Organic Carbon (Dissolved) mg/L 0.2 0.9 0.9 1.6 1.7
Organic Carbon (Total) mg/L 0.2 0.6 0.9 0.8 1.6 1.3
Trihalomethanes (Total) ug/L 1.0 80.0 0.0 0.0 19.3 98 59

Bromodichloromethane ug/L 0.5 ND ND 5.6 23 16
Bromoform ug/L 0.5 ND ND 0.8 1.0 ND
Chloroform ug/L 0.5 ND ND 9.4 62 34

Dibromochloromethane ug/L 0.5 ND ND 3.5 12 9.0
Field Parameters

Temperature 0 C 0.1 25.1 26.0 25.6 18.5 18.5
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1.0 900 564 859 680 423 415
pH Std Units 0.1 6.5 - 8.5 7.08 7.2 7.3 7.2 6.4
ORP mV 1.0 -262.0 -297 54 159 31
Free Chlorine Residual mg/L 0.1  2 - 5 ND 0.2 0.21 0.51
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L 0.01 0.97 0.52 ND 1.87
Silt Density Index Std Units 0.1
H2S mg/L 0.1 0.01 0.14 ND ND
Notes:

Constituents exceeding MCLs denoted in BOLD type

ASR Operational Phase WY 2017 Storage

Results

ASR-4

WY 2016 Storage

EXHIBIT 8-A 87



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 25 -

Table 16.  Summary of WY 2017 Water Quality Data – SM MW-1 

Parameter Unit PQL MCL 12/1/16 2/1/17 4/11/17 6/28/17 7/18/17 9/18/17 10/2/17

WY 2016 Storage

Elapsed Storage Time  Days 241 0 0 29 49 111 125

Major Cations

Calcium mg/L 0.5 74 40 44 48
Magnesium mg/L 0.5 22 10 11 13
Potasium mg/L 0.5 4.6 2.5 2.7 3.2
Sodium mg/L 0.5 67 41 43 48
Major Anions

Alkalinity, Total (as CaCO3) mg/L 2 209 134 135 137
Chloride mg/L 1 250 109 28 28 28
Sulfate mg/L 1 250 75 68 69 69
Nitrate (as NO3) mg/L 1 45 ND 1 1 0.3
Nitrite (as NO2-N) mg/L 1 45 0.3 0.5 0.2 ND
General Physical

pH Std Units 7.3 7.7 7.5 7.5
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1 900 890 493 489 491
Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 10 500 517 288 297 326
Metals

Arsenic (Total) ug/L 1 10 2 2 2 2
Barium (Total) ug/L 10 1000 66 20 21 26
Iron (Dissolved) ug/L 10 ND ND ND 14
Iron (Total) ug/L 10 300 ND 72 ND ND
Lithium ug/L 1 25 9 7 4
Manganese (Dissolved) ug/L 10 16 ND ND ND
Manganese (Total) ug/L 10 50 17 ND ND ND
Mercury ug/L 0.5 2 0.4 ND ND
Molybdenum ug/L 1 1000 10 3 3 5
Nickel ug/L 10 100 ND ND 1 ND
Selenium ug/L 2 50 2 2 9 3
Strontium (Total) ug/L 5 388 282 245 213
Uranium (by ICP/MS) ug/L 1 30 2 2 1 1
Vanadium (Total) ug/L 1 1000 ND ND 2 ND
Zinc (Total) ug/L 10 5000 ND ND ND 40
Miscellaneous

Ammonia-N mg/L 0.05 ND ND 0.1 ND
Boron mg/L 0.05 0.08 ND ND ND
Chloramines mg/L 0.05 ND 0.08 0.08 ND ND ND ND
Gross Alpha pCi/L 15 4.70 +/- 2.20 2.31 +/- 1.29 1.77 +/- 1.15 2.88 +/- 1.29
Kjehldahl Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 ND 0.6 ND 0.8
Methane ug/L 0.1 0.92 0.68 0.74 ND
Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 ND 1.4 ND
o-Phosphate-P mg/L 0.05 0.1 ND ND ND
Phosphorous (Total) mg/L 0.03 0.11 0.04 0.1 0.07
Radium 226 pCi/L 3 0.878 +/- 0.282 0.164 +/- 0.170 0.044 +/- 0.104 0.050 +/- 0.120
Organic Analyses

Haloacetic Acids (Total) ug/L 1.0 60.0 0.0 21.0 18.0 2.0 12.0 1.6 0.0
Dibromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND 2.0 2.0 ND ND ND ND
Dichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND 9.0 8.0 ND 3.0 1.6 ND

Monobromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND ND ND ND ND
Monochloroacetic Acid ug/L 2.0 ND ND ND ND ND ND ND

Trichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND 10.0 8.0 2.0 9.0 ND ND
Organic Carbon (Dissolved) mg/L 0.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.8
Organic Carbon (Total) mg/L 0.2 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.20
Trihalomethanes (Total) ug/L 1.0 80.0 26.7 69.6 58.0 66.0 77.0 80.8 71.0

Bromodichloromethane ug/L 0.5 6.7 14.8 14 17 17 17 16
Bromoform ug/L 0.5 ND 1.2 1.0 1.0 ND 0.57 ND
Chloroform ug/L 0.5 16.9 45.6 35 39 52 57 50

Dibromochloromethane ug/L 0.5 3.1 8.0 8.0 9.0 8.0 6.2 5.0
Field Parameters

Temperature 0 C 0.1 20 17.2 18.3 18.8 18.3 19.1 19.5
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1.0 900 741 469 444 426 433 426 475
pH Std Units 0.1 6.5 - 8.5 7.0 7.5 7.5 7.3 7.5 7.4 7.27
ORP mV 1.0 -164 35 688 265 178 55 91
Free Chlorine Residual mg/L 0.1  2 - 5 0.2 0.37 0.21 0.1 0.43 0.29 0.39
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L 0.01 1.99 4.23 3.94 3.08 1.2 3.99 3.19
Silt Density Index Std Units 0.1
H2S mg/L 0.1 ND ND ND ND ND ND ND
Notes:

Constituents exceeding MCLs denoted in BOLD type

SM MW-1

Sample Description

Results

WY 2017 Injection WY 2017 Storage

EXHIBIT 8-A 88



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 26 - 

Table 17.  Summary of WY 2017 Water Quality Data – SMS Deep 

Parameter Unit PQL MCL 1/18/17 4/11/17 7/18/17 9/18/17 10/2/17

Elapsed Storage Time  Days 0 0 49 111 125

Major Cations

Calcium mg/L 0.5 51 41 48
Magnesium mg/L 0.5 13 12 14
Potasium mg/L 0.5 3.3 2.7 3.2
Sodium mg/L 0.5 48 39 48
Major Anions

Alkalinity, Total (as CaCO3) mg/L 2 145 138 143
Chloride mg/L 1 250 31 27 29
Sulfate mg/L 1 250 82 66 70
Nitrate (as NO3) mg/L 1 45 ND 1.0 0.3
Nitrite (as NO2-N) mg/L 1 1 ND 0.5 ND
General Physical

pH Std Units  7.7 7.6 7.7
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1 900 533 490 505
Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 10 500 331 300 308
Metals

Arsenic (Total) ug/L 1 10 1 1 6
Barium (Total) ug/L 10 1000 45 43 56
Iron (Dissolved) ug/L 10 ND ND ND
Iron (Total) ug/L 10 300 ND ND ND
Lithium ug/L 1 6 7 4
Manganese (Dissolved) ug/L 10 ND ND ND
Manganese (Total) ug/L 10 50 ND ND ND
Mercury ug/L 0.5 2 ND ND ND
Molybdenum ug/L 1 1000 3 3 25
Nickel ug/L 10 100 ND ND ND
Selenium ug/L 2 50 2 2 4
Strontium (Total) ug/L 5 325 277 250
Uranium (by ICP/MS) ug/L 1 30 1 1 1
Vanadium (Total) ug/L 1 1000 ND ND ND
Zinc (Total) ug/L 10 5000 ND 56 61
Miscellaneous

Ammonia-N mg/L 0.05 ND 0.05 ND
Boron mg/L 0.05 ND ND ND
Chloramines mg/L 0.05 0.19 0.14 ND ND ND
Gross Alpha pCi/L 15 2.84 +/- 1.45 2.20 +/- 1.33 1.80 +/- 1.09
Kjehldahl Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 ND 0.5 ND
Methane ug/L 0.1 0.60 1.3 0.39
Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 ND 1.3
o-Phosphate-P mg/L 0.05 0.2 0.2 ND
Phosphorous (Total) mg/L 0.03 0.26 0.29 0.09
Radium 226 pCi/L 3 0.000 +/- 0.171 0.066 +/- 0.129 0.149 +/- 0.154
Organic Analyses

Haloacetic Acids (Total) ug/L 1.0 60.0 16.0 11.0 12.0 3.0 6.0
Dibromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 2.0 2.0 ND ND ND
Dichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 6.0 3.0 3.0 2.0 1.0

Monobromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 1.0 1.0 ND ND ND
Monochloroacetic Acid ug/L 2.0 ND ND ND ND ND

Trichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 7.0 5.0 9.0 1.0 5
Organic Carbon (Dissolved) mg/L 0.2 1.6 1.4 1.7
Organic Carbon (Total) mg/L 0.2 1.5 1.4 1.3
Trihalomethanes (Total) ug/L 1.0 80.0 41.0 27.0 81.0 81.0 86.0

Bromodichloromethane ug/L 0.5 13.5 9 21 24 22
Bromoform ug/L 0.5 1.2 ND 1.0 1.0 1.0
Chloroform ug/L 0.5 16.5 12 49 45 52

Dibromochloromethane ug/L 0.5 9.8 6 10 11 11
Field Parameters

Temperature 0 C 0.1 16.1 16.8 17.1 18.2 18.1
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1.0 900 490 429 437 447 444
pH Std Units 0.1 6.5 - 8.5 7.5 7.7 7.3 7.3 7.1
ORP mV 1.0 637 731 166 217 148
Free Chlorine Residual mg/L 0.1  2 - 5 1.4 0.94 0.4 0.27 0.41
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L 0.01 4.36 4.16 3.68 3.94 3.48
Silt Density Index Std Units 0.1
H2S mg/L 0.1 ND ND ND ND ND
Notes:

Constituents exceeding MCLs denoted in BOLD type

Sample Description WY 2017 Injection WY 2017 Storage

Results

SMS Deep

 

EXHIBIT 8-A 89



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 27 -

• ASR-2: Two samples were collected from ASR-2; one after approximately 30 days
and another after approximately 130 days of storage.  Although some decline in
THMs was observed during the period after the initial ingrowth, both samples
exceeded the THM MCL with levels of 97 and 87 ug/L, respectively.

• ASR-3:  One sample was collected from ASR-3 after approximately 30 days of
storage, which showed significant ingrowth of THMs at 112 ug/L, exceeding the MCL
of 80 ug/L.  The pump was removed from ASR-3 in late September 2017 for well
rehabilitation, and no additional samples were collected from this well during WY
2017.

• ASR-4:  Two samples were collected from ASR-4; one after approximately 30 days
and another after approximately 130 days of storage.  The initial sample at 30 days
showed significant ingrowth exceeding the THM MCL with a level of 98 ug/L, followed
by more significant decline than observed at ASR-2 declining to below the MCL at a
level of 59 ug/L.

• SM MW-1:  Four samples were collected at SM MW-1 on an approximate monthly
basis during the storage period, which showed steady ingrowth of THMs over a period
of approximately 110 days reaching a level of 81 ug/L, followed a slight decline after
125 days of storage to a level of 71 ug/L.

• SMS Deep:  Three samples were collected at SMS Deep during the storage period,
which showed steady ingrowth of THMs over the period of 125 days reaching a level
of 86 ug/L.

Historically, THMs at the ASR wells typically show an initial and significant ingrowth 
during the storage period, which is a result of free chlorine and trace levels of organic carbon in 
the injected water.  THM ingrowth typically peaks in concentration approximately 60 to 120 days 
after the cessation of injection, followed by a gradual decline during the remainder of the storage 
period.  After approximately 150 to 180 days of storage, THMs typically degrade to below the 
initial injection levels.  

As discussed above, THMs during the WY 2017 storage period showed the above-
described typical initial and significant ingrowth; however, their persistence this season differed 
from the typical pattern of significant degradation after several months of aquifer storage (with 
the possible exception of ASR-4).  The lack of THM degradation observed during the WY 2017 
storage period is likely attributable to the significantly greater volume and duration of injection, 
and the relatively short storage period, compared to previous years.  Historically, THM 
degradation at ASR-1 appeared to have a direct relationship to intermixing with native ground 
waters, especially from gradient-induced mixing resulting from nearby pumping.  Other ASR 
locations have postulated that changes in aquifer redox conditions and/or bioactivity from 
subsurface organisms such as Iron Dissimilatory Bacteria facilitate the degradation of the more 
robust THM compounds (i.e., chloroform and dichlorobromomethane).  The large amount of 
recharge this season would thoroughly purge the proximate well bore areas with highly oxidized 
and oxygen-rich water, which would inhibit the above-noted degradation mechanisms; the 

EXHIBIT 8-A 90



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 28 -

persistence of elevated redox potential (ORP), dissolved oxygen levels, and measurable free 
chlorine residuals during this year’s storage period confirm the persistence of this condition.    

HAA levels at the wells (where sufficient data was collected) generally showed their 
typical pattern of limited (if any) ingrowth during the initial storage period, followed by complete to 
near-complete degradation by the end of the storage season.  HAA’s are much less stable 
compounds than THM’s; their auto-degradation is therefore unremarkable.  

Water Quality at Off-Site Monitoring Wells 

Water-quality data collected from off-site wells in WY 2017 data are presented in Table 

18. At PCA-E Deep, the absence of DBP’s, in addition to an apparent increasing trend in
chloride during the period, suggest that the influence of recharge operations is negligible to date
at this location.  Paralta is the nearest CAW production well to the ASR wells, and the available
THM data show a potential trend of an increasing contribution of injected water quality over the
WY 2017 storage season with levels increasing from 4 ug/L prior to the WY 2017 injection
season to 15 ug/L near the end of the storage period.  These levels are well below the MCL of 80
ug/L; however, the potential for an increasing trend in THMs at Paralta should be tracked during
future ASR operations.

Additional Water Quality Investigations 

As discussed in the WY 2015 Summary of Operations Report (SOR), at the 
commencement of WY 2013 recovery pumping of ASR-1, a sample collected by CAW8 had a 
Mercury (Hg) concentration of 4 µg/L, exceeding the State MCL of 2 µg/L.  Although the 
occurrence of Hg in surface water and groundwater has been documented elsewhere in the 
Monterey Bay region, the detection of Hg in SGB water was unusual.  The initial Hg detection at 
ASR-1 was followed up with additional sampling to verify the presence of Hg, and the 
subsequent sampling identified detectable levels of Hg, although below the MCL.  The fact that 
detectable Hg was identified, and at levels above historical NGW and injectate concentrations 
has led to the development of an ongoing investigation of Hg occurrence at the ASR wells.   

As described in previous technical memoranda and reports regarding this issue, the 
origin of the detected Hg could be the result one or more mechanisms, including the following: 

A. Soluble or insoluble Hg present in the Carmel River System source water that could
have accumulated as particulate (insoluble) compounds in the well bore area, similar
to the accumulation of other particulate matter present in the Carmel River injectate
and CAW conveyance system.  Such accumulation would be released during routine
backflushing operations and/or early stages of stored water recovery operations.

8 Collected on October 24, 2013. 

EXHIBIT 8-A 91



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc

- 29 -

Table 18.  Summary of WY 2017 Water Quality Data – Off-Site Monitoring Wells 

Parameter Unit PQL MCL 12/8/2016 4/10/2017 9/11/17 12/1/16 8/15/17

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 Injection WY 2017 Storage WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 Storage

Major Cations

Calcium mg/L 0.5 37 46 56 73 56
Magnesium mg/L 0.5 7 10 4.4 17 14
Potasium mg/L 0.5 3.5 4.4 4.4 4.7 4.1
Sodium mg/L 0.5 68 77 98 83 78
Major Anions

Alkalinity, Total (as CaCO3) mg/L 2 138 187 196 223 169
Chloride mg/L 1 250 76 107 112 112 64
Sulfate mg/L 1 250 22 31 32 66 71
Nitrate (as NO3) mg/L 1 45 ND ND ND 3 1
Nitrite (as NO2-N) mg/L 1 1 0.2 ND ND 0.3 ND
General Physical

pH Std Units 7.6 7.4 7.3 7.3 7.4
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1 900 578 760 764 912 652
Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 10 500 291 440 463 557 403
Metals

Arsenic (Total) ug/L 1 10 7 7 7 3 3
Barium (Total) ug/L 10 1000 64 86 99 64 43
Iron (Dissolved) ug/L 10 ND ND ND 20 11
Iron (Total) ug/L 10 300 ND 35 54 24 ND
Lithium ug/L 1 21 33 37 30 22
Manganese (Dissolved) ug/L 10 ND 121 157 30 11
Manganese (Total) ug/L 10 50 ND 124 150 28 11
Mercury ug/L 0.5 2 ND ND ND ND
Molybdenum ug/L 1 1000 10 10 9 12 26
Nickel ug/L 10 100 26 ND 4 ND ND
Selenium ug/L 2 50 ND ND 1 2 2
Strontium (Total) ug/L 5 206 319 281 379 252
Uranium (by ICP/MS) ug/L 1 30 ND ND ND 1 1
Vanadium (Total) ug/L 1 1000 ND ND ND 5 ND
Zinc (Total) ug/L 10 5000 24 27 ND ND ND
Miscellaneous

Ammonia-N mg/L 0.05 ND ND ND 0.1 ND
Boron mg/L 0.05 0.07 0.09 0.10 0.10 0.07
Chloramines mg/L 0.05 ND ND ND ND ND
Gross Alpha pCi/L 15 0.489 +/- 1.42 1.38 +/- 1.51 0.986 +/- 1.93 7.19 +/- 2.50 3.77 +/- 1.77
Kjehldahl Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 ND ND ND 1.2 ND
Methane ug/L 0.1 ND 2.2 2.8 3.7 1.6
Nitrogen (Total) mg/L 0.5 ND ND ND 1.7 ND
o-Phosphate-P mg/L 0.05 ND ND 0.2 ND
Phosphorous (Total) mg/L 0.03 0.03 0.05 0.02 0.03 0.02
Radium 226 pCi/L 3 0.050 +/- 0.120 0.164 +/- 0.170 0.56 +/- 0.134 1.39 +/- 0.349 0.978 +/- 0.285
Organic Analyses

Haloacetic Acids (Total) ug/L 1.0 60.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Dibromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND ND ND
Dichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND ND ND

Monobromoacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND ND ND
Monochloroacetic Acid ug/L 2.0 ND ND ND ND ND

Trichloroacetic Acid ug/L 1.0 ND ND ND ND ND
Organic Carbon (Dissolved) mg/L 0.2 0.7 0.5 0.6 1.0 1.1
Organic Carbon (Total) mg/L 0.2 0.8 0.5 0.6 1.0 1.0
Trihalomethanes (Total) ug/L 1.0 80.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.3 15.0

Bromodichloromethane ug/L 0.5 ND ND ND 0.6 3.0
Bromoform ug/L 0.5 ND ND ND ND ND
Chloroform ug/L 0.5 ND ND ND 3.7 12.0

Dibromochloromethane ug/L 0.5 ND ND ND ND ND
Field Parameters

Temperature 0 C 0.1 27.7 27.1 28.8 24.5 22
Specific Conductance (EC) uS 1.0 900 554 525 660 785 455
pH Std Units 0.1 6.5 - 8.5 7.5 7.7 7.4 7.2 7.4
ORP mV 1.0 68 75 -64 -211 -47
Free Chlorine Residual mg/L 0.1  2 - 5 ND ND ND 0.2 0.27
Dissolved Oxygen mg/L 0.01 0.46 0.55 2 6.14
Silt Density Index Std Units 0.1
H2S mg/L 0.1 ND ND ND ND
Notes:

Constituents exceeding MCLs denoted in BOLD type

ASR Operational Phase

ParaltaPCA-E Deep

Results

EXHIBIT 8-A 92



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 30 - 

B. Solubilization of naturally occurring Hg minerals present in the Tsm geologic matrix, 
which could result from geochemical interactions between the injection source water, 
NGW and aquifer minerals. 

C. Mobilization of insoluble (i.e., particulate) Hg from the Tsm matrix via the dissolution 
of cementitous materials and subsequent migration of particulate Hg compounds 
during recovery/pumping operations. 

D. Other anthropogenic sources of Hg in well components or other off-site sources. 

During WY 2016, a Supplemental Sampling and Analysis Plan9 (SSAP) was developed 
for additional investigation of the Hg occurrence.  In addition to the collection of Hg samples 
utilizing a variety of EPA-approved laboratory methods and detections limits, the suite of analytes 
included a variety of constituents that are known to affect (or directly react with) Hg and/or Hg 
compounds.  The sampling performed during WY 2016 resulted in the following preliminary 
findings: 

• The ASR wells showed Hg levels below MCL’s, but there was also a positive 
correlation between declining turbidity and decreasing Hg levels as the duration of 
pumping increased during well backflushing operations. 

• Injection source waters from the Begonia Iron Removal Plant (BIRP) indicated 
detectable Hg levels in the raw well water plant influent and in the finished product 
water; however, the Hg levels were all far below MCL’s, and even below the detection 
limits of conventional EPA 200.8 analysis methods, with the Hg detections at sub-
parts-per-trillion levels. 

The data collected during WY 2016 suggested that there was a meaningful correlation 
between Hg content, Turbidity, and pumping time in the produced water from ASR-1.  The 
possible explanation for this phenomenon is that the trace-level Hg present in the Carmel River 
System injection source waters was accumulating in the near-well-bore area during injection 
operations, and then released when reverse flows associated with backflushing or recovery 
operations occurred (per hypothesis (A) above).   

Because the occurrence of elevated Hg levels in ASR-1 appeared to be directly 
correlated to elevated turbidity levels in initial well flush waters, a revised protocol consisting of a 
new triple-surge well flushing procedure (refer to the WY 2016 SOR for details) was 
recommended for all regular and special operations in WY 2017.  The addition of an on-line 
Turbidity analyzer at ASR-1 was also recommended to serve as a safeguard against the possible 
conveyance of turbid (and potentially Hg-noncompliant) waters into the distribution system during 
ASR recovery (ie production) operations. 

WY 2017 Investigation.  The Hg occurrence investigation continued in WY 2017 and 
consisted of the following activities: 

                                                
9 Dated September 4, 2015 

EXHIBIT 8-A 93



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 31 - 

• Collection of high-frequency (daily) samples of injectate during the Injection Season to 
monitor for the presence / absence of Hg in the injected water. 

• Performance of 1-hr Cycle Tests for the collection of additional Hg data from all four 
of the ASR wells. 

• Collection of water quality data on a monthly basis from all 4 ASR wells during the 
storage period to assess time- and mixing-dependant effects on the occurrence of Hg. 

• “Breakthrough” sampling at ASR-4 to detect the arrival of the ASR-3 injection front 
and monitor for associated changes in Hg concentrations.  

• Collection of ASR well backflush residue samples for evaluation by a specialty lab to 
establish if the samples have sufficient quantities of Hg-bearing particulates for further 
analysis via specialty analytical laboratory methods to determine the precise 
identification of Hg-bearing particulates (i.e., molecular composition and structure) to 
facilitate refined geochemical modeling to provide an improved understanding of the 
geochemical mechanism(s) responsible for Hg-occurrence.  

The results to date of the WY 2017 Hg investigation activities are summarized below: 

High-Frequency Injectate Sampling.    High frequency sampling of the injectate during 
WY 2017 was performed to detect the presence of Hg in the injection source water.  High 
frequency composite sampling of the injectate was performed to detect if high flows in the 
Carmel River Watershed was causing episodic releases of Hg into the river system from soil 
runoff in the watershed and/or stirring up sediments in the reservoir(s) or floodplains.  It was 
assumed that if Hg was being released from the Carmel River System, the events would occur 
over several consecutive days when the river flows were high and sediments were being 
transported.  Due to the assumed timing of the hypothetical Hg release mechanism, daily 
composite samples were used to detect if the events were occurring. 

Composite samples of injectate were collected at the ASR-2 wellhead every day the 
project was operated in injection mode.  An automated ISCO sampler was plumbed to the 
sample port at the ASR-2 wellhead and was programmed to pull 50 ml of water from the injectate 
stream at a 30-minute sample interval.  An aliquot of the water collected by the ISCO was 
collected by operations staff and sent to the lab at roughly 24-hour intervals.  A record of when 
the samples were collected and what time-period each of the samples represent is included in 
this report as Appendix C (not included in draft).  In addition, a record of which Carmel River 
System wells were producing water to the CAW system was kept in case there was a Hg 
detection in the injectate.  The Carmel Valley production records are also presented in Appendix 

C (not included in draft). 

Over the WY 2017 project operation, no Hg was detected in any of the daily composite 
samples, indicating that the Carmel River System is likely not a source of Hg at the ASR wells as 
postulated in (A) above.  Because no Hg was detected during this WY 2017 sampling, the 
District does not intend to continue composite sampling of injectate in future operational years. 

EXHIBIT 8-A 94



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 32 - 

1-Hr Cycle Testing.  Additional Hg sampling and analysis was performed at ASR-2, and 
ASR-3 and ASR-4 during WY 2017 (prior to the injection season) as part of the expansion of the 
Hg occurrence investigation beyond ASR-1 to the other ASR project wells.  The sampling 
consisted of 1-hr “Cycle Tests”, similar to the sampling that has been conducted at ASR-1 
previously, where samples were collected from each well at elapsed pumping/purge times of 0 
(initial casing flush water), 1, 2, 5, 10, 30 and 60 mins.  The results are summarized in Table 19 
below: 

Table 19. Hg “Cycle Test” Data Summary 

 Sample Cl- %

Well Date (mg/L) NGW
1

0 1 2 5 10 30 60

ASR-2 11/3/2016 92 61 1.8 0.67 0.23 1.1 2.1 2.5 2.5

12/6/2016 102 72 0.28 1.8 0.23 0.78 2.4 2.5 2.6

ASR-3 11/1/2016 75 45 0.01 0.01 1.5 0.01 1.3 1.4 1.5
12/9/2016 87 58 1.5 0.35 0.2 0.19 1.1 1.5 1.5

ASR-4 11/1/2016 91 61 4.5 0.01 0.67 0.33 0.17 0.4 0.36
12/9/2016 92 61 2.4 0.17 0.58 0.19 0.22 0.38 0.27

Notes:

Constituents exceeding MCLs denoted in BOLD type
1 - Percent of native groundwater (NGW) in based on Chloride (Cl-) data.
2 - Unfiltered EPA Method 200.8

Purge ET (mins) vs. Hg (ug/L)
2

 

The cycle test data did not show a correlation between Turbidity and Hg level as noted 
above during the 2016 testing program. This may be a result of the very low turbidities 
encountered throughout ASR operations during the 2017 year; it is possible that the Turbidity:Hg 
correlation is applicable only when there are substantial turbidity spikes at the wells.  Because 
Turbidity is an indirect measurement of particulate matter in water, the correlation between 
possible Hg occurrence and higher Tu values would appear to be valid, at least at relatively high 
values, as detected occurrences of Hg have historically been  predominantly in an insoluble 
(particulate) form.   

Further analysis of the dataset does, however, suggest that the presence of Hg may have 
a correlation with the amount of mixing between injected and native ground waters; the 
magnitude of mixing is presented above in Table 19 as a percent of NGW in the samples 
collected based on Chloride ion measurements.  While the theory of possible Hg accumulation 
around the well bore opined in 2016 is not supported by the 2017 test data, the hypothesis of Hg 
solubilization and/or dissolution from the Tsm matrix (per (B) and (C) above) may still have merit. 
The data also indicate that during these testing sessions there were occasional occurrences of 
Hg above the EPA MCL of 2.0 ug/L. These occurrences were the only detections of Hg during 
WY 2017 that exceeded drinking water standards, and they occurred only at the ASR-2 and 
ASR-4 wells, which are not currently connected to pump recovery water into the CAW system.  
Although these samples were not collected during actual production operations, the data 
illustrate two important issues: (1) the implementation of mandatory flushing of any ASR wells 
before commencement of production into the Cal-Am potable system is still warranted; and (2) 
the ASR-2 exceedances occurred when the aquifer conditions contained predominantly older 
NGW that would be on the outer fringe of the recharge boundary.  

EXHIBIT 8-A 95



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 33 - 

Monthly Storage Testing.  As described above, supplemental sampling was performed at 
the wells on a monthly basis during the aquifer storage period.  The wells were flushed to waste 
and samples were collected at 4- and 20-minutes, with laboratory analyses for Hg, Cl- (as an 
indicator of the percentage of mixing with native ground waters), and a variety of divalent metal 
ions which are characteristically associated with Hg mineral chemistry – especially Copper (Cu) 
and Zinc (Zn) ion.  The data collected indicated several trends which appear to support the 
hypothetical mechanisms of solubilization or dissolution of Hg from Tsm aquifer minerals ((B) 
and (C) above) based on the following: 

• In all sample events, the (minor) increase in Cl levels indicated increased mixing of 
injected and native ground waters over time for all wells. 

• In most cases, Hg levels increased over time, although in no cases were Hg levels 
detected at or above Drinking Water Standards. 

• In most cases, concentrations of Copper ion (Cu) showed a corresponding increase in 
concentration when Hg levels increased. 

ASR-4 was especially characteristic in this trend, as presented in Figure 29.  Additional 
sampling under this protocol is warranted to further evaluate these relationships, as well as re-
assessment of historical data, if available, to further confirm these trends. 

“Breakthrough” Sampling at ASR-4.  Because solubilization of naturally occurring Hg 
present in the Tsm minerals resulting from geochemical interactions between the injection source 
water, NGW, and aquifer minerals was identified as one potential mechanism for the Hg 
occurrences, sampling for Hg was performed at ASR-4 in an effort to observe the arrival of the 
ASR-3 injection front and any associated changes in Hg concentrations that could be attributable 
to solubilization and mobilization of naturally occurring Hg present in Tsm minerals.   

ASR-3 began essentially continuous injection on January 4, 2017 (there was some minor 
intermittent injection at this well during the period December 17 and 21, 2016).  First arrival time 
of ASR-3 injectate at ASR-4 was roughly estimated at approximately 30 days10.  Chloride 
concentrations were intermittently monitored at ASR-4 to detect the arrival of ASR-3 injectate 
(the pre-injection groundwater concentration of chloride was approximately 120 mg/L, whereas 
the average injectate Cl- concentration was approximately 30 mg/L), after which samples were 
collected for Hg analysis. 

The collected data are graphically presented on Figure 30.  As shown, the chloride 
concentration at ASR-4 was observed to gradually decline as injectate from ASR-3 began to 
arrive.  Samples were collected from ASR-4 for Hg analysis on March 7 and 15, 2017 
(approximately 60 and 70 days after ASR-3 began injecting), with resulting Hg concentrations of 
0.14 and 0.12 ug/L, respectively, which were significantly less than the pre-injection 

                                                
10 Based on the Calculated Fixed Radius (CFR) equation and an average ASR-3 injection rate of 1,000 
gpm. 

EXHIBIT 8-A 96



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 34 - 

concentration of Hg (by as much as 0.40 ug/L).  These observations suggest that injection at 
ASR-3 and the subsequent influx of Carmel River injected waters did not result in the 
direct/immediate solubilization and mobilization of Hg that would impact ASR-4.  This is an 
important finding, but it does not rule out the solubilization or dissolution/mobilization 
mechanisms postulated in (B and (C) above; rather it demonstrates only that the geochemical 
processes may not be immediate.  

Injection operations were subsequently initiated at ASR-4 on April 5, 2017.  Samples 
were collected following backflushing of ASR-4 after an 8-hr Step-Rate Injection Test (April 5 and 
6, 2017) for Hg analysis.  As shown on Figure 30, the Hg concentration at ASR-4 was observed 
to essentially double compared to the pre-injection baseline, with both samples at concentrations 
of 0.80 ug/L.  Although these concentrations are below the MCL of 2.0 ug/L, these observations 
suggest that the initial injection at ASR-4 in WY 2017 may have resulted in solubilization or 
dissolution of Hg from the Tsm mineralogy.  This data warrants further geochemical assessment.  

Further review of Figure 30 shows that as injection at ASR-4 continued, and then into the 
storage period, samples collected from the well began to display essentially the pure Carmel 
River injectate concentrations of chloride and Hg, reflecting the essentially complete 
displacement of NGW from ASR-4 during WY 2017.  Again, the return of Hg levels to 
background level further support the displacement mechanism.            

Backflush Residue Sampling.  A critical factor in the assessment of the occurrence of Hg 
and determination of the cause(s) and mitigation of the occurrences is to establish the 
geochemical mechanism(s) associated with the reactions. Although the investigation thus far has 
been successful in establishing the presence and quantification of the levels of Hg during the 
various operations of the ASR program, the precise speciation of the original Hg compounds has 
not been achieved.  The reason for this is a result of the exceptionally low levels of Hg mineral 
occurrence and the lack of sufficiently large quantities of mineral samples for analysis.   

In an effort to obtain solid residue samples of Hg-containing materials, the WY 2017 
investigation focused on the capture of granular materials ejected from the wells during routine 
backflush operations.  The technique utilized involved the routing of a slipstream of water from 
each well during the first minutes of backflushing into a clean 100-gallon Nalgene container; the 
flush water is then isolated and allowed to settle for several days, after which the supernatant 
water is decanted, and the granular sludge materials are captured and isolated for laboratory 
analysis.  The sludge samples typically amount to less than 10 grams of material and are first 
analyzed for total Hg content to determine their suitability for further Hg speciation analyses. 
Current mineralogical analysis techniques are, however, limited to detection thresholds of >10-20 
mg/kg levels for Hg compounds. 

A total of 6 sludge samples were collected during WY 2017; 2 each from the ASR-2, -3, 
and -4 wells (no samples were able to be collected from ASR-1 due to mechanical problems at 
this well).  The results ranged from a low of 1.4 mg/kg at ASR-3 to a high of only 11 mg/kg at 
ASR-4.  The full analytic laboratory results are provided in Appendix D (not included in draft 

EXHIBIT 8-A 97



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 35 - 

report).  Note that in all sludge sampling cases, the supernatant was analyzed after separation 
and Hg levels were essentially non-detect. 

Unfortunately, none of the WY 2017 collected samples had a high enough concentration 
of Hg to warrant additional speciation analysis.  It is recommended that this program be 
continued in WY 2018 in the hopes of obtaining a sample with a sufficiently high Hg 
concentration for speciation analysis.  

Another alternative for obtaining granular solids samples for mineralogical analysis is the 
collection of cuttings from other proximate wells soon to be drilled through the Tsm formation; 
such samples can be obtained in large quantities, and therefore easily analyzed for bulk Hg 
concentrations.  If the initial screening analysis for Hg is sufficiently high, additional samples can 
be speciated.  It is our understanding that this work can be implemented in Summer 2018. 

Next Steps.  The investigation of the occurrence of Hg has not yet sufficiently identified 
the source(s), mechanism(s), and potential mitigations for this issue, and it is therefore 
recommended that investigation be continued during the WY 2018 program.  Based on the 
previous work and the information gleaned from the current study, we recommend the following 
activities be implemented during WY2018: 

1. The water quality program outlined in the SSAP, specifically the collection of monthly 
4- and 20-minute samples from each of the four ASR wells, should be continued for 
WY 2018. 

2. Collection and screening analysis of Tsm cuttings from upcoming proximate wells 
should be implemented, with subsequent speciation analyses performed on samples 
with Hg concentrations > 20 mg/kg. 

3. Geochemical interaction modeling of the ASR program should be performed in the 
event that mineralized Hg compounds can be positively identified or inferred from 
other sources. 

4. If possible, perform extended pumping tests of ASR-2 and ASR-4 with SSAP analytic 
parameters analyses to assess the long-term water quality trends at these wells. 

These recommended next steps are intended to facilitate long-term operational 
improvement considerations for the Aquifer Storage and Recovery program.  As the Hg 
investigation continues, additional findings, conclusions, and recommendations will be 
documented in the WY 2018 SOR to facilitate ongoing operation of the ASR project. 

EXHIBIT 8-A 98



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 36 - 

CONCLUSIONS 

Based on the findings developed from operation of Monterey Peninsula ASR Project 
during WY 2017, we conclude the following: 

WY 2017 Recharge Operations 

WY 2017 was classified as an Extremely Wet Water Year on the Monterey Peninsula and 
a total volume of 2,345 af of water was recharged into the Seaside Groundwater Basin at the 
Santa Margarita and Seaside Middle Schools ASR Facilities during the WY 2016 injection 
season.   

ASR Well Performance 

ASR-1.  Pertinent well performance conclusions for ASR-1 during WY 2017 are 
summarized below: 

• Injection Rates:  Ranged between approximately 270 to 1870 gpm, averaging 
approximately 1,435 gpm. 

• Water Levels:  Consistently less than 260 ft. bgs prior to backflushing, exceeding the 
recommended maximum drawup level of 100 ft. 

• Specific Injectivity:  Ranged between approximately 21 to 25 gpm/ft with an overall 
negative trend in 24-hr specific injectivity. 

• Residual Plugging:  Approximately 21 feet of residual plugging occurred. 

• General Conclusions:  ASR-1 performed well during WY 2017; however, the well did 
experience a moderate level residual plugging.  The negative trend in performance at 
injection rates ranging up to 1,870 gpm suggests the injection rate at this well should 
be maintained at or below the design rate of 1,500 gpm in WY 2018.  

ASR-2.  Pertinent well performance conclusions for ASR-2 during WY 2017 are 
summarized below:   

• Injection Rates:  Ranged between approximately 340 to 1,940 gpm, averaging 
approximately 1,450 gpm. 

• Water Levels:  Consistently less than 250 ft. bgs prior to backflushing, exceeding the 
recommended maximum drawup level of 130 ft. 

• Specific Injectivity:  Ranged between approximately 30 to 34 gpm/ft with an overall 
negative trend in 24-hr specific injectivity. 

• Residual Plugging:  Approximately 23 feet of residual plugging occurred.   

EXHIBIT 8-A 99



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 37 - 

• General Conclusions:  ASR-2 performed well during WY 2017; however, the well did 
experience a moderate level residual plugging.  The negative trend in performance at 
injection rates ranging up to 1,940 gpm suggests the injection rate at this well should 
be maintained at or below the design rate of 1,500 gpm in WY 2018.  

ASR-3.  Pertinent well performance conclusions for ASR-3 during WY 2017 are 
summarized below:   

• Injection Rates:  Ranged between approximately 600 to 1,405 gpm, averaging 
approximately 995 gpm. 

• Water Levels:  Consistently less than 190 ft. bgs prior to backflushing, exceeding the 
recommended maximum drawup level of 170 ft. 

• Specific Injectivity:  Ranged between approximately 8.7 to 9.4 gpm/ft and overall 
stable trend in 24-hr specific injectivity. 

• Residual Plugging:  Approximately 36 feet of residual plugging occurred.  

• General Conclusions:  ASR-3 performance appeared to be relatively stable 
compared to the significant declines observed in WY 2012.  The pattern of relative 
performance stabilization followed by the initial significant decline in well 
performance observed at ASR-3 is very similar to the pattern observed at both ASR-
1 and ASR-2 when they were initially brought on-line.  The stable performance at 
injection rates ranging between 700 to 1,010 gpm suggests the injection rate should 
be maintained at or below 1,000 gpm to maintain performance until the well is 
rehabilitated (planned for WY 2018). 

ASR-4.  Pertinent well performance conclusions for ASR-4 during WY 2017 are 
summarized below:   

• Injection Rates:  Ranged between approximately 140 to 1,860 gpm, averaging 
approximately 1,260 gpm. 

• Water Levels:  Generally maintained greater than 160 ft bgs, with approximately 50 
feet of available “freeboard” remaining below the maximum recommended drawup 
level (when operated at the design injection rate of 1,500 gpm) 

• Specific Injectivity:  Ranged between approximately 16 to 26 gpm/ft with an overall 
increasing trend in 24-hr specific injectivity over the course of the injection season. 

• Residual Plugging:  Approximately 36 feet of residual plugging occurred.  

• General Conclusions:  ASR-4 performance appeared to decline significantly following 
the initial 8-hr step-rate injection test, then stabilize and actually increase during the 
course of the injection season, whereas the pumping performance decreased over 

EXHIBIT 8-A 100



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 38 - 

the course of the injection season.  At this time, it is unclear why this well displayed 
apparent contradictory performance during WY 2017.  Accordingly, these 
observations suggest the injection rate should be maintained at or below the design 
rate of 1,500 gpm until the performance trends at this well can be evaluated more 
fully in WY 2018. 

Water Quality 

Significant conclusions regarding the water-quality investigation during WY 2017 include 
the following: 

• Consistent with previous observations, no significant ion exchange, acid-base, or 
precipitation reactions were observed at the ASR sites. 

• THMs during the WY 2017 storage period showed the typical initial and significant 
ingrowth; however, they differed from the typical pattern in that significant 
degradation of THMs was not observed during the storage period at most wells (with 
the possible exception of ASR-4).  The lack of THM degradation observed during the 
WY 2017 storage period is attributable the significantly greater volume and duration 
of injection, and the relatively short storage period, compared to previous years.  

• HAAs at the wells with sufficient data generally showed their typical pattern of limited 
(if any) ingrowth during the initial storage period, followed by complete to near-
complete degradation by the end of the storage season. 

• The investigation of sporadic occurrences of Hg in the various wells has not 
conclusively identified the origins and mechanisms of the process to date; however, 
the following conclusions were developed based on the current years’ data: 

o High frequency source sampling of Carmel River waters established that the 
river does not appear to be the source of Hg at the wells. 

o Source water Hg levels were all below detection limits. 

o In contrast to earlier data, Hg occurrences in WY 2017 generally consisted of 
soluble Hg rather than Insoluble (particulate) Hg; this was particularly evident 
in ASR- 2 and ASR-3; whereas ASR-4 Hg occurrences were approximately 
1:1 in soluble:insoluble speciation. 

o A trend was observed in increasing Hg levels over time during aquifer 
storage, and a corresponding increase in the presence of Cu ion.  This may 
represent a possible geochemical reaction mechanism related to the 
solubilization of Hg from Tsm minerals. 

  

EXHIBIT 8-A 101



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 39 - 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Based on the WY 2017 ASR program results and our experience with similar ASR 
projects, we offer the following recommendations for continued and future operations of the 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project wells: 

ASR-1 Well Operational Parameters 

• Injection Rate:  Based on the amount of residual plugging that occurred during WY 
2017 with the well injecting up to 1,870 gpm, we recommend the injection rate be 
limited to approximately 1,500 gpm or less in order to limit residual plugging and 
maintain long-term performance.  

• Water-Level Drawup:  Under the present local water-level conditions, the amount of 
water-level drawup should be limited to approximately 100 feet.  This amount of 
water-level drawup during injection equals the typical available drawdown in the well 
for backflushing.  This helps to avoid over-pressurization and compression of 
plugging materials, thereby maximizing the efficiency of backflushing and limiting the 
amount of residual plugging.  Furthermore, the drawup calculation should not be 
adjusted during the injection based on apparent changes in the static water level, 
and injection water levels should be maintained greater than 260 feet bgs at all 
times.   

• Backflushing Frequency:  During the recharge season, routine backflushing should 
continue to be performed on an approximate weekly basis, or when the amount of 
water-level drawup in the casing reaches a depth to water level of approximately 260 

feet bgs, whichever occurs first.  Backflushing should consist of the triple-flush 
procedure initiated in WY 2017. 

ASR-2 Well Operational Parameters 

• Injection Rate:  Based on the amount of residual plugging that occurred during WY 
2017 with the well injecting up to 1,945 gpm, we recommend the injection rate be 
limited to the design rate of approximately 1,500 gpm or less in order to limit 
residual plugging and maintain long-term performance.  

• Water-Level Drawup:  Under the present local water-level conditions, the amount of 
water-level drawup should be limited to approximately 130 feet, which is equal to the 
typical amount of available drawdown in the well for backflushing.  Again, this helps 
to avoid over-pressurization and compression of plugging materials and limiting the 
amount of residual plugging. Furthermore, the drawup calculation should not be 
adjusted during the injection based on apparent changes in the static water level, 
and injection water levels should be maintained greater than 250 feet bgs at all 
times.   

• Backflushing Frequency:  During the recharge season, routine backflushing should 
continue to be performed on an approximate weekly basis, or when the amount of 

EXHIBIT 8-A 102



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 40 - 

water-level drawup in the casing reaches a depth to water level of approximately 250 

feet bgs, whichever occurs first.  Backflushing should consist of the triple-flush 
procedure initiated in WY 2017. 

ASR-3 Well Operational Parameters 

• Injection Rate:  Based on the amount of residual plugging that occurred during WY 
2017 with the well injecting up to 1,405 gpm, we recommend the injection rate 
continue to be limited to 1,000 gpm in order to limit residual plugging and maintain 
long-term performance.  

• Water-Level Drawup:  Under the present local water-level conditions, the amount of 
water-level drawup should be limited to approximately 170 feet, which is equal to the 
typical amount of available drawdown in the well for backflushing.  Again, this helps 
to avoid over-pressurization and compression of plugging materials and limiting the 
amount of residual plugging. Furthermore, the drawup calculation should not be 
adjusted during the injection based on apparent changes in the static water level, 
and injection water levels should be maintained greater than 190 feet bgs at all 
times.   

• Backflushing Frequency:  During the recharge season, routine backflushing should 
continue to be performed on an approximate weekly basis, or when the amount of 
water-level drawup in the casing reaches a depth to water level of approximately 190 

feet bgs, whichever occurs first.  Backflushing should consist of the triple-flush 
procedure initiated in WY 2017. 

ASR-3 should undergo formal rehabilitation to improve well performance and injection 
capacity, similar to that performed at ASR-1 and ASR-2.  It is believed that following 
rehabilitation, the well will be able to operate at its design injection rate of 1,500 gpm (i.e., 50 
percent greater than the current capacity of 1,000 gpm). 

ASR-4 Well Operational Parameters 

• Injection Rate:  Based on the amount of residual plugging that occurred during WY 
2017 with the well injecting up to 1,590 gpm, we recommend the injection rate be 
limited to the design rate of approximately 1,500 gpm or less in order to limit 
residual plugging and maintain long-term performance.  

• Water-Level Drawup:  Under the present local water-level conditions, the amount of 
water-level drawup should be limited to approximately 200 feet, which is equal to the 
typical amount of available drawdown in the well for backflushing.  Again, this helps 
to avoid over-pressurization and compression of plugging materials and limiting the 
amount of residual plugging. Furthermore, the drawup calculation should not be 
adjusted during the injection based on apparent changes in the static water level, 
and injection water levels should be maintained greater than 160 feet bgs at all 
times.   

EXHIBIT 8-A 103



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 41 - 

• Backflushing Frequency:  During the recharge season, routine backflushing should 
continue to be performed on an approximate weekly basis, or when the amount of 
water-level drawup in the casing reaches a depth to water level of approximately 160 

feet bgs, whichever occurs first.  Backflushing should consist of the triple-flush 
procedure initiated in WY 2017. 

Supplemental Water Quality Investigations 

1. The water quality program outlined in the SSAP, specifically the collection of monthly 
4- and 20-minute samples from each of the four ASR wells, should be continued for 
WY 2018. 

2. Collection and screening analysis of Tsm cuttings from upcoming proximate wells 
should be implemented, with subsequent speciation analyses performed on samples 
with Hg concentrations > 20 mg/kg. 

3. Geochemical interaction modeling of the ASR program should be performed in the 
event that mineralized Hg compounds can be positively identified or inferred from 
other sources. 

4. Data from the ASR-4 baseline injection testing should be further analyzed via 
geochemical modeling to evaluate the possible mechanism(s) associated with the 
anomalous spike in Hg immediately after initial injection testing. 

5. If possible, perform extended pumping tests of ASR-2 and ASR-4 with SSAP analytic 
parameters analyses to assess the long-term water quality trends at these wells. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CLOSURE 

This report has been prepared exclusively for the Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District for the specific application to the ASR Project on the Monterey Peninsula.  
The findings and conclusions presented herein were prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted hydrogeologic and engineering practices.  No other warranty, express or implied, is 
made. 

EXHIBIT 8-A 104



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 42 - 

REFERENCES 

Clark, J.C., Dupré, W.R., and Rosenberg, L.I. (1997), Geologic Map of the Monterey and 
Seaside 7.5-Minute Quadrangles, Monterey County, California:  a Digital Database, U.S. 
Geological Survey Open-File Report 97-30. 

Driscoll, Fletcher, G., (1986), Groundwater and Wells, Second Edition, published by Johnson 
Screens. 

Fugro West, Inc. (1997), Hydrogeologic Assessment, Seaside Coastal Groundwater Subareas, 
Phase III Update, Monterey County, California, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District. 

Fugro West, Inc. (1997), Reconnaissance-Level Feasibility Study for Seaside Basin 
Injection/Recovery Project, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District. 

Huisman, L., and Olsthoorn, T.N. (1983), Artificial Groundwater Recharge, Delft University of 
Technology, Pitman Advanced Publishing Program. 

Nicholson, B.C., Dillon, P.J., and Pavelic, P. (2002), Fate of Disinfection By-Products During 
Aquifer Storage and Recovery, American Water Works Association Research Project No. 
2618. 

Padre Associates, Inc. (2001), Summary of Operations, Well Construction and Testing, Santa 
Margarita Test Injection Well, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management 
District. 

Padre Associates, Inc. (2002), Summary of Operations, Water Year 2002 Injection Testing, 
Santa Margarita Test Injection Well, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District. 

Padre Associates, Inc. (2004), Summary of Operations, Water Year 2003 Injection Testing, 
Santa Margarita Test Injection Well, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District. 

Padre Associates, Inc. (2005), Summary of Operations, Water Year 2004 Injection Testing, 
Santa Margarita Test Injection Well, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District. 

Padre Associates, Inc. (2006), Summary of Operations, Water Year 2005 Injection Testing, 
Santa Margarita Test Injection Well, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District. 

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2007), Summary of Operations, Water Year 2006 Injection 
Testing, Santa Margarita Test Injection Well, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District.  

EXHIBIT 8-A 105



June 2018 
Project No. 12-0049 

WY 2017 Summary of Operations Report DRAFT 

 

12-0049_WY2017_SOR_rpt_draft_2018-06-30_rev1.doc 

- 43 - 

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2008), Summary of Operations, Well Construction and Testing, 
Santa Margarita Test Injection Well No. 2, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District. 

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2009), Summary of Operations, Phase 1 ASR Project, Water 
Year 2007, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.  

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2009), Summary of Operations, Phase 1 ASR Project, Water 
Year 2008, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.  

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2010), Summary of Operations, Phase 1 ASR Project, Water 
Year 2009, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.  

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2011), Summary of Operations, Phase 1 ASR Project, Water 
Year 2010, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.  

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2012), Summary of Operations, Well Construction and Testing, 
Seaside Middle School Test Well, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management 
District. 

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2012), Summary of Operations, Phase 1 ASR Project, Water 
Year 2011, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.  

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2013), Summary of Operations, Monterey Peninsula ASR 
Project, Water Year 2012, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.  

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2014), Summary of Operations, Monterey Peninsula ASR 
Project, Water Year 2013, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.  

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2018), Summary of Operations, Monterey Peninsula ASR 
Project, Water Year 2015, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.  

Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (2018), Summary of Operations, Monterey Peninsula ASR 
Project, Water Year 2016, prepared for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.  

Pyne, R.D. (1994), Ground Water Recharge and Wells, Boca Raton, Florida, CRC Press. 

Raines, Melton & Carella, Inc. (2002), Plan B Project Report, prepared for the Water Division of 
the California Public Utilities Commission.   

Theis, C.V. (1935), Relationship Between Lowering of Piezometer Surface on the Fate and 
Duration of Discharge of a Well Using Ground Water Storage, Transactions of the 
Geophysical Union, vol. 16, pp. 519-524. 

 

EXHIBIT 8-A 106



FIGURES 

EXHIBIT 8-A 107



!U

!U

!U

!U

!U

!U

!U

!A
!A

!A

!AASR-4
ASR-3

ASR-2
ASR-1

PCA-E
FO-07

FO-09

FO-08

Ord Terrace

Paralta Test

Ord Grove Test

Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO,
USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance
Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), swisstopo,
MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

FIGURE 1.  SITE LOCATION MAP
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

² 0 2,0001,000
Feet

Sources: Esri, HERE,
DeLorme, Intermap, increment
P Corp., GEBCO, USGS,
FAO, NPS, NRCAN,

_̂

VICINITY MAP

Legend
!A ASR Well
!U Offsite Monitoring Well

Project Location

1 inch = 2,000 feet

EXHIBIT 8-A 108



0

50

330

400

425

460

480

590

610

700

720
731

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 2. ASR-1 AS-BUILT SCHEMATIC
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

NOT TO SCALE

Pump Assembly Notes:
Hp: 600
Bowls: 16ENL, 7 stage
Col. Pipe Dia: 12"
Col. Pipe Length: 20'
Assy. Type: Water Lube/Open Shaft
Baski FCV Setting: 400' - 410'
Top of Bowls: 460'
Bowl Length: 10.5'
Suction Length: 10'
Intake: 480.5'

EXHIBIT 8-A 109



0

55

460

490

510

540

650

670

770

790

810

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 3. ASR-2 AS-BUILT SCHEMATIC
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

NOT TO SCALEPump Assembly Notes:
Hp: 600
Bowls: 16ENL, 7 stage
Col. Pipe Dia: 12"
Col. Pipe Length: 20'
Assy. Type: Water Flush/Enclosed Shaft
Baski FCV Setting: 460' - 470'
Top of Bowls: 510'
Bowl Length: 10.5'
Suction Length: 10'
Intake: 530.5'

EXHIBIT 8-A 110



0

55

480

530

650

700

780

800

840

860

940

960

990

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 4. ASR-3 AS-BUILT SCHEMATIC
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

NOT TO SCALE

Pump Assembly Notes:
Hp: 600
Bowls: Flowserve Model  16 ENL , 7-stage
Col. Pipe Dia: 12"
Col. Pipe Length: 20'
Assy. Type: Water Flush/Enclosed Shaft
Baski FCV Setting: 482' to 492'
Top of Bowls:  532'
Bowl Length: 10.5'
Suction Length: 8'(including check valve)
Intake: 550.5'

EXHIBIT 8-A 111



0

55

345

480

560

700

750

830

860

920
930

990

1010

1030

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 5. ASR-4 AS-BUILT SCHEMATIC
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

NOT TO SCALE

Pump Assembly Notes:
Hp: 600
Bowls: Flowserve Model  16 ENL , 7-stage
Col. Pipe Dia: 12"
Col. Pipe Length: 20'
Assy. Type: Water Flush/Enclosed Shaft
Baski FCV Setting: 480' to 490'
Top of Bowls:  562'
Bowl Length: 10.4'
Suction Length: 10' (including check valve)
Intake: 582.4'

EXHIBIT 8-A 112



June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 6. SUMMARY OF ASR OPERATIONS (WY 2001 - WY 2017)
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

V
o

lu
m

e 
D

iv
er

te
d

 f
o

r 
In

je
ct

io
n

 (
ac

re
-f

ee
t)

2 AF

175 AF 168 AF 160 AF

351 AF 411 AF

12 AF 60 AF
182 AF

1111 AF 1117 AF

131 AF

295 AF
215 AF

699 AF

2345 AF

Date

2500

2000

1500

1000

500

0

V
o

lu
m

e 
R

ec
o

ve
re

d
 (

ac
re

-f
ee

t)

Ja
n

Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n
Apr
Ju

l
Oct
Ja

n

ASR Well Injection

ASR Well Recovery

CAW SGB Well Recovery

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

444 AF

696 AF

131 AF

493 AF

60 AF
182 AF

1111 AF 1117 AF

513 AF

1182 AF

ASR Wells
in Operation: SMTIW

ASR-1
(a.k.a. SMTIW)

ASR-1
ASR-2

ASR-2
ASR-3

ASR-1
ASR-2
ASR-3
ASR-4

EXHIBIT 8-A 113



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

500

450

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

0
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

SMS ASR-1

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 7.  ASR-1 WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Recomended Maximum Drawup = 100 ft (Depth to Water = 260 ft bgs)

Avg. SWL = ~360 ft

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 StorageASR Phase:

Injection Period: 12/20/16 through 4/5/17
Total Volume Injected: 543.0 af
Average Injection Rate: 1,434 gpm

Pumping for WQ Sampling

WY 2017 Recovery

NO DATA
Pump (and XD) removed from well

due to failed FCV

EXHIBIT 8-A 114



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

500

450

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

0
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

SM ASR-2

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 8.  ASR-2 WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Recomended Maximum Drawup = 130 ft (Depth to Water = 250 ft bgs)

Avg. SWL = ~380 ft

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 StorageASR Phase:

Injection Period: 12/16/16 through 5/30/17
Total Volume Injected: 981.6 af
Average Injection Rate: 1,449 gpm

Pumping for WQ Sampling

EXHIBIT 8-A 115



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

500

450

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

0
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

SMS ASR-3

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 9.  ASR-3 WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Recomended Maximum Drawup = 170 ft (Depth to Water = 190 ft bgs)

Avg. SWL = ~360 ft

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 StorageASR Phase:

Injection Period: 1/4/17 through 5/23/17
Total Volume Injected: 577.9 af
Average Injection Rate: 996 gpm

Pumping for WQ Sampling

EXHIBIT 8-A 116



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

500

450

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

0
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

SMS ASR-4

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 10.  ASR-4 WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Recomended Maximum Drawup = 200 ft (Depth to Water = 160 ft bgs)

Avg. SWL = ~360 ft

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 StorageASR Phase:

Injection Period: 4/5/17 through 5/19/17
Total Volume Injected: 242.9 af
Average Injection Rate: 1,257 gpm

Datalogger Malfunction
No Data

Pumping for WQ Sampling

EXHIBIT 8-A 117



June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

0 100 200 300 400 500
Elapsed Time (minutes)

500

450

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

0
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

)

SWL = 331.3 ft bgs

FIGURE 11.  ASR-4 BASELINE INJECTION TESTING - 8-HR STEP-RATE INJECTION TEST
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Recomended Maximum Water Level Drawup = 200 ft (Depth to Water = 160 ft bgs)

Step 1 - 742 gpm
Q/s = 34.0 gpm/ft

Step 2 - 1,133 gpm
Q/s = 25.9 gpm/ft

Step 3 - 1,500 gpm
Q/s = 19.6 gpm/ft

Step 4 - 1,858 gpm
Q/s = 14.9 gpm/ft

EXHIBIT 8-A 118



1 10 100 1000 10000
Elapsed Time (minutes)

500

450

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

0
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

)

SWL = 335.9 ft bgs

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 12.  ASR-4 BASELINE INJECTION TESTING - 24-HR CONSTANT RATE INJECTION TEST
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Average Rate = 1,506 gpm
24-hr Q/s =  16.5 gpm/ft

Recomended Maximum Water Level Drawup = 200 ft (Depth to Water = 160 ft bgs)

EXHIBIT 8-A 119



1 10 100 1000 10000
Elapsed Time (minutes)

500

450

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

0
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

)

SWL = 340.5 ft bgs

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 13.  ASR-4 BASELINE INJECTION TESTING - 6-DAY CONSTANT RATE INJECTION TEST
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Average Rate = 1,493 gpm
6-day Q/s =  12.9 gpm/ft

Recomended Maximum Water Level Drawup = 200 ft (Depth to Water = 160 ft bgs)

Water Level R
Due to

Plugging = 28

Theoretical
Drawup Curve

EXHIBIT 8-A 120



42660 42690 42720 42750 42780 42810 42840 42870 42900 42930 42960 42990
Date

400

380

360

340

320

300

280

260

240

220

200
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

SMS Shallow (QTp)

SMS Deep (Tsm)

-60

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

E
le

va
ti

o
n

 (
ft

 m
sl

)

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 14.  SMS MW WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 Storage / RecoveryASR Phase:

Sea Level

CAW SGB
Pumping Season Start

EXHIBIT 8-A 121



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

400

380

360

340

320

300

280

260

240

220

200
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

SM MW-1 (Tsm)

-60

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

E
le

va
ti

o
n

 (
ft

 m
sl

)

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 15.  SM MW-1 WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 Storage / RecoveryASR Phase:

Sea Level

NO DATA
XD failure

EXHIBIT 8-A 122



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

400

390

380

370

360

350

340

330

320

310

300
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

Paralta Test (Tsm)

-70

-60

-50

-40

-30

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

E
le

va
ti

o
n

 (
ft

 m
sl

)

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 16.  PARALTA TEST WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 Storage / RecoveryASR Phase:

Sea Level

CAW SGB
Pumping Season Start

Note:  XD not deployed 10/1/16 - 4/16/17
Monthly manual levels presented for this period.

EXHIBIT 8-A 123



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

380

370

360

350

340

330

320

310

300

290

280
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

Ord Grove Test (Tsm)

-80

-70

-60

-50

-40

-30

-20

-10

0

10

E
le

va
ti

o
n

 (
ft

 m
sl

)

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 17.  ORD GROVE TEST WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 Storage / RecoveryASR Phase:

Sea Level

EXHIBIT 8-A 124



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

300

290

280

270

260

250

240

230

220

210

200
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

Ord Terrace Shallow (Upper Tsm)

-70

-60

-50

-40

-30

-20

-10

0

10

20

E
le

va
ti

o
n

 (
ft

 m
sl

)

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 18.  ORD TERRACE WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 Storage / RecoveryASR Phase:

Sea Level

EXHIBIT 8-A 125



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

500

490

480

470

460

450

440

430

420

410

400
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

FO-7 Shallow (QTp)

FO-7 Deep (Tsm)

-30

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

E
le

va
ti

o
n

 (
ft

 m
sl

)

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 19.  FO-7 WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 Storage / RecoveryASR Phase:

Sea Level
CAW SGB

Pumping Season Start

EXHIBIT 8-A 126



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

200

190

180

170

160

150

140

130

120

110

100
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

FO-9 Deep (Tsm)

-80

-70

-60

-50

-40

-30

-20

-10

0

10

E
le

va
ti

o
n

 (
ft

 m
sl

)

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 20.  FO-9 WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 Storage / RecoveryASR Phase:

Sea Level

CAW SGB
Pumping Season Start

EXHIBIT 8-A 127



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

PCA-E Shallow (QTp)

PCA-E Deep (Tsm)

-30

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

E
le

va
ti

o
n

 (
ft

 m
sl

)

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 21.  PCA-EAST WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 Storage / RecoveryASR Phase:

Sea Level CAW SGB
Pumping Season Start

NO DATA
XD failure

EXHIBIT 8-A 128



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

450

440

430

420

410

400

390

380

370

360

350
D

ep
th

 t
o

 W
at

er
 (

fe
et

 b
g

s)

FO-8 Deep (Tsm)

-70

-60

-50

-40

-30

-20

-10

0

10

20

E
le

va
ti

o
n

 (
ft

 m
sl

)

WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 22.  FO-8 WATER-LEVEL DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 Storage / RecoveryASR Phase:

Sea Level

CAW SGB
Pumping Season Start

EXHIBIT 8-A 129



0 30 60 90 120 150
Elapsed Storage Time (days)

0

40

80

120

160

200

C
h

lo
ri

d
e 

(m
g

/L
)

Chloride

0

20

40

60

80

100

H
A

A
s 

(u
g

/L
)

HAAs

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 23.  ASR-1 DISINFECTION BYPRODUCTS PARAMETERS
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

T
T

H
M

s 
(u

g
/L

)
TTHMs

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (28 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (13 ug/L)

MCL (80 ug/L)

MCL (60 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (29 mg/L)

Native Groundwater (120 mg/L)

Note: ASR-1 was taken out of service
on XX/XX/17 (elapsed storage time of xx days)

due to a leaking FCV

EXHIBIT 8-A 130



0 30 60 90 120 150
Elapsed Storage Time (days)

0

40

80

120

160

200

C
h

lo
ri

d
e 

(m
g

/L
)

Chloride

0

20

40

60

80

100

H
A

A
s 

(u
g

/L
)

HAAs

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 24.  ASR-2 DISINFECTION BYPRODUCTS PARAMETERS
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

T
T

H
M

s 
(u

g
/L

)
TTHMs

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (28 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (13 ug/L)

MCL (80 ug/L)

MCL (60 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (29 mg/L)

Native Groundwater (131 mg/L)

EXHIBIT 8-A 131



0 30 60 90 120 150
Elapsed Storage Time (days)

0

40

80

120

160

200

C
h

lo
ri

d
e 

(m
g

/L
)

Chloride

0

20

40

60

80

100

H
A

A
s 

(u
g

/L
)

HAAs

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 25.  ASR-3 DISINFECTION BYPRODUCTS PARAMETERS
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

T
T

H
M

s 
(u

g
/L

)
TTHMs

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (28 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (13 ug/L)

MCL (80 ug/L)

MCL (60 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (29 mg/L)

Native Groundwater (131 mg/L)

Note: ASR-3 was taken out of service
on 9/xx/17 (elapsed storage time of xx days)

for rehabilitation

EXHIBIT 8-A 132



0 30 60 90 120 150
Elapsed Storage Time (days)

0

40

80

120

160

200

C
h

lo
ri

d
e 

(m
g

/L
)

Chloride

0

20

40

60

80

100

H
A

A
s 

(u
g

/L
)

HAAs

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 26.  ASR-4 DISINFECTION BYPRODUCTS PARAMETERS
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

T
T

H
M

s 
(u

g
/L

)
TTHMs

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (28 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (13 ug/L)

MCL (80 ug/L)

MCL (60 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (29 mg/L)

Native Groundwater (131 mg/L)

EXHIBIT 8-A 133



0 30 60 90 120 150
Elapsed Storage Time (days)

0

40

80

120

160

200

C
h

lo
ri

d
e 

(m
g

/L
)

Chloride

0

20

40

60

80

100

H
A

A
s 

(u
g

/L
)

HAAs

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 27.  SM MW-1 DISINFECTION BYPRODUCTS PARAMETERS
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

T
T

H
M

s 
(u

g
/L

)
TTHMs

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (28 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (13 ug/L)

MCL (80 ug/L)

MCL (60 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (29 mg/L)

Native Groundwater (120 mg/L)

EXHIBIT 8-A 134



0 30 60 90 120 150
Elapsed Storage Time (days)

0

40

80

120

160

200

C
h

lo
ri

d
e 

(m
g

/L
)

Chloride

0

20

40

60

80

100

H
A

A
s 

(u
g

/L
)

HAAs

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 28. SMS DEEP DISINFECTION BYPRODUCTS PARAMETERS
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

T
T

H
M

s 
(u

g
/L

)
TTHMs

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (28 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (13 ug/L)

MCL (80 ug/L)

MCL (60 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (29 mg/L)

Native Groundwater (131 mg/L)

EXHIBIT 8-A 135



0 30 60 90 120 150 180
Elapsed Storage Time (days)

0

40

80

120

160

200

C
h

lo
ri

d
e 

(m
g

/L
)

Chloride

0

1

2

3

4

5

H
g

 (
u

g
/L

)
Hg (total)

0

20

40

60

80

100

C
u

 (
u

g
/L

)

Cu (total)

Zn (total)

0

100

200

300

400

500

Z
n

 (
m

g
/L

)

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 29.  ASR-4 HG MONTHLY STORAGE DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

MCL (2 ug/L)

WY 2017 Injectate Avg (29 mg/L)

Native Groundwater (120 mg/L)

EXHIBIT 8-A 136



10/1/16 11/1/16 12/1/16 1/1/17 2/1/17 3/1/17 4/1/17 5/1/17 6/1/17 7/1/17 8/1/17 9/1/17 10/1/17
Date

0

1

2

3

4

5

H
g

 (
u

g
/L

)

0

40

80

120

160

200

C
l-

 (
m

g
/L

)

ASR-4 30-min Hg (unfiltered)

ASR-4 Cl-

ASR-3
WY 2017
Injection

June 2018
Project No. 12-0049

FIGURE 30.  ASR-4 - ASR-3 Hg "BREAKTHROUGH" MONITORING DATA
WY 2017 ASR Program

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Hg MCL = 2.0 ug/L

Pre-Injection GW Cl- = 123 mg/L

WY 2016 Storage WY 2017 StorageASR Phase:

ASR-3 & -4
WY 2017
Injection

Injectate Cl- = 29 mg/L

Initial Backflush Samples
After ASR-4

Injection Start-up

ASR-3 Injectate
"Arrival"
Samples

EXHIBIT 8-A 137



APPENDIX A - FIELD DATA 

(not included in draft) 

EXHIBIT 8-A 138



APPENDIX B – WATER-QUALITY LABORATORY REPORTS 

(not included in draft) 

EXHIBIT 8-A 139



APPENDIX C – HIGH-FREQUENCY INJECTATE SAMPLING DATA 

(not included in draft) 

EXHIBIT 8-A 140



APPENDIX D – BACKFLUSH RESIDUE SAMPLING LABORATORY 

REPORTS 

(not included in draft) 

EXHIBIT 8-A 141



142



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
9. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF TREASURER’S REPORT FOR MAY 2018 
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.: 
 

Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee considered this item on 
July 10, 2018 and recommended approval. 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  Exhibit 9-A comprises the Treasurer’s Report for May 2018.  Exhibit 9-B, 
Exhibit 9-C and Exhibit 9-D are listings of check disbursements for the period May 1-31, 2018.  
Check Nos. 31972 through 32224, the direct deposits of employee’s paychecks, payroll tax 
deposits, and bank charges resulted in total disbursements for the period in the amount of 
$473,906.35.  That amount included $78,184.34 for conservation rebates.  Exhibit 9-E reflects 
the unaudited version of the financial statements for the month ending May 31, 2018.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends adoption of the May 2018 Treasurer’s 
Report and financial statements, and ratification of the disbursements made during the month.   
   
EXHIBITS 
9-A Treasurer’s Report 
9-B Listing of Cash Disbursements-Regular 
9-C Listing of Cash Disbursements-Payroll 
9-D Listing of Other Bank Items 
9-E Financial Statements 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ConsentClndr\09\Item-9.docx 

143



144



PB
MPWMD Wells Fargo MPWMD Rabobank Reclamation

Description Checking Money Market L.A.I.F. Investments Total Line of Credit Money Market

     Beginning Balance $111,242.02 $3,943,999.09 $5,024,084.33 $3,039,640.60 12,118,966.04$  $0.00 $346,333.30
Fee Deposits $0.00 769,004.35 769,004.35 320,082.74
Line of Credit Draw/Payoff 0.00
Interest 136.45 3,341.71          3,478.16 13.40
Transfer to/from LAIF 0.00
Transfer-Money Market to Checking $600,000.00 (600,000.00)     0.00
Transfer-Money Market to W/Fargo 0.00
Transfer-W/Fargo to Money Market 0.00
W/Fargo-Investment Purchase 0.00
Transfer Ckg to MPWMD M/Mrkt 0.00
MoCo Tax & WS Chg Installment Pymt 0.00
Transfer to CAWD 0.00 (500,000.00)
Voided Cks 0.00
Bank Corrections/Reversals/Errors 0.00
Bank Charges/Rtn'd Deposits/Other ($339.09) (7,900.64) (8,239.73) 0.00
Payroll Tax/Benefit Deposits (37,016.55)          (37,016.55)
Payroll Checks/Direct Deposits (136,521.08)       (136,521.08)
General Checks (241,906.17)       (241,906.17)
Bank Draft Payments (58,123.46)          (58,123.46)
     Ending Balance $237,335.67 $4,105,239.25 $5,024,084.33 $3,042,982.31 $12,409,641.56 $0.00 $166,429.44

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT FOR MAY 2018

U:\mpwmd\Excel\Treasurer's Rpt\17-18 Treasurer's Rpt

6/27/2018

EXHIBIT 9-A 145



146



6/27/2018 4:37:19 PM Page 1 of 6

Check Report
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District By Check Number

Date Range: 05/01/2018 - 05/31/2018

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: APBNK       -Bank of America Checking

13080 West Marine Products 05/01/2018 31823-499.12Regular 0.00

15816 NBS Government Finance Group 05/01/2018 31957-2,000.00Regular 0.00

14567 Applicant Information 05/04/2018 31972187.80Regular 0.00

00253 AT&T 05/04/2018 31973202.55Regular 0.00

00252 Cal-Am Water 05/04/2018 3197484.48Regular 0.00

00252 Cal-Am Water 05/04/2018 31975116.74Regular 0.00

01001 CDW Government 05/04/2018 319762,468.01Regular 0.00

06001 Cypress Coast Ford 05/04/2018 31977145.49Regular 0.00

08104 DLT Solutions 05/04/2018 31978186.20Regular 0.00

00223 Martins Irrigation Supply 05/04/2018 3197950.50Regular 0.00

00118 Monterey Bay Carpet & Janitorial Svc 05/04/2018 319801,000.00Regular 0.00

00154 Peninsula Messenger Service 05/04/2018 31981470.00Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 05/04/2018 31982544.25Regular 0.00

00262 Pure H2O 05/04/2018 3198365.24Regular 0.00

04709 Sherron Forsgren 05/04/2018 31984715.47Regular 0.00

00990 Smith-Root, Inc. 05/04/2018 319851,874.81Regular 0.00

00203 ThyssenKrup Elevator 05/04/2018 31986603.47Regular 0.00

00207 Universal Staffing Inc. 05/04/2018 319872,553.60Regular 0.00

16234 Aquaveo, LLC 05/11/2018 32062300.00Regular 0.00

00253 AT&T 05/11/2018 320631,615.17Regular 0.00

00252 Cal-Am Water 05/11/2018 32064220.03Regular 0.00

16237 California Water Efficiency Partnership 05/11/2018 32065668.13Regular 0.00

00243 CalPers Long Term Care Program 05/11/2018 3206650.06Regular 0.00

01001 CDW Government 05/11/2018 32067186.90Regular 0.00

00281 CoreLogic Information Solutions, Inc. 05/11/2018 320681,094.71Regular 0.00

04041 Cynthia Schmidlin 05/11/2018 32069682.59Regular 0.00

00277 Home Depot Credit Services 05/11/2018 3207086.04Regular 0.00

00768 ICMA 05/11/2018 320715,485.09Regular 0.00

04717 Inder Osahan 05/11/2018 320721,183.47Regular 0.00

00222 M.J. Murphy 05/11/2018 3207340.89Regular 0.00

00259 Marina Coast Water District 05/11/2018 3207471.55Regular 0.00

00259 Marina Coast Water District 05/11/2018 32075280.16Regular 0.00

00223 Martins Irrigation Supply 05/11/2018 32076369.92Regular 0.00

07771 Monterey Bay Urgent Care 05/11/2018 3207760.00Regular 0.00

13396 Navia Benefit Solutions, Inc. 05/11/2018 32078932.51Regular 0.00

00755 Peninsula Welding Supply, Inc. 05/11/2018 32079144.74Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 05/11/2018 32080336.00Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 05/11/2018 320811,311.09Regular 0.00

09989 Star Sanitation Services 05/11/2018 3208288.51Regular 0.00

00258 TBC Communications & Media 05/11/2018 32083875.00Regular 0.00

04719 Telit  lo T Platforms, LLC 05/11/2018 32084245.65Regular 0.00

14680 Tope Tree Service 05/11/2018 320855,752.50Regular 0.00

00271 UPEC, Local 792 05/11/2018 320861,153.17Regular 0.00

00249 A.G. Davi, LTD 05/18/2018 32087790.00Regular 0.00

00763 ACWA-JPIA 05/18/2018 32088852.85Regular 0.00

00767 AFLAC 05/18/2018 320891,275.04Regular 0.00

00760 Andy Bell 05/18/2018 32090699.00Regular 0.00

00253 AT&T 05/18/2018 320911,635.56Regular 0.00

00036 Bill Parham 05/18/2018 32092650.00Regular 0.00

04042 Cabelas Government Outfitters 05/18/2018 32093352.68Regular 0.00

00252 Cal-Am Water 05/18/2018 32094223.25Regular 0.00

16120 California State University, Sacramento 05/18/2018 3209511,127.25Regular 0.00

16123 Carmel Valley Garage 05/18/2018 32096278.80Regular 0.00

01001 CDW Government 05/18/2018 320973,024.58Regular 0.00

EXHIBIT 9-B 147



Check Report Date Range: 05/01/2018 - 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:37:19 PM Page 2 of 6

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

00224 City of Monterey 05/18/2018 32098267.50Regular 0.00

06268 Comcast 05/18/2018 32099269.89Regular 0.00

01352 Dave Stoldt 05/18/2018 321001,199.50Regular 0.00

08990 Fort Ord Reuse Authority 05/18/2018 321014,568.36Regular 0.00

08929 HDR Engineering, Inc. 05/18/2018 321025,075.48Regular 0.00

00986 Henrietta Stern 05/18/2018 321031,183.47Regular 0.00

00277 Home Depot Credit Services 05/18/2018 3210466.18Regular 0.00

00100 J M Electric 05/18/2018 32105514.00Regular 0.00

03857 Joe Oliver 05/18/2018 321061,183.47Regular 0.00

15601 LSA Associates, Inc. 05/18/2018 321071,725.00Regular 0.00

13431 Lynx Technologies, Inc 05/18/2018 321082,550.00Regular 0.00

00242 MBAS 05/18/2018 32109980.00Regular 0.00

15816 NBS Government Finance Group 05/18/2018 321102,000.00Regular 0.00

00256 PERS Retirement 05/21/2018 32111-15,414.65Regular 0.00

00256 PERS Retirement 05/18/2018 3211115,414.65Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 05/18/2018 3211246.43Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 05/18/2018 3211310.51Regular 0.00

00159 Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. 05/18/2018 3211420,180.23Regular 0.00

13394 Regional Government Services 05/18/2018 32115600.00Regular 0.00

00987 SDRMA - Prop & Liability Pkg 05/18/2018 3211647.50Regular 0.00

00176 Sentry Alarm Systems 05/18/2018 32117215.50Regular 0.00

00283 SHELL 05/18/2018 32118867.16Regular 0.00

07769 University Corporation at Monterey Bay 05/18/2018 321193,117.30Regular 0.00

08105 Yolanda Munoz 05/18/2018 32120540.00Regular 0.00

00754 Zone24x7 05/18/2018 321213,957.60Regular 0.00

00249 A.G. Davi, LTD 05/25/2018 32124395.00Regular 0.00

00253 AT&T 05/25/2018 32125768.50Regular 0.00

12188 Brown and Caldwell 05/25/2018 321268,808.00Regular 0.00

00243 CalPers Long Term Care Program 05/25/2018 3212750.06Regular 0.00

00024 Central Coast Exterminator 05/25/2018 32128104.00Regular 0.00

00028 Colantuono, Highsmith, & Whatley, PC 05/25/2018 321292,343.25Regular 0.00

00761 Delores Cofer 05/25/2018 32130356.00Regular 0.00

00225 Escalon Services c/o Palace Business Solutions 05/25/2018 32131149.36Regular 0.00

00758 FedEx 05/25/2018 32132117.29Regular 0.00

00277 Home Depot Credit Services 05/25/2018 32133149.98Regular 0.00

00094 John Arriaga 05/25/2018 321342,500.00Regular 0.00

06999 KBA Docusys 05/25/2018 32135642.70Regular 0.00

00222 M.J. Murphy 05/25/2018 3213670.03Regular 0.00

15816 NBS Government Finance Group 05/25/2018 321371,000.00Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 05/25/2018 3213812.25Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 05/25/2018 3213924.11Regular 0.00

16313 Salinas Valley Ford 05/25/2018 3214030,794.94Regular 0.00

00766 Standard Insurance Company 05/25/2018 321411,607.89Regular 0.00

09989 Star Sanitation Services 05/25/2018 3214271.01Regular 0.00

00258 TBC Communications & Media 05/25/2018 321433,500.00Regular 0.00

14680 Tope Tree Service 05/25/2018 321445,640.00Regular 0.00

08105 Yolanda Munoz 05/25/2018 32145540.00Regular 0.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code APBNK        Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

98

0

3

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

101 0.00

Payment

181,635.60

0.00

-17,913.77

0.00

0.00

163,721.83

Payable
Count

131

0

0

0

0

131

EXHIBIT 9-B 148



Check Report Date Range: 05/01/2018 - 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:37:19 PM Page 3 of 6

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: REBATES-02-Rebates: Use Only For Rebates

16285 Aleksandr Ignatyev 05/04/2018 31988479.99Regular 0.00

16305 Alex Barth 05/04/2018 31989500.00Regular 0.00

16290 ANNE HATTON 05/04/2018 31990500.00Regular 0.00

16310 ANNETTE  STEWART 05/04/2018 31991500.00Regular 0.00

16279 ANTHONY BILLISI 05/04/2018 31992500.00Regular 0.00

16291 Arnold Westphal 05/04/2018 31993500.00Regular 0.00

16301 BERJ MOOSEKIAN 05/04/2018 31994125.00Regular 0.00

16277 BEVERLY SCHIAVONI 05/04/2018 31995500.00Regular 0.00

16268 BRYAN ASHBY 05/04/2018 31996500.00Regular 0.00

16289 CARRIE BUCHER VORHIES 05/04/2018 31997500.00Regular 0.00

16263 CHERYL E PANATTONI 05/04/2018 31998500.00Regular 0.00

16297 CUSTOM HOUSE REALTY 05/04/2018 3199975.00Regular 0.00

16309 CUSTOM HOUSE REALTY 05/04/2018 32000150.00Regular 0.00

16274 DANIEL HIGHTOWER 05/04/2018 32001500.00Regular 0.00

16265 DANIEL SPILFOGEL 05/04/2018 32002500.00Regular 0.00

16267 DAVID & DONNA GAUVREAU 05/04/2018 32003500.00Regular 0.00

16295 DEL MESA CARMEL COMMUNITY ASSOC., INC 05/04/2018 320041,300.00Regular 0.00

16271 DENNIS FOX 05/04/2018 32005500.00Regular 0.00

16280 DIANA WILKS 05/04/2018 32006500.00Regular 0.00

16294 DOUGLAS WEAVER 05/04/2018 32007200.00Regular 0.00

16251 EDWARD TRISCHMANN 05/04/2018 32008125.00Regular 0.00

16304 GAETANO CUTINO 05/04/2018 320091,000.00Regular 0.00

16296 GARY BRIANT 05/04/2018 320101,950.00Regular 0.00

16303 GAYLE EVANS 05/04/2018 320111,000.00Regular 0.00

16300 GINTAUTAS BUZORIUS 05/04/2018 32012125.00Regular 0.00

16308 HARI SAHDEO 05/04/2018 32013125.00Regular 0.00

16269 HARLAN  WILDER 05/04/2018 32014694.99Regular 0.00

16252 HARVEY SHRUM 05/04/2018 32015125.00Regular 0.00

11653 HILARIO VERA 05/04/2018 32016500.00Regular 0.00

16245 HOWARD FOSLER 05/04/2018 3201775.00Regular 0.00

16250 JANET MCTURK 05/04/2018 3201875.00Regular 0.00

16281 JAY GRAY 05/04/2018 32019500.00Regular 0.00

16306 JEANIE BECKS 05/04/2018 32020150.00Regular 0.00

16256 JEANNA WEINERTH 05/04/2018 32021125.00Regular 0.00

16288 JENNIFER HIRSH 05/04/2018 32022500.00Regular 0.00

16258 JIM COURTNEY 05/04/2018 32023125.00Regular 0.00

16286 JOE ACQUAVIVA 05/04/2018 32024497.70Regular 0.00

16257 JOHN CHATTERS 05/04/2018 32025125.00Regular 0.00

16270 JOHN HARDIN 05/04/2018 32026500.00Regular 0.00

16293 JOHN LUBBEN 05/04/2018 32027200.00Regular 0.00

16246 JUDY ANN TAGAMI 05/04/2018 32028150.00Regular 0.00

16302 JUDY GAUGHF 05/04/2018 320291,000.00Regular 0.00

16273 JULIA RANDLE 05/04/2018 32030479.00Regular 0.00

16238 LARRY FOSTER 05/04/2018 32031125.00Regular 0.00

16253 LERABLE FAMILY TRUST 05/04/2018 32032125.00Regular 0.00

16276 LEROY & PATRICIA ERNST 05/04/2018 32033500.00Regular 0.00

16283 LINDA WARMINGTON 05/04/2018 32034500.00Regular 0.00

16249 LYLE BRUMFIELD 05/04/2018 32035225.00Regular 0.00

16239 LYLE QUOCK 05/04/2018 32036400.00Regular 0.00

16278 MARGARET & FERGUS TOBIN 05/04/2018 32037500.00Regular 0.00

16242 MARTHA LOPEZ 05/04/2018 3203875.00Regular 0.00

16284 MICHAEL MARKMAN 05/04/2018 32039500.00Regular 0.00

16307 MONTEREY CITY SCHOOL DIST 05/04/2018 3204010,508.00Regular 0.00

16244 NOELLE BALLARINI 05/04/2018 32041150.00Regular 0.00

16275 PATRICIA CRUICKSHANK 05/04/2018 32042479.99Regular 0.00

16260 PATRICIA K DALLY 05/04/2018 32043125.00Regular 0.00

16259 PETER & TERRY BALDWIN 05/04/2018 32044125.00Regular 0.00

16272 RICHARD JENSEN 05/04/2018 32045500.00Regular 0.00

16240 RICHARD SCHNEIDER 05/04/2018 32046225.00Regular 0.00

16266 ROBERT E HAYNER 05/04/2018 32047500.00Regular 0.00

EXHIBIT 9-B 149



Check Report Date Range: 05/01/2018 - 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:37:19 PM Page 4 of 6

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

16243 ROGER MANLEY 05/04/2018 3204875.00Regular 0.00

16247 RYAN & D ANNE PETERSON 05/04/2018 3204975.00Regular 0.00

16287 SALVATORE  MERCURIO & KATELYNN SILVA 05/04/2018 32050497.70Regular 0.00

16292 SAMEER BAKHDA 05/04/2018 32051140.00Regular 0.00

16255 SANDRA FARRELL 05/04/2018 32052125.00Regular 0.00

16264 Scott Graham 05/04/2018 32053500.00Regular 0.00

16282 SHERMAN JONES 05/04/2018 32054500.00Regular 0.00

16262 STEVEN ANDERSON 05/04/2018 32055500.00Regular 0.00

16299 SYLVIA M GARCIA 05/04/2018 3205675.00Regular 0.00

16298 SYLVIA M GARCIA TRUST 05/04/2018 3205775.00Regular 0.00

16248 TIA LEWIS 05/04/2018 32058225.00Regular 0.00

16254 TONY FLORES 05/04/2018 32059125.00Regular 0.00

16241 W RENE AYERS 05/04/2018 32060150.00Regular 0.00

16261 Zachary Freedman 05/04/2018 32061500.00Regular 0.00

16341 ALAN MOVSON 05/25/2018 3214675.00Regular 0.00

16332 AMANDA FREEDMAN 05/25/2018 32147250.00Regular 0.00

16351 ANTHONY AIELLO 05/25/2018 3214875.00Regular 0.00

16337 ANTHONY R MAROTTA 05/25/2018 32149225.00Regular 0.00

16329 AUDREY MORRIS 05/25/2018 32150500.00Regular 0.00

16366 BARBARA SIEDHOFF 05/25/2018 32151476.99Regular 0.00

16385 Bruce Hedin 05/25/2018 32152500.00Regular 0.00

16328 CHRISTY SOBOLESKI 05/25/2018 32153500.00Regular 0.00

16384 CUSTOM HOUSE REALTY 05/25/2018 3215475.00Regular 0.00

16344 DAVID  CAMERON 05/25/2018 3215575.00Regular 0.00

16338 DAVID  COOPER 05/25/2018 32156714.98Regular 0.00

16378 Ecology Action of Santa Cruz 05/25/2018 32157500.00Regular 0.00

16379 Ecology Action of Santa Cruz 05/25/2018 32158500.00Regular 0.00

16360 Ecology Action of Santa Cruz 05/25/2018 32159125.00Regular 0.00

16361 Ecology Action of Santa Cruz 05/25/2018 32160125.00Regular 0.00

16389 Ecology Action of Santa Cruz 05/25/2018 321611,500.00Regular 0.00

16377 Ecology Action of Santa Cruz 05/25/2018 32162500.00Regular 0.00

16392 Ecology Action of Santa Cruz 05/25/2018 3216312,000.00Regular 0.00

16388 Ecology Action of Santa Cruz 05/25/2018 321641,500.00Regular 0.00

16333 ENID COCKER 05/25/2018 321651,375.00Regular 0.00

16390 ERIKA P RUBIO 05/25/2018 32166500.00Regular 0.00

16322 ERNEST BIZZOZERO 05/25/2018 32167125.00Regular 0.00

16314 Frank Schiavone 05/25/2018 3216875.00Regular 0.00

16345 GLEN ALDER 05/25/2018 32169150.00Regular 0.00

16315 GREGORY CLAGGETT 05/25/2018 3217075.00Regular 0.00

16357 INGRID AQUINO 05/25/2018 32171125.00Regular 0.00

16319 JAE JUN KIM 05/25/2018 32172125.00Regular 0.00

16342 JAMES BARATH 05/25/2018 32173225.00Regular 0.00

16324 JAMES CHAMBERS 05/25/2018 32174500.00Regular 0.00

16352 JAMIE HOUSMAN 05/25/2018 32175125.00Regular 0.00

16373 JAN  BRUNO 05/25/2018 32176500.00Regular 0.00

16327 JASON ALTO 05/25/2018 32177500.00Regular 0.00

16380 JEFF SALMON 05/25/2018 32178200.00Regular 0.00

16350 JERRY HORNOR 05/25/2018 3217975.00Regular 0.00

16339 JIELU ZHAO 05/25/2018 3218075.00Regular 0.00

16343 JOHN EATON 05/25/2018 3218115.00Regular 0.00

16330 Jose F Gomez Lopez 05/25/2018 32182500.00Regular 0.00

16349 JUDITH  MEAD 05/25/2018 3218375.00Regular 0.00

16316 JULIE CAMBE 05/25/2018 32184125.00Regular 0.00

16364 LAURI  TANNER 05/25/2018 32185500.00Regular 0.00

16331 LAWRENCE KALINOWSKI 05/25/2018 321862,625.00Regular 0.00

16354 LEE K JOHNSON 05/25/2018 32187125.00Regular 0.00

16359 LEO LUKENAS 05/25/2018 32188125.00Regular 0.00

16371 Manuel Gonsalves 05/25/2018 32189500.00Regular 0.00

16318 Marcello Correa 05/25/2018 32190125.00Regular 0.00

16386 MARGARET MANNING 05/25/2018 32191300.00Regular 0.00

16387 MARGARET MANNING 05/25/2018 32192300.00Regular 0.00

EXHIBIT 9-B 150



Check Report Date Range: 05/01/2018 - 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:37:19 PM Page 5 of 6

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

16355 MARIE BRUNO 05/25/2018 32193125.00Regular 0.00

16368 MARK BAERG 05/25/2018 32194500.00Regular 0.00

16369 MARTHA MICHAELS 05/25/2018 32195500.00Regular 0.00

16382 MARY JO TRIVERS 05/25/2018 32196100.00Regular 0.00

16363 Matthew Triplett 05/25/2018 32197500.00Regular 0.00

16320 MELISSA RAE ANDERSEN 05/25/2018 32198125.00Regular 0.00

16353 Monterey Bay Property Management 05/25/2018 32199125.00Regular 0.00

16336 MYRNA  JOHNSON 05/25/2018 32200500.00Regular 0.00

16346 NANCY T LEWIS 05/25/2018 3220175.00Regular 0.00

16365 NAVID GHAZI 05/25/2018 32202500.00Regular 0.00

16347 PAULA I  O'CONNOR 05/25/2018 3220375.00Regular 0.00

16340 PETER HILLER 05/25/2018 32204125.00Regular 0.00

16321 PHILIP KING 05/25/2018 32205125.00Regular 0.00

16375 REBECCA BARRYMORE 05/25/2018 32206500.00Regular 0.00

16376 RENITA SEIBEL 05/25/2018 32207500.00Regular 0.00

16374 RICK SKIBINSKI 05/25/2018 32208500.00Regular 0.00

16325 ROBERTA FORLANO 05/25/2018 32209500.00Regular 0.00

16362 ROBIN REISMAN 05/25/2018 32210500.00Regular 0.00

16372 RONALD ROLAND 05/25/2018 32211500.00Regular 0.00

16317 Sam Mercurio 05/25/2018 32212125.00Regular 0.00

16356 SARAH HAINSTOCK 05/25/2018 32213125.00Regular 0.00

16383 SCOTT BROWN 05/25/2018 32214500.00Regular 0.00

16358 THEODORE RAABE 05/25/2018 32215125.00Regular 0.00

16391 THIERRY & AMY CROCQUET 05/25/2018 32216150.00Regular 0.00

16323 TIM D CONWAY 05/25/2018 32217125.00Regular 0.00

16381 TIM DAVID 05/25/2018 32218200.00Regular 0.00

16326 TOM HLASNY 05/25/2018 32219500.00Regular 0.00

16348 TOM REDFERN 05/25/2018 3222075.00Regular 0.00

16370 VICTORIA ANNE NUCCI 05/25/2018 32221500.00Regular 0.00

16367 ZOE CARTER 05/25/2018 32222500.00Regular 0.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code REBATES-02 Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

151

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

151 0.00

Payment

78,184.34

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

78,184.34

Payable
Count

151

0

0

0

0

151

EXHIBIT 9-B 151



Check Report Date Range: 05/01/2018 - 05/31/2018

Page 6 of 66/27/2018 4:37:19 PM

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

249

0

3

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

252 0.00

259,819.94

0.00

-17,913.77

0.00

0.00

241,906.17

282

0

0

0

0

282

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

99 POOL CASH FUND 241,906.175/2018

241,906.17

EXHIBIT 9-B 152



6/27/2018 4:37:40 PM Page 1 of 2

Payroll Bank Transaction Report - MPWMD
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District By Payment Number

Date: 5/1/2018 - 5/31/2018

Payroll Set: 01 - Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Employee
Number Employee Name Total Payment

Direct Deposit
AmountCheck AmountPayment Type

Payment
Number Payment Date

1024 Stoldt, David J 5,636.775,636.770.00Regular3714 05/11/2018

1025 Tavani, Arlene M 2,088.302,088.300.00Regular3715 05/11/2018

1044 Bennett, Corryn D 1,567.131,567.130.00Regular3716 05/11/2018

1006 Dudley, Mark A 2,846.762,846.760.00Regular3717 05/11/2018

1039 Flores, Elizabeth 2,105.612,105.610.00Regular3718 05/11/2018

1018 Prasad, Suresh 4,250.684,250.680.00Regular3719 05/11/2018

1019 Reyes, Sara C 1,815.291,815.290.00Regular3720 05/11/2018

1045 Atkins, Daniel 1,679.721,679.720.00Regular3721 05/11/2018

1002 Bekker, Mark 1,896.701,896.700.00Regular3722 05/11/2018

1005 Christensen, Thomas T 3,188.653,188.650.00Regular3723 05/11/2018

1042 Hamilton, Maureen C. 3,117.013,117.010.00Regular3724 05/11/2018

1008 Hampson, Larry M 3,081.693,081.690.00Regular3725 05/11/2018

1009 James, Gregory W 3,289.533,289.530.00Regular3726 05/11/2018

1011 Lear, Jonathan P 3,723.153,723.150.00Regular3727 05/11/2018

1012 Lindberg, Thomas L 2,745.732,745.730.00Regular3728 05/11/2018

1004 Chaney, Beverly M 2,492.412,492.410.00Regular3729 05/11/2018

1007 Hamilton, Cory R 2,231.742,231.740.00Regular3730 05/11/2018

1043 Suwada, Joseph 1,709.571,709.570.00Regular3731 05/11/2018

1026 Urquhart, Kevan A 2,217.502,217.500.00Regular3732 05/11/2018

1001 Ayala, Gabriela D 2,323.382,323.380.00Regular3733 05/11/2018

1041 Gonnerman, Maryan C 1,971.531,971.530.00Regular3734 05/11/2018

1010 Kister, Stephanie L 2,545.582,545.580.00Regular3735 05/11/2018

1017 Locke, Stephanie L 3,469.673,469.670.00Regular3736 05/11/2018

1014 Martin, Debra S 2,654.162,654.160.00Regular3737 05/11/2018

1040 Smith, Kyle 2,272.802,272.800.00Regular3738 05/11/2018

1024 Stoldt, David J 5,636.775,636.770.00Regular3739 05/25/2018

1025 Tavani, Arlene M 2,088.312,088.310.00Regular3740 05/25/2018

1044 Bennett, Corryn D 1,889.471,889.470.00Regular3741 05/25/2018

1006 Dudley, Mark A 2,846.752,846.750.00Regular3742 05/25/2018

1039 Flores, Elizabeth 1,907.791,907.790.00Regular3743 05/25/2018

1018 Prasad, Suresh 4,250.684,250.680.00Regular3744 05/25/2018

1019 Reyes, Sara C 1,643.831,643.830.00Regular3745 05/25/2018

1045 Atkins, Daniel 1,679.721,679.720.00Regular3746 05/25/2018

1002 Bekker, Mark 1,896.711,896.710.00Regular3747 05/25/2018

1005 Christensen, Thomas T 3,188.653,188.650.00Regular3748 05/25/2018

1042 Hamilton, Maureen C. 3,117.013,117.010.00Regular3749 05/25/2018

1008 Hampson, Larry M 3,081.693,081.690.00Regular3750 05/25/2018

1009 James, Gregory W 3,289.533,289.530.00Regular3751 05/25/2018

1011 Lear, Jonathan P 3,723.153,723.150.00Regular3752 05/25/2018

1012 Lindberg, Thomas L 2,745.732,745.730.00Regular3753 05/25/2018

1004 Chaney, Beverly M 2,492.412,492.410.00Regular3754 05/25/2018

1007 Hamilton, Cory R 2,231.742,231.740.00Regular3755 05/25/2018

1043 Suwada, Joseph 1,709.571,709.570.00Regular3756 05/25/2018

1026 Urquhart, Kevan A 2,217.502,217.500.00Regular3757 05/25/2018

1001 Ayala, Gabriela D 2,448.522,448.520.00Regular3758 05/25/2018

1041 Gonnerman, Maryan C 1,971.531,971.530.00Regular3759 05/25/2018

1010 Kister, Stephanie L 2,545.602,545.600.00Regular3760 05/25/2018

1017 Locke, Stephanie L 3,469.673,469.670.00Regular3761 05/25/2018

1014 Martin, Debra S 2,654.162,654.160.00Regular3762 05/25/2018

1040 Smith, Kyle 2,023.062,023.060.00Regular3763 05/25/2018

7015 Adams, Mary L 124.67124.670.00Regular3764 05/30/2018

7013 Clarke, Andrew 439.11439.110.00Regular3765 05/30/2018

7014 Evans, Molly F 489.11489.110.00Regular3766 05/30/2018

7003 Lewis, Brenda 249.34249.340.00Regular3767 05/30/2018

1046 Whitmore, Cortina 1,049.56750.00299.56Regular32123 05/25/2018

7007 Byrne, Jeannie 249.340.00249.34Regular32223 05/30/2018

EXHIBIT 9-C
153



6/27/2018 4:37:40 PM Page 2 of 2

Employee
Number Employee Name Total Payment

Direct Deposit
AmountCheck AmountPayment Type

Payment
Number Payment Date

7016 Rubio, Ralph S 249.340.00249.34Regular32224 05/30/2018

136,521.08135,722.84798.24Totals:

EXHIBIT 9-C
154



6/27/2018 4:38:19 PM Page 1 of 2

Bank Transaction Report
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District Transaction Detail

Issued Date Range: 05/01/2018 - 05/31/2018

Cleared Date Range:  -

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

Accounts Payable

-15,347.38ClearedAccounts PayablePERS RetirementDFT0001141 Bank Draft05/03/2018 05/31/2018

-11,038.76ClearedAccounts PayableI.R.S.DFT0001138 Bank Draft05/11/2018 05/31/2018

-2,678.48ClearedAccounts PayableI.R.S.DFT0001139 Bank Draft05/11/2018 05/31/2018

-4,567.49ClearedAccounts PayableEmployment Development Dept.DFT0001140 Bank Draft05/11/2018 05/31/2018

-27,360.00ClearedAccounts PayableLaborers Trust Fund of Northern CADFT0001159 Bank Draft05/15/2018 05/31/2018

-15,416.08ClearedAccounts PayablePERS RetirementDFT0001148 Bank Draft05/17/2018 05/31/2018

-11,087.86ClearedAccounts PayableI.R.S.DFT0001145 Bank Draft05/25/2018 05/31/2018

-2,707.68ClearedAccounts PayableI.R.S.DFT0001146 Bank Draft05/25/2018 05/31/2018

-4,557.26ClearedAccounts PayableEmployment Development Dept.DFT0001147 Bank Draft05/25/2018 05/31/2018

-69.16OutstandingAccounts PayableI.R.S.DFT0001150 Bank Draft05/30/2018

-58.76OutstandingAccounts PayableI.R.S.DFT0001151 Bank Draft05/30/2018

-251.10OutstandingAccounts PayableI.R.S.DFT0001152 Bank Draft05/30/2018

Accounts Payable Total: (12) -95,140.01

General Ledger

-339.09ClearedGeneral Ledger05/2018 To post bank service feeSVC0000151 Service Charge05/15/2018 05/31/2018

General Ledger Total: (1) -339.09

Report Total: (13) -95,479.10

EXHIBIT 9-D 155



Issued Date Range: -Bank Transaction Report

6/27/2018 4:38:19 PM Page 2 of 2

Summary
Bank Account Count Amount

-95,479.1013111 Bank of America Checking - 0000 8170 8210

-95,479.10Report Total: 13

Cash Account Count Amount

-95,479.101399 99-10-100100   Pool Cash Account

-95,479.10Report Total: 13

Transaction Type Count Amount

-95,140.0112Bank Draft

-339.091Service Charge

-95,479.10Report Total: 13

EXHIBIT 9-D 156



6/27/2018 4:40:02 PM Page 1 of 4

Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

Revenue

R100 - Water Supply Charge 0 3,347,036 98.44 %0.00 %-283,220 -52,964283,220 3,400,000

R120 - Property Taxes Revenues 0 1,835,234 104.87 %0.00 %-145,775 85,234145,775 1,750,000

R130 - User Fees 364,928 3,938,075 96.17 %106.97 %23,793 -156,925341,136 4,095,000

R140 - Connection Charges 34,559 498,677 166.23 %138.28 %9,567 198,67724,992 300,000

R150 - Permit Processing Fee 19,814 235,471 134.55 %135.92 %5,237 60,47114,578 175,000

R160 - Well Registration Fee 200 2,475 0.00 %0.00 %200 2,4750 0

R180 - River Work Permit Applicatiction 0 25 0.00 %0.00 %0 250 0

R190 - WDS Permits Rule 21 600 17,610 31.45 %12.86 %-4,065 -38,3904,665 56,000

R200 - Recording Fees 2,122 21,048 71.11 %86.04 %-344 -8,5522,466 29,600

R210 - Legal Fees 228 5,370 33.56 %17.11 %-1,105 -10,6301,333 16,000

R220 - Copy Fee 0 99 0.00 %0.00 %0 990 0

R230 - Miscellaneous - Other 4,512 21,410 107.05 %270.80 %2,846 1,4101,666 20,000

R250 - Interest Income 3,478 31,202 104.01 %139.16 %979 1,2022,499 30,000

R260 - CAW - ASR 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-52,929 -635,40052,929 635,400

R265 - CAW - Los Padres Reimbursement 260,893 260,893 39.53 %474.50 %205,910 -399,10754,983 660,000

R270 - CAW - Rebates 0 281,445 108.25 %0.00 %-21,650 21,44521,650 260,000

R290 - CAW - Miscellaneous 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-6,707 -80,5006,707 80,500

R300 - Watermaster 0 41,133 55.14 %0.00 %-6,214 -33,4676,214 74,600

R308 - Reclamation Project 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-1,666 -20,0001,666 20,000

R309 - GWR Project Reimbursements 0 4,112,541 100.00 %0.00 %-342,708 41342,708 4,112,500

R310 - Other Reimbursements 0 19,776 67.49 %0.00 %-2,441 -9,5242,441 29,300

R320 - Grants 72,255 110,297 24.51 %192.89 %34,796 -339,70337,458 450,000

R510 - Operating Reserve 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-71,130 -853,90071,130 853,900

Total Revenue: 763,588 14,779,817 86.70 %53.77 %-656,627 -2,267,9831,420,215 17,047,800

EXHIBIT 9-E 157



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:02 PM Page 2 of 4

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

Expense

Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs

1100 - Salaries & Wages 196,210 2,223,556 88.87 %94.14 %12,207 278,444208,417 2,502,000

1110 - Manager's Auto Allowance 462 3,923 65.38 %92.34 %38 2,077500 6,000

1120 - Manager's Deferred Comp 677 5,754 68.50 %96.74 %23 2,646700 8,400

1130 - Unemployment Compensation 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %250 3,000250 3,000

1150 - Temporary Personnel 4,139 44,611 84.17 %93.75 %276 8,3894,415 53,000

1160 - PERS Retirement 19,119 457,527 101.79 %51.06 %18,324 -8,02737,443 449,500

1170 - Medical Insurance 27,205 293,635 88.85 %98.82 %325 36,86527,531 330,500

1180 - Medical Insurance - Retirees 7,760 85,236 105.23 %115.00 %-1,012 -4,2366,747 81,000

1190 - Workers Compensation 3,751 45,660 89.70 %88.46 %489 5,2404,240 50,900

1200 - Life Insurance 354 3,663 67.83 %78.59 %96 1,737450 5,400

1210 - Long Term Disability Insurance 1,161 12,488 86.72 %96.77 %39 1,9121,200 14,400

1220 - Short Term Disability Insurance 230 2,482 75.21 %83.81 %45 818275 3,300

1230 - Other Benefits 80 1,827 152.21 %80.03 %20 -627100 1,200

1260 - Employee Assistance Program 59 635 42.30 %47.02 %66 865125 1,500

1270 - FICA Tax Expense 117 4,908 72.17 %20.69 %449 1,892566 6,800

1280 - Medicare Tax Expense 2,720 32,917 88.25 %87.56 %387 4,3833,107 37,300

1290 - Staff Development & Training 1,432 10,527 28.53 %46.60 %1,641 26,3733,074 36,900

1300 - Conference Registration 0 3,571 105.04 %0.00 %283 -171283 3,400

1310 - Professional Dues 338 1,712 55.23 %130.70 %-79 1,388258 3,100

1320 - Personnel Recruitment 0 695 34.74 %0.00 %167 1,305167 2,000

Total Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs: 265,813 3,235,325 89.88 %88.65 %34,034 364,275299,847 3,599,600

Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services

2000 - Board Member Compensation 1,890 24,975 55.01 %49.98 %1,892 20,4253,782 45,400

2020 - Board Expenses 0 12,154 151.92 %0.00 %666 -4,154666 8,000

2040 - Rent 1,863 20,520 88.45 %96.40 %70 2,6801,933 23,200

2060 - Utilities 2,617 28,343 73.05 %80.98 %615 10,4573,232 38,800

2120 - Insurance Expense 4,138 48,389 107.53 %110.39 %-390 -3,3893,749 45,000

2130 - Membership Dues 0 31,297 90.45 %0.00 %2,882 3,3032,882 34,600

2140 - Bank Charges 419 4,446 111.14 %125.61 %-85 -446333 4,000

2150 - Office Supplies 1,197 12,696 61.63 %69.77 %519 7,9041,716 20,600

2160 - Courier Expense 244 4,595 56.73 %36.16 %431 3,505675 8,100

2170 - Printing/Photocopy 0 490 5.21 %0.00 %783 8,910783 9,400

2180 - Postage & Shipping 500 5,328 83.25 %93.79 %33 1,072533 6,400

2190 - IT Supplies/Services 364 106,836 106.84 %4.37 %7,966 -6,8368,330 100,000

2200 - Professional Fees 16,550 269,282 76.61 %56.52 %12,730 82,21829,280 351,500

2220 - Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 0 3,931 52.41 %0.00 %625 3,569625 7,500

2235 - Equipment Lease 947 11,753 83.95 %81.22 %219 2,2471,166 14,000

2240 - Telephone 3,517 40,039 87.81 %92.59 %281 5,5613,798 45,600

2260 - Facility Maintenance 3,883 32,507 75.95 %108.92 %-318 10,2933,565 42,800

2270 - Travel Expenses 3,285 17,379 50.23 %113.99 %-403 17,2212,882 34,600

EXHIBIT 9-E 158



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:02 PM Page 3 of 4

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

2280 - Transportation 6,848 31,621 118.88 %309.05 %-4,632 -5,0212,216 26,600

2300 - Legal Services 25,346 292,325 73.08 %76.07 %7,974 107,67533,320 400,000

2380 - Meeting Expenses 156 2,025 29.35 %27.16 %419 4,875575 6,900

2420 - Legal Notices 0 135 3.65 %0.00 %308 3,565308 3,700

2460 - Public Outreach 75 2,668 46.81 %15.84 %398 3,032473 5,700

2480 - Miscellaneous 0 516 17.21 %0.00 %250 2,484250 3,000

2500 - Tax Administration Fee 0 20,727 103.64 %0.00 %1,666 -7271,666 20,000

2900 - Operating Supplies 1,197 12,588 65.56 %74.83 %403 6,6121,599 19,200

Total Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services: 75,037 1,037,564 78.33 %68.01 %35,301 287,036110,338 1,324,600

Level1: 300 - Other Expenses

3000 - Project Expenses 235,341 2,482,288 43.37 %49.36 %241,419 3,241,412476,760 5,723,700

4000 - Fixed Asset Purchases 132,117 309,257 35.65 %182.85 %-59,862 558,14372,254 867,400

5000 - Debt Service 65,164 132,183 57.47 %340.12 %-46,005 97,81719,159 230,000

5500 - Election Expenses 0 6,863 98.04 %0.00 %583 137583 7,000

6000 - Contingencies 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %6,248 75,0006,248 75,000

6500 - Reserves 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %435,026 5,220,500435,026 5,220,500

Total Level1: 300 - Other Expenses: 432,623 2,930,591 24.17 %42.83 %577,408 9,193,0091,010,031 12,123,600

Total Expense: 773,472 7,203,480 42.25 %54.46 %646,743 9,844,3201,420,215 17,047,800

Report Total: -9,884 7,576,337-9,884 7,576,3370 0

EXHIBIT 9-E 159



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:02 PM Page 4 of 4

Fund Summary

Fund
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity Total Budget

24 - MITIGATION FUND 862,3870 123,753 862,387123,753 0

26 - CONSERVATION FUND 1,069,5680 -139,539 1,069,568-139,539 0

35 - WATER SUPPLY FUND 5,644,3830 5,902 5,644,3835,902 0

Report Total: 7,576,3370.02 -9,884 7,576,337-9,884 0

EXHIBIT 9-E 160



6/27/2018 4:40:26 PM Page 1 of 10

Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

Fund: 24 - MITIGATION FUND

Revenue

R120 - Property Taxes Revenues 0 524,353 104.87 %0.00 %-41,645 24,35341,645 500,000

R130 - User Fees 212,861 2,271,246 96.53 %108.60 %16,855 -81,754196,006 2,353,000

R160 - Well Registration Fee 200 2,475 0.00 %0.00 %200 2,4750 0

R180 - River Work Permit Applicatiction 0 25 0.00 %0.00 %0 250 0

R190 - WDS Permits Rule 21 600 17,610 31.45 %12.86 %-4,065 -38,3904,665 56,000

R230 - Miscellaneous - Other 4,251 19,251 192.51 %510.32 %3,418 9,251833 10,000

R250 - Interest Income 338 6,187 123.73 %81.18 %-78 1,187417 5,000

R290 - CAW - Miscellaneous 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-633 -7,600633 7,600

R310 - Other Reimbursements 0 19,776 69.88 %0.00 %-2,357 -8,5242,357 28,300

R320 - Grants 72,255 90,297 60.20 %579.50 %59,786 -59,70312,468 150,000

R510 - Operating Reserve 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-8,538 -102,5008,538 102,500

Total Revenue: 290,505 2,951,220 91.87 %-108.57 %22,942 -261,180267,563 3,212,400

EXHIBIT 9-E 161



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:26 PM Page 2 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

Expense

Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs

1100 - Salaries & Wages 75,724 887,360 90.11 %92.31 %6,310 97,44082,034 984,800

1110 - Manager's Auto Allowance 92 785 65.38 %92.34 %8 415100 1,200

1120 - Manager's Deferred Comp 135 1,151 67.69 %95.60 %6 549142 1,700

1130 - Unemployment Compensation 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %100 1,200100 1,200

1150 - Temporary Personnel 0 2,970 92.80 %0.00 %267 230267 3,200

1160 - PERS Retirement 7,516 189,769 101.16 %48.09 %8,111 -2,16915,627 187,600

1170 - Medical Insurance 11,059 118,152 87.85 %98.71 %145 16,34811,204 134,500

1180 - Medical Insurance - Retirees 3,104 34,186 105.51 %115.00 %-405 -1,7862,699 32,400

1190 - Workers Compensation 2,184 27,714 92.38 %87.38 %315 2,2862,499 30,000

1200 - Life Insurance 145 1,600 66.69 %72.66 %55 800200 2,400

1210 - Long Term Disability Insurance 466 5,042 86.94 %96.42 %17 758483 5,800

1220 - Short Term Disability Insurance 93 1,004 77.26 %85.43 %16 296108 1,300

1230 - Other Benefits 32 710 142.08 %76.83 %10 -21042 500

1260 - Employee Assistance Program 24 257 42.84 %47.92 %26 34350 600

1270 - FICA Tax Expense 47 3,706 127.79 %19.40 %195 -806242 2,900

1280 - Medicare Tax Expense 1,082 13,787 94.43 %89.00 %134 8131,216 14,600

1290 - Staff Development & Training 420 4,279 35.95 %42.37 %571 7,621991 11,900

1300 - Conference Registration 0 1,177 84.04 %0.00 %117 223117 1,400

1310 - Professional Dues 0 532 66.49 %0.00 %67 26867 800

1320 - Personnel Recruitment 0 345 43.08 %0.00 %67 45567 800

Total Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs: 102,123 1,294,525 91.19 %86.36 %16,130 125,075118,253 1,419,600

Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services

2000 - Board Member Compensation 756 9,990 54.89 %49.87 %760 8,2101,516 18,200

2020 - Board Expenses 0 4,862 151.92 %0.00 %267 -1,662267 3,200

2040 - Rent 850 9,357 88.28 %96.23 %33 1,243883 10,600

2060 - Utilities 1,053 11,638 74.60 %81.05 %246 3,9621,299 15,600

2120 - Insurance Expense 1,655 19,355 107.53 %110.39 %-156 -1,3551,499 18,000

2130 - Membership Dues 0 10,179 93.38 %0.00 %908 721908 10,900

2140 - Bank Charges 167 1,868 116.77 %125.62 %-34 -268133 1,600

2150 - Office Supplies 479 4,957 61.20 %70.98 %196 3,143675 8,100

2160 - Courier Expense 98 1,838 57.44 %36.61 %169 1,362267 3,200

2170 - Printing/Photocopy 0 56 3.13 %0.00 %150 1,744150 1,800

2180 - Postage & Shipping 200 2,199 84.57 %92.34 %17 401217 2,600

2190 - IT Supplies/Services 146 41,900 104.75 %4.37 %3,186 -1,9003,332 40,000

2200 - Professional Fees 6,620 106,577 75.80 %56.52 %5,092 34,02311,712 140,600

2220 - Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 0 1,572 52.41 %0.00 %250 1,428250 3,000

2235 - Equipment Lease 407 5,054 90.25 %87.32 %59 546466 5,600

2240 - Telephone 1,462 16,885 92.77 %96.44 %54 1,3151,516 18,200

2260 - Facility Maintenance 1,553 13,153 75.59 %107.17 %-104 4,2471,449 17,400

2270 - Travel Expenses 853 3,630 38.21 %107.76 %-61 5,870791 9,500

EXHIBIT 9-E 162



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:26 PM Page 3 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

2280 - Transportation 5,549 28,805 279.66 %646.69 %-4,691 -18,505858 10,300

2300 - Legal Services 4,441 36,484 28.50 %41.65 %6,222 91,51610,662 128,000

2380 - Meeting Expenses 62 765 29.44 %28.82 %154 1,835217 2,600

2420 - Legal Notices 0 54 3.38 %0.00 %133 1,546133 1,600

2460 - Public Outreach 20 910 39.55 %10.68 %171 1,390191 2,300

2480 - Miscellaneous 0 199 16.58 %0.00 %100 1,001100 1,200

2500 - Tax Administration Fee 0 3,537 60.98 %0.00 %483 2,263483 5,800

2900 - Operating Supplies 0 556 25.26 %0.00 %183 1,644183 2,200

Total Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services: 26,371 336,380 69.77 %65.67 %13,787 145,72040,158 482,100

Level1: 300 - Other Expenses

3000 - Project Expenses 10,742 398,975 46.33 %14.98 %60,956 462,12571,699 861,100

4000 - Fixed Asset Purchases 27,516 56,208 28.47 %167.34 %-11,073 141,19216,443 197,400

5500 - Election Expenses 0 2,745 98.04 %0.00 %233 55233 2,800

6000 - Contingencies 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %2,499 30,0002,499 30,000

6500 - Reserves 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %18,277 219,40018,277 219,400

Total Level1: 300 - Other Expenses: 38,258 457,928 34.94 %35.05 %70,893 852,772109,151 1,310,700

Total Expense: 166,752 2,088,833 65.02 %62.32 %100,810 1,123,567267,563 3,212,400

Total Revenues 2,951,220290,505 -108.57 % -91.87 %22,942 -261,180267,563 3,212,400

Total Fund: 24 - MITIGATION FUND: 123,753 862,387123,753 862,3870 0

EXHIBIT 9-E 163



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:26 PM Page 4 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

Fund: 26 - CONSERVATION FUND

Revenue

R120 - Property Taxes Revenues 0 1,310,881 104.87 %0.00 %-104,131 60,881104,131 1,250,000

R130 - User Fees 101,355 1,034,227 88.77 %104.44 %4,308 -130,77397,046 1,165,000

R150 - Permit Processing Fee 19,814 235,471 134.55 %135.92 %5,237 60,47114,578 175,000

R200 - Recording Fees 2,122 21,048 71.11 %86.04 %-344 -8,5522,466 29,600

R210 - Legal Fees 228 5,370 33.56 %17.11 %-1,105 -10,6301,333 16,000

R250 - Interest Income 504 9,629 192.57 %121.01 %88 4,629417 5,000

R270 - CAW - Rebates 0 281,445 108.25 %0.00 %-21,650 21,44521,650 260,000

R320 - Grants 0 20,000 9.09 %0.00 %-18,326 -200,00018,326 220,000

R510 - Operating Reserve 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-200 -2,400200 2,400

Total Revenue: 124,023 2,918,071 93.44 %-47.67 %-136,124 -204,929260,146 3,123,000

EXHIBIT 9-E 164



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:26 PM Page 5 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

Expense

Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs

1100 - Salaries & Wages 47,829 525,664 81.60 %89.13 %5,833 118,53653,662 644,200

1110 - Manager's Auto Allowance 92 785 65.38 %92.34 %8 415100 1,200

1120 - Manager's Deferred Comp 135 1,151 67.69 %95.60 %6 549142 1,700

1130 - Unemployment Compensation 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %67 80067 800

1150 - Temporary Personnel 4,139 39,266 83.19 %105.27 %-207 7,9343,932 47,200

1160 - PERS Retirement 4,410 101,967 97.11 %50.42 %4,336 3,0338,747 105,000

1170 - Medical Insurance 6,965 75,808 83.12 %91.68 %632 15,3927,597 91,200

1180 - Medical Insurance - Retirees 2,173 23,820 104.93 %114.90 %-282 -1,1201,891 22,700

1190 - Workers Compensation 183 2,083 77.13 %81.52 %42 617225 2,700

1200 - Life Insurance 85 851 70.92 %85.47 %15 349100 1,200

1210 - Long Term Disability Insurance 291 3,092 79.27 %89.43 %34 808325 3,900

1220 - Short Term Disability Insurance 58 614 68.27 %77.04 %17 28675 900

1230 - Other Benefits 22 497 165.76 %89.64 %3 -19725 300

1260 - Employee Assistance Program 15 164 41.01 %45.26 %18 23633 400

1270 - FICA Tax Expense 33 434 43.36 %39.39 %50 56683 1,000

1280 - Medicare Tax Expense 690 7,886 82.15 %86.32 %109 1,714800 9,600

1290 - Staff Development & Training 1,008 4,804 33.60 %84.59 %184 9,4961,191 14,300

1300 - Conference Registration 0 1,454 181.70 %0.00 %67 -65467 800

1310 - Professional Dues 0 763 50.90 %0.00 %125 737125 1,500

1320 - Personnel Recruitment 0 273 45.46 %0.00 %50 32750 600

Total Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs: 68,128 791,375 83.20 %85.98 %11,107 159,82579,235 951,200

Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services

2000 - Board Member Compensation 529 6,993 55.06 %50.02 %529 5,7071,058 12,700

2020 - Board Expenses 0 3,403 154.69 %0.00 %183 -1,203183 2,200

2040 - Rent 229 2,527 90.25 %98.20 %4 273233 2,800

2060 - Utilities 715 7,328 69.13 %81.00 %168 3,272883 10,600

2120 - Insurance Expense 1,159 13,549 107.53 %110.39 %-109 -9491,050 12,600

2130 - Membership Dues 0 12,980 86.53 %0.00 %1,250 2,0211,250 15,000

2140 - Bank Charges 117 1,135 103.14 %127.88 %-26 -3592 1,100

2150 - Office Supplies 335 3,759 63.72 %68.21 %156 2,141491 5,900

2160 - Courier Expense 68 1,326 57.64 %35.66 %123 974192 2,300

2170 - Printing/Photocopy 0 39 0.65 %0.00 %508 6,061508 6,100

2180 - Postage & Shipping 140 1,449 85.23 %98.86 %2 251142 1,700

2190 - IT Supplies/Services 102 28,949 103.39 %4.37 %2,230 -9492,332 28,000

2200 - Professional Fees 4,634 74,527 75.74 %56.53 %3,563 23,8738,197 98,400

2220 - Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 0 1,101 52.41 %0.00 %175 999175 2,100

2235 - Equipment Lease 227 2,855 73.22 %69.98 %98 1,045325 3,900

2240 - Telephone 922 11,016 90.29 %90.70 %95 1,1841,016 12,200

2260 - Facility Maintenance 1,087 8,983 80.21 %116.54 %-154 2,217933 11,200

2270 - Travel Expenses 982 5,335 31.38 %69.33 %434 11,6651,416 17,000

EXHIBIT 9-E 165



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:26 PM Page 6 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

2280 - Transportation 144 732 12.20 %28.85 %356 5,268500 6,000

2300 - Legal Services 3,233 30,143 41.87 %53.91 %2,765 41,8575,998 72,000

2380 - Meeting Expenses 44 607 27.59 %23.85 %140 1,593183 2,200

2420 - Legal Notices 0 38 5.40 %0.00 %58 66258 700

2460 - Public Outreach 23 848 53.03 %17.24 %110 752133 1,600

2480 - Miscellaneous 0 139 17.41 %0.00 %67 66167 800

2500 - Tax Administration Fee 0 8,843 155.14 %0.00 %475 -3,143475 5,700

2900 - Operating Supplies 1,197 11,643 76.60 %94.52 %69 3,5571,266 15,200

Total Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services: 15,887 240,247 68.64 %54.49 %13,267 109,75329,155 350,000

Level1: 300 - Other Expenses

3000 - Project Expenses 99,997 614,977 49.08 %95.80 %4,389 638,123104,386 1,253,100

4000 - Fixed Asset Purchases 79,548 199,983 39.52 %188.73 %-37,398 306,01742,150 506,000

5500 - Election Expenses 0 1,922 96.08 %0.00 %167 78167 2,000

6000 - Contingencies 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %1,749 21,0001,749 21,000

6500 - Reserves 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %3,305 39,7003,305 39,700

Total Level1: 300 - Other Expenses: 179,545 816,882 44.84 %118.31 %-27,789 1,004,918151,757 1,821,800

Total Expense: 263,561 1,848,503 59.19 %101.31 %-3,415 1,274,497260,146 3,123,000

Total Revenues 2,918,071124,023 -47.67 % -93.44 %-136,124 -204,929260,146 3,123,000

Total Fund: 26 - CONSERVATION FUND: -139,539 1,069,568-139,539 1,069,5680 0

EXHIBIT 9-E 166



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:26 PM Page 7 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

Fund: 35 - WATER SUPPLY FUND

Revenue

R100 - Water Supply Charge 0 3,347,036 98.44 %0.00 %-283,220 -52,964283,220 3,400,000

R120 - Property Taxes Revenues 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %1 0-1 0

R130 - User Fees 50,713 632,601 109.64 %105.47 %2,629 55,60148,083 577,000

R140 - Connection Charges 34,559 498,677 166.23 %138.28 %9,567 198,67724,992 300,000

R220 - Copy Fee 0 99 0.00 %0.00 %0 990 0

R230 - Miscellaneous - Other 261 2,159 21.59 %31.29 %-572 -7,841833 10,000

R250 - Interest Income 2,636 15,387 76.93 %158.20 %970 -4,6131,666 20,000

R260 - CAW - ASR 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-52,929 -635,40052,929 635,400

R265 - CAW - Los Padres Reimbursement 260,893 260,893 39.53 %474.50 %205,910 -399,10754,983 660,000

R290 - CAW - Miscellaneous 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-6,074 -72,9006,074 72,900

R300 - Watermaster 0 41,133 55.14 %0.00 %-6,214 -33,4676,214 74,600

R308 - Reclamation Project 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-1,666 -20,0001,666 20,000

R309 - GWR Project Reimbursements 0 4,112,541 100.00 %0.00 %-342,708 41342,708 4,112,500

R310 - Other Reimbursements 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-83 -1,00083 1,000

R320 - Grants 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-6,664 -80,0006,664 80,000

R510 - Operating Reserve 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-62,392 -749,00062,392 749,000

Total Revenue: 349,061 8,910,526 83.18 %-39.11 %-543,446 -1,801,874892,506 10,712,400

EXHIBIT 9-E 167



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:26 PM Page 8 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

Expense

Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs

1100 - Salaries & Wages 72,657 810,532 92.84 %99.91 %64 62,46872,721 873,000

1110 - Manager's Auto Allowance 277 2,354 65.38 %92.34 %23 1,246300 3,600

1120 - Manager's Deferred Comp 406 3,452 69.05 %97.52 %10 1,548417 5,000

1130 - Unemployment Compensation 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %83 1,00083 1,000

1150 - Temporary Personnel 0 2,376 91.37 %0.00 %217 224217 2,600

1160 - PERS Retirement 7,193 165,790 105.67 %55.04 %5,877 -8,89013,070 156,900

1170 - Medical Insurance 9,181 99,675 95.11 %105.17 %-451 5,1258,730 104,800

1180 - Medical Insurance - Retirees 2,483 27,230 105.13 %115.09 %-326 -1,3302,157 25,900

1190 - Workers Compensation 1,384 15,863 87.16 %91.28 %132 2,3371,516 18,200

1200 - Life Insurance 123 1,212 67.31 %81.90 %27 588150 1,800

1210 - Long Term Disability Insurance 404 4,354 92.64 %103.27 %-13 346392 4,700

1220 - Short Term Disability Insurance 80 863 78.47 %87.43 %12 23792 1,100

1230 - Other Benefits 26 619 154.71 %76.83 %8 -21933 400

1260 - Employee Assistance Program 20 213 42.69 %47.35 %22 28742 500

1270 - FICA Tax Expense 38 768 26.50 %15.52 %204 2,132242 2,900

1280 - Medicare Tax Expense 948 11,243 85.82 %86.86 %143 1,8571,091 13,100

1290 - Staff Development & Training 5 1,445 13.50 %0.54 %887 9,256891 10,700

1300 - Conference Registration 0 941 78.44 %0.00 %100 259100 1,200

1310 - Professional Dues 338 417 52.11 %506.45 %-271 38367 800

1320 - Personnel Recruitment 0 77 12.91 %0.00 %50 52350 600

Total Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs: 95,562 1,149,425 93.54 %93.36 %6,798 79,375102,359 1,228,800

Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services

2000 - Board Member Compensation 605 7,992 55.12 %50.07 %603 6,5081,208 14,500

2020 - Board Expenses 0 3,889 149.59 %0.00 %217 -1,289217 2,600

2040 - Rent 784 8,635 88.12 %96.07 %32 1,165816 9,800

2060 - Utilities 849 9,378 74.43 %80.88 %201 3,2221,050 12,600

2120 - Insurance Expense 1,324 15,484 107.53 %110.39 %-125 -1,0841,200 14,400

2130 - Membership Dues 0 8,139 93.55 %0.00 %725 561725 8,700

2140 - Bank Charges 134 1,443 111.00 %123.68 %-26 -143108 1,300

2150 - Office Supplies 383 3,979 60.29 %69.69 %167 2,621550 6,600

2160 - Courier Expense 78 1,431 55.05 %36.05 %139 1,169217 2,600

2170 - Printing/Photocopy 0 394 26.26 %0.00 %125 1,106125 1,500

2180 - Postage & Shipping 160 1,680 80.00 %91.47 %15 420175 2,100

2190 - IT Supplies/Services 116 35,986 112.46 %4.37 %2,549 -3,9862,666 32,000

2200 - Professional Fees 5,296 88,178 78.38 %56.51 %4,075 24,3229,371 112,500

2220 - Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 0 1,258 52.41 %0.00 %200 1,142200 2,400

2235 - Equipment Lease 313 3,844 85.42 %83.39 %62 656375 4,500

2240 - Telephone 1,133 12,139 79.86 %89.51 %133 3,0611,266 15,200

2260 - Facility Maintenance 1,243 10,370 73.03 %105.05 %-60 3,8301,183 14,200

2270 - Travel Expenses 1,451 8,415 103.89 %215.02 %-776 -315675 8,100

EXHIBIT 9-E 168



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:26 PM Page 9 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget Total Budget

2280 - Transportation 1,155 2,084 20.24 %134.64 %-297 8,216858 10,300

2300 - Legal Services 17,672 225,698 112.85 %106.07 %-1,012 -25,69816,660 200,000

2380 - Meeting Expenses 50 652 31.07 %28.55 %125 1,448175 2,100

2420 - Legal Notices 0 43 3.09 %0.00 %117 1,357117 1,400

2460 - Public Outreach 32 910 50.56 %21.18 %118 890150 1,800

2480 - Miscellaneous 0 178 17.81 %0.00 %83 82283 1,000

2500 - Tax Administration Fee 0 8,347 98.20 %0.00 %708 153708 8,500

2900 - Operating Supplies 0 389 21.60 %0.00 %150 1,411150 1,800

Total Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services: 32,778 460,938 93.59 %79.90 %8,247 31,56241,025 492,500

Level1: 300 - Other Expenses

3000 - Project Expenses 124,602 1,468,336 40.68 %41.44 %176,073 2,141,164300,675 3,609,500

4000 - Fixed Asset Purchases 25,053 53,066 32.36 %183.39 %-11,391 110,93413,661 164,000

5000 - Debt Service 65,164 132,183 57.47 %340.12 %-46,005 97,81719,159 230,000

5500 - Election Expenses 0 2,196 99.82 %0.00 %183 4183 2,200

6000 - Contingencies 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %1,999 24,0001,999 24,000

6500 - Reserves 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %413,444 4,961,400413,444 4,961,400

Total Level1: 300 - Other Expenses: 214,819 1,655,781 18.42 %28.68 %534,303 7,335,319749,122 8,991,100

Total Expense: 343,158 3,266,143 30.49 %38.45 %549,348 7,446,257892,506 10,712,400

Total Revenues 8,910,526349,061 -39.11 % -83.18 %-543,446 -1,801,874892,506 10,712,400

Total Fund: 35 - WATER SUPPLY FUND: 5,902 5,644,3835,902 5,644,3830 0

Report Total: -9,884 7,576,337-9,884 7,576,3370 0

EXHIBIT 9-E 169



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2017-2018 Period Ending: 05/31/2018

6/27/2018 4:40:26 PM Page 10 of 10

Fund Summary

Fund
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Budget

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
May

Activity Total Budget

24 - MITIGATION FUND 862,3870 123,753 862,387123,753 0

26 - CONSERVATION FUND 1,069,5680 -139,539 1,069,568-139,539 0

35 - WATER SUPPLY FUND 5,644,3830 5,902 5,644,3835,902 0

Report Total: 7,576,3370.02 -9,884 7,576,337-9,884 0

EXHIBIT 9-E 170



ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
13. CONSIDER FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 179 CLARIFYING RULES 

RELATED TO THE REBATE PROGRAM, PERMITS, AND WATER WASTE 
(CEQA:  Exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301) 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David A. Stoldt, Program/ N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
   
Staff Contact: Stephanie Locke Cost Estimate:   N/A 
 
General Counsel Approval:  Counsel has reviewed this ordinance.  
Committee Recommendation:  The Water Demand Committee discussed the conceptual 
ordinance on July 10, 2018.   
CEQA Compliance:  This ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality 
Act pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301, Existing Facilities, for modifications to 
Rule 141, as these amendments relate to replacement of existing facilities with less water 
intensive uses.   
 
SUMMARY:  Draft Ordinance No. 179 (Exhibit 13-A) makes minor changes to existing rules.  
The primary impetus for the ordinance is the need to make amendments to the Rebate Program to 
support the District’s HEART (High Efficiency Applied Retrofit Targets) effort.  HEART is 
funded by a Proposition 1 Integrated Regional Water Management Disadvantaged Community 
Involvement Program grant from the Department of Water Resources (DWR) to the Central Coast 
Funding Area (CCFA).  The HEART project is focused on the City of Seaside’s Disadvantaged 
Communities (DAC) and will provide free or low-cost installations of water efficient toilets, 
showerheads and faucet aerators, High Efficiency Clothes Washers, High Efficiency Dishwashers, 
leak detection and repairs, dish squeegees, dye tablets for toilets, etc.  The amendments proposed 
in this ordinance allow Multi-Family Dwellings located in the Disadvantaged Communities to 
receive Rebates for purchase and installation of more than 20 toilets on a Site. 
 
Ordinance No. 179 also includes the following: 
 
1. Rule 11 edit to “Legal Parcel” definition. 

 
2. Rule 23 clarification that past and future water use should be done according to the 

methodology codified in Rule 24. 
 
3. Rule 23 notice that Major Landscapes audited by a Certified Landscape Irrigation Auditor 

require corrections noted in the audit to be made prior to the District’s final inspection. 
 
4. Rule 23 exemption by GM for fire service hardships and add requirement to deed restrictions.  

Exemptions must know that rationing enforcement could result in a Flow Restrictor. 
 

171



5. Rule 141 is amended to include leases of High Efficiency Clothes Washers in Common 
Laundry Rooms and to allow Multi-Family Dwelling Units in the DAC to receive Rebates for 
more than 20 High Efficiency Toilets. 

 
6. Rule 162-B-5 is amended to exempt non-MPWRS Wells from the Wednesday/Saturday 

watering days and to encourage Well irrigators located in urban areas to display signage that 
indicates the water used for irrigation is from a Well or other Source of Supply on the Site. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Board approve the first reading of Ordinance 
No. 179.   
 
EXHIBIT 
13-A Draft Ordinance No. 179 - Clarifying Rules Related to the Rebate Program, Permits, and 

Water Waste 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\13\Item-13.docx 

172



DRAFT 

    
Draft Ordinance No 163 

 2015 Rationing and Rebate Programs Amendment Ordinance of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Page 1 of 7 

EXHIBIT 13-A 
 

1st READING DRAFT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 179 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
THE MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT  

CLARIFYING RULES RELATED TO THE REBATE PROGRAM, PERMITS,  
AND WATER WASTE  

 
FINDINGS 

 
1. The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (District or Water Management 

District) is charged under the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District Law with 
the integrated management of the ground and surface water resources in the Monterey 
Peninsula area. 

2. The Water Management District has general and specific power to cause and implement 
water conservation activities as set forth in Sections 325 and 328 of the Monterey Peninsula 
Water Management District Law.  

3. The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District has found and determined that it is in 
the best interests of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District and its inhabitants 
to define, implement and enforce water efficient plumbing standards and requirements for 
the conservation of Potable water supplies.  Retrofit or replacement of existing plumbing 
fixtures lessens consumption of the limited water resources available on the Monterey 
Peninsula.  Installation of water efficient plumbing fixtures reduces the burden of new, 
expanded or modified uses on the water resources. 
 

4. This ordinance clarifies the Rule 23 process for estimating water demand prior to 
application for a Water Permit, clarifies that corrections noted in a Major Landscape 
Project audit shall be completed prior to a final inspection by the District, and authorizes 
the General Manager to exempt projects that demonstrate an Undue Hardship from the 
requirement to install separate water lines in the meter box to supply domestic and fire 
suppression systems. 

5. Amendments to the Rule 141 Rebate Program are necessary to support the District’s 
HEART (High Efficiency Applied Retrofit Targets) program.  HEART is funded by a 
Proposition 1 Integrated Regional Water Management Disadvantaged Community 
Involvement Program grant from the Department of Water Resources (DWR) to the 

173



DRAFT 

    
Draft Ordinance No 163 

 2015 Rationing and Rebate Programs Amendment Ordinance of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Page 2 of 7 

Central Coast Funding Area (CCFA).  The HEART project is focused on the City of 
Seaside’s Disadvantaged Communities (DAC) and will provide free or low-cost 
installations of water efficient toilets, showerheads and faucet aerators, High Efficiency 
Clothes Washers, High Efficiency Dishwashers, leak detection and repairs, dish squeegees, 
dye tablets for toilets, etc.  Outreach activities include education and outreach to DAC 
property owners, managers and renters. DAC residents benefit through site assessments 
and completion of appliance retrofits.  Program participants should lower water/energy 
usage and lower bills. The amendments proposed in this ordinance allow Multi-Family 
Dwellings located in the Disadvantaged Communities to receive Rebates for purchase and 
installation of more than 20 toilets on a Site. 

6. Ordinance No. 178 incentivized retrofits completed prior to January 1, 2019, when Senate 
Bill 407 (Padilla) requires certain retrofits.  Property owners/managers are encouraged to 
use the Rebate Program to facilitate conversion of older toilets to High Efficiency or Ultra 
High Efficiency Toilets and replacement of older Clothes Washers with High Efficiency 
Clothes Washers. 

7. This ordinance allows Rebates for High Efficiency Clothes Washers in Common Laundry 
Rooms that are leased from a vendor.  Water savings from Multi-Family Residential 
retrofits is estimated to save up to 60 percent of the pre-retrofit water use.  There are 
approximately 10,500 Multi-Family Dwelling Units in the DAC area, as determined by 
MPWMD in consultation with the California American Water Company and the Seaside 
Municipal Water District.  Assuming 50% of these units are served by common-area 
laundries, the overall market potential for water savings in this area are anticipated to 
exceed 126 AFY. 

8. Common Laundry Rooms provide excellent opportunities for water conservation because 
the frequency of use for each Clothes Washer is much greater than in-home machines.  
While an in-home machine averages only 4 to 6 loads per week, common area machines 
often wash 20 to 50 loads per week per Clothes Washer.   

9. Most older coin-operated Clothes Washers have a Water Factor rating of 12 to 14 (top 
loaders); using 35 to 45 gallons per load.  Newer water efficient models have a Water 
Factor rating of 4 to 8, using as little as 12 gallons per load.    

10. This ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15301, Existing Facilities, for modifications to Rule 141, as 
these amendments relate to replacement of existing facilities with less water intensive uses.  
.   

 

174



DRAFT 

    
Draft Ordinance No 163 

 2015 Rationing and Rebate Programs Amendment Ordinance of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Page 3 of 7 

 
NOW THEREFORE be it ordained as follows: 
 
 

ORDINANCE 
 
Section One:  Short Title 
 
This ordinance shall be known as the 2018 IRWM Grant Support Ordinance of the Monterey 
Peninsula Water Management District. 
 
Section Two:  Purpose 
This ordinance amends and clarifies Rules related to the Rebate Program and permits of the 
District’s Rules. 
 
 
Section Three:  Amendments to Rule 11 
 
Rule 11 shall be amended as shown below, with added language as shown in bold italic type face, 
and deleted language shown in strikeout type face.   
 

LEGAL PARCEL - The term “Legal Parcel” or “Parcel” shall refer mean to the recorded 
legal description of a property that qualifies as a buildable legal lot of record under current 
rules of the applicable land use planning Jurisdiction. 

 
 
Section Four:  Amendments to Rule 23 
 
1. Rule 23-A-1-e shall be amended as shown below, with added language as shown in bold italic 

type face, and deleted language shown in strikeout type face.   
 

e.  The General Manager shall calculate the appropriate Capacity Fee for the Project 
using Rule 24, Calculation of Water Use Capacity and Capacity Fees. Estimation 
of past and future water use should be done according to the Rule 24 
methodology. 

 
2. Rule 23-A-1-o shall be amended as shown below, with added language as shown in bold italic 

type face, and deleted language shown in strikeout type face.   
 

175



DRAFT 

    
Draft Ordinance No 163 

 2015 Rationing and Rebate Programs Amendment Ordinance of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Page 4 of 7 

o.  Following Project completion, a final inspection of the Project shall be conducted 
by the District. Major Landscape Projects shall be audited by a Certified 
Landscape Irrigation Auditor and corrections noted in the audit shall be made 
prior to District inspection.  If the completed Project varies from the permitted 
Project, application for an amended Water Permit is required. When the completed 
Project has fewer fixture units than the number permitted (Residential Water 
Permits), or has a smaller Water Use Capacity than permitted (Non-Residential and 
landscape Water Permits), the Applicant shall not be required to secure the 
signature of the authorized official of the applicable Jurisdiction on the Water 
Release Form.  

 
3. Rule 23-B-2-c shall be amended as shown below, with added language as shown in bold italic 

type face, and deleted language shown in strikeout type face.  The remaining provisions of 
Rule 23 shall remain unchanged by this ordinance. 

 
c.  All New Structures receiving a Water Permit after January 1, 2009, shall have 

separate water supply lines that tee off after the Water Meter to supply fire 
suppression service and domestic service as demonstrated in Figure 23-1, unless 
the User has separate Water Meters maintained by the Water Distribution System 
Operator for fire and domestic services. This configuration shall facilitate 
installation of a Flow Restrictor in the domestic service without interfering with the 
fire suppression service.   

 
The General Manager shall have authority to make exceptions to this 
requirement for Undue Hardship.  Exceptions shall be recorded on the property 
title with notice that rationing enforcement could result in a Flow Restrictor.  

 
 
Section Five:   Amendments to Rule 141 
 
1. Rule 141-A shall be amended by adding the following footnote to the word “purchase” as 

shown in bold italic type face: 
 

A. QUALIFYING DEVICES 
 Rebates are available for purchase1 of the following Qualifying Devices within the 

boundaries of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.  Qualifying 
Devices and the associated Rebate amount are shown in Table XIV-1. 

 

                                                 
 

176



DRAFT 

    
Draft Ordinance No 163 

 2015 Rationing and Rebate Programs Amendment Ordinance of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Page 5 of 7 

1 Rebates are available for High Efficiency Clothes Washers in Common Laundry Rooms that 
are leased under a contract with a vendor. 

 
2. Rule 141-C-2 shall be amended as shown below, with added language as shown in bold italic 

type face, and deleted language shown in strikeout type face.   
 

2. No Rebate shall be issued for installation of Qualifying Devices that are 
required to be installed and maintained by Regulation XIV of the District 
with the exception of High Efficiency Toilets installed at Sites owned and 
operated by California Non-Profit Corporations.  No Rebate shall be issued 
for installation of Qualifying Devices that have been used were required to 
obtain a Water Permit.  Rebates shall be available until the date the retrofit 
becomes mandatory, such as the date a Change of Ownership or Change of 
Use occurs or a Water Permit is issued unless modified by the Board of 
Directors. Rebates shall not be available for Qualifying Devices that have 
been required to be installed and maintained by local, State, or Federal water 
conservation programs. 

 
3. Rule 141-C-5 shall be amended as shown below, with added language as shown in bold italic 

type face, and deleted language shown in strikeout type face.   
 
5. Rebates shall be available for a maximum of twenty (20) toilets on all Non- 

Residential Qualifying Properties with the exception of Qualifying 
Properties owned and operated by a California Non-Profit Corporation or 
that participate in the District’s High Efficiency Appliance Retrofit Target 
(HEART) program. 

 
4. Rule 141-C-5 shall be amended as shown below, with added language as shown in bold italic 

type face, and deleted language shown in strikeout type face.  The remaining provisions of 
Rule 141 shall remain unchanged by this ordinance. 

 
4. Written authorization of the current property owner or property manager 

shall be required for Applicants who are not the owners of the property for 
which a Rebate is requested. The authorization must indicate the property 
owner’s consent to the Applicant receiving a Rebate for installation of the 
Qualifying Devices. Applications submitted without owner approval will be 
denied. 

 

 
 

177



DRAFT 

    
Draft Ordinance No 163 

 2015 Rationing and Rebate Programs Amendment Ordinance of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Page 6 of 7 

Section Six:   Amendment to Rule 162-B-5, Prohibition on Water Waste 
  
Rule 162-B-5 shall be amended as shown below, with added language as shown in bold italic type 
face, and deleted language shown in strikeout type face.   
 

5.  Irrigation between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. on any day, and irrigation on any day other 
than Saturdays and Wednesdays, except for irrigation overseen by a professional 
gardener or landscaper who is available on Site and that is not exceeding a 
maximum two watering days per week. This prohibition applies to hand watering 
with a hose, and irrigation systems whether spray, drip, or managed by a Smart 
Controller. Limited hand watering of plants or bushes with a small container or a 
bucket is permitted on any day at any time. Subsurface Graywater Irrigation 
Systems may also be operated at any time. An exemption may be given to a Non-
Residential establishment whose business requires water in the course of its 
business practice (e.g. golf courses, nurseries, recreational space, among others) 
with notification by the business owner to the District, and subject to the approval 
of the General Manager. 

 
Irrigation using water from a Well is exempt from the watering day restriction if 
irrigation is done in an efficient manner.  Well irrigators located in urban areas 
are encouraged to display signage that indicates the water used for irrigation is 
from a Well or other Source of Supply on the Site. 
 

 
Section Seven: Publication and Application 
 
The provisions of this ordinance shall cause the republication and amendment of Rules 11, 23, 
141, and 110 of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.   
 
 
Section Eight: Effective Date and Sunset 
 
This ordinance shall take effect at 12:01 a.m. on the 30th day after it has been enacted on second 
reading.   
 
This Ordinance shall not have a sunset date.   
 
Section Nine:  Severability 
 

178



DRAFT 

    
Draft Ordinance No 163 

 2015 Rationing and Rebate Programs Amendment Ordinance of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Page 7 of 7 

If any subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason, held 
to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect 
the validity or enforcement of the remaining portions of this ordinance, or of any other provisions 
of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District Rules and Regulations.  It is the District's 
express intent that each remaining portion would have been adopted irrespective of the fact that 
one or more subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared invalid or 
unenforceable. 

 
On motion by Director _________, and second by Director _______________, the 

foregoing ordinance is adopted upon this _____ day of _______, 2018, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:    
 
NAYS:    

 
ABSENT:     

 
 

I, David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District, hereby certify the foregoing ordinance was duly adopted on the ______ day 
of ____________, 2018. 
 
 

Witness my hand and seal of the Board of Directors this _____ day of _________ 2018. 
 
 
             
      David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board 

 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\13\Item-13-Exh-A.docx 

179



180



ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
14. CONSIDER CERTIFICATION OF INITIAL STUDY/MITIGATED NEGATIVE 

DECLARATION AND ADDENDUM FOR LOS PADRES DAM GRAVEL 
AUGMENTATION PROGRAM INCLUDING ADOPTION OF CEQA 
FINDINGS AND MITIGATION MEASURES (CEQA Sections 15063, Initial 
Study; 15070, Negative Declaration; and 15162(b), Addendum. Adoption is final 
Board action in the CEQA process.) 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David A. Stoldt, Program/ 2-3-8 
 General Manager Acct. No.: 24-04-785852 
   
Staff Contact: Larry Hampson Cost Estimate:   N/A 
 
General Counsel Approval:  Yes.  
Committee Recommendation:  N/A  
CEQA Compliance:  CEQA Sections 15063, Initial Study; 15070, Negative Declaration; and 
15162(b), Addendum. Adoption is final Board action in the CEQA process. 
 
SUMMARY:  The Board will consider the Draft Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(IS/MND) and adoption for the Los Padres Dam Gravel Augmentation Program (the Project) in 
compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The IS/MND is available on 
the District web site at: 
 
http://www.mpwmd.net/regulations/public-notices/ceqa/  
 
The Project includes: importation of up to 2,000 tons of gravel and placement of up to 1,500 tons 
in the Carmel River channel downstream of Los Padres Dam during the low flow season.  Material 
would be placed in the same footprint as similar project completed in 2014.  The balance of 
material not placed into the river in the initial phase would be stockpiled for later use after the river 
washes material downstream.  It is estimated that three to four replenishment projects to import 
and place up to 1,500 tons during each project could be carried out in a 10-year period. 
 
At the Public Hearing, the Board will consider comments received on the Project and proposed 
District responses, make findings concerning measures to reduce potential impacts, and determine 
whether to approve the Project.  If the Board approves the Project, a Final IS/MND will be prepared 
that includes revised text and additions to the Draft IS/MND and a Notice of Determination will 
be filed concerning the Board’s decision.  Approval of the Project and Certification of the IS/MND 
will allow the District to move forward with permit applications to complete the Project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Board take the following actions:  
 

1. Address any written or oral comments received at the Public Hearing;  
2. Adopt CEQA Findings (Exhibit 14-A) to certify the Final IS/MND and Addendum;  

181

http://www.mpwmd.net/regulations/public-notices/ceqa/


3. Adopt Resolution 2018-15 (Exhibit 14-B) certifying the IS/MND and approving the
Project;

4. Adopt the Mitigation Measures as described in Exhibit 14-C;
5. Direct staff to prepare a Final IS/MND that incorporates all changes made in response to

comments received and file a Notice of Determination of approval of the Los Padres Dam
Gravel Augmentation Program based on the certified Final IS/MND.

DISCUSSION:  California American Water has entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with 
the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) effective January 10, 2018 (MOA) that, among 
other things, provides for interim gravel replenishment below Los Padres Dam to maintain 
spawning gravels downstream of Los Padres Dam pending a determination about the future of the 
dam.  Since 1994, MPWMD has had an ongoing program to augment spawning habitat for the 
benefit of steelhead throughout the Carmel River and has an interest in assisting Cal-Am with 
gravel replenishment at Los Padres Dam. 

MPWMD executed an agreement with Cal-Am to cooperate on the initial phases of the gravel 
augmentation project.  The MOA provides that gravel replenishment amounts, methods and 
scheduling are to be approved by NMFS.  Cal-Am, MPWMD, and NMFS have agreed on a scope 
of work for the initial phase, which is intended to be completed over a three-year period.   

MPWMD’s role in the Project will be to act as Lead Agency under CEQA, obtain permits, and 
supervise placement of the gravel in the field.   

In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the CEQA Guidelines, 
the District prepared a Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) (Exhibit   
14-C) for the project and published a notice of its intent to adopt the IS/MND on May 14, 2018.  
The State Clearinghouse received the notice on May 14, 2018 and set the end of the review 
period at June 12, 2018.

The District received no written comments on the Draft IS/MND (Exhibit 14-C).  MPWMD 
notified regulatory agencies of the Public Hearing to be held on the project at the July 16, 2018 
MPWMD Board meeting.   

The Addendum to the Draft IS/MND is to add the removal of a 100-foot long Alaskan steeppass 
fish ladder that is no longer serviceable (see Figure 1).  The ladder consists of concrete walls with 
a steel grate over the top.  The ladder is within the footprint of the area where gravel would be 
placed and removal would have no additional impact along the active channel.  It would be 
removed with a combination of hand tools (e.g., concrete saw and/or pneumatic jackhammer) and 
heavy construction equipment to haul material away (the same equipment used to haul gravel into 
the stream).  No additional mitigation measures are necessary to remove the ladder. 

182



 
 
Figure 1 – Abandoned Alaskan steeppass fish ladder downstream of Los Padres Dam 
 
CEQA Action 
In compliance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15132, the Final IS/MND will include the following 
components: 
 
 Revisions to the Draft IS/MND to respond to comments received. 
 Revisions as directed by the MPWMD Board of Directors. 
 An Addendum to include removal of a non-functional fish ladder  

 
The CEQA Findings (Exhibit 14-A) have been prepared to comply with CEQA Article 6 Negative 
Declaration Process, Sections 15070 to 15075, and Sections 15097 and 15105. The CEQA 
Findings for the Addendum have been prepared to comply with State CEQA Guidelines Sections 
15162 and 15164.  The District has determined that the project will not have a significant impact 
on the environment with implementation of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program to 
be included in the Final IS/MND.   
 
Next Steps 
The Final IS/MND will be used by the MPWMD Board to comply with CEQA for purposes of 
carrying out the Project.  Once the Notice of Determination is filed with the Monterey County 

Remove steeppass ladder 

Place gravel along stream (note: 
gravel in this picture placed in 
2015 has washed downstream) 

183



Clerk and State Office of Planning and Research, other entities may use the certified IS/MND in 
their decisions about issuing authorizations to carry out the project.  These entities include: 
 
U.S. Army – will issue a Section 404 permit under the Clean Water Act. 
 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service – will issue a biological opinion under the Endangered Species Act 
for impacts to California red-legged frogs. 
 
Regional Water Quality Control Board – will issue a Section 401 Water Quality Certification under 
the Clean Water Act. 
 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife – will issue a Stream Alteration Agreement. 
 
Monterey County – will issue a grading/stockpiling permit. 

 
The National Marine Fisheries Service has issued a biological opinion that includes this project. 
After all permits are secured, the District will request that Cal-Am contract for delivery and 
placement of the gravel.   
 
IMPACT TO DISTRICT RESOURCES:  MPWMD expenses associated with this Project to 
secure permits will be reimbursed by Cal-Am.  MPWMD will contribute in-kind services as Lead 
Agency and for project management in the field. 
 
EXHIBITS 
14-A CEQA Findings for Mitigated Negative Declaration 
14-B Resolution 2018-15 Certifying the Final IS/MND and Approving the Project 
14-C Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (view on-line at) 

http://www.mpwmd.net/regulations/public-notices/ceqa/  
 
 

 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\14\Item-14.docx 

184

http://www.mpwmd.net/regulations/public-notices/ceqa/


EXHIBIT 14-A 

FINDINGS OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
LOS PADRES DAM GRAVEL AUGMENTATION PROGRAM 

 
1)  FINDING: The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (District) Board 

certified the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Water Allocation 
Program on November 5, 1990. 

 
EVIDENCE: The EIR is on file in the District office. 

 
2)  FINDING: On November 5, 1990 the District Board adopted findings which included the 

mitigation measures described in planning document titled, Five-Year 
Mitigation Program for Option V -- 16,700 acre-feet (af) Cal-Am Production. 

 
 EVIDENCE: The Mitigation Plan is on file in the District office. 
 
3) FINDING: Since 1993 and as part of the Mitigation Program, the District has carried out 

periodic gravel augmentation projects downstream of Los Padres Dam to 
improve spawning habitat for South-Central California Coast (S-CCC) 
steelhead. 

 
 EVIDENCE: Final Evaluation of MPWMD Five-Year Mitigation Program, 1991-1996 on 

file in the District office; Summary Report, California Coastal Salmon 
Recovery Program, Agreement No. P0085021, Carmel River Spawning 
Gravel Injection Project, April 8, 2003; Steelhead Spawning Gravel 
Enhancement – Below Los Padres Dam, Fisheries Restoration Grant Program 
(FRGP) - # P1240401,01, Beverly Chaney, Associate Fisheries Biologist, 
MPWMD, Final Project Report, March 31, 2017. 

 
4) FINDING: The District has documented significant downstream movement of spawning 

gravel material placed downstream of Los Padres Dam since 2014.  
 
 EVIDENCE: The above-referenced project report # P1240401,01, March 31, 2017.  
 
5) FINDING: California American Water has entered into a Memorandum of Agreement 

(MOA) with the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) effective January 
10, 2018 (MOA) that, among other things, provides for interim gravel 
replenishment below Los Padres Dam to maintain spawning gravels 
downstream of Los Padres Dam pending a determination about the future of 
the dam. 

 
 EVIDENCE: The MOA is on file at the District office. 
 
6) FINDING: There is a need to continue to augment spawning gravel in the Carmel River 

downstream of Los Padres Dam, such as with the Los Padres Gravel 
Augmentation Program. 

 

185



EXHIBIT 14-A 

EVIDENCE: The above stated facts. 
   
7) FINDING:  The District followed the Negative Declaration Process outlined in Article 6 

of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.  The 
District Board judges that an EIR for the project is unnecessary.  

 
 EVIDENCE: a) The District published a Public Notice of the Initial Study and Intent to 

Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration on September 30, 2016 in the 
Monterey Herald;  

 
b) Following receipt of the Initial Study and a Notice of Intent to Adopt a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration, the State Clearinghouse in the Governors' 
Office of Planning and Research and the State Clearinghouse posted SCH 
Number 2018051022 and set a review and comment period from May 14, 
2018 through June 12, 2018. The notice can be downloaded at: 

   http://www.ceqanet.ca.gov/DocDescription.asp?DocPK=725974   
 
c) The District received no comment letters on the proposed Mitigated 
Negative Declaration. 
 
d) The Draft Findings, Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration, 
Responses to Comments, and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
were reviewed by the District Board of Directors in a Public Hearing on July 
16, 2018. 
 
The foregoing evidence is on the District web site at: http://www.mpwmd.net/   
and is on file at the District Office, 5 Harris Court, Bldg. G, Monterey, CA. 
 

8) FINDING:  Based on results of a similar project at the site, an initial environmental study, 
and consideration of comments received to date, the District finds that the 
proposed project could result in several environmental impacts. 

  
EVIDENCE: The District has prepared an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

(IS/MND) that includes identification of potential impacts.  This information 
is available on the District web site and at the District Office 5 Harris Court, 
Bldg. G, Monterey, CA 93940. 

 
9) FINDING: The District finds that although the proposed project may affect the 

environment, specific measures will be included to mitigate the effects to a 
less than significant level. 

 EVIDENCE: Potential impacts from the project are described in the IS/MND and mitigation 
measures are specified in that document. 

  
10) FINDING: The Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared in compliance with the 

provisions of the CEQA and State CEQA Guidelines, Sections 15070 to 
15075, and Sections 15097 and 15105; 

186

http://www.ceqanet.ca.gov/DocDescription.asp?DocPK=725974
http://www.mpwmd.net/


EXHIBIT 14-A 

 
 EVIDENCE: The preparation, circulation, and public review of the initial study outlining 

the environmental impacts and proposed mitigation measures included in the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration. 

 
11) FINDING: The Mitigated Negative Declaration reflects the independent judgement of the 

District Board and each participating Director has reviewed and considered 
the information contained in the Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and related documents prior to making the decision on the Los 
Padres Dam Gravel Augmentation Program. 

 
 EVIDENCE: As evidenced by the July 16, 2018 Board meeting Packet, each member of the 

Board received a copy of the Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 
Declaration, a copy of the District response letters to comments received. 

 
12) FINDING: The District proposes to carry out removal of an abandoned Alaskan steeppass 

ladder within the footprint of the project that was not described in the Draft 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration; 

 
 EVIDENCE: Information presented in the July 16, 2018 MPWMD Board meeting packet 

for adoption of the Mitigated Negative Declaration. 
 
13)  FINDING: The District finds under CEQA Sections 15162 and 15164 that there will be 

no new and significant impacts from removal of the steeppass ladder that have 
not already been considered, that no additional mitigation measures are 
necessary to carry out the work, and that an Addendum should be prepared; 

 
 EVIDENCE: Information presented in the July 16, 2018 MPWMD Board meeting packet 

for adoption of the Mitigated Negative Declaration. 
  
14) FINDING: The District finds that the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Addendum is 

substantively adequate.  The District finds that there is no substantial 
evidence that the proposed Los Padres Dam Gravel Augmentation Program 
will cause a significant effect for the reason that the project shall be 
constructed together with the specified mitigation measures, and these 
measures shall avoid any significant environmental effect. 

 
 EVIDENCE: The above stated facts.  
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\14\Item-14-Exh-A.docx 

187



188



DRAFT 

EXHIBIT 14-B 
  
 RESOLUTION 2018-15 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 OF THE 
 MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
 CERTIFYING FINDINGS OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 ADOPTING A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
 AND 
 APPROVING THE LOS PADRES DAM GRAVEL AUGMENTATION PROGRAM 
 
 WHEREAS, The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) is 
committed to mitigating the environmental impact of diversions from the Carmel River Basin; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The MPWMD certified an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for its Water 
Allocation Program and adopted a Mitigation Program as part of the EIR; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Since 1993, and as part of the Mitigation Program, the District has carried out 
periodic gravel augmentation projects downstream of Los Padres Dam to improve spawning habitat 
for South-Central California Coast (S-CCC) steelhead.; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Los Padres Dam continues to trap spawning gravels and deprive downstream 
areas of gravels used by South-Central California Coast (S-CCC) steelhead for spawning; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The District has followed guidelines of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) and prepared an Initial Study comprised of an environmental checklist and review of the 
impacts of a Program to augment spawning gravel downstream of Los Padres Dam; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The District published a Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and circulated the Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Los Padres 
Gravel Augmentation Program (the Project) in accordance with CEQA requirements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The District responded to comments received on the IS/MND at a Public 
Hearing on July 16, 2018 and directed that a Final IS/MND be prepared that incorporates responses to 
comments; 
 
 WHEREAS, The District determined that removal of an abandoned Alaskan steeppass fish 
ladder within the Project site is a technical change that will have no new impacts and will require no 
new mitigation measures;  
 
 WHEREAS, The District has incorporated mitigation measures into the Project that will 
reduce potential impacts to a less than significant level; 
 
 WHEREAS, The District has prepared Findings of Environmental Review based on the 
Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and comments received; 

189



DRAFT 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
 We, the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, certify 
the Findings of Environmental Review as a true and accurate statement of the environmental impacts 
from the Project; and 
 
 Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration and Addendum for the Project based on the Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Project which found that, although the Project could 
have a significant effect on the environment, mitigation measures can be included that will reduce the 
potential impacts to less than significant levels; 
 
 Adopt the mitigation measures described for the Project; 
 
 Approve the project, direct staff to prepare a Final IS/MND, and file a Notice of 
Determination for the Project. 
 
  AYES: 
  NAYS: 
  ABSENT: 
 
 I, David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board of Directors on the Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District, hereby certify that the foregoing is a resolution duly adopted on the 16th day of 
July, 2018. 
 
 Witness my hand and seal of the Board of Directors this _____ day of ___________, 2018. 
 
 
    _________________________________________ 
    David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\14\Item-14-Exh-B.docx 

190



5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 
831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net

NOTICE OF PUBLIC REVIEW AND 
INTENT TO ADOPT A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

Project Name:  Los Padres Dam Gravel Augmentation Program 

Lead Agency:  Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

Location:  Carmel River, Monterey County, California 

Review Period:  May 18 – June 18, 2018 

Public Hearing to Consider the Project: Monday July 16, 2018, beginning at 7 p.m. in the District 
Conference Room located at 5 Harris Court, Bldg. G, Monterey CA 93940 

Project Description:  The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (District) desires to continue 
a gravel augmentation program to enhance spawning and rearing habitat for steelhead downstream of 
Los Padres Dam (LPD) by periodically placing imported gravel downstream of the dam. The goal is to 
increase the amount of available spawning and rearing habitat in the main stem of the Carmel River 
downstream of the dam, which is located about 25 River Miles (RM) upstream of the Pacific Ocean in 
Monterey County.  Gravel augmentation would occur along the stream bank of the river for 
approximately 0.3 mile downstream of the dam spillway. The staging area and gravel stockpile area for 
the project is located in a field adjacent to the Los Padres Dam access road, at RM 25 and approximately 
1.5 miles upstream of the confluence with Cachagua Creek. The project coordinates are latitude 
36.32162700N: longitude -121.40036000E. 

Gravel augmentation would occupy the footprint of a similar project completed by MPWMD in 2014 
under the California Department of Fish and Wildlife Fisheries Restoration Grant Program. 

The initial project in this program is to import up to 2,000 tons of gravel and place up to 1,500 tons in the 
river channel during the low flow season.  Material would be placed in the same footprint as the 2014 
project (i.e., along the stream edge), but would be placed carefully with heavy construction equipment.  
The balance of material not placed into the river in the initial phase would be stockpiled for later use after 
the river washes material downstream.  It is estimated that three to four replenishment projects to import 
and place up to 1,500 tons during each project could be carried out in a 10-year period. 

Mitigated Negative Declaration:  In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
and the CEQA Guidelines, the District has prepared a Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(IS/MND) for the project.  The District has determined that the project will not have a significant impact 
on the environment with implementation of mitigation measures as noted in the Draft IS/MND.   

Public Comment Period:  The public and all affected agencies are hereby invited to review the Draft 
IS/MND and submit written comments by 5 p.m., Monday, June 18, 2018.  The Draft IS/MND is 
currently available for review on the District’s website (http://www.mpwmd.net/regulations/public-
notices/ceqa/) or in hardcopy at the District’s office at 5 Harris Court, Building G (Ryan Ranch), 
Monterey, California 93940. 

Comments should be submitted to Larry Hampson, District Engineer, at the address below, by email at 
larry@mpwmd.net, or by phone at (831) 658-5620. 

EXHIBIT 14-C 191



 P A G E  | 1 

 
 

DRAFT 
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

 
LOS PADRES DAM GRAVEL AUGMENTATION PROJECT 

 
The District Engineer has reviewed the proposed project described below to determine 
whether it could have a significant effect on the environment as a result of project 
completion.  “Significant effect on the environment” means a substantial, or potentially 
substantial, adverse change in any of the physical conditions within the area affected by 
the project including land, air, water, minerals, flora, fauna, ambient noise, and objects of 
historic or aesthetic significance. 
 
NAME OF PROJECT:     Los Padres Dam Gravel Augmentation Program    
 
PROJECT FILE NUMBER:       

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The proposed project is located along the Carmel River 
immediately downstream of Los Padres Dam, approximately 19 miles southeast of Monterey in 
Monterey County.  The site is on the eastern side of the Santa Lucia Mountains, which are part of 
the Pacific Coast Range system.  The Carmel Valley is sparsely populated.  Carmel Valley 
Village (population 4,325 in 2013) is the furthest upstream populated place, approximately 7 
miles northwest of the proposed project location. 

The Los Padres Dam (LPD) has been a known fish passage impediment for both upstream and 
downstream migrating South-Central California Coast (S-CCC) steelhead as well as impacting 
the downstream habitat by blocking the natural sediment supply.  S-CCC steelhead were listed as 
a threatened species under the Endangered Species Act by the National Marine Fisheries Service 
(NMFS) in 1997.  Most of the streams in the Carmel River watershed have been designated as 
critical habitat for S-CCC steelhead.  Due to the presence of diversions and water supply 
facilities along the Carmel River by California American Water (Cal-Am), as a first step towards 
protecting S-CCC steelhead, NMFS strongly encouraged Cal-Am in 2013 to resolve the fish 
passage and other potential take issues at LPD.  In January 2018, NMFS and Cal-Am signed a 
Memorandum of Agreement that included a requirement that Cal-Am carry out gravel 
augmentation at Los Padres Dam to improve steelhead spawning habitat downstream of the dam. 

Subsequently, the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD or District) 
entered into an agreement with Cal-Am to assist with the gravel augmentation program by 
becoming Lead Agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and to 
supervise the project in the field. 

The District has carried out similar projects along the Carmel River since 1993 with the most 
recent project completed in 2014 at the proposed project site show in Figure 1.  The 2014 

EXHIBIT 14-C 192



 P A G E  | 2 

project, which consisted of importation and placement of 1,500 tons of spawning gravel, was one 
of the projects carried out under the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) 2013 
Fisheries Restoration Grant Program (FRGP).    CDFW, as Lead Agency for the FRGP, 
approved a Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH Number: 2012122042) on June 10, 2014. 

The District now desires to continue a gravel augmentation program to enhance spawning and 
rearing habitat for steelhead downstream of Los Padres Dam (LPD) by periodically placing 
imported gravel downstream of the dam. The goal is to increase the amount of available 
spawning and rearing habitat in the main stem of the Carmel River downstream of the dam, 
which is located about 25 River Miles (RM) upstream of the Pacific Ocean in Monterey County.  
Gravel augmentation would occur along the stream bank of the river for approximately 0.3 mile 
downstream of the dam spillway. The staging area and gravel stockpile area for the project is 
located in a field adjacent to the Los Padres Dam access road, at RM 25 and approximately 1.5 
miles upstream of the confluence with Cachagua Creek. The project coordinates are latitude 
36.32162700N: longitude -121.40036000E. 

Gravel augmentation would occupy the footprint of a similar project completed by MPWMD in 
2014 under the California Department of Fish and Wildlife Fisheries Restoration Grant Program.  
The initial phase in this program is to import up to 2,000 tons of gravel and place up to 1,500 
tons in the river channel during the low flow season.    Gravel would be placed in the same 
footprint as the 2014 project (i.e., along the stream edge), but would be placed carefully with 
heavy construction equipment (as opposed to the method used in 2014 to catapult the material 
with a conveyor from a cliff overlooking the plunge pool).  The balance of material not placed 
into the river initially would be stockpiled for use in a subsequent year after gravel is transported 
downstream by the river.  It is anticipated that periodic replenishment projects would occur to 
import additional material and place up to 1,500 tons of gravel at the site during each 
replenishment project.  It is estimated that three to four replenishment projects could be carried 
out in a 10-year period. 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 14-C 193



 P A G E  | 3 

 
PROJECT LOCATION & ASSESSORS PARCEL NO.: The project coordinates are latitude 
36.32162700N: longitude -121.40036000E.  APN 418-191-003 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 14-C 194



 P A G E  | 4 

APPLICANT CONTACT INFORMATION:    
Larry Hampson, District Engineer larry@mpwmd.net, phone (831) 658-5620     
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District   
P.O.  Box 85, Monterey, California 93942 
     
FINDING 
The District Engineer finds the project described above will not have a significant effect on the 
environment in that the attached initial study identifies one or more potentially significant effects 
on the environment for which the District, before public release of this draft Mitigated Negative 
Declaration, has agreed to include measures that clearly mitigate the effects to a less than 
significant level. 
 
MITIGATION MEASURES INCLUDED IN THE PROJECT TO REDUCE 
POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS TO A LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT LEVEL  
 
I. AESTHETICS – The project will not have a significant impact on this resource, 

therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
II. AGRICULTURE RESOURCES – The project will not have a significant impact on this 

resource, therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
III. AIR QUALITY – The project will not have a significant impact on this resource, 

therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES – The project could have a significant impact on these 

resources, therefore the following mitigation measures are proposed to reduce the 
potential impact to a less than significant level. 

 
The Carmel River at the project location supports spawning by steelhead in the winter and 
spring.  To mitigate for potential effects to spawning, work near the stream will be carried out in 
the low flow season between June 15 to October 15.  Actual project start and end dates will be 
coordinated with CDFW and NMFS.  Placement of material along the stream edges would be 
with a backhoe or loader.  No equipment will need to work in the live stream. 
 
California red-legged frogs (CRLF) may be present at the site.  CRLF were listed as a threatened 
species under the ESA in 1996 by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS).  To mitigate for 
any potential effects to CRLF, a qualified biologist will carry out a survey prior to 
commencement of project work as described by USFWS protocol.  If any CRLF are found 
within the vicinity of the project work, they would be moved to an approved site along the river. 
 
Raptors may be present near the site.  A qualified biologist will conduct a survey for raptors prior 
to commencement of work.  If any raptors are found in the vicinity, CDFW and/or the USFWS 
will be consulted about an appropriate buffer to establish between raptors and the work along the 
river. 
 
V. CULTURAL RESOURCES – The project will not have a significant impact on this 

resource, therefore no mitigation is required. 
 

EXHIBIT 14-C 195



 P A G E  | 5 

VI. GEOLOGY AND SOILS – The project will not have a significant impact on this 
resource, therefore no mitigation is required. 

 
VII. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS – The project will not have a 

significant impact on this resource, therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
VIII. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY – The project will not have a significant 

impact on this resource, therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
IX. LAND USE AND PLANNING – The project will not have a significant impact on this 

resource, therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
X. MINERAL RESOURCES – The project will not have a significant impact on this 

resource, therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
XI. NOISE – The project will not have a significant impact on this resource, therefore no 

mitigation is required. 
 
XII. POPULATION AND HOUSING – The project will not have a significant impact on 

this resource, therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
XIII. PUBLIC SERVICES – The project will not have a significant impact on this resource, 

therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
XIV. RECREATION – The project will not have a significant impact on this resource, 

therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
XV. TRANSPORTATION / TRAFFIC – The project will not have a significant impact on 

this resource, therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
XVI. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS – The project will not have a significant 

impact on this resource, therefore no mitigation is required. 
 
XVII. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE – The project will not substantially 

reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, be cumulatively considerable, or have a 
substantial adverse effect on human beings, therefore no additional mitigation is required. 

 

EXHIBIT 14-C 196



 P A G E  | 6 

PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD 
 
Before 5:00 p.m. on June 18, 2018, any person may:  
 
1. Review the Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) as an informational document 

only; or 
 

2. Submit written comments regarding the information, analysis, and mitigation measures in 
the Draft MND. Before the MND is adopted, District staff will prepare written responses 
to any comments, and revise the Draft MND, if necessary, to reflect any concerns raised 
during the public review period.  All written comments will be included as part of the 
Final MND. 

 
MPWMD will hold a Public Hearing to consider approval of this project on Monday July 16, 2018, 
beginning at 7 p.m. in the District Conference Room located at 5 Harris Court, Bldg. G, Monterey 
CA 93940. 
 

Larry Hampson, District Engineer 
 
 
 

 
 
Circulated on: May 18, 2018 
 
 
 
Adopted on:   
 
  

EXHIBIT 14-C 197



 P A G E  | 7 

CEQA Environmental Checklist  
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

Project Title: Los Padres Dam Gravel Augmentation Program 

Lead agency name and address: Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, P.O. 
Box 85, Monterey CA 93942

Contact person and phone number: Larry Hampson, (831) 658-5620 
Project Location: Los Padres Dam, Carmel River, Monterey County
Project sponsor’s name and address: Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, P.O. 

Box 85, Monterey CA 93942
General plan description: 
Zoning: 
Description of project: (Describe the whole 
action involved, including but not limited to 
later phases of the project, and any 
secondary, support, or off-site features 
necessary for its implementation.) 

MPWMD (District) desires to continue a gravel 
augmentation program to enhance spawning and 
rearing habitat for steelhead downstream of Los 
Padres Dam (LPD) by periodically placing imported 
gravel downstream of the dam. The goal is to 
increase the amount of available spawning and 
rearing habitat in the main stem of the Carmel River 
downstream of the dam, which is located about 25 
River Miles (RM) upstream of the Pacific Ocean in 
Monterey County.  Gravel augmentation would occur 
along the stream bank of the river for approximately 
0.3 mile downstream of the dam spillway. The staging 
area and gravel stockpile area for the project is 
located in a field adjacent to the Los Padres 
Dam access road, at RM 25 and approximately 1.5 
miles upstream of the confluence with Cachagua 
Creek. The project coordinates are latitude 
36.32162700N: longitude -121.40036000E.   
 
This project is nearly identical to a gravel 
augmentation project carried out in 2014 at this site 
under the California Department of Fisheries 
Restoration Grant Program 
 
The initial project in this program is to import up to 
2,000 tons of gravel and place up to 1,500 tons in the 
river channel during the low flow season.  Material 
would be placed in the same footprint as the 2014 
project (i.e., along the stream edge), but would be 
placed carefully with heavy construction equipment.  
The balance of material not placed in the channel in 
the initial phase would be stockpiled for use after the 
river washes material downstream.  Subsequent 
periodic projects would be carried out to place up to 
1,500 tons of gravel at the site during each 
replenishment project.  It is estimated that three to 
four replenishment projects could be carried out in a 
10-year period.

Surrounding land uses and setting; briefly 
describe the project’s surroundings: 

The proposed project is located along the Carmel 
River at Los Padres Dam, approximately 19 miles 
southeast of Monterey.  The site is on the eastern 
side of the Santa Lucia Mountains, which are part of 
the Pacific Coast Range system.  The Carmel Valley 
is sparsely populated.  The town of Carmel Valley 

EXHIBIT 14-C 198



 P A G E  | 8 

Village (population 4,325 in 2013) is the furthest 
upstream populated place, approximately 7 miles 
northwest of the proposed project location. 

Other public agencies whose approval is 
required (e.g. permits, financial approval, or 
participation agreements): 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, National Marine 
Fisheries Service, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, 
California Regional Water Quality Control Board, 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Monterey 
County

Have California Native American tribes 
traditionally and culturally affiliated with the 
project area requested consultation pursuant 
to Public Resources Code section 21080.3.1? 
If so, has consultation begun? 
 
Note: Conducting consultation early in the 
CEQA process allows tribal governments, 
lead agencies, and project proponents to 
discuss the level of environmental review, 
identify and address potential adverse impacts 
to tribal cultural resources, and reduce the 
potential for delay and conflict in the 
environmental review process. (See Public 
Resources Code section 21083.3.2.) 
Information may also be available from the 
California Native American Heritage 
Commission’s Sacred Lands File per Public 
Resources Code section 5097.96 and the 
California Historical Resources Information 
System administered by the California Office 
of Historic Preservation. Please also note that 
Public Resources Code section 21082.3(c) 
contains provisions specific to confidentiality.

No; however, this area has previously been 
exhaustively surveyed and extensive consultation with 
California Native Americans traditionally and culturally 
affiliated with the project area occurred in the early 
1990s.  There are no known cultural resources at the 
site proposed for gravel augmentation. 

 

EXHIBIT 14-C 199



 P A G E  | 9 

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: 
 
The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project.  Please see the 
checklist beginning on page 3 for additional information. 
 

 Aesthetics  Agriculture and Forestry  Air Quality 

 Biological Resources  Cultural Resources  Geology/Soils 

 Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

 Hazards and Hazardous 
Materials

 Hydrology/Water Quality 

 Land Use/Planning  Mineral Resources  Noise 

 Population/Housing  Public Services  Recreation 

 Transportation/Traffic  Tribal Cultural Resources  Utilities/Service Systems 

 Mandatory Findings of 
Significance 

    

 
 
DETERMINATION: 
 
On the basis of this initial evaluation: 
 

 I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and 
a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, 
there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been 
made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
will be prepared. 

 I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

 I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially 
significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been 
adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) 
has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on 
attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze 
only the effects that remain to be addressed.

 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, 
because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR 
or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided 
or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or 
mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required.

 
 
Signature: Date:
 
Printed Name: Larry Hampson, District Engineer For: MPWMD 

EXHIBIT 14-C 200



 P A G E  | 10 

CEQA Environmental Checklist 
        

  

 
This checklist identifies physical, biological, social and economic factors that might be affected by 
the proposed project.  In many cases, background studies performed in connection with the 
projects indicate no impacts.  A NO IMPACT answer in the last column reflects this determination.  
Where there is a need for clarifying discussion, the discussion is included either following the 
applicable section of the checklist or is within the body of the environmental document itself.  The 
words "significant" and "significance" used throughout the following checklist are related to 
CEQA, not NEPA, impacts.  The questions in this form are intended to encourage the thoughtful 
assessment of impacts and do not represent thresholds of significance.

 
 Potentially 

Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

I. AESTHETICS:  Would the project:     

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic 
vista? 

    

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, 
including, but not limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state 
scenic highway? 

    

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual 
character or quality of the site and its 
surroundings? 

    

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare 
which would adversely affect day or nighttime 
views in the area? 

    

     

II. AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES:  
In determining whether impacts to agricultural 
resources are significant environmental effects, 
lead agencies may refer to the California 
Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment 
Model (1997) prepared by the California Dept. of 
Conservation as an optional model to use in 
assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In 
determining whether impacts to forest resources, 
including timberland, are significant environmental 
effects, lead agencies may refer to information 
compiled by the California Department of Forestry 
and Fire Protection regarding the state’s inventory 
of forest land, including the Forest and Range 
Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy 
Assessment Project; and the forest carbon 
measurement methodology provided in Forest 
Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources 
Board.  Would the project: 

    

EXHIBIT 14-C 201



 P A G E  | 11 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or 
Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as 
shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the 
California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural 
use?  

    

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, 
or a Williamson Act contract? 

    

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as 
defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), 
or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as 
defined by Government Code section 51104(g))? 

    

d)  Result in the loss of forest land or conversion 
of forest land to non-forest use? 

    

e) Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their location or nature, 
could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-
agricultural use or conversion of forest land to 
non-forest use? 

    

     

III. AIR QUALITY:  Where available, the 
significance criteria established by the applicable 
air quality management or air pollution control 
district may be relied upon to make the following 
determinations. Would the project:  

    

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the 
applicable air quality plan?  

    

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute 
substantially to an existing or projected air quality 
violation?  

    

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non- attainment under an 
applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard (including releasing emissions which 
exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone 
precursors)? 

    

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations?  

    

EXHIBIT 14-C 202



 P A G E  | 12 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a 
substantial number of people?  

    

     

IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES:  Would the 
project: 

    

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either 
directly or through habitat modifications, on any 
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or 
special status species in local or regional plans, 
policies, or regulations, or by the California 
Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service?  

    

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional plans, 
policies, regulations or by the California 
Department of Fish and Game or US Fish and 
Wildlife Service?  

    

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally 
protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of 
the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, 
marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 
removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other 
means?  

    

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any 
native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species 
or with established native resident or migratory 
wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native 
wildlife nursery sites?  

    

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances 
protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance?  

    

EXHIBIT 14-C 203



 P A G E  | 13 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

Inspection of the site by a qualified biologist for 
migratory bird species and California red-legged 
frog surveys at the project site will be conducted 
by a qualified biologist at least two weeks before 
the onset of activities.  

Gravel will be transferred from the stockpile to the 
river using a backhoe or loader, which will deposit 
the gravel downstream of Los Padres Dam.  Work 
in the stream will be restricted to June 15 to 
October 15. Actual project start and end dates will 
be coordinated with the California Department of 
Fish and Wildlife and the National Marine 
Fisheries Service. 

 

    

V. CULTURAL RESOURCES:  Would the project:      

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource as defined in 
§15064.5?  

    

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource pursuant 
to §15064.5?  

    

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or unique geologic 
feature? 

    

d) Disturb any human remains, including those 
interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?  

    

VI. GEOLOGY AND SOILS:  Would the project:      

a) Expose people or structures to potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the risk of 
loss, injury, or death involving: 

    

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as 
delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo 
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State 
Geologist for the area or based on other substantial 
evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of 
Mines and Geology Special Publication 42? 

    

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?     

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including 
liquefaction?  

    

iv) Landslides?     

EXHIBIT 14-C 204



 P A G E  | 14 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of 
topsoil? 

    

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become unstable as a 
result of the project, and potentially result in on- or 
off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 
liquefaction or collapse?  

    

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in 
Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), 
creating substantial risks to life or property?  

    

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting 
the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water 
disposal systems where sewers are not available 
for the disposal of waste water?  

    

     

VII.  GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS:  Would the 
project: 

    

a)  Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 
directly or indirectly, that may have a significant 
impact on the environment?  

 

    

 

 

 

    
 

b)  Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the 
emissions of greenhouse gases? 

     

VIII. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS:  
Would the project:  

    

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through the routine transport, use, or 
disposal of hazardous materials?  

    

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset 
and accident conditions involving the release of 
hazardous materials into the environment?  

    

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous 
or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or 
waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or 
proposed school? 

    

EXHIBIT 14-C 205



 P A G E  | 15 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of 
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a 
result, would it create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment?  

    

e) For a project located within an airport land use 
plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, 
within two miles of a public airport or public use 
airport, would the project result in a safety hazard 
for people residing or working in the project area?  

    

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project result in a safety hazard 
for people residing or working in the project area?  

    

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere 
with an adopted emergency response plan or 
emergency evacuation plan?  

    

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk 
of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, 
including where wildlands are adjacent to 
urbanized areas or where residences are 
intermixed with wildlands?  

    

     

IX. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY:  Would 
the project:  

    

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 
discharge requirements?  

    

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with groundwater recharge 
such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer 
volume or a lowering of the local groundwater table 
level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing 
nearby wells would drop to a level which would not 
support existing land uses or planned uses for 
which permits have been granted)? 

    

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 
of the site or area, including through the alteration 
of the course of a stream or river, in a manner 
which would result in substantial erosion or siltation 
on- or off-site?  

    

EXHIBIT 14-C 206



 P A G E  | 16 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 
of the site or area, including through the alteration 
of the course of a stream or river, or substantially 
increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a 
manner which would result in flooding on- or off-
site?  

    

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would 
exceed the capacity of existing or planned 
stormwater drainage systems or provide 
substantial additional sources of polluted runoff?  

    

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?      

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard 
area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard 
Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other 
flood hazard delineation map?  

    

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area 
structures which would impede or redirect flood 
flows?  

    

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk 
of loss, injury or death involving flooding, including 
flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 

    

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow     

X. LAND USE AND PLANNING:  Would the 
project: 

    

a) Physically divide an established community?      

b)Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, 
or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the 
project  (including, but not limited to the general 
plan, specific plan, local coastal program, or zoning 
ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect?  

    

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation 
plan or natural community conservation plan?  

    

     

XI. MINERAL RESOURCES:  Would the project:      

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known 
mineral resource that would be of value to the 
region and the residents of the state?  

    

EXHIBIT 14-C 207



 P A G E  | 17 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-
important mineral resource recovery site delineated 
on a local general plan, specific plan or other land 
use plan?  

    

     

XII. NOISE:  Would the project result in:      

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise 
levels in excess of standards established in the 
local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable 
standards of other agencies?  

    

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of 
excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne 
noise levels?  

    

c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient 
noise levels in the project vicinity above levels 
existing without the project?  

    

     

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in 
ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above 
levels existing without the project?  

    

e) For a project located within an airport land use 
plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, 
within two miles of a public airport or public use 
airport, would the project expose people residing or 
working in the project area to excessive noise 
levels? 

    

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project expose people residing 
or working in the project area to excessive noise 
levels?  

    

     

XIII. POPULATION AND HOUSING:  Would the 
project:  

    

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, 
either directly (for example, by proposing new 
homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, 
through extension of roads or other infrastructure)? 

    

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing 
housing, necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere?  

    

EXHIBIT 14-C 208



 P A G E  | 18 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, 
necessitating the construction of replacement 
housing elsewhere?  

    

     

XIV. PUBLIC SERVICES:     

a) Would the project result in substantial adverse 
physical impacts associated with the provision of 
new or physically altered governmental facilities, 
need for new or physically altered governmental 
facilities, the construction of which could cause 
significant environmental impacts, in order to 
maintain acceptable service ratios, response times 
or other performance objectives for any of the 
public services:  

    

Fire protection?     

Police protection?     

Schools?     

Parks?     

Other public facilities?     

     

     

XV. RECREATION:     

a) Would the project increase the use of existing 
neighborhood and regional parks or other 
recreational facilities such that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility would occur or be 
accelerated? 

    

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or 
require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which might have an adverse 
physical effect on the environment? 

    

     

XVI. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC:  Would the 
project: 

    

EXHIBIT 14-C 209



 P A G E  | 19 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or 
policy establishing measures of effectiveness for 
the performance of the circulation system, taking 
into account all modes of transportation including 
mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant 
components of the circulation system, including but 
not limited to intersections, streets, highways and 
freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass 
transit? 

    

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion 
management program, including, but not limited to 
level of service standards and travel demand 
measures, or other standards established by the 
county congestion management agency for 
designated roads or highways? 

    

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, 
including either an increase in traffic levels or a 
change in location that results in substantial safety 
risks? 

    

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design 
feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm 
equipment)? 

    

e) Result in inadequate emergency access?     

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans or programs 
regarding public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian 
facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance or 
safety of such facilities? 

    

     

XVII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES:  Would 
the project cause a substantial adverse change in 
the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined 
in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either 
a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is 
geographically defined in terms of the size and 
scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object 
with cultural value to a California Native American 
tribe, and that is: 

    

a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California 
Register of Historical Resources, or in a local 
register of historical resources as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or 

    

EXHIBIT 14-C 210



 P A G E  | 20 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

b) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its 
discretion and supported by substantial evidence, 
to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in 
subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 
5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in 
subdivision (c) of Public Resource Code Section 
5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the 
significance of the resource to a California Native 
American tribe. 

    

  

EXHIBIT 14-C 211



 P A G E  | 21 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

     

XVIII. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS:  
Would the project: 

    

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of 
the applicable Regional Water Quality Control 
Board? 

    

b) Require or result in the construction of new 
water or wastewater treatment facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the construction of 
which could cause significant environmental 
effects? 

    

c) Require or result in the construction of new 
storm water drainage facilities or expansion of 
existing facilities, the construction of which could 
cause significant environmental effects? 

    

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve 
the project from existing entitlements and 
resources, or are new or expanded entitlements 
needed? 

    

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider which serves or may serve the 
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the 
project’s projected demand in addition to the 
provider’s existing commitments? 

    

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted 
capacity to accommodate the project’s solid waste 
disposal needs? 

    

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes 
and regulations related to solid waste? 

    

     

  

EXHIBIT 14-C 212



 P A G E  | 22 

 Potentially 
Significant 
Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 
with 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 
Impact 

No 
Impact 

XIX. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF 
SIGNIFICANCE 

    

a) Does the project have the potential to degrade 
the quality of the environment, substantially reduce 
the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish 
or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining 
levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal 
community, substantially reduce the number or 
restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or 
animal or eliminate important examples of the 
major periods of California history or prehistory? 

    

b) Does the project have impacts that are 
individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? 
("Cumulatively considerable" means that the 
incremental effects of a project are considerable 
when viewed in connection with the effects of past 
projects, the effects of other current projects, and 
the effects of probable future projects)? 

    

c) Does the project have environmental effects 
which will cause substantial adverse effects on 
human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

    

 
 

EXHIBIT 14-C 213



214



 
SUMMARY:  The Board will consider Addendum No. 3 to the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(MND) for the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility Raw Water Intake and Water Supply 
System Upgrade (Facility Upgrade) in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) to allow disposal of up to 2,000 cubic yards of excavated material from the Facility 
Upgrade.  The original design for the project anticipated balancing cut and fill for facility 
improvements on site; however, after review by Monterey County, the project was re-designed 
which resulted in excess cut material that cannot be placed at the Sleepy Hollow Facility. 
 
MPWMD and California American Water staff identified a suitable site to place the material on a 
parcel owned by Cal-Am adjacent to the Facility Upgrade parcel, approximately ¾ of a mile from 
the Facility Upgrade Project site (see Figure 1).  Impacts due to construction activities and 
mitigation measures at the Facility Upgrade site were previously considered with the MND.  
Impacts from transport and disposal of excavated material are similar to impacts considered for 
construction activities at the Project site.  There would be no new impacts or mitigation measures 
required for disposal of material generated by the Project; however, an Addendum should be 
prepared for the additional activity.  Findings of Environmental Review are attached as Exhibit 
15-A.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2018-16 
(Exhibit 15-B) approving the Addendum to the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the 
Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility Raw Water Intake and Water Supply System Upgrade. 

 
DISCUSSION:  MPWMD, Cal-Am, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), 
the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), and the California State Coastal Conservancy 

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
15. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A CEQA ADDENDUM TO THE MITIGATED 

NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE SLEEPY HOLLOW STEELHEAD 
REARING FACILITY UPGRADE (CEQA: Approve Addendum to the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration for the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility Raw Water 
Intake and Water Supply System Upgrade Under CEQA Guideline Sections 15162 and 
15164) 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ N/A 
 General Manager Line Item: N/A 
 
Prepared By: Larry Hampson and 

Thomas Christensen 
Cost Estimate: N/A 

 
 
General Counsel Review:  Yes 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  Addendum to EIR under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15162 and 
15164 

215



(SCC) have been cooperating to upgrade the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility (facility), 
which is situated in unincorporated Monterey County on the west bank of the Carmel River about 
1 mile downstream of the former San Clemente Dam location.  The project will allow for future 
changes in water supply, sediment, and debris flow that may affect the facility operations.   
 
Up to approximately 2,000 cubic yards of excavated material could be generated from the facility 
upgrade project improvements.  Based on geotechnical investigations and visual inspection of the 
Facility Upgrade site, excavated material will most likely consist of silty sand and sandy gravel.  
The proposed disposal sites are previously disturbed areas adjacent to the Carmel River where Cal-
Am had located a surface water treatment plant (Filter Plant).  The site was considered a non-
contributing resource within the historical district established for the San Clemente Dam Reroute 
Project.  
 
After completion of the San Clemente Dam Removal and Carmel River Reroute Project, the Filter 
Plant and residence (Site A in Figure 1 below) were removed, the site was regraded to a relatively 
flat profile, and reseeded with native grasses.  Site A is about 10,400 square feet (< 0.25 acre) and 
contains disturbed soils comprised of silty sand, gravel, cobble, and some boulders characteristic 
of terrace areas adjacent to the Carmel River.   Site B, where a water tank was removed, is about 
2,900 square feet.  Both sites are similar to the Facility Upgrade with upland grasses adjacent to 
oak habitat. 
 
Potential impacts from the earthmoving activity will be similar to the impacts associated with other 
activities at the Facility Upgrade including impacts to air quality and sensitive species in upland 
habitats.  Earthmoving activity that covers more than 2.2 acres per day and uses typical 
earthmoving equipment (scraper, loader, bulldozer, dump truck, etc.) would have potentially 
significant impacts; however, as described above, the disposal site is < 0.5 acre. All appropriate 
measures to reduce impacts to less than significant described in the adopted Mitigation and 
Monitoring Program would apply to the hauling and disposal of material at Sites A and B. 
 
CEQA Action Required 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162 “Subsequent EIRs and Negative Declarations” and 15164 
“Addendum to an EIR or Negative Declaration” apply to this action.  Under Section 15162, there 
are no new significant environmental effects or new mitigation measures necessary from the 
proposed earthmoving activity.  The proposed earthmoving activity constitutes a technical change 
that under CEQA Section 15164 allows the Board to adopt an addendum to the existing MND, 
which has been amended by previous Addenda.  The addendum for earthmoving activity consists 
of this staff note, Findings of Environmental Review (Exhibit 15-B), and Resolution 2018-16. 
 
These are the previous actions that constitute the CEQA record: 
 
November 14, 2016 – the District Board approved the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility 
Raw Water Intake and Water Supply System Upgrade Project (Project) Initial Study/Mitigated 
Negative Declaration.  Documents for this action are available at the District office or on the web 
at:  http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2016/20161114/12/Item-12.htm  
 

216

http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2016/20161114/12/Item-12.htm


January 25, 2017 – the District Board approved Addendum No. 1 to correct the description of the 
distinct population segment (DPS) of steelhead in the Carmel River.  Documents for this action 
are available at the District office or on the web at:  
 
http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2017/20170125/13/Item-13.htm  
 
November 30, 2017 – the State Coastal Conservancy, as a Responsible Agency, adopted 
Addendum No. 2 to revise Mitigation Measure BIO-MM-1 for potential impacts to aquatic habitat 
from the placement of a concrete base and cone screen at the river intake for the SHSRF. 
Documents for this action are available at the District office or on the web at:    
http://www.mpwmd.net/wp-content/uploads/SHSRF-Addendum-No-2-all.pdf  
 
 

   
 
Figure 1 – Sleepy Hollow Facility Upgrade site and disposal sites A and B 

217

http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2017/20170125/13/Item-13.htm
http://www.mpwmd.net/wp-content/uploads/SHSRF-Addendum-No-2-all.pdf


EXHIBITS 
15-A  Draft Findings of Environmental Review for Addendum No. 3 
15-B Draft Resolution 2018-16 Certifying Addendum No. 3 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\15\Item-15.docx 

218



EXHIBIT 15-A 
 

FINDINGS OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
ADDENDUM NO. 3 TO SLEEPY HOLLOW STEELHEAD REARING FACILITY 

RAW WATER INTAKE AND WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM UPGRADE 
 

1) FINDING: The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (District) Board 
certified the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) and Mitigation and 
Monitoring Program for the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility (SHSRF) Raw Water 
Intake and Water Supply System Upgrade Project (Project) on November 14, 2016. 

 
EVIDENCE: The IS/MND and Mitigation and Monitoring Program and related documents 
are on file in the District office. 

 
2) FINDING: The District followed the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

Guidelines Sections 15162 and 15164 to correct the description of the distinct population 
segment (DPS) of steelhead in the Carmel River on January 25, 2017.   

 
 EVIDENCE: The Addendum No. 1 is on file in the District office. 
 

3) FINDING: The State Coastal Conservancy, as a Responsible Agency, on November 30, 
2017 followed the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Sections 15162 
and 15164 to determine that an Addendum to modify the approved Project by revising 
Mitigation Measure BIO-MM-1, which addresses potential impacts to aquatic habitat from 
the placement of a concrete base and cone screen at the river intake for the SHSRF.  

 
 EVIDENCE: The Addendum No. 2 is on file in the District office. 
 

4) FINDING: The District followed the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines Sections 15162 and 15164 to determine that an Addendum to allow earthmoving 
from the Project site to an adjacent parcel is appropriate as no new mitigation measures would 
be required from potential impacts and this modification would not result in a measurable 
increase in environmental impacts over what was previously analyzed in the November 14, 
2016, IS/MND.  The Addendum No. 3 was reviewed by the District Board of Directors at 
their July 16, 2018 meeting. 

 
EVIDENCE: The Agenda, Addendum, and supporting documents for the July 16, 2018 
Board Meeting are on file in the District office.   

 
5) FINDING: The Addendum reflects the independent judgement of the District Board and 

each participating Director has reviewed and considered the information contained in the 
Addendum and related documents prior to making the decision on the Addendum. 

 
EVIDENCE: Each Director on the Board received a copy of the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration as evidenced by the July 16, 2018 Board meeting packet. 

 

219



6) FINDING: The District finds that the proposed modifications to the approved Project 
would not result in a measurable increase in environmental impacts over what was previously 
analyzed in the November 14, 2016, IS/MND and subsequent Addenda, and no new 
mitigation measures would be required. 

 
 EVIDENCE: The above stated facts. 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\15\Item-15-Exh-A.docx 

220



DRAFT 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 

831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  
 

 
EXHIBIT 15-B 

 
RESOLUTION 2018-16 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 OF THE 
 MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
 CERTIFYING ADDENDUM NO. 3 TO THE MITIGATED  

NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE SLEEPY  
HOLLOW STEELHEAD REARING FACILITY RAW  

WATER INTAKE AND WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM UPGRADE 
 
 WHEREAS, The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) is 
committed to mitigating the environmental impact of diversions from the Carmel River Basin; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The MPWMD certified an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(IS/MND) and Mitigation and Monitoring Program for the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing 
Facility (SHSRF) Raw Water Intake and Water Supply System Upgrade Project (Project) and 
approved the Project on November 14, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The MPWMD approved Addendum No. 1 to correct the description of the 
distinct population segment (DPS) of steelhead in the Carmel River on January 25, 2017; and 
 

WHEREAS, The State Coastal Conservancy, as a Responsible Agency, on November 30, 
2017 approved Addendum No. 2 to modify the approved Project by revising Mitigation Measure 
BIO-MM-1, which addresses potential impacts to aquatic habitat from the placement of a concrete 
base and cone screen at the river intake for the SHSRF; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The District has followed guidelines of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) and prepared Addendum No. 3 to modify the approved Project by allowing the 
movement and disposal of 2,000 cubic yards of earth onto a parcel adjacent to the Project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, The District has prepared Findings of Environmental Review; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
 We, the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, certify 
the Addendum as a true and accurate statement of the environmental impacts of the construction of 
the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility Raw Water Intake and Water Supply System 
Upgrade; and 
 
 

221

http://www.mpwmd.net/


Draft MPWMD Resolution No. 2018-16 - Page 2 of 2 

 

 Adopt an Addendum for the Project which found that the proposed modifications to the 
approved Project would not result in a measurable increase in environmental impacts over what was 
previously analyzed in the November 14, 2016, IS/MND, Addendum No. 1, and Addendum No. 2 
and no new mitigation measures would be required. 
 
 

On motion of Director ________ and second by Director ___________ the foregoing 
resolution is duly adopted this 16th day of July 2018 by the following votes: 
 
 AYES:  
 
 NAYS:  
 
 ABSENT:  
 
  I, David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board of Directors on the Monterey Peninsula 
Water Management District, hereby certify that the foregoing is a resolution duly adopted on the 
16th day of July 2018. 
 
  Witness my hand and seal of the Board of Directors this ___ day of July 2018. 
 
 
     _________________________________________ 
     David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board 
 

 
 
 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\15\Item-15-Exh-B.docx 

222



 
SUMMARY:  Expansion of the ASR Phase 1 (Santa Margarita) backflush basin requires land 
clearing, excavation, grading, and construction of a second driveway entrance.  Construction 
activity environmental impacts and mitigation measures at the Santa Margarita site were 
previously considered with the ASR EIR/EA.  Impacts from construction of an additional 
backflush basin at the ASR Water Project 2 (Seaside Middle School) facility were previously 
considered in the April 2012 Addendum to the ASR EIR/EA.   
 
An evaluation of the environmental impacts due to the Backflush Basin Expansion Project 
(Project) was prepared (Exhibit 16-A).  The evaluation found that the Project would not result in 
any new significant environmental effects that cannot be mitigated with existing, previously 
identified mitigation measures in the ASR EIR/EA.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2018-17 
(Exhibit 16-B) adopting the Backflush Basin Expansion Addendum as Addendum 4 to the ASR 
EIR/EA. 

 
DISCUSSION:  MPWMD’s Phase 1 ASR Project, located at 1910 General Jim Moore Boulevard, 
included construction of two ASR wells and a backflush basin.  Construction of a backflush basin 
sized to accommodate two wells at the Santa Margarita site was environmentally evaluated in the 
ASR EIR/EA. 
 
On August 21, 2006 the MPWMD Board adopted Findings, adopted the Mitigation and 
Monitoring Plan, certified the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment for 
the Phase 1 ASR Project, and approved the Phase 1 ASR Project on August 21, 2006.  
Documents for this action are incorporated by reference and are available at the MPWMD office 
or on the web at:  http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2006/20060821/10/item10.htm; 
the Draft ASR EIR/EA is available on the web at:  http://www.mpwmd.net/wp-
content/uploads/2015/08/MPWMD-Draft-EIR-EA-3-06.pdf; and the Final EIR/EA for the Phase 
1 ASR Project is available on the web at: http://www.mpwmd.net/wp-
content/uploads/2015/08/FEIR_8-21-06.pdf.  

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
16. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A CEQA ADDENDUM TO THE ASR EIR/EA FOR 

THE BACKFLUSH BASIN EXPANSION (CEQA: Approve Addendum to the ASR 
EIR/EA for the Backflush Basin Expansion Under CEQA Guideline Sections 15162 
and 15164) 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ N/A 
 General Manager Line Item: 

 

 
Prepared By: Maureen Hamilton Cost Estimate: N/A 
 
General Counsel Review:  Yes 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  Addendum to EIR under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15162 and 15164 

223

http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2006/20060821/10/item10.htm
http://www.mpwmd.net/wp-content/uploads/2015/08/MPWMD-Draft-EIR-EA-3-06.pdf
http://www.mpwmd.net/wp-content/uploads/2015/08/MPWMD-Draft-EIR-EA-3-06.pdf
http://www.mpwmd.net/wp-content/uploads/2015/08/FEIR_8-21-06.pdf
http://www.mpwmd.net/wp-content/uploads/2015/08/FEIR_8-21-06.pdf


The ASR Water Project 2, located at 2111 General Jim Moore Boulevard, included construction 
of two ASR wells and a backflush basin on Seaside Middle School property. The environmental 
impact due to construction of this second backflush basin was evaluated in the April 2012 
Addendum to the Phase 1 ASR EIR/EA; however, the School District would not allow a backflush 
basin on school grounds and the basin was never constructed.  Backflush water is conveyed to the 
Santa Margarita backflush basin.   
 
On April 16, 2012 the MPWMD Board approved and adopted the April 2012 Addendum to the 
Phase 1 ASR EIR/EA, adopted the April 2012 Mitigation Monitoring Plan, and approved the full 
implementation of ASR Water Project 2 on April 16, 2012.  Documents for this action are 
incorporated by reference and are available at the MPWMD office or on the web at:  
http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2012/20120416/16/item16.htm  
 
Cal-Am is planning to construct two new ASR wells at the Fitch Park facility as part of the 
Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project (MPWSP).  The Fitch Park site does not have space to 
accommodate a backflush basin.  Backflush water from the Fitch Park site will be conveyed to the 
Santa Margarita backflush basin.   
 
The Santa Margarita backflush basin must be expanded to accommodate backflush water from up 
to six ASR wells on a schedule that is operationally feasible.  A map of existing and planned ASR 
facilities can be found in Figure 1 at the end of this staff note. 
 
Potential impacts from the earth moving activity to construct and operate the Project will be similar 
to the impacts associated with other activities at the ASR sites including impacts to air quality, 
noise, and sensitive species.  The environmental evaluation included construction of two sound 
walls that are not planned for construction in 2018, but may be constructed in the future.  All 
appropriate measures to reduce impacts to less than significant described in the adopted 2006 and 
2012 Mitigation and Monitoring Programs would apply to the Project. 
 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162 “Subsequent EIRs and Negative Declarations” and 15164 
“Addendum to an EIR or Negative Declaration” apply to this action.  Under Section 15162, there 
are no new significant environmental effects nor new mitigation measures necessary from the 
proposed earthmoving activity.  The proposed Project constitutes a technical change that under 
CEQA Section 15164 allows the Board to adopt an addendum to the existing EIR/EA, which has 
been amended by previous Addenda.  The addendum for the Project consists of this staff note, the 
Backflush Basin Addendum (Exhibit 16-A), Findings of Environmental Review and the 
Resolution (Exhibit 16-B). 
 
Additional previous actions that constitute the CEQA record are: 

• June 20, 2016 – the MPWMD Board approved the Hilby Avenue Pump Station and 
adopted the June 2016 Hilby Avenue Pump Station Addendum as Addendum 2 to the ASR 
EIR/EA on June 20, 2016 by Resolution No. 2016-12.  Documents for this action are 
incorporated by reference, and are available at the MPWMD office or on the web at: 
http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2016/20160620/16/Item-16.htm  

• February 22, 2017 – The MPWMD Board approved a realignment of a segment of the 
Monterey Pipeline and adopted the February 2017 Monterey Pipeline Addendum as 
Addendum 3 to the ASR EIR/EA on February 22, 2017 by Resolution No. 2017-03. 
Documents for this action are incorporated by reference and are available at the District 

224

http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2012/20120416/16/item16.htm
http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2016/20160620/16/Item-16.htm


office or on the web at:   
http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2017/20170222/02/Item-2.htm  

 
Figure 1 – Santa Margarita ASR Facility Map 

 
 
EXHIBITS 
16-A  Addendum No. 4 to the ASR EIR/EA for Backflush Basin Expansion  
16-B Resolution 2018-17 Certifying Addendum 4 to the Aquifer Storage and Recovery Area 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\16\Item-16.docx 

225

http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2017/20170222/02/Item-2.htm


226



ADDENDUM NO. 4 

TO THE 

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY PROJECT

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIRONMENTAL

ASSESSMENT  

FOR THE 

BACKFLUSH BASIN EXPANSION 

July 11, 2018 

Prepared for 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

Prepared by 

Denise Duffy and Assoicates 

EXHIBIT 16-A 227



Addendum No. 4 to the ASR EIR/EA  

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

 

 
This page is intentionally blank. 

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 228



Addendum No. 4 to the ASR EIR/EA  

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
I. Introduction .......................................................................................................................................... 1 

II. Project Location .................................................................................................................................... 2 

III. Project Description ................................................................................................................................ 2 

IV. Comparison to the Conditions Listed in CEQA Guidelines Section15162 ............................................. 3 

V. Changes to the Project .......................................................................................................................... 4 

 

LIST OF FIGURES 

1. Location Map ......................................................................................................................................... 6 

2. Site Plan ................................................................................................................................................. 7 

3. Surrounding Land Uses .......................................................................................................................... 8 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS  

1. Initial Study Checklist for the Backflush Basin Modification to Support Addendum No. 4 to the ASR 
EIR/EA  

2. Air Quality and GHG Calculations Spreadsheets dated July 5, 2018 

3. Geotechnical Investigation for New Electrical & Chemical Feed Building prepared by Pacific Crest 
Engineering as Amended by Update Letter dated February 23, 2018 

4. Approved MMRP for the Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project  

5. Bid Drawings for Santa Margarita ASR Facility Site Expansion, prepared by MAC Design Associates and 
Pueblo Water Resources, dated May 25, 2018 

 

 

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 229



Addendum No. 4 to the ASR EIR/EA  

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

EXHIBIT 16-A 230



Addendum No. 4 to the ASR EIR/EA  

Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 1 

 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, California Public Resources Code Sections 21000 et 
seq. (CEQA) and the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California 
Code of Regulations (CEQA Guidelines), and in cooperation with other affected agencies and entities, the 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) has prepared this Addendum to the Final 
Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment for the Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Project (EIR/EA), certified by MPWMD’s 
Board of Directors on August 21, 2006, as modified by: 

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA, which addressed full implementation of ASR Phase 2 and was 
adopted by MPWMD’s Board of Directors on April 16, 2012; 

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA, which addressed the addition of the Hilby Pump Station and 
was adopted by MPWMD’s Board of Directors on June 20, 2016; and, 

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA, which addressed the Monterey Pipeline and was adopted by 
MPWMD’s Board of Directors on February 22, 2017. 

MPWMD has prepared this Addendum to the ASR EIR/EA to address the effects of constructing and 
operating the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion, which would constitute a change to the ASR Project.  
This Addendum evaluates the proposed expansion of the existing backflush basin at the ASR Santa 
Margarita site, to accommodate the increased backflush water from nearby existing and planned ASR 
wells.  

The ASR Project entails diversion of “excess” Carmel River winter flows, as allowed under water rights 
permits issued by the State Water Resources Control Board, which is then treated and transmitted via the 
CalAm distribution system to specially-constructed injection/recovery wells, known as ASR wells, in the 
Seaside Groundwater Basin and injected under an authorization from the Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA). The excess water is diverted by CalAm wells only during periods when flows in the Carmel 
River exceed fisheries bypass flow requirements. After treatment to potable drinking water standards, 
water is then conveyed through CalAm’s distribution system to ASR facilities (injection wells) to recharge 
the over-pumped Seaside Groundwater Basin. Available storage capacity in the Seaside Groundwater 
Basin serves as an underground reservoir for the diverted water. Water is then pumped back out from the 
Seaside Groundwater Basin in dry periods to help reduce pumping-related impacts on the Carmel River. 
This “conjunctive use” more efficiently utilizes local water resources to improve the reliability of the 
community’s water supply while reducing the environmental impacts to the Carmel River and Seaside 
Groundwater Basins.   

This Addendum evaluates whether construction and operation of the proposed expansion of the 
backflush basin would result in a new significant impact, or an impact that is substantially more severe 
than the impacts disclosed in the ASR EIR/EA as amended. This Addendum is supported by Attachment 1, 
Initial Study Checklist for the Backflush Basin Expansion, which concludes the following in accordance 
with CEQA Guidelines Section 15464: 

• No new or previously unidentified adverse significant impacts would result from the construction 
and operation of the Backflush Basin Modification. 

EXHIBIT 16-A 231



Addendum No. 4 to the ASR EIR/EA  

Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 2 

 
 

• The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in a substantial increase in the severity 
of the impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA. 

MPWMD’s Board of Directors will consider this Addendum, along with the certified ASR EIR/EA and its 
Addenda, prior to making a decision on any approvals pertaining to the proposed Backflush Basin 
Expansion. 

II. PROJECT LOCATION 

The existing ASR backflush basin is located in the City of Seaside, southeast of the intersection of General 
Jim Moore Boulevard and Eucalyptus Road, in an area known as the Santa Margarita Site.  Figure 1. 
Location Map shows the location of the facility within the City of Seaside.   

III. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The project involves the expansion of the existing backflush basin to accommodate the increased 
backflush water from the existing ASR facility at Seaside Middle School and a planned ASR facility at Fitch 
Park. The Addendum to the MPWMD Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project Phase 1 EIR/EA dated April 
2012, identified a backflush pit at Seaside Middle School; this backflush pit was never built at the Middle 
School site.  Backflush water is conveyed from ASR Wells 3 and 4 located the Seaside Middle School site 
to the existing Santa Margarita backflush pit.  The Proposed Project would allow the backflush pit that 
was proposed at the Seaside Middle School to be built at the Santa Margarita site via an expansion of the 
existing backflush pit.  Additionally, CalAm is planning on construction ASR Wells 5 and 6 at the future 
Fitch Park site1.  Due to land constraint, a backflush basin cannot fit at that site and backflush water will 
be conveyed to the Santa Margarita site.  The Santa Margarita backflush basin is being expanded in lieu 
of constructing a separate 240,000-gallon backflush basin at Seaside Middle School and Fitch Park sites2. 
To accommodate the increased backflush water on a schedule that is operationally feasible, the backflush 
basin would be expanded to increase backflush capacity to approximately 750,000-gallon capacity.  

Other than providing additional capacity, the expansion of the backflush basin would not change 
operations of the ASR Project. The Santa Margarita site is currently 1.1 acres, MPWMD proposes to 
expand this site to approximately 1.9 acres. 

New and revised facilities are identified below based upon details from MPWMD and the basis of design 
information: 

• Grading and contouring to facilitate construction and improve access; 

• Second driveway on General Jim Moore Boulevard to facilitate Operations and Maintenance 
activities during construction and major maintenance activities; 

• Backflush basin expansion, as noted above; 

                                                           
1 ASR Wells 5 and 6 facilities are evaluated in the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project EIR.  
2 Draft ASR EIR/EA dated March 2006 identifies a 240,000-gallon backflush percolation pit, located in the southwest 
corner of the Santa Margarita site.  The terms backflush pit, backflush percolation pit and backflush basin are 
equivalent. 

EXHIBIT 16-A 232



Addendum No. 4 to the ASR EIR/EA  

Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 3 

 
 

• New frontage fence; and 

• Two new sound walls, not currently proposed, included in anticipation of future works. 

Together, these components comprise the Backflush Basin Expansion, or Proposed Project.  

Typical earth moving equipment will be used during construction of works including clearing and 
trenching.  All deleterious material and soil must remain onsite due to unexploded ordnance concerns. 

Construction is anticipated to begin in August 2018 and will last a maximum of four months. Construction 
will occur Monday through Friday from 7am to 7pm. 

It is estimated that four (4) workers will be required onsite during construction. They would generate eight 
(8) one-way trips per day. Materials and equipment will also be delivered to the site; however, these 
deliveries would be minimal (estimated to be about 5 deliveries for the duration of construction). 
Construction workers will access the site from the existing driveway and will park onsite. Traffic control 
will be required during the installation of the driveway. Traffic controls will include, at a minimum, 
measures to ensure safety of pedestrians and bicyclists on General Jim Moore Boulevard.   

IV. COMPARISON TO THE CONDITIONS LISTED IN CEQA GUIDELINES 

SECTION15162 

This Addendum has been prepared pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15164, which states: “A lead 
agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified EIR if some changes or 
additions are necessary but none of the conditions described in Section15162 calling for preparation of a 
subsequent EIR have occurred.” CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 establishes the following criteria for the 
preparation of a Supplemental EIR.  

1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the previous EIR 
or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; 

2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken 
which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement 
of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects; or 

3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been known 
with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as complete or the 
negative declaration was adopted, shows any of the following: 

a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR or negative 
declaration; 

b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in the 
previous EIR; 

c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible 
and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or 

EXHIBIT 16-A 233



Addendum No. 4 to the ASR EIR/EA  

Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 4 

 
 

d) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the 
previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but 
the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

The following discussion summarizes the reasons why a subsequent or supplemental EIR, pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, is not required in connection with approvals for the proposed Backflush 
Basin Expansion and why an addendum is appropriate. 

V. CHANGES TO THE PROJECT 

1. Project Background 
The ASR EIR/EA and its Addenda did not contemplate the Expansion of the Backflush Basin. The full ASR 
EIR/EA can be accessed on the MPWMD website, more specifically, online at the following address:  
http://www.mpwmd.net/wp-content/uploads/2015/08/MPWMD-Draft-EIR-EA-3-06.pdf  
 
Addendum No. 1 to that document can be found online at the following address: 
http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2012/20120416/16/item16_exh16b.pdf, Addendum 
No. 2 can be found here: http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2016/20160620/16/Item-16-
Exh-A.pdf, and Addendum No. 3 can be found here: http://www.mcwd.org/docs/agenda_minutes/2016-
04-18_board/Item%209-C%20-
%20FINAL%20PUBLIC%20REVIEW%20RUWAP%20Shared%20Pipeline%20Addendum_%20No3_March%
2020%20(2).pdf.   

2. Environmental Effects 
As detailed in Attachment 1, Initial Study Checklist for the Backflush Basin Expansion, the proposed 
Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant environmental effects that cannot be 
mitigated with existing, previously identified mitigation measures in the ASR EIR/EA and its Addenda. In 
addition, the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not substantially increase the severity of 
environmental effects identified in the ASR EIR/EA and its Addenda.   

3. New Information  
No new information of substantial importance has been identified or presented to MPWMD such that the 
ASR Project would result in: 1) significant environmental effects not identified in the ASR EIR/EA and its 
Addenda, or 2) more severe environmental effects than described in the ASR EIR/EA and its Addenda, or 
3) require mitigation measures which were previously determined not to be feasible, or mitigation 
measures that are considerably different from those recommended in the ASR EIR/EA and its Addenda.   

4. Conclusion 
Section 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines states that a lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an 
addendum to a previously certified EIR if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the 
conditions described in Section 15162 calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. Based 
on the information in this Addendum, MPWMD has determined that: 

EXHIBIT 16-A 234

http://www.mpwmd.net/wp-content/uploads/2015/08/MPWMD-Draft-EIR-EA-3-06.pdf
http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2012/20120416/16/item16_exh16b.pdf
http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2016/20160620/16/Item-16-Exh-A.pdf
http://www.mpwmd.net/asd/board/boardpacket/2016/20160620/16/Item-16-Exh-A.pdf
http://www.mcwd.org/docs/agenda_minutes/2016-04-18_board/Item%209-C%20-%20FINAL%20PUBLIC%20REVIEW%20RUWAP%20Shared%20Pipeline%20Addendum_%20No3_March%2020%20(2).pdf
http://www.mcwd.org/docs/agenda_minutes/2016-04-18_board/Item%209-C%20-%20FINAL%20PUBLIC%20REVIEW%20RUWAP%20Shared%20Pipeline%20Addendum_%20No3_March%2020%20(2).pdf
http://www.mcwd.org/docs/agenda_minutes/2016-04-18_board/Item%209-C%20-%20FINAL%20PUBLIC%20REVIEW%20RUWAP%20Shared%20Pipeline%20Addendum_%20No3_March%2020%20(2).pdf
http://www.mcwd.org/docs/agenda_minutes/2016-04-18_board/Item%209-C%20-%20FINAL%20PUBLIC%20REVIEW%20RUWAP%20Shared%20Pipeline%20Addendum_%20No3_March%2020%20(2).pdf


Addendum No. 4 to the ASR EIR/EA  

Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 5 

 
 

• No new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects would occur as a result of the construction and operation of the 
Backflush Basin Expansion; 

• No substantial changes have occurred or would occur with respect to the circumstances under 
which the ASR Project was originally undertaken, which would require major revisions to the 
previously certified ASR EIR/EA due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects 
or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

• No new information of substantial importance has been received or discovered, which was not 
known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the 
previous ASR EIR/EA and its Addenda were certified as complete.   

EXHIBIT 16-A 235



Figure

July 2018 Addendum No. 4 to the Aquifer Storage and Recovery EIR/EA
Backflush Basin Modifications

Location Map 1

_̂ Project Location

¯0 1.5 30.75 Miles

_̂

EXHIBIT 16-A 236



Figure

July 2018 Addendum No. 4 to the Aquifer Storage and Recovery EIR/EA
Backflush Basin Modifications

Proposed
Expansion Area

Existing 
Backflush Basin

Proposed 

Stockpile Area

Proposed 
Driveway

Pr
op

os
ed

 R
et

ain
in

g W
all

Proposed ASR-1
Sound Wall

Proposed ASR-2
Sound Wall ¯0 300 600150 Feet

Proposed Sound Wall

Existing Backflush Basin

Proposed Backflush Basin Expansion

Proposed Driveway

Proposed Grading Area

Proposed Retaining Wall

Note: Figure is not to scale, locations are approximate. 
See site plans prepared by MAC Design Associates for 
more detailed site drawings.

2Site Plan

EXHIBIT 16-A 237



Figure

July 2018 Addendum No. 4 to the Aquifer Storage and Recovery EIR/EA
Backflush Basin Modifications

Proposed 
Project 

Site

Seaside 
Middle 
School

Blackhorse 
Bayonet 

Golfcourse

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
J
im

 M
o
o
re

 B
o

u
le

v
a
rd

Eucalyptu
s R

oad

Former Fort OrdMission 
Memorial 

Park

Residential 

Residential 

¯0 2,200 4,4001,100 Feet

3Surrounding Land Uses

EXHIBIT 16-A 238



Backflush Basin Expansion   

Denise Duffy and Associates    

 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 

INITIAL STUDY CHECKLIST FOR THE BACKFLUSH BASIN EXPANSION TO 

SUPPORT ADDENDUM NO. 4 TO THE ASR EIR/EA 

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 239



Backflush Basin Expansion   

Denise Duffy and Associates    

 

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 240



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 1 

 

I. PROJECT DATA 

Project Title: Backflush Basin Expansion  

Lead Agency Name and Address: Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD), 5 Harris 
Court, Building G, Monterey, CA 93940, Mailing Address is: PO Box 85, Monterey, CA 93942-0085 

Contact Person and Phone Number: Maureen Hamilton, (831) 658-5622 

Project Proponents: Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD)  

Project Location: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would be located at the existing Santa 
Margarita ASR Site, which is southeast of the intersection of General Jim Moore Boulevard and 
Eucalyptus Road in the City of Seaside. 

City of Seaside General Plan Designation: Low Density Single Family Residential1

Zoning: Single Family Residential (RS-8) 

Project Description: MPWMD proposes to expand the existing Backflush Basin to a capacity of 750,000 
gallons. In addition, the following site modification will be made in connection with the Backflush Basin 
expansion:  

• Grading and contouring to facilitate construction and improve access; 

• Second driveway on General Jim Moore Boulevard to facilitate Operations and Maintenance 
activities during construction and major maintenance activities; 

• Backflush basin expansion, as noted above; 

• New frontage fence; and 

• Two new sound walls; not currently proposed, included in anticipation of future works. 

Together, these components comprise the Backflush Basin Expansion, or Proposed Project.  

Surrounding Land Uses: 

• North: Eucalyptus Road followed by open space 

• South: Open space  

• East: Open space  

• West: General Jim Moore Boulevard followed by residential and a cemetery   

  

                                                           
1 This parcel is currently designated as Low Density Single Family Residential in the 2003 Seaside General Plan, 
however, it is designated as “Future Specific Plan’” in Figure 6. General Plan Designations in the Draft Seaside 2040 
General Plan. The Final Seaside 2040 General Plan is expected to be released in late 2018.    

EXHIBIT 16-A 241



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 2 

 

II. ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED 

All of the following environmental factors identified below are discussed within Section III. Evaluation of 
Environmental Impacts. Those that are checked were found to be areas that the full implementation of 
the proposed Backflush Basin Modification may significantly impact without mitigation. Sources used for 
analysis of environmental effects are listed in Section IV. References. 

☐Aesthetics ☐Agricultural Resources ☐Air Quality 

☐Biological Resources ☒Cultural Resources ☐Geology and Soils 

☐Greenhouse Gas Emissions ☒Hazards and Hazardous Materials ☐Hydrology and Water Quality 

☐Land Use and Planning ☐Mineral Resources ☐Noise 

☐Population and Housing ☐Public Services  ☐Recreation 

☐Transportation and Traffic ☐Utilities and Service Systems ☐Mandatory Findings of Significance 

III. EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS  

1. Aesthetics 

EXISTING SETTING 

The existing site is located in a disturbed area, south east of the intersection of General Jim Moore 
Boulevard and Eucalyptus Road in the City of Seaside.  The Proposed Project site is not visible from 
Highway 1 or located near a designated scenic vista. The Proposed Project site is located on the Former 
Fort Ord. The existing Santa Margarita site is a water infrastructure facility. The surrounding area is 
primarily open space. The visual quality of the site is considered medium, as it is surrounding primarily by 
open space which is characteristic of the region’s natural visual amenities. The overall visual sensitivity of 
the site is considered low, as there are existing water infrastructure facilities within the Proposed Project 
site.  

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not 
limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within 
a state scenic highway? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality 
of the site and its surroundings? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would 
adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

EXHIBIT 16-A 242



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 3 

 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA identified less than significant impacts related to scenic views, degradation of 
visual character, creation of light and glare during construction activities, and alteration of existing 
visual character. The ASR EIR/EA identified a significant impact resulting from creation of new 
light and glare associated with well operation that would be reduced to less than significant with 
implementation of Mitigation Measure VIS-3: Incorporate Light-Reduction Measures into the Plan 
and Design of Exterior Lighting at Well Site.   

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA also identified a potentially significant impact would result 
from implementation of ASR Phase 2 related to the creation of new light and glare at the well site, 
however, this impact would be reduced to less than significant with the implementation of 
Mitigation Measure VIS-3: Incorporate Light-Reduction Measures into the Plan and Design of 
Exterior Lighting at Well Site.   

• Addendum No. 2 to the ARS EIR/EA did not identify any potentially significant aesthetic impacts 
related to the construction and operation of the Hilby Pump Station.    

• Addendum No. 3 to the ARS EIR/EA did not identify any additional potentially significant aesthetic 
impacts related to the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment.    

DISCUSSION  

Construction of the Backflush Basin Expansion would last approximately four months.  The stockpiled soil4 
generated by excavation of the backflush basin expansion and contouring of the site, the fence, and the 
sound walls, would be the above ground components of the Proposed Project that would be visible from 
a public right of way after construction.  

a, b) Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion are not located within a scenic 
highway corridor. The Proposed Project site is located in an area that offers a scenic vista of the Former 
Fort Ord to the east, which contains rolling hills vegetated with coastal chaparral.  

The soil stockpile would be approximately five (5) feet in height and would be located behind the existing 
electrical building. The soil stockpile is likely to become revegetated with local plant species over time. 
The proposed fence would be less than ten (10) feet in height and has been designed in consultation with 
City of Seaside staff for attractiveness and aesthetic compatibility with future land use.  The fence would 
be minimally visible to motorists and pedestrians traveling on General Jim Moore Boulevard due to the 
topography of the site. The sound walls would be up to sixteen feet in height. They would be set back a 
distance from General Jim Moore Boulevard.  The final height and material of the proposed sound walls 
would be approved by the City of Seaside prior to their construction. The proposed concrete driveway 
and clearing of low-lying vegetation would be located at ground level and would therefore be minimally 
visible from motorist and pedestrians traveling on General Jim Moore Boulevard. For these reasons the 
Proposed Project will have a less than significant impact to scenic vista and scenic resources.     

c) Less than Significant Impact. The Backflush Basin Expansion would result in minimal changes to the 
visual character of the proposed site, as the existing site is currently disturbed and contains water 
infrastructure facilities.   The proposed modifications would result in a maximum disturbed area of 1.9 
acres during construction. After construction is complete, minimal change to the visual character of the 

                                                           
4 Due to the potential for hazardous materials within excavated soil, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) requires 
that all soil generated onsite must remain on the parcel.  

EXHIBIT 16-A 243



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 4 

 

site will be evident, as the expansion of the backflush basin does not involve any above-ground structures. 
This impact is considered to be less than significant.    

d) No Impact. The Proposed Project would not introduce any new sources of light and glare, as no new 
lighting is proposed as part of the project. The Backflush Basin Expansion would have no impact on day or 
nighttime views due to light or glare.   

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to aesthetic resources.   

2. Agricultural Resources 

EXISTING SETTING 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion and its surrounding area do not contain agricultural or forest 
lands.   

CHECKLIST 

In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are 
significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the 
California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment 
Model (1997) prepared by the California Dept. of Conservation 
as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture 
and farmland. In determining whether impacts to forest 
resources, including timberland, are significant environmental 
effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled by the 
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding 
the state’s inventory of forest land, including the Forest and 
Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment 
project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided 
in Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources 
Board. Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of 
Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps 
prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 
Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural 
use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a 
Williamson Act contract? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest 
land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), 
timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), 
or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by 
Government Code section 51104(g))? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to 
non-forest use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due 
to their location or nature, could result in conversion of 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

EXHIBIT 16-A 244



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 5 

 

In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are 
significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the 
California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment 
Model (1997) prepared by the California Dept. of Conservation 
as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture 
and farmland. In determining whether impacts to forest 
resources, including timberland, are significant environmental 
effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled by the 
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding 
the state’s inventory of forest land, including the Forest and 
Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment 
project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided 
in Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources 
Board. Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to 
non-forest use? 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• No impacts to agricultural resources were identified in the ASR EIR/EA. 

• No impacts to agricultural resources were identified in Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA 
resulting from the implementation of ASR Phase 2.  

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any potentially significant impacts to 
agricultural resources resulting from the construction and operation of the Hilby Pump Station.  

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any potentially significant impacts to 
agricultural resources related to the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment.  

DISCUSSION  

a-e) No Impact. The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site and its surrounding area do not contain 
agricultural or forest lands. The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not convert prime, unique, or 
farmland of statewide importance to non-agricultural use or involve any other changes that would result 
in the conversion of farmland, impact a Williamson Act contract, or disrupt any agricultural operations 
(Monterey County, 2010a). The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not convert forest land or 
timberland or involve any other changes that would result in the conversion or loss of forest land.  

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to agricultural resources.   

3. Air Quality 

EXISTING SETTING 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would be located in the North Central Coast Air Basin (Air Basin). 
The Air Basin covers an area of 5,159 square miles along the central coast of California and is generally 
bounded by the Monterey Bay to the west, the Santa Cruz Mountains to the northwest, the Diablo Range 
on the northeast (Denise Duffy and Associates, 2015). 

EXHIBIT 16-A 245



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 6 

 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion area typically has average maximum and minimum winter (i.e., 
January) temperatures of 60 degrees Fahrenheit (ºF) and 43 ºF, respectively, while average summer (i.e., 
July) maximum and minimum temperatures are 68 ºF and 52 ºF, respectively. The proposed Backflush 
Basin Expansion site is within close proximity to the coast with temperature variations that are relatively 
moderate. Precipitation in the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site averages approximately 20 inches 
per year (Denise Duffy and Associates, 2015). 

The Monterey Bay Air Resources District (MBARD) is the regional agency tasked with managing air quality 
in the region. Existing levels of air pollutants in the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion area can generally 
be inferred from ambient air quality measurements conducted by MBARD at its closest station, the Salinas 
#3 monitoring station, located in the City of Salinas, east of East Laurel Drive and south of Constitution 
Boulevard. Data monitored at this station shows that although the area currently does not meet state 
standards for ozone, the number of days per year in exceedance of ozone standards has been decreasing, 
and the region is on course to meet these standards in the future.  

CHECKLIST 

Where available, the significance criteria established by the 
applicable air quality management or air pollution control 
district may be relied upon to make the following 
determinations. Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air 
quality plan? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to 
an existing or projected air quality violation? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any 
criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment 
under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard 
(including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative 
thresholds for ozone precursors)? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant 
concentrations? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of 
people? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA identified less than significant impacts during construction due to short-term 
emissions of PM10, exposures of sensitive receptors (e.g. Seaside Middle School) to elevated 
health risks from exposure to diesel particulates, and exposure of sensitive receptors to acrolein 
health hazards. No significant operational air quality impacts were identified.   

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts related to air quality 
resulting from construction or operation of ASR Phase 2. 

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA identified a potentially significant impact related to the 
exposure of sensitive receptors to pollutants during construction of the Hilby Pump Station. This 
impact could be mitigated to a less than significant level with the implementation of Mitigation 

EXHIBIT 16-A 246



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 7 

 

Measure AQ-1: Construction Fugitive Dust Control Plan5 from the Pure Water Monterey Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Plan.  

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts related to air quality 
resulting from the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment. 

DISCUSSION  

Emissions would be generated during construction of the Backflush Basin Expansion from the operation 
of construction equipment and site grading. No additional emissions would result from operation of the 
Proposed Project, as no additional mechanical or electrical equipment is necessary to operate the 
expanded backflush basin.   

a) Less than Significant Impact: CEQA Guidelines Section15125(b) requires that a project is evaluated for 
consistency with applicable regional plans, including the Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP). The 
MBARD is required to update their AQMP once every three years; the most recent update (MBARD, 2017) 
was approved in March of 2017. This plan addresses attainment of the State ozone standard and federal 
air quality standard. The AQMP accommodates growth by projecting growth in emissions based on 
population forecasts prepared by the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) and other 
indicators. Consistency determinations are issued for commercial, industrial, residential, and 
infrastructure related projects that have the potential to induce population growth. A project is 
considered inconsistent with the AQMP if it has not been accommodated in the forecast projections 
considered in the AQMP. The Proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not cause and/or otherwise 
induce population growth. In addition, due to lack of operational emissions, it would not cause any long-
term adverse air quality affects. As a result, the Proposed Project would not conflict with and/or otherwise 
obstruct the implementation of MBARD’s AQMP. For these reasons. the Proposed Project would have a 
less than significant impact related to conflicts with air quality plans.   

b, c) Less than Significant Impact: The MBARD 2016 CEQA Air Quality Guidelines (Guidelines) contains 
standards of significance for evaluating potential air quality effects of projects subject to the requirements 
of CEQA. According to MBARD, a project will not have a significant air quality effect on the environment, 
if the following criteria are met: 

Construction of the project will:  

• Emit (from all sources, including exhaust and fugitive dust) less than;  
o 137 pounds per day of oxides of nitrogen (NOx);  
o 137 pounds per day of reactive organic gases (ROG);  
o 82 pounds per day of respirable particulate matter (PM10);  
o 55 pounds per day of fine particulate matter (PM2.5); and,  
o 550 pounds per day carbon monoxide (CO). 

Operation of the project will:  

                                                           
5 Addenda No. 2 and No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA were joint documents that amended both the ASR EIR/EA and the Pure 
Water Monterey Groundwater Replenishment Project (PWM) EIR. For this reason, mitigation measures from the 
PWM EIR were used to mitigate impacts resulting from those projects. However, the Proposed Backflush Basin 
Expansion covered under this Addendum are not subject to the PWM EIR or associated with this project; mitigation 
measures from the PWM EIR are not applicable to the Proposed Backflush Basin Expansion.   

EXHIBIT 16-A 247



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 8 

 

• Emit (from all project sources, mobile, area, and stationary) less than;  
o 137 pounds per day of oxides of nitrogen (NOx)  
o 137 pounds per day of reactive organic gases (ROG)  
o 82 pounds per day of PM10  
o 55 pounds per day of PM2.5 
o 550 pounds per day carbon monoxide (CO)  

• Not cause or contribute to a violation of any California or National Ambient Air Quality Standard;  

• Not result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for with the 
project region is non-attainment;  

• Not exceed the health risk public notification thresholds adopted by the MBARD;  

• Not create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people; and,  

• Be consistent with the adopted federal and state Air Quality Plans (MBAPCD, 2016). 

The MBARD CEQA Guidelines for evaluating impacts during construction state that if a project generates 
less than 82lb/day of PM10 emissions, the project is considered to have less than significant impacts (see 
Table 5-1, MBARD, 2016). The Guidelines also state that a project will result in less than significant impacts 
if daily ground-disturbing activities entail less than 8.1 acres of minimal earthmoving, or less than 2.2 acres 
of grading and excavation. Construction projects below these acreage thresholds would be below the 
applicable MBARD 82 lb/day threshold of significance and would constitute a less-than-significant effect 
for the purposes of CEQA (MBARD, 2016). The construction area of the Backflush Basin Expansion is 
approximately 1.9 acres, however, construction activities at any given time would occur on much less than 
1.9 acres. Construction of the Backflush Basin Expansion would be below the threshold of 2.2 acres of 
daily grading.  As a result, the Proposed Project would result in a less than significant construction-related 
air quality effect. 

 The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would result in temporary increases in emissions of inhalable 
particulates (PM2.5 and PM10), VOC, and NOx associated with construction-related activities, see Table 
1. Construction Air Pollutant Emissions for the Backflush Basin Expansion below for detailed information 
on these emissions. See Attachment 2, Air Quality and GHG Calculations Spreadsheets for more 
information. Construction-related fugitive dust emissions associated with the proposed Backflush Basin 
Expansion would be generated from the Proposed Project site grading and construction. In addition to 
construction-related fugitive dust, exhaust emissions associated with construction vehicles and 
equipment would also be generated.  

The construction emissions generated by the Modifications would not overlap with construction of other 
components of the ASR Project because all physical components of that project have already have been 
constructed, therefore the emission associated with the construction of the Backflush Basin Expansion 
would not add to the construction emissions of the ASR Project, and would not increase the severity of 
Impacts AQ-1, AQ-2, AQ-3, AQ-4, or AQ-5 identified in the ASR EIR/EA. Construction of the Backflush Basin 
Expansion would last from August 2018 through October 2018. As shown in Table 1. Construction Air 
Pollutant Emissions for the Backflush Basin Expansion, construction of the Proposed Project would not 
exceed MBARD thresholds for emissions.   

EXHIBIT 16-A 248



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 9 

 

Table 1. Construction Air Pollutant Emissions for the Backflush Basin Expansion 

 Emissions in Pounds/Day 

 NOx PM2.5 PM10 ROG 

Significance Threshold (MBARD) 137* 55 82 137* 

Emissions generated by the Backflush Basin Expansion 0.5 0.1 0.2 0.0 

Exceed Threshold?   No No No No 

Emissions Source: Attachment 2, Air Quality and GHG Calculations Spreadsheets  
Significance Threshold Source: MBARD, 2016 
* Applies to non-typical construction equipment (i.e., well drilling) MBARD has identified that construction projects using 
typical construction equipment such as dump trucks, scrapers, bulldozers, compactors and front-end loaders that 
temporarily emit precursors of ozone (i.e., VOC or NOx), are accommodated in the emission inventories of State- and 
federally-required air plans. Temporary emissions associated with the operation of construction equipment have been 
accommodated in State- and federally-required air plans 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in a new or substantially more severe significant 
impact due to air quality emissions during operations.  Based upon the minimal level of operational 
emissions, operation of the Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in emissions that would result in 
any new significant impacts or cause an increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR 
EIR/EA based on an exceedance or violation of the applicable air quality standards.   

d) Less than Significant Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would be located on Fort Ord 
Reuse Authority (FORA) owned property, which is currently occupied with similar facilities. The nearest 
sensitive receptors to the site are approximately 190 feet to the west of the proposed driveway.  The 
Proposed Project may create temporary construction dust given the proximity of the nearest residences. 
Implementation of the following standard construction best management practices (BMPs) would 
minimize temporary emissions from construction: 

• Water all active construction areas as required with non-potable sources to the extent feasible; 
frequency should be based on the type of operation, soil, and wind exposure and minimized to 
prevent wasteful use of water and non-stormwater runoff. 

• Prohibit grading activities during periods of high wind (over 15 mph). 

• Cover all trucks hauling soil, sand, and other loose materials and require trucks to maintain at 
least 2 feet of freeboard. 

• Hand sweep daily within paved areas.  

• Sweep streets daily (with water sweepers) if visible soil material is carried onto adjacent public 
streets. 

• Enclose, cover, or water daily exposed stockpiles (dirt, sand, aggregate, etc.). 

• Replant vegetation in disturbed areas as quickly as possible. 

• Provide stabilized construction entrances/exits to limit sediment tracking from the site. 

With implementation of the above BMPs, construction of the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would 
result in a less than significant impact to sensitive receptors. 

e) No Impact. No substantial odors would be emitted from the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site 
based upon the type of construction activities and project operations proposed. 

EXHIBIT 16-A 249



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 10 

 

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to air quality resources.   

4. Biological Resources 

EXISTING SETTING 

The proposed Backflush Basin Modification site is located on the Former Fort Ord on a site referred to as 
the Santa Margarita Site. Vegetation clearing, grading and excavation activities in support of the Backflush 
Basin Expansion would result in the modification/removal of two habitat types associated with the Santa 
Margarita Site. For the purposes of evaluation of biological resources, the total area of vegetation 
modification or removal is 0.9 acres6 (0.5 acres of maritime chaparral and 0.4 of ruderal vegetation).  

Maritime Chaparral 

Maritime chaparral is a shrub community dominated by moderate to low-growing evergreen and drought-
deciduous shrubs adapted to shallow soils and periodic fires. The characteristic shrub species on the 
Proposed Project site include woollyleaf manzanita (Arctostaphylos tomentosa), chamise (Adenostoma 
fasciculata), deer broom (Acmispon glaber), bush monkeyflower (Mimulus aurantiacus), black sage (Salvia 
mellifera), and Monterey ceanothus (Ceanothus cuneatus var. rigidus). Several bird species feed and nest 
in chaparral habitat including orange-crowned warbler (Vermivora celata), spotted towee (Pipilo 
maculatus), California thrasher (Toxostoma redivivum), and California quail (Callipepla californica) (Zeiner 
et al. 1990a). Mammals such as brush rabbit (Sylvilagus bachmani), California mouse (Peromyscus 
californicus) and brush mouse (P. boylii) will forage and find cover in dense chaparral, whereas narrow-
faced kangaroo rat (Dipodomys venustus) and Heerman’s kangaroo rat (D. heermanni) will use sparsely 
vegetated openings within thick vegetation (Zeiner et al., 1990b). These small mammals are preyed upon 
by gray fox (Urocyon cinereoargenteus), bobcat (Felis rufus), spotted skunk (Spilogale gracilis), and 
western rattlesnake (Crotalis viridis) (Zeiner et al. 1988, 1990b). Chaparral also provides important 
foraging habitat and cover for black-tailed deer (Odocoileus hemionus). Approximately 0.5 acres of 
maritime chaparral will be permanently removed from the Proposed Project site. 

Ruderal Vegetation 

A second plant community, ruderal vegetation, occurs between the fenced boundary between the former 
Fort Ord lands and residential area of Seaside and General Jim Moore Boulevard within the existing 
buckflush basin and between the maritime chaparral and development associated with the City of 
Seaside. The ruderal community is disturbed and dominated by dense common Hottentot fig (Carpobrotus 
edulis). Approximately 0.4 acres of ruderal vegetation will be permanently removed from the Proposed 
Project site. 

                                                           
6 As previously stated in this document, the total potential area of disturbance is the entire Santa Margarita site, 
which is 1.9 acres. 

EXHIBIT 16-A 250



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 11 

 

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through 
habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, 
policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish 
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or 
other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional 
plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of 
Fish and Game or US Fish and Wildlife Service? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected 
wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 
(including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or 
other means? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native 
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established 
native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use 
of native wildlife nursery sites? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting 
biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or 
ordinance? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat 
Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or 
other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation 
plan? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA identified less than significant impacts for removal and destruction of sensitive 
vegetation and potential direct mortality or disturbance of protected animal species. The ASR 
EIR/EA identified significant impacts related to potential disturbance of the Fort Ord Natural 
Resource Management Area (NRMA) and potential loss of nest trees and disturbance or mortality 
of migratory birds. Mitigation Measures BIO-1: Minimize or Prevent Disturbance to Adjacent 
NMRA and BIO-2: Remove Trees and Shrubs during the Nonbreeding Season for Most Birds 
(September 1 To February 15) was identified and implemented to reduce impacts to a less than 
significant level. The ASR EIR/EA noted that the ASR Project has the potential to affect special 
status aquatic species within the river corridor of the Carmel River, but has been designed to 
minimize any adverse impacts. Mitigation Measures AR-1: Conduct Annual Survey Below River 
Mile 5.5 and Monitor River Flow in January-June Period, and AR-2: Cooperate to help develop a 
Project to Maintain, Recover, or Increase Storage in Los Padres Reservoir and If Needed, Continue 
Funding Program to Rescue and Rea Isolated Juveniles were identified in the ASR EIR/EA in 
association with potential impacts to flows for upstream migration and potential impacts to 
juvenile steelhead rearing habitat. Potential benefits to steelhead and California red-legged frog 

EXHIBIT 16-A 251



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 12 

 

include the reduction of groundwater pumping along the Carmel River in the dry summer months 
from the use of the Seaside Groundwater Basin for municipal supply. The net effect of these 
operational changes will likely increase streamflow and improve environmental conditions along 
the Carmel River. Thus, the ASR EIR/EA concluded that the ASR Project would be beneficial to 
steelhead and the California red-legged frog.   

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts to biological resources 
resulting from implementation of ASR Phase 2. 

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA identified a potentially significant impact during construction 
of the Hilby Pump Station related to impacts to Monterey spine flower, a federally threatened 
species. This impact could be reduced to less than significant levels with the implementation of 
Mitigation Measure BT-1a: Implement Construction Best Management Practices from the Pure 
Water Monterey Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan.     

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA identified a potentially significant impact resulting from 
impacts to nesting birds during construction of the Monterey Pipeline. This impact could be 
mitigated to less than significant levels with the implementation of Mitigation Measures BT-1a: 
Implement Construction Best Management Practices, BT-1k: Conduct Pre-Construction Surveys for 
Protected Avian Species, including, but not limited to, white-tailed kite and California horned lark, 
and, BT-1m: Minimize Effects of Nighttime Construction Lighting from the Pure Water Monterey 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan.  

DISCUSSION  

a) Less than Significant Impact: Vegetation removal for construction of the Backflush Basin Modification 
would result in the permanent loss of approximately 0.5 acres of maritime chaparral and 0.4 acres of 
ruderal vegetation.   

Construction of the expanded backflush basin, driveway and fence has the potential to result in direct 
mortality or disturbance of California horned lizard and would result in permanent loss of approximately 
0.9 acre of habitat capable of supporting California horned lizard. Although this species is known to occur 
on the former Fort Ord in small numbers (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 1992), it is common throughout 
the southern portion of the Central Coast Range and occurs in fair numbers throughout the rest of its 
range in California (Jennings and Hayes, 1994). Because the status of the California horned lizard in the 
region is relatively abundant, and because a very small area of habitat will be affected, and the species is 
unlikely to occur in significant numbers in this small area, this impact is considered less than significant. 

Construction of the expanded backflush basin, driveway, and fence would result in permanent loss of up 
to 0.9 acre of habitat potentially containing Monterey spineflower, Sandmat manzanita, Eastwood’s 
goldenbush, and Kellogg’s horkelia. These species are scattered across the project site the actual area of 
plant disturbance cannot be determined. However, the plants are not distributed uniformly across the 
project site, so the impact would probably be less than 0.9 acre. These impacts are considered less than 
significant, because the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) has determined that development 
of the borderland development areas would not have a substantial adverse effect on the populations at 
Fort Ord, if the Habitat Management Plan (HMP) is implemented. The HMP establishes guidelines for the 
conservation and management of species and habitats on former Fort Ord lands by identifying lands that 
are available for development, lands that have some restrictions with development, and habitat reserve 
areas. 

EXHIBIT 16-A 252



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 13 

 

Construction of the expanded backflush basin, driveway, and fence has the potential to result in direct 
mortality or disturbance of black legless lizard and would result in permanent loss of approximately 0.9 
acre of habitat capable of supporting black legless lizard. Direct mortality of black legless lizards and the 
permanent loss of habitat would be considered a significant impact because the subspecies is rare in 
California, with a distribution that is restricted to coastal areas in the Monterey Bay region (Stebbins 
2003). However, development and implementation of the HMP has provided adequate mitigation for 
potential impacts to the black legless lizard.  Therefore, this impact is less than significant.  

Maritime chaparral present within and surrounding the Proposed Project site that provide suitable nesting 
habitat for migratory birds. Construction or removal of nest trees and shrubs during the nesting period 
for migratory birds could result in nest abandonment and death of young or loss of reproductive potential 
at active nests located in the Proposed Project site. Impacts on migratory birds would be considered 
adverse if the subsequent population decline was large and affected the viability of the local population. 
Because only a small area of habitat (shrubs within approximately 0.5 acre) will be impacted by the 
Proposed Project, impacts on migratory birds are considered less than significant.  

In order to avoid violation of California Fish and Game Code Sections 3503 (active bird nests), a pre-
construction survey by a qualified biologist for active nests would be conducted prior to construction.  A 
qualified biologist shall be retained by the project proponents to conduct pre-construction surveys for 
nesting raptors and other protected avian species where nesting habitat is identified and within a suitable 
buffer area if construction commences between February 15 and September 1. Pre-construction surveys 
shall be conducted no more than 14 days prior to the start of construction activities during the early part 
of the breeding season (February through April) and no more than 30 days prior to the initiation of these 
activities during the late part of the breeding season (May through August). Because some bird species 
nest early in spring and others nest later in summer, surveys for nesting birds may be required to continue 
during construction to address new arrivals, and because some species breed multiple times in a season. 
The necessity and timing of these continued surveys shall be determined by the qualified biologist based 
on review of the final construction plans.  If active raptor or other protected avian species nests are 
identified during the preconstruction surveys, the qualified biologist shall notify the project proponents 
and an appropriate no-disturbance buffer shall be imposed within which no construction activities or 
disturbance shall take place until the young have fledged and are no longer reliant upon the nest or 
parental care for survival, as determined by a qualified biologist. 

Construction of the expanded backflush basin, driveway, and fence has the potential to result in direct 
mortality or disturbance of Monterey dusky-footed woodrat and would result in permanent loss of 
approximately 0.5 acre of habitat capable of supporting Monterey dusky-footed woodrat. Direct mortality 
of Monterey dusky-footed woodrat and the permanent and temporary loss of habitat would be 
considered a significant impact because the species is rare in California, with a distribution that is 
restricted to appropriate habitat in two California counties (CNDDB, 2005b). However, development and 
implementation of the HMP has provided adequate mitigation for potential impacts to the dusky-footed 
woodrat.  

b) Less than Significant Impact: Construction of the expanded backflush basin, driveway, and fence would 
result in permanent loss of up to 0.5 acre of maritime chaparral. The project site is within the area 
designated for development under the Fort Ord HMP, which mitigates for the loss of maritime chaparral 
habitat through implementation of the Natural Resource Management Area (NRMA). This is consistent 
with the Draft ASR EIR/EA. Therefore, this impact is considered less than significant. 

EXHIBIT 16-A 253



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 14 

 

c) No Impact: There are no federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 
within the Proposed Project site therefore there are no impacts to this sensitive habitat as a result of the 
construction of the Backflush Basin Expansion. 

d) No Impact: With the possible exception of nesting birds and raptors addressed in a) above, the project 
will not substantially interfere with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors or impede the use of native 
wildlife nursery sites. 

e, f) Less than Significant Impact: The proposed ASR Expansion would not conflict with local policies 
protecting biological resources. No tree removal would be associated with the Proposed Project. The 
Project site is located within the boundaries of the adopted HMP and is being constructed in compliance 
with the Conditions of the HMP. This is consistent with the Draft ASR EIR/EA. 

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to biological resources.   

5. Cultural Resources 

EXISTING SETTING 

A records search at the Northwest Information Venter of the California Historical Resources Information 
System (CHRIS) was conducted in 2005 as part of the preparation of the ASR EIR/EA. A review of all of the 
archaeological sites and surveys within 0.5 mile of the site, historical maps, and the Historic Resources 
Index was performed. Additionally, historic maps for the site, the National Register of Historic Places, and 
the California Register of Historical Resources were consulted. The records search at CHRIS did not result 
in the identification of any previously recorded prehistoric or historic resources within 0.5 mile of the site. 
The closest prehistoric archaeological site, CA-MNT-699, is located in the coastal dunes.   

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a 
historical resource as defined in § 15064.5? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an 
archaeological resource pursuant to § 15064.5? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological 
resource or site or unique geologic feature? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside 
of dedicated cemeteries? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

EXHIBIT 16-A 254



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 15 

 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA found a potentially significant impact due to the potential for discovery of buried 
unknown cultural deposits and human remains during construction activities; however, 
Mitigation Measures CR-1: Stop Work If Buried Cultural Deposits Are Encountered during 
Construction Activities and CR-2: Stop Work If Human Remains are Encountered during 
Construction Activities, were presented and adopted to reduce potential impacts to a less than 
significant level.  

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR/EA came to the same conclusion as the ASR EIR/EA. Potentially 
significant impacts could result from the potential for discovery of buried unknown cultural 
deposits and human remains during construction activities. These impacts could be reduced to 
less than significant with the implementation of Mitigation Measures CR-1: Stop Work If Buried 
Cultural Deposits Are Encountered during Construction Activities and CR-2: Stop Work If Human 
Remains are Encountered during Construction Activities. 

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR ER/EA also identified a potentially significant impact during 
construction of the Hilby Pump Station due to the potential for discovery of buried unknown 
cultural deposits and human remains during construction activities. These impacts could be 
reduced to less than significant with the implementation of Mitigation Measures CR-1: Stop Work 
If Buried Cultural Deposits Are Encountered during Construction Activities and CR-2: Stop Work If 
Human Remains are Encountered during Construction Activities. 

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA identified also identified a potentially significant impact during 
construction of the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment due to the potential for discovery of buried 
unknown cultural deposits and human remains during construction activities. These impacts could 
be reduced to less than significant with the implementation of Mitigation Measures CR-1: Stop 
Work If Buried Cultural Deposits Are Encountered during Construction Activities and CR-2: Stop 
Work If Human Remains are Encountered during Construction Activities. 

DISCUSSION 

a) No Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not impact historic resources; there are no 
documented historical resources on the Proposed Project site or in the vicinity.  

b) Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation: Ground disturbing activities could potentially unearth 
unknown archaeological resources. However, the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion area has previously 
been surveyed for nearby and adjacent projects, and there is a low possibility of archaeological resources 
to be present at the Proposed Project site. While previously unknown or buried archaeological resources 
are not anticipated to be encountered during project construction, the implementation of Mitigation 
Measures CR-1: Stop Work If Buried Cultural Deposits Are Encountered during Construction and CR-2: 
Stop Work If Human Remains Are Encountered during Construction Activities, previously approved as 
part of the ASR EIR/EA and described below, would ensure that potential impacts due to the discovery of 
previously unknown archaeological resources would be less than significant. As a result, the Backflush 
Basin Expansion would not result in any new or substantially more severe significant impacts beyond those 
identified in the ASR EIR/EA. No additional mitigation would be necessary beyond those measures already 
identified and provided below. 

c) No Impact: Based on lack of previously identified paleontological resources on the site or in the vicinity, 
there are no known paleontological resources on the Backflush Basin Modification site that would be 
disturbed by implementation of the Proposed Project. 

EXHIBIT 16-A 255



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 16 

 

d) Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation: Implementation of the Backflush Basin Expansion would 
not be expected to disturb human remains based upon lack of previously identified human remains on 
the site and in the vicinity. In the unlikely event that human remains are discovered during earthmoving 
activities, Mitigation Measures CR-1: Stop Work If Buried Cultural Deposits Are Encountered during 
Construction and CR-2: Stop Work If Human Remains Are Encountered during Construction Activities, 
previously approved as part of the ASR EIR/EA and described below, would reduce the potential impact 
to a less than significant level, included in Attachment 4. The Proposed Project would not result in any 
new or more severe significant impacts than those identified in the ASR EIR/EA. No additional mitigation 
would be necessary beyond those identified. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 

Mitigation Measure CR-1: Stop Work If Buried Cultural Deposits Are Encountered during Construction 
Activities.  

If buried cultural resources such as chipped stone or groundstone, historic debris, building foundations, 
or human bone are inadvertently discovered during ground-disturbing activities, the construction 
contractor will stop work in that area and within a 100-foot radius of the find until a qualified archaeologist 
can assess the significance of the find and, if necessary, develop appropriate treatment measures. 
Treatment measures typically include avoidance strategies or mitigation of impacts through data recovery 
programs such as excavation or detailed documentation. 

Mitigation Measure CR-2: Stop Work If Human Remains Are Encountered during Construction Activities.  

If human skeletal remains are encountered, the construction contractor will notify CalAm and the county 
coroner immediately. CalAm will ensure the construction specifications include this order. 

If the county coroner determines that the remains are Native American, the coroner will be required to 
contact the NAHC (pursuant to Section 7050.5 [c] of the California Health and Safety Code) and the County 
Coordinator of Indian Affairs. A qualified archaeologist will also be contacted immediately. 

If human remains are discovered in any location other than a dedicated cemetery, there will be no further 
excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent human 
remains until: 

• the coroner of the county has been informed and has determined that no investigation of the 
cause of death is required; and 

• if the remains are of Native American origin: 
o the descendants from the deceased Native Americans have made a recommendation to 

the landowner or the person responsible for the excavation work for means of treating 
or disposing of with appropriate dignity the human remains, and any associated grave 
goods as provided in Public Resources Code Section 5097.98; or 

o the NAHC was unable to identify a descendent or the descendent failed to make a 
recommendation within 24 hours after being notified by the commission. 

According to the California Health and Safety Code, six or more human burials at one location constitute 
a cemetery (Section 8100), and disturbance of Native American cemeteries is a felony (Section 7052). 
Section 7050.5 requires that construction or excavation be stopped in the vicinity of discovered human 

EXHIBIT 16-A 256



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 17 

 

remains until the coroner can determine whether the remains are those of a Native American. If the 
remains are determined to be Native American, the coroner must contact the NAHC. 

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to cultural resources. 
Because the Modifications could potentially contribute to previously identified significant impacts to 
unknown cultural resources, Mitigation Measures CR-1: Stop Work If Buried Cultural Deposits Are 
Encountered during Construction and CR-2: Stop Work If Human Remains Are Encountered during 
Construction Activities from the previously approved ASR EIR/EA must be implemented.  

6. Geology and Soils 

EXISTING SETTING 

Pueblo Water Resources prepared a Geotechnical Investigation for the Santa Margarita site in 2009 in 
preparation for construction of the existing electrical building. They evaluated the proposed Backflush 
Basin Expansion in an Update Letter to the Geological Investigation dated February 4, 2018. The proposed 
Backflush Basin Expansion site is located on older coastal dunes. Older coastal dunes are described as 
weakly consolidated, poorly grading fine to medium grained sand deposits (Pueblo Water Resources, 
2009).   

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse 
effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving: 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the 
most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued 
by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial 
evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and 
Geology Special Publication 42. 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

iv) Landslides? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that 
would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially 
result in on-or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 
liquefaction or collapse? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the 
Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial risks to life or 
property? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

EXHIBIT 16-A 257



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 18 

 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of 
septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal systems where 
sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA found that all geologic, soils, and seismicity impacts of the ASR Project would be 
less than significant.  

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts related to geology and 
soils.  

• Addendum No. 2 did not identify any significant impact related to geology and soils resulting from 
the construction or operation of the Hilby Pump Station.  

• Addendum No. 3 did not identify any significant impact related to geology and soils resulting from 
the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment.  

DISCUSSION  

a, b, c) Less than Significant Impact: The 2009 Geotechnical Investigation completed by Pueblo Water 
Resources included as Attachment 3, found that it is reasonable to assume that the site will experience 
significant seismic shaking during the lifetime of the Proposed Project. Since the nearest known active or 
potentially active fault is mapped approximately 3.6 miles from the site, the potential for ground surface 
fault rupture is low. Based on review done by Pueblo Water Resources of regional liquefaction maps, the 
site is located in an area classified as having a low potential for liquefaction. In addition, groundwater was 
not encountered within the upper 36 feet of the site. Analysis done by Pueblo Water Resources showed 
that the potential for liquefaction and lateral spreading is low. There is also a low probability for 
seismically induced landsliding because the site is relatively flat. All recommendations included in the 
2009 Geotechnical Investigation and the 2018 Update Letter would be incorporated into the Proposed 
Project.  

d, e) No Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site is not located on expansive soils and does 
not involve septic or alternative wastewater disposal systems. 

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to geology and soils.  

7. Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

EXISTING SETTING 

Global temperatures are affected by naturally occurring and anthropogenic-generated atmospheric gases, 
such as water vapor, carbon dioxide, methane, and nitrous oxide (Intergovernmental Panel on Climate 
Change, 2007). Gases that trap heat in the atmosphere are called greenhouse gases (GHGs). Solar 

EXHIBIT 16-A 258



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 19 

 

radiation enters the earth’s atmosphere from space, and a portion of the radiation is absorbed at the 
surface. The earth emits this radiation back toward space as infrared radiation. Greenhouse gases, which 
are mostly transparent to incoming solar radiation, are effective in absorbing infrared radiation and 
redirecting some of this back to the earth’s surface. As a result, this radiation that otherwise would have 
escaped back into space is now retained, resulting in a warming of the atmosphere. This is known as the 
greenhouse effect. The greenhouse effect helps maintain a habitable climate. Emissions of GHGs from 
human activities, such as electricity production, motor vehicle use, and agriculture, are elevating the 
concentration of GHGs in the atmosphere, and are reported to have led to a trend of unnatural warming 
of the earth’s natural climate, known as global warming or global climate change. 

Climate change is a cumulative impact; a project contributes to this impact through its incremental 
contribution of GHG emissions combined with the cumulative increase of all other sources of GHGs. The 
MBARD’s GHG threshold is defined in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e), a metric that accounts 
for the emissions from various GHGs based on their global warming potential. If annual emissions of GHGs 
exceed these threshold levels, the proposed project would result in a cumulatively considerable 
contribution of GHG emissions and must implement mitigation measures. 

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or 
indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the 
environment? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted 
for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA did not contain an analysis of GHG emissions and climate change, because at the 
time the ASR EIR/EA was prepared, AB32, the Global Warming Solutions Act and associated 
updates to the CEQA statutes and guidelines were not in effect. Although an analysis of potential 
climate change impacts was not completed as part of the ASR EIR/EA, air quality modeling was 
completed for temporary construction phase impacts. All potential air quality related effects 
associated with the ASR Project were considered less than significant due to the temporary nature 
of project emissions.  

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts related to the 
generation of GHGs resulting from the implementation of ASR Phase 2.   

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts related to the 
generation of GHGs during construction of the Hilby Pump Station. 

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify a significant impact related to the generation 
of GHGs resulting from the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment.  

EXHIBIT 16-A 259



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 20 

 

DISCUSSION  

a) Less Than Significant Impact: The MBARD has determined that if a project emits less than 10,000 metric 
tons per year (MT/yr) CO2e that its impact will be less than significant. This calculation is made by 
combining the estimated greenhouse gas emissions generated by construction, amortized over a 30-year 
period, with the estimated annual GHG emissions resulting from operation of the project.  

Construction of the Proposed Project would result in a one-time emission total of up to 39.2 MT/yr of 
CO2e during the 3-month construction period; therefore, the annual amortized GHG emissions for the 
construction phase is 1.3 MT/year. The estimated annual greenhouse gas emissions generated by 
operation of the Proposed Project would be approximately 976.1 MT/year. Therefore, the estimated 
annual emissions for the entire project is 977.4 MT/year. This falls well below the threshold of 10,000 
MT/year and is therefore considered to be less than significant.  

b) No Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not conflict with any plan, policies, or 
regulations adopted for the purpose of reducing greenhouse gas emissions. AB32 recommends 
conjunctive groundwater use projects, such as ASR, as a key strategy for reducing the demand for more 
energy intensive water supply sources. 

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to greenhouse gas 
emissions.  

8. Hazards and Hazardous Materials  

EXISTING SETTING 

A search of the California Department of Toxic Substances Control, EnviroStor database shows that the 
site is located on the former Fort Ord, which is an active superfund site pursuant to Government Code 
Section 65962.5. The Proposed Project site occupies land that was historically used for military training. 
Because of the former military use at the project site, munition response action was completed to remove 
Department of Defense (DoD) military munitions, many of which were determined upon evaluation by 
qualified personnel to be Munitions and Explosives of Concern (MEC). Even with completion of munitions 
response actions, there is potential for munitions to be encountered. The probability of encountering MEC 
at the Proposed Project site is considered low (Arcadis, Inc./Weston Solutions, Inc., 2018). No other 
contaminated cleanup sites are located within the vicinity of the Proposed Project Site (California 
Department of Toxic Substances Control, 2016). Seaside Middle School is located approximately 0.2 miles 
from the Proposed Project Site.    

EXHIBIT 16-A 260



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 21 

 

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment 
through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment 
through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions 
involving the release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely 
hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter 
mile of an existing or proposed school? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous 
materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 
65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to 
the public or the environment? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where 
such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety 
hazard for people residing or working in the project area? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the 
project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working 
in the project area? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an 
adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury 
or death involving wildland fires, including where wildlands are 
adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed 
with wildlands? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA evaluated hazardous materials impacts of the project and concluded there to be 
a potentially significant impact related to construction activities occurring on portions of the 
former Fort Ord associated with historic military use. Mitigation Measure HAZ-1: Implement MEC 
Safety Precautions during Grading and Construction Activities at the Project Site was identified to 
reduce the potential impact to a less than significant level. The ASR EIR/EA identified less than 
significant impacts associated with handling of associated materials and public exposure to 
contaminated drinking water.  

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any potentially significant impacts related to 
hazards and hazardous materials. 

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any potentially significant impacts related to 
hazards and hazardous materials from the construction or operation of the Hilby Pump Station. 

EXHIBIT 16-A 261



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 22 

 

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any potentially significant impacts related to 
hazards and hazardous materials from the implementation of the Monterey Pipeline Re-
Alignment.  

DISCUSSION  

a, b) Less than Significant Impact: No hazardous materials are expected to be stored onsite during 
operation of the Proposed Project. During construction, typical construction equipment fluids, including 
gasoline, diesel, and lubricants for maintaining equipment may be stored onsite. These materials would 
be handled and stored in compliance with all local, State, and Federal regulations pertaining to hazardous 
materials. This would constitute a less than significant impact resulting from the routine transport, use, 
or disposal of hazardous materials and potential release of hazardous materials. 

c) Less than Significant Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion are located approximately 0.2 
miles from Seaside Middle School. However, construction and implementation of the Proposed Project 
would not result in exposure of the students or staff to hazardous materials, substances, or wastes. All 
applicable regulations and policies relevant to hazardous materials transportation and storage would be 
adhered to. This is a less than significant impact.   

d) Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation: The Proposed Project site is located within an area that 
formerly contained live-firing ranges for various weapons, therefore soil disturbance from excavating and 
grading activities could expose construction workers to hazards. This impact could be reduced to a less 
than significant level with the implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-1: Implement MED Safety 
Precautions during Grading and Construction Activities at the Project Site, included in Attachment 4  

e, f) No Impact: The Proposed Backflush Basin Expansion are not located within two miles of a municipal 
or private airport. Therefore, no impacts would result due to airport related safety hazards. 

g) Less than Significant Impact: Implementation of the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not 
interfere with evacuation plans because it involves no construction or operational activities that would 
fully block transportation pathways.  

h) Less than Significant Impact: The project site is primarily surrounded by undeveloped lands. While 
there is potential for wildland fires in such a land use type, the Proposed Project would not increase the 
risk of wildfires to residents because construction of the Project would not involve any equipment or 
activities that present a severe fire risk. Implementation of the Proposed Project would not further expose 
people or structures to wildland fires. 

MITIGATION MEASURE 

Mitigation Measure HAZ-1: Implement MEC Safety Precautions during Grading and Construction 
Activities at the Project Site.   

Because of the Proposed Project’s location, the following safety precautions are required for onsite 
activities. The requirements may be modified upon completion of the Munitions Response Remedial 
Investigation/Feasibility Study (MR RI/FA) process for the munitions response sites.  

• All personnel accessing the proposed site will be training in MEC recognition. This safety training 
is provided by the Army at no cost to the trainee. 

EXHIBIT 16-A 262



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 23 

 

• If an item is discovered that is or could be MEC, it shall not be disturbed. The item shall be reported 
immediately to the Presidion of Monterey Police Department at 831-242-7851 so that 
appropriate U.S. Military explosive ordinance disposal personnel can be dispatched to address 
such MEC as required under applicable law and regulations at the expense of the Army. 

• Ground disturbing activities, including perimeter fence installation, will be coordinated with the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Unexploded Ordinance Safety Specialist so that appropriate 
construction-related precautions may be provided.  

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to hazards and 
hazardous materials.  Because the Modifications could potentially contribute to previously identified 
significant impacts to related to hazardous materials, Mitigation Measure HAZ-1: Implement MEC Safety 
Precautions during Grading and Construction Activities at the Project Site, above from the previously 
approved ASR EIR/EA must be implemented. 

9. Hydrology and Water Quality 

EXISTING SETTING 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site is sloped with an elevation of approximately 331 feet above 
sea level at the northwest side of the site, and an elevation of approximately 360 feet above sea level on 
the northeast side of the site. The elevation at the bottom of the existing backflush basin is approximately 
329 feet above sea level. The majority of the Proposed Project site is pervious surface. Storm runoff from 
the Project site currently is directed into the existing backflush basin. The Project site does not contain 
any natural drainages or waterways.  

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge 
requirements? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere 
substantially with groundwater recharge such that there would 
be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local 
groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing 
nearby wells would drop to a level which would not support 
existing land uses or planned uses for which permits have been 
granted)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or 
area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream 
or river, in a manner which would result in substantial erosion or 
siltation on- or off-site? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

EXHIBIT 16-A 263



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 24 

 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or 
area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream 
or river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of surface 
runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the 
capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or 
provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped 
on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate 
Map or other flood hazard delineation map? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which 
would impede or redirect flood flows? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury 
or death involving flooding, including flooding as a result of the 
failure of a levee or dam? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA identified less than significant and beneficial hydrology and water quality impacts 
of the ASR project.  

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts related to hydrology 
and water quality resulting from the implementation of ASR Phase 2.  

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts related to hydrology 
and water quality resulting from the construction or operation of the Hilby Pump Station.  

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts related to hydrology 
and water quality resulting from implementation of the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment.  

DISCUSSION  

a) Less Than Significant Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would be subject to the National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Construction General Permit and the Municipal 
Stormwater Permit requirements (including the preparation of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan or 
SWPPP). MPWMD and their contractors will comply will all applicable water quality standards and waste 
discharge requirements.     

b) No Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not deplete groundwater supplies, as it is a 
component of an aquifer recovery system. In fact, it would provide a greater opportunity for water to 
percolate into the Seaside Groundwater Basin.     

c, d, e,) Less than Significant Impact: Implementation of the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would 
change the drainage pattern at the Santa Margarita site; proposed grading would change the contour of 

EXHIBIT 16-A 264



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 25 

 

the site and excavate a larger backflush basin to allow for greater percolation. These changes would not, 
however, increase the amount of erosion or surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- 
or off-site because all backflush water generated by the ASR wells would remain onsite and would be 
allowed to percolate into the groundwater in the proposed backflush basin. The Proposed Project would 
not exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems because all water generated 
by the ASR wells would remain onsite.    

f, g, h, i, j) No Impact: The Proposed Project would not degrade water quality, as it is a water infrastructure 
project. The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site does not contain drainages, floodways, or floodplain 
areas according to the Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) applicable to the Proposed Project site (FEMA, 
2009). The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion does not include residential housing. The proposed 
Backflush Basin Expansion site is not located within a flood hazard zone, near a dam or levee structure, or 
located in an area subject to significant seiche, tsunami, or mudflow risk (Monterey County, 2010b and 
2010c).  

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to hydrology and water 
quality.   

10. Land Use and Planning 

EXISTING SETTING 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site is located on Monterey County Assessor Parcel Number 
(APN) 031-211-001-000 and is owned by Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA). The site is also designated as 
parcel E34 by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. It is designated as Low Density Single Family Residential 
(RLS) in the City of Seaside General Plan (City of Seaside, 2003) and is zoned as Single Family Residential 
(RS-8) in the City of Seaside Zoning District Map (City of Seaside, 2010).   

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Physically divide an established community? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation 
of an agency with jurisdiction over the project (including, but not 
limited to the general plan, specific plan, local coastal program, 
or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or 
natural community conservation plan? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

EXHIBIT 16-A 265



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 26 

 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA identified less than significant impacts associated with land use compatibility. 

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any additional significant impacts related to 
land use and planning resulting from implementation of ASR Phase 2. 

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any additional significant impacts related to 
land use and planning resulting from construction or operation of the Hilby Pump Station. 

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any additional significant impacts related to 
land use and planning resulting from the implementation of the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment.  

DISCUSSION  

a) No Impact: Implementation of the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not physically divide an 
established community. The existing facilities and proposed facilities will be contained within a single 
parcel along an existing roadway.   

b) Less than Significant Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion property is designated by the 
City of Seaside General Plan as Low Density Single Family Residential and the installation of public utility 
infrastructure would be a compatible use. The Backflush Basin Expansion would not conflict with any 
applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project and City of 
Seaside policies and ordinances would be adhered to. The Backflush Basin Expansion would not conflict 
with existing uses. Construction activities would be temporary in nature and would not result in any 
additional impacts beyond those previously identified in connection with the ASR project.   

c) Less than Significant Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site is located with the boundary 
of the Fort Ord HMP, for more information on the HMP, see Section 4. Biological Resources. Construction 
and operation of the proposed re-alignment would not conflict with the measures included in the HMP. 

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to land use and planning.  

11. Mineral Resources 

EXISTING SETTING 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site is not located in an area containing mineral resources, 
therefore a discussion of the existing setting is not included.  

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource 
that would be of value to the region and the residents of the 
state? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

EXHIBIT 16-A 266



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 27 

 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral 
resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, 
specific plan or other land use plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• No potential impacts to mineral resources were identified in the ASR EIR/EA. 

• No potential impacts to mineral resources were identified in Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA 
resulting from the implementation of ASR Phase 2.  

• No potential impacts to mineral resources were identified in Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA 
resulting from construction or operation of the Hilby Pump Station.  

• No potential impacts to mineral resources were identified in Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA 
resulting from the implementation of the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment.  

DISCUSSION  

a, b) No Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site is not located in an area of potential mineral 
resources; the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not impact mineral resources. 

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to mineral resources.  

12. Noise 

EXISTING SETTING 

The Proposed Project site is located within an existing water infrastructure site, which is located adjacent 
to open space and a residential neighborhood.  There are currently motors associated with the existing 
ASR wells currently in operation at the Santa Margarita site, which generate a minimal amount of noise.  
The closest residences to the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site are located approximately 190 feet 
from the proposed driveway. 

CHECKLIST 

Would the project result in: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess 
of standards established in the local general plan or noise 
ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

EXHIBIT 16-A 267



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 28 

 

Would the project result in: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive 
groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in 
the project vicinity above levels existing without the project? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise 
levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the 
project? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where 
such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or public use airport, would the project expose people 
residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the 
project expose people residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA identified significant noise impacts due to exposure of sensitive receptors to 
elevated noise and vibration levels during construction activities and increased noise levels during 
operational phases. The following mitigation measures were identified to reduce impacts to a less 
than significant level: 

o Mitigation Measure NZ-1a: Prohibit Ancillary and Unnecessary Equipment During 
Nighttime Well Drilling Activities 

o Mitigation Measure NZ-1b: Employ Noise-Reducing Construction practices to Meet 
Nighttime Standards 

o Mitigation Measure NZ-1c: Prepare a Noise Control Plan 
o Mitigation Measure NZ-1d: Disseminate Essential Information to Residences and 

Implement a Complaint/Response Tracking System 
o Mitigation Measure NZ-2 – Design Pump Stations to Meet Local Nosie Standards   

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA identified a potentially significant impact resulting from 
implementation of ASR Phase 2 due to the exposure of noise-sensitive land used to construction 
noise in excess of applicable standards.  This impact would be reduced to less than significant with 
the implementation of the following mitigation measures: 

o Mitigation Measure NZ-1a: Prohibit Ancillary and Unnecessary Equipment During 
Nighttime Well Drilling Activities 

o Mitigation Measure NZ-1b: Employ Noise-Reducing Construction Practices to Meet 
Nighttime Standards 

o Mitigation Measure NZ-1c: Prepare a Noise Control Plan 
o Mitigation Measure NZ-1d: Disseminate Essential Information to Residences and 

Implement a Complaint/Response Tracking System 

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA identified potentially significant impacts to nearby residences 
to noise levels in excess of standards and a temporary increase in ambient noise levels during 

EXHIBIT 16-A 268



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 29 

 

construction of the Hilby Pump Station. These impacts could be reduced to less than significant 
levels with the implementation of the following mitigation measures:  

o Mitigation Measure NZ-1a: Prohibit Ancillary and Unnecessary Equipment During 
Nighttime Well Drilling Activities 

o Mitigation Measure NZ-1b: Employ Noise-Reducing Construction Practices to Meet 
Nighttime Standards 

o Mitigation Measure NZ-1c: Prepare a Noise Control Plan 

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA also identified potentially significant impacts to nearby 
residences to noise levels in excess of standards and a temporary increase in ambient noise levels 
during construction of the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment. These impacts could be reduced to 
less than significant levels with the implementation of Mitigation Measures NZ-1a, NZ-1b, and NZ-
1c.  

DISCUSSION  

a, d) Less Than Significant Impact: Project construction would generate temporary increases in noise 
associated with the use of construction equipment. Project construction could result in the exposure of 
nearby sensitive receptors to increased noise levels beyond existing conditions. These impacts would, 
however, be temporary. In addition, adherence to standard construction noise measures would further 
reduce noise impacts, including reducing the severity of impacts on adjacent noise sensitive uses.  

b) Less than Significant Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not generate any 
groundborne vibration.   

c) No Impact: The components of the Proposed Project would not generate any noise during operation. 
The existing facilities at the Santa Margarita site currently generate minimal noise. The Proposed Project 
includes sound walls to lessen the disturbance to nearby sensitive receptors from the existing ASR wells. 
See Figure 2 for more details.   

e, f) No Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion are not located within two miles of a municipal 
airport or private airstrip and would not add new sensitive receptors to the site that would be exposed to 
existing or future nearby noise sources. 

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to noise.   

13. Population and Housing  

EXISTING SETTING 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site is located in the City of Seaside. The 2010 U.S. Census 
population of the City of Seaside was 33,025 persons, and the City’s housing stock contains 10,872 
occupied residential units, resulting in an average household size of 3.04 persons per household. The 
estimated population as of January 2014 was 33,534 persons. Based on Association of Monterey Bay Area 
Governments (AMBAG) projections, population is projected to increase in Seaside by approximately 3,095 
people between 2010 and 2020. Based on the 2014 AMBAG Regional Housing Needs Allocation Plan, the 
total number of housing units which need to be planned in Seaside between 2014 and 2023 in order to 

EXHIBIT 16-A 269



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 30 

 

meet Seaside’s regional housing need allocation was 393 new units, including 95 very low income, 62 low 
income, 72 moderate income, and 164 above moderate-income households. 

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either 
directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) 
or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other 
infrastructure)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, 
necessitating the construction of replacement housing 
elsewhere? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the 
construction of replacement housing elsewhere? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• No potential impacts to population and housing were identified in the ASR EIR/EA 

• No potential impacts to population and housing were identified in Addendum No. 1 to the ASR 
EIR/EA resulting from implementation of ASR Phase 2. 

• No potential impacts to population and housing were identified in Addendum No. 2 to the ASR 
EIR/EA resulting from the construction and operation of the Hilby Pump Station.  

• No potential impacts to population and housing were identified in Addendum No. 3 to the ASR 
EIR/EA resulting from implementation of the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment.  

DISCUSSION  

a, b, and c) No Impact. The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not induce population growth or 
displace existing housing or people. The expansion of the backflush basin is to accommodate water 
generated by the maintenance of ASR wells that have been evaluated in previous environmental 
documents. Water generated by the ASR system serves to replace diversions from the Carmel River and 
is not created an additional source of water.    

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to population and 
housing.  

EXHIBIT 16-A 270



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 31 

 

14. Public Services 

EXISTING SETTING 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not impact public services; therefore, a discussion of the 
existing setting is not included.  

CHECKLIST 

 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical 
impacts associated with the provision of new or physically 
altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically 
altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could 
cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain 
acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance 
objectives for any of the public services: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Fire protection? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Police protection? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Schools? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Parks? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Other public facilities? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• No potential impacts to public services were identified in the ASR EIR/EA. 

• No potential impacts to public services were identified in Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA 
resulting from implementation of Phase 2. 

• No potential impacts to public services were identified in Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA 
resulting from construction or operation of the Hilby Pump Station. 

• No potential impacts to public services were identified in Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA 
resulting from implementation of the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment. 

DISCUSSION 

a) No Impact: Implementation of the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in new 
significant impacts resulting from new or altered governmental facilities, due to the fact that it is a 
component of a water infrastructure project, and therefore would not increase the use of schools and 
parks or increase the need for fire and police protection.  

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to public services.  

EXHIBIT 16-A 271



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 32 

 

15. Recreation 

EXISTING SETTING 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not impact recreational resources; therefore, a discussion 
of the existing setting is not included.  

CHECKLIST 

 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood 
and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that 
substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or 
be accelerated? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the 
construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might 
have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• No potential impacts to recreation facilities were identified in the ASR EIR/EA. 

• No potential impacts to recreational facilities were identified in Addendum No. 1 to the ASR 
EIR/EA resulting from implementation of Phase 2. 

• No potential impacts to recreational facilities were identified in Addendum No. 2 to the ASR 
EIR/EA resulting from construction or operation of the Hilby Pump Station. 

• No potential impacts to recreational facilities were identified in Addendum No. 3 to the ASR 
EIR/EA resulting from implementation of the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment. 

DISCUSSION  

a, b) No Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in new significant impacts 
because there would be no direct or indirect increased use of parks or recreational facilities as part of the 
Proposed Project. No additional recreational facilities are included in the proposed Backflush Basin 
Expansion. 

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to recreation resources.   

16. Transportation and Traffic 

EXISTING SETTING 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site is located off General Jim Moore Boulevard, near the 
intersection of Eucalyptus Road and General Jim Moore Boulevard in the City of Seaside. The surrounding 

EXHIBIT 16-A 272



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 33 

 

area is open space and residential with normally light to medium traffic patterns, depending on the time 
of day. General Jim Moore Boulevard is a major street that is utilized by commenters in the Cities of 
Seaside, Del Rey Oaks, and Monterey. The closest highways that would potentially be used for materials 
transport and by construction workers in transit to the Proposed project site are Highway 1, Highway 218, 
and Highway 68. 

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy 
establishing measures of effectiveness for the performance of 
the circulation system, taking into account all modes of 
transportation including mass transit and non-motorized travel 
and relevant components of the circulation system, including 
but not limited to intersections, streets, highways and freeways, 
pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass transit? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, 
including, but not limited to level of service standards and travel 
demand measures, or other standards established by the county 
congestion management agency for designated roads or 
highways? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an 
increase in traffic levels or a change in location that results in 
substantial safety risks? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., 
sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses 
(e.g., farm equipment)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

e) Result in inadequate emergency access? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding 
public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise 
decrease the performance or safety of such facilities? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA found the ASR Project would have the following less than significant impacts to 
traffic and circulation: 

o temporary construction-related traffic increases, 
o construction phase conflicts with bus service lines and temporary pathway/bikeway 

closures, 
o increased traffic and level of service degradation from operational phases, 
o an increased demand for parking. 

No mitigation measures were required.  

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts related to traffic and 
transportation related to implementation of ASR Phase 2.  

EXHIBIT 16-A 273



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 34 

 

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts related to traffic and 
transportation resulting from construction or operation of the Hilby Pump Station.  

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA identified potentially significant impacts related to conflicts 
with plans and congestion management programs. In addition, the re-alignment of the Monterey 
Pipeline could potentially result in inadequate emergency access during construction. These 
impacts could be reduced to less than significant levels with the implementation of Mitigation 
Measure TR-2: Traffic Control and Safety Assurance Plan from the Pure Water Monterey 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan.   

DISCUSSION  

a, b) Less than Significant Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would result in minimal 
temporary increases in traffic during construction. Construction worker traffic will result from the 
estimated four workers onsite during the day which could result in up to eight vehicle trips per day from 
workers (four AM trips and four PM trips). This would not be considered a substantial increase in peak 
hour trips due to the low volumes and the short duration of the construction period.  

Operation and maintenance of the Backflush Basin Expansion would not require additional employee 
vehicle trips, as there are existing MPWMD facilities at the Santa Margarita site that require routine 
maintenance. This is considered a less than significant impact.    

c, d, e, f, g) No Impact: Implementation of the proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not impact air 
traffic operations because the nearest airports are over 2 miles away. The proposed Backflush Basin 
Expansion do not involve any construction within existing roadway travel lanes, bike lanes or near any 
transit stops, and would not increase hazards based on a design feature or result in emergency access 
concerns. The proposed second driveway on General Jim Moore Boulevard would provide an additional 
point of access to the Santa Margarita site for emergency vehicles. During construction, access to the 
proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site will be provided by an existing driveway off General Jim Moore 
Boulevard and construction workers will park onsite; therefore, there would be no significant parking or 
access impacts.   

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to transportation and 
traffic.  

17. Utilities and Service Systems  

EXISTING SETTING 

The Monterey Regional Waste Management District manages the Monterey Peninsula’s (including the 
proposed Backflush Basin Expansion site) solid waste collection, disposal, and recycling system. It also 
receives most of Monterey County’s sewage sludge. The Waste Management District operates the 
Monterey Peninsula Landfill and a transfer station. Any solid waste generated by Proposed Project 
construction or operation would be disposed of at the landfill or diverted for recycling or reuse at the 
materials recovery facility.  

EXHIBIT 16-A 274



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 35 

 

CHECKLIST 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable 
Regional Water Quality Control Board? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or 
wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing 
facilities, the construction of which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm water 
drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the 
construction of which could cause significant environmental 
effects? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project 
from existing entitlements and resources, or are new or 
expanded entitlements needed? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment 
provider which serves or may serve the project that it has 
adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in 
addition to the provider’s existing commitments? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to 
accommodate the project’s solid waste disposal needs? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations 
related to solid waste? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA identified a potentially significant impact related to the temporary disruption of 
existing underground utilities during construction. This impact could be reduced to a less than 
significant level with the implementation of Mitigation Measure PS-2: Coordinate Relocation and 
Interruptions of Service with Utility Providers during Construction and PS-3: Project All Existing 
Utilities Slated to Remain. Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant 
impacts to utilities and service systems resulting from ASR Phase 2. 

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any significant impacts to utilities and service 
systems resulting from the construction and operation of the Hilby Pump Station. 

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA identified a potentially significant impact resulting from solid 
waste disposal and compliance with regulations related to solid waste during construction of the 
Monterey Pipeline Re-alignment. These impacts could be reduced to a less than significant level 
with the implementation of Mitigation Measure PS-3: Construction Waste Reduction and 
Recycling Plan from the Pure Water Monterey Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan.  

DISCUSSION  

a, b, c, e) No Impact: A component of the Proposed Project is to expand the backflush basin at the Santa 
Margarita site. This will enable MPWMD to dispose of a larger amount of backflush water produced by 

EXHIBIT 16-A 275



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 36 

 

regular maintained of the ASR well system. Water deposited into the backflush basin will either percolate 
into the Seaside Groundwater Basin or evaporate. The Proposed Project would not generate any 
additional water that has not already been accounted for in previous environmental documents. The 
Backflush Basin Expansion would not exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the Regional Water 
Quality Control Board. Although the backflush basin is intended to store and dispose of backflush water 
generated by maintenance of the ASR wells, it will also serve as a stormwater retention basin because it 
is the lowest point of the site. Stormwater captured in the basin will either percolate into the Seaside 
Groundwater Basin or evaporate. The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new 
significant impacts or increased severity of previously identified significant impacts from the ASR EIR/EA. 

d) No Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not require additional water rights or 
entitlements. The Modifications would enable MPWMD to fully exercise their existing water rights to 
divert excess flows from the Carmel River for injection into the ASR wells during wet weather periods. 
MPWMD would be required to comply with all applicable permit conditions.  

f, g) Less than Significant Impact: The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would result in a less than 
significant impact in terms of solid waste generation consistent with the analysis in the ASR EIR/EA and its 
Addenda.  

CONCLUSION 

The proposed Backflush Basin Expansion would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an 
increase in severity of any significant impacts identified in the ASR EIR/EA related to utilities and service 
systems.   

18. Mandatory Findings of Significance  

CHECKLIST 

 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less than 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 
No Impact 

a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of 
the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or 
wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below 
self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal 
community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or 
endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of 
the major periods of California history or prehistory? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, 
but cumulatively considerable? (“Cumulatively considerable” 
means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable 
when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the 
effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable 
future projects)? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause 
substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or 
indirectly? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

EXHIBIT 16-A 276



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 37 

 

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS  

• The ASR EIR/EA found that there would be less than significant cumulative impacts in all issue 
areas with the exception of NOx and PM10 emissions, noise and vibration generated during 
construction. Both of these cumulative significant impacts would be reduced to less than 
significant with the implementation of Mitigation Measure Cume-1: Coordinate with Relevant 
Local Agencies to Develop and Implement a Phased Construction Plan to Reduce Cumulative 
Traffic, Air Quality, and Noise Impacts.   

• Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any cumulatively considerable impacts related 
to implementation of ASR Phase 2.    

• Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any cumulatively considerable impacts related 
to construction and operation of the Hilby Pump Station.    

• Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA did not identify any cumulatively considerable impacts related 
to implementation of the Monterey Pipeline Re-Alignment.    

DISCUSSION  

a, b, c) Less than Significant Impact: The Backflush Basin Expansion would not substantially degrade or 
reduce wildlife species or habitat or impact historic resources, as identified in this analysis. Potential 
cumulative impacts associated with the Modifications would primarily occur in connection with 
temporary construction-related effects. As described above, a cumulative analysis for the ASR Project was 
performed in the ASR EIR/EA and its previous Addenda. Construction and operation of the Backflush Basin 
Expansion would not result in adverse impacts on human beings, either directly or indirectly; potential 
impacts would be temporary in nature and mitigated through the implementation of mitigation measures 
(to the extent they are applicable) previously identified in the ASR EIR/EA. The Backflush Basin Expansion 
would not result in any new significant impacts or cause an increase in severity of any significant impacts 
beyond those identified in the ASR EIR/EA and its Addenda. 

  

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 277



Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 38 

 

IV. REPORT PREPARATION AND REFERENCES 

California Department of Toxic Substances Control, 2016. EnviroStor Database 
http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/, accessed online on May 6, 2016. 

City of Seaside, 2003. Seaside General Plan.  

City of Seaside, 2010. 2007 Zoning District Map. 

Denise Duffy and Associates, 2012. Addendum No. 1 to the Phase 1 ASR Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Assessment.  

Denise Duffy and Associates, 2016. Addendum No. 2 to the Phase 1 ASR Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Assessment.  

Denise Duffy and Associates, 2017. Addendum No. 3 to the Phase 1 ASR Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Assessment.  

Denise Duffy and Associates, 2015. Pure Water Monterey Groundwater Replenishment Project Final 
Environmental Impact Report. 

Federal Emergency Management Agency, 2009. Flood Insurance Rate Map for Monterey County, 
California, Panel 0327G. 

IFC Jones and Stokes, 2006. Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project Final Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Assessment.  

IFC Jones and Stokes, 2010. Monterey County General Plan Final Environmental Impact Report. 

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, 2007. Climate Change 2007 Mitigation of Climate Change.  

Jennings and Hayes, 1994. Amphibian and Reptile Species of Special Concern in California. 

Monterey Bay Air Resources District, 2016. Guidelines for Implementing the California Environmental 
Quality Act. http://mbard.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/Attachment_Guidelines-for-
Implementing-CEQA.pdf, accessed online on May 6, 2016. 

Monterey Bay Air Resources District, 2017. 2012-2015 Air Quality Management Plan.  

Monterey County, 2010a. 2010 Monterey County General Plan, Figure AWCP4, Williamson Act Lands. 

Monterey County, 2010b. 2010 Monterey County General Plan, Figure 8b, Federal Emergency 
Management Agency 100 Year Flood. 

Monterey County, 2010c. 2010 Monterey County General Plan, Figure 8d, Dam Inundation. 

Pueblo Water Resources, 2009. Geotechnical Investigation for New Electrical & Chemical Feed Building, 
Seaside, California. 

Stebbins, 2003. A Field Guide to Western Reptiles and Amphibians. Third Edition. 

Zeiner et al., 1998. California’s Wildlife, Volume I, Amphibians and Reptiles. 

EXHIBIT 16-A 278

http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/
http://mbard.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/Attachment_Guidelines-for-Implementing-CEQA.pdf
http://mbard.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/Attachment_Guidelines-for-Implementing-CEQA.pdf


Initial Study Checklist 

Backflush Basin Expansion  

  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates   Page 39 

 

Zeiner et al., 1990a. California’s Wildlife, Volume II, Birds. 

Zeiner et al., 1990b. California’s Wildlife, Volume III, Mammals. 

  

 

EXHIBIT 16-A 279



Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates    

 

ATTACHMENT 2 

 

AIR QUALITY AND GHG CALCULATION SPREADSHEETS 

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 280



Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates    

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

 

 

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 281



1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

General Light Industry 82.70 1000sqft 1.90 82,700.00 0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization

Climate Zone

Urban

4

Wind Speed (m/s) Precipitation Freq (Days)3.6 55

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

1.0 Project Characteristics

Utility Company Pacific Gas & Electric Company

2019Operational Year

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

641.35 0.029CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications
Monterey County, Annual

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 1 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 282



Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - Lot acreage provided is worse case senario becuase it includes the entire Santa Margarita Site. Actual footprint of disturbance will be less.

Construction Phase - No demolition is proposed as part of the project. No new buildings are proposed as part of the project, no architectural coatings are 
required. This is primarily a grading project.   

Grading - Total Acres Graded estimates provided are worst case scenarios, the entire Santa Margarita site is 1.9 acres. The actual area of disturbance will be 
less.   

Demolition - No demolition is proposed as part of the project.

Trips and VMT - It is estimated that 4 workers will be needed for each of the project construction phases.

Architectural Coating - No architectural coatings are required.

Solid Waste - No soil waste will be generated during project operation.

Land Use Change - Vegetation type at project site is maritime chaparral and existing water infrastructure facilities. Grassland preset used because it is most 
similar to maritime chaparral. All vegetation cleared during grading will be replaced using hydroseeding.    

Sequestration - No trees will be removed.

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 2 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 283



2.0 Emissions Summary

Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 4.00 50.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 2.00 6.00

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 9/5/2018 10/17/2018

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 6/26/2019 10/31/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 8/30/2018 8/8/2018

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 8/31/2018 8/9/2018

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 6/13/2019 10/18/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 8/29/2018 8/1/2018

tblGrading AcresOfGrading 18.75 1.90

tblGrading AcresOfGrading 3.00 1.90

tblSolidWaste SolidWasteGenerationRate 102.55 0.00

tblTripsAndVMT HaulingTripNumber 0.00 5.00

tblTripsAndVMT WorkerTripNumber 13.00 4.00

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 3 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 284



2.1 Overall Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

2018 0.0441 0.4910 0.2039 4.3000e-
004

0.1326 0.0228 0.1553 0.0715 0.0209 0.0924 0.0000 38.9517 38.9517 0.0116 0.0000 39.2419

2019 4.6200e-
003

0.0460 0.0453 7.0000e-
005

1.6000e-
004

2.6100e-
003

2.7700e-
003

4.0000e-
005

2.4100e-
003

2.4500e-
003

0.0000 6.1664 6.1664 1.8700e-
003

0.0000 6.2132

Maximum 0.0441 0.4910 0.2039 4.3000e-
004

0.1326 0.0228 0.1553 0.0715 0.0209 0.0924 0.0000 38.9517 38.9517 0.0116 0.0000 39.2419

Unmitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

2018 0.0441 0.4910 0.2039 4.3000e-
004

0.1326 0.0228 0.1553 0.0715 0.0209 0.0924 0.0000 38.9517 38.9517 0.0116 0.0000 39.2419

2019 4.6200e-
003

0.0460 0.0453 7.0000e-
005

1.6000e-
004

2.6100e-
003

2.7700e-
003

4.0000e-
005

2.4100e-
003

2.4500e-
003

0.0000 6.1664 6.1664 1.8700e-
003

0.0000 6.2132

Maximum 0.0441 0.4910 0.2039 4.3000e-
004

0.1326 0.0228 0.1553 0.0715 0.0209 0.0924 0.0000 38.9517 38.9517 0.0116 0.0000 39.2419

Mitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 4 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 285



2.2 Overall Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Area 0.3806 1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.0500e-
003

2.0500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.1900e-
003

Energy 0.0118 0.1069 0.0898 6.4000e-
004

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

0.0000 315.1421 315.1421 0.0112 3.9900e-
003

316.6126

Mobile 0.2277 0.9920 2.7700 6.5900e-
003

0.4769 8.9400e-
003

0.4859 0.1282 8.4300e-
003

0.1366 0.0000 602.4056 602.4056 0.0350 0.0000 603.2813

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 6.0673 30.1041 36.1714 0.6245 0.0150 56.2534

Total 0.6200 1.0990 2.8609 7.2300e-
003

0.4769 0.0171 0.4940 0.1282 0.0166 0.1447 6.0673 947.6538 953.7211 0.6708 0.0190 976.1495

Unmitigated Operational

Quarter Start Date End Date Maximum Unmitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter) Maximum Mitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter)

1 8-1-2018 10-31-2018 0.5317 0.5317

Highest 0.5317 0.5317

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 5 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 286



2.2 Overall Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Area 0.3806 1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.0500e-
003

2.0500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.1900e-
003

Energy 0.0118 0.1069 0.0898 6.4000e-
004

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

0.0000 315.1421 315.1421 0.0112 3.9900e-
003

316.6126

Mobile 0.2277 0.9920 2.7700 6.5900e-
003

0.4769 8.9400e-
003

0.4859 0.1282 8.4300e-
003

0.1366 0.0000 602.4056 602.4056 0.0350 0.0000 603.2813

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 6.0673 30.1041 36.1714 0.6245 0.0150 56.2534

Total 0.6200 1.0990 2.8609 7.2300e-
003

0.4769 0.0171 0.4940 0.1282 0.0166 0.1447 6.0673 947.6538 953.7211 0.6708 0.0190 976.1495

Mitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 6 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 287



3.0 Construction Detail

2.3 Vegetation

CO2e

Category MT

Vegetation Land 
Change

0.0000

Total 0.0000

Vegetation

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Site Preparation Site Preparation 8/1/2018 8/8/2018 5 6

2 Grading Grading 8/9/2018 10/17/2018 5 50

3 Paving Paving 10/18/2019 10/31/2019 5 10

OffRoad Equipment

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor: 0; Striped Parking Area: 0 (Architectural 
Coating – sqft)

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 1.9

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 1.9

Acres of Paving: 0

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 7 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 288



3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

Paving Cement and Mortar Mixers 1 6.00 9 0.56

Site Preparation Graders 1 8.00 187 0.41

Paving Pavers 1 6.00 130 0.42

Paving Rollers 1 7.00 80 0.38

Grading Rubber Tired Dozers 1 6.00 247 0.40

Grading Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 7.00 97 0.37

Paving Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Site Preparation Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Grading Graders 1 6.00 187 0.41

Paving Paving Equipment 1 8.00 132 0.36

Site Preparation Rubber Tired Dozers 1 7.00 247 0.40

Trips and VMT

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Hauling 
Vehicle Class

Site Preparation 3 8.00 0.00 5.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Grading 3 8.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Paving 5 4.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 8 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 289



3.2 Site Preparation - 2018

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.0168 0.0000 0.0168 8.8000e-
003

0.0000 8.8000e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 5.4200e-
003

0.0622 0.0242 5.0000e-
005

2.8600e-
003

2.8600e-
003

2.6300e-
003

2.6300e-
003

0.0000 4.7229 4.7229 1.4700e-
003

0.0000 4.7596

Total 5.4200e-
003

0.0622 0.0242 5.0000e-
005

0.0168 2.8600e-
003

0.0197 8.8000e-
003

2.6300e-
003

0.0114 0.0000 4.7229 4.7229 1.4700e-
003

0.0000 4.7596

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 3.0000e-
005

8.7000e-
004

1.8000e-
004

0.0000 4.0000e-
005

1.0000e-
005

5.0000e-
005

1.0000e-
005

1.0000e-
005

2.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1984 0.1984 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1986

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.3000e-
004

1.3000e-
004

1.1200e-
003

0.0000 1.9000e-
004

0.0000 1.9000e-
004

5.0000e-
005

0.0000 5.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1925 0.1925 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1928

Total 1.6000e-
004

1.0000e-
003

1.3000e-
003

0.0000 2.3000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

2.4000e-
004

6.0000e-
005

1.0000e-
005

7.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.3909 0.3909 2.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.3913

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 9 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 290



3.2 Site Preparation - 2018

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.0168 0.0000 0.0168 8.8000e-
003

0.0000 8.8000e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 5.4200e-
003

0.0622 0.0242 5.0000e-
005

2.8600e-
003

2.8600e-
003

2.6300e-
003

2.6300e-
003

0.0000 4.7229 4.7229 1.4700e-
003

0.0000 4.7596

Total 5.4200e-
003

0.0622 0.0242 5.0000e-
005

0.0168 2.8600e-
003

0.0197 8.8000e-
003

2.6300e-
003

0.0114 0.0000 4.7229 4.7229 1.4700e-
003

0.0000 4.7596

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 3.0000e-
005

8.7000e-
004

1.8000e-
004

0.0000 4.0000e-
005

1.0000e-
005

5.0000e-
005

1.0000e-
005

1.0000e-
005

2.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1984 0.1984 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1986

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.3000e-
004

1.3000e-
004

1.1200e-
003

0.0000 1.9000e-
004

0.0000 1.9000e-
004

5.0000e-
005

0.0000 5.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1925 0.1925 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1928

Total 1.6000e-
004

1.0000e-
003

1.3000e-
003

0.0000 2.3000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

2.4000e-
004

6.0000e-
005

1.0000e-
005

7.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.3909 0.3909 2.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.3913

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 10 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 291



3.3 Grading - 2018

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.1139 0.0000 0.1139 0.0622 0.0000 0.0622 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0374 0.4267 0.1691 3.5000e-
004

0.0199 0.0199 0.0183 0.0183 0.0000 32.2337 32.2337 0.0100 0.0000 32.4845

Total 0.0374 0.4267 0.1691 3.5000e-
004

0.1139 0.0199 0.1338 0.0622 0.0183 0.0805 0.0000 32.2337 32.2337 0.0100 0.0000 32.4845

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.0800e-
003

1.0500e-
003

9.3200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.5900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.6000e-
003

4.2000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 1.6043 1.6043 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.6065

Total 1.0800e-
003

1.0500e-
003

9.3200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.5900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.6000e-
003

4.2000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 1.6043 1.6043 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.6065

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 11 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 292



3.3 Grading - 2018

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.1139 0.0000 0.1139 0.0622 0.0000 0.0622 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0374 0.4267 0.1691 3.5000e-
004

0.0199 0.0199 0.0183 0.0183 0.0000 32.2336 32.2336 0.0100 0.0000 32.4845

Total 0.0374 0.4267 0.1691 3.5000e-
004

0.1139 0.0199 0.1338 0.0622 0.0183 0.0805 0.0000 32.2336 32.2336 0.0100 0.0000 32.4845

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.0800e-
003

1.0500e-
003

9.3200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.5900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.6000e-
003

4.2000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 1.6043 1.6043 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.6065

Total 1.0800e-
003

1.0500e-
003

9.3200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.5900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.6000e-
003

4.2000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 1.6043 1.6043 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.6065

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 12 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 293



3.4 Paving - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Off-Road 4.5200e-
003

0.0459 0.0445 7.0000e-
005

2.6100e-
003

2.6100e-
003

2.4100e-
003

2.4100e-
003

0.0000 6.0105 6.0105 1.8700e-
003

0.0000 6.0572

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 4.5200e-
003

0.0459 0.0445 7.0000e-
005

2.6100e-
003

2.6100e-
003

2.4100e-
003

2.4100e-
003

0.0000 6.0105 6.0105 1.8700e-
003

0.0000 6.0572

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.0000e-
004

9.0000e-
005

8.2000e-
004

0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 1.6000e-
004

4.0000e-
005

0.0000 4.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1559 0.1559 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1561

Total 1.0000e-
004

9.0000e-
005

8.2000e-
004

0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 1.6000e-
004

4.0000e-
005

0.0000 4.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1559 0.1559 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1561

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 13 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 294



4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

3.4 Paving - 2019

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Off-Road 4.5200e-
003

0.0459 0.0445 7.0000e-
005

2.6100e-
003

2.6100e-
003

2.4100e-
003

2.4100e-
003

0.0000 6.0105 6.0105 1.8700e-
003

0.0000 6.0572

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 4.5200e-
003

0.0459 0.0445 7.0000e-
005

2.6100e-
003

2.6100e-
003

2.4100e-
003

2.4100e-
003

0.0000 6.0105 6.0105 1.8700e-
003

0.0000 6.0572

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 1.0000e-
004

9.0000e-
005

8.2000e-
004

0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 1.6000e-
004

4.0000e-
005

0.0000 4.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1559 0.1559 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1561

Total 1.0000e-
004

9.0000e-
005

8.2000e-
004

0.0000 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 1.6000e-
004

4.0000e-
005

0.0000 4.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1559 0.1559 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.1561

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 14 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 295



ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Mitigated 0.2277 0.9920 2.7700 6.5900e-
003

0.4769 8.9400e-
003

0.4859 0.1282 8.4300e-
003

0.1366 0.0000 602.4056 602.4056 0.0350 0.0000 603.2813

Unmitigated 0.2277 0.9920 2.7700 6.5900e-
003

0.4769 8.9400e-
003

0.4859 0.1282 8.4300e-
003

0.1366 0.0000 602.4056 602.4056 0.0350 0.0000 603.2813

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

4.2 Trip Summary Information

4.3 Trip Type Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated

Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

General Light Industry 576.42 109.16 56.24 1,271,028 1,271,028

Total 576.42 109.16 56.24 1,271,028 1,271,028

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

General Light Industry 9.50 7.30 7.30 59.00 28.00 13.00 92 5 3

4.4 Fleet Mix

Land Use LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY SBUS MH

General Light Industry 0.526395 0.032321 0.201107 0.146365 0.026644 0.006320 0.017996 0.025422 0.004154 0.003072 0.007973 0.001269 0.000961

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 15 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 296



5.0 Energy Detail

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Electricity 
Mitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 198.7222 198.7222 8.9900e-
003

1.8600e-
003

199.5009

Electricity 
Unmitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 198.7222 198.7222 8.9900e-
003

1.8600e-
003

199.5009

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

0.0118 0.1069 0.0898 6.4000e-
004

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

0.0000 116.4199 116.4199 2.2300e-
003

2.1300e-
003

117.1117

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

0.0118 0.1069 0.0898 6.4000e-
004

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

0.0000 116.4199 116.4199 2.2300e-
003

2.1300e-
003

117.1117

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

Historical Energy Use: N

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 16 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 297



5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

General Light 
Industry

2.18163e
+006

0.0118 0.1069 0.0898 6.4000e-
004

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

0.0000 116.4199 116.4199 2.2300e-
003

2.1300e-
003

117.1117

Total 0.0118 0.1069 0.0898 6.4000e-
004

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

0.0000 116.4199 116.4199 2.2300e-
003

2.1300e-
003

117.1117

Unmitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

General Light 
Industry

2.18163e
+006

0.0118 0.1069 0.0898 6.4000e-
004

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

0.0000 116.4199 116.4199 2.2300e-
003

2.1300e-
003

117.1117

Total 0.0118 0.1069 0.0898 6.4000e-
004

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

8.1300e-
003

0.0000 116.4199 116.4199 2.2300e-
003

2.1300e-
003

117.1117

Mitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 17 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 298



6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

6.0 Area Detail

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kWh/yr MT/yr

General Light 
Industry

683102 198.7222 8.9900e-
003

1.8600e-
003

199.5009

Total 198.7222 8.9900e-
003

1.8600e-
003

199.5009

Unmitigated

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kWh/yr MT/yr

General Light 
Industry

683102 198.7222 8.9900e-
003

1.8600e-
003

199.5009

Total 198.7222 8.9900e-
003

1.8600e-
003

199.5009

Mitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 18 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 299



ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Mitigated 0.3806 1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.0500e-
003

2.0500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.1900e-
003

Unmitigated 0.3806 1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.0500e-
003

2.0500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.1900e-
003

6.2 Area by SubCategory

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

Architectural 
Coating

0.0575 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Consumer 
Products

0.3230 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Landscaping 1.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.0500e-
003

2.0500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.1900e-
003

Total 0.3806 1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.0500e-
003

2.0500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.1900e-
003

Unmitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 19 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 300



7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

7.0 Water Detail

6.2 Area by SubCategory

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 Total Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

Architectural 
Coating

0.0575 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Consumer 
Products

0.3230 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Landscaping 1.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.0500e-
003

2.0500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.1900e-
003

Total 0.3806 1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.0500e-
003

2.0500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.1900e-
003

Mitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 20 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 301



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category MT/yr

Mitigated 36.1714 0.6245 0.0150 56.2534

Unmitigated 36.1714 0.6245 0.0150 56.2534

7.2 Water by Land Use

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use Mgal MT/yr

General Light 
Industry

19.1244 / 
0

36.1714 0.6245 0.0150 56.2534

Total 36.1714 0.6245 0.0150 56.2534

Unmitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 21 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 302



8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

7.2 Water by Land Use

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use Mgal MT/yr

General Light 
Industry

19.1244 / 
0

36.1714 0.6245 0.0150 56.2534

Total 36.1714 0.6245 0.0150 56.2534

Mitigated

8.0 Waste Detail

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

MT/yr

 Mitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

 Unmitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Category/Year

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 22 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 303



8.2 Waste by Land Use

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use tons MT/yr

General Light 
Industry

0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use tons MT/yr

General Light 
Industry

0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mitigated

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 23 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 304



11.0 Vegetation

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Hours/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

Boilers

Equipment Type Number Heat Input/Day Heat Input/Year Boiler Rating Fuel Type

User Defined Equipment

Equipment Type Number

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 24 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 305



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category MT

Unmitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

11.1 Vegetation Land Change

Initial/Fina
l

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Acres MT

Grassland 1.9 / 1.9 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vegetation Type

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Date: 7/5/2018 11:25 AMPage 25 of 25

ASR Addendum No. 4 - Backflush Basin Modifications - Monterey County, Annual

EXHIBIT 16-A 306



Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates    

 

ATTACHMENT 3 

 

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION AS AMENDED BY UPDATE LETTER 

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 307



Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates    

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 308



EXHIBIT 16-A 309



EXHIBIT 16-A 310



EXHIBIT 16-A 311



EXHIBIT 16-A 312



EXHIBIT 16-A 313



EXHIBIT 16-A 314



EXHIBIT 16-A 315



EXHIBIT 16-A 316



EXHIBIT 16-A 317



EXHIBIT 16-A 318



EXHIBIT 16-A 319



EXHIBIT 16-A 320



EXHIBIT 16-A 321



EXHIBIT 16-A 322



EXHIBIT 16-A 323



EXHIBIT 16-A 324



EXHIBIT 16-A 325



EXHIBIT 16-A 326



EXHIBIT 16-A 327



EXHIBIT 16-A 328



EXHIBIT 16-A 329



EXHIBIT 16-A 330



EXHIBIT 16-A 331



EXHIBIT 16-A 332



EXHIBIT 16-A 333



EXHIBIT 16-A 334



EXHIBIT 16-A 335



EXHIBIT 16-A 336



EXHIBIT 16-A 337



EXHIBIT 16-A 338



EXHIBIT 16-A 339



EXHIBIT 16-A 340



EXHIBIT 16-A 341



EXHIBIT 16-A 342



EXHIBIT 16-A 343



EXHIBIT 16-A 344



 
 
 
 
 

         GEOTECHNICAL         |      ENVIRONMENTAL         |        CHEMICAL       |        MATER IAL  TEST ING         |      SPEC IAL   INSPECT IONS  

 
 
 

               444  AIRPORT  BLVD.,  SUITE  106   |  WATSONVILLE,  CA  95076   |  PHONE  831‐722‐9446   |  WWW.4PACIFIC‐CREST.COM  
 

 

 
 
 
February 4, 2018                 Project No. 0922.1‐M242‐E12 
Revised February 23, 2018 
 
Mr. Steve Tanner, PE   
Pueblo Water Resources 
4478 Market Street, Suite 705 
Ventura, CA 93003 
  
Subject:  Update to Geotechnical Investigation Report 
    MPWMD – ASR Site Expansion 
    Backflush Pit at Santa Margarita Well Site 
    1910 General Jim Moore Boulevard 
    Seaside, California 
 
  Reference:  Pacific Crest Engineering, Inc.  
    Geotechnical Investigation For New Electrical & Chemical Feed Building 
    Project No. 0922‐M242‐E12 
    Dated April 30, 2009 
 
Dear Mr. Tanner, 
 
As requested, we are providing this addendum letter to the referenced geotechnical investigation report 
that  was  prepared  by  our  firm  in  2009.    The  purpose  for  this  letter  is  to  evaluate  the  planned 
improvements  in  order  to  develop  geotechnical  recommendations  pertinent  to  the  proposed  pond 
expansion  and  update  our  2009  report  to  include  the  most  recent  CBC  design  criteria.    The 
recommendations outlined below are based on our  review of  the  referenced  soil  report, preliminary 
grading and drainage plans provided by your firm, and a visit to the site on January 30, 2018.   
 
Based on our review of Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan and Cross Section sheets dated 4/17/17, 
it is our understanding that the proposed improvements will consist of expanding the existing backflush 
pit to the north, construction of a CMU wall adjacent to General Jim Moore Boulevard, and construction 
of  a  chemical  loading  rack  along  the  northwest  corner  of  the  expanded  pond.    Also  proposed  are 
construction of two 30” treated water lines and  
 
The north and west side of the expanded pond slopes will be constructed of cut and fill.  The east side 
slopes will be comprised entirely of cuts up to 11 feet in height.  The proposed pond slopes are currently 
designed at 1:1 horizontal to vertical.   
 
The CMU wall will screen views from General Jim Moore Boulevard and will retain inboard fills generated 
as part of the pond expansion.  The proposed chemical loading rack will be supported by a reinforced 
concrete slab and will be accessed by a new AC roadway the connects to the existing entry road.  The 

EXHIBIT 16-A 345



Santa Margarita Well Site ASR Pond Expansion      Project No. 0922.1‐M242‐E12   

February 4, 2018 

Revised February 23, 2018 

     

 

 
 
 

Page 2 
 

 

new road and chemical loading rack pad will be underlain by fill ranging from approximately one to five 
feet in depth.   
 
UPDATED RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Based on our review of the proposed improvement plans, it is our opinion that, except as modified below, 
the recommendations of our 2009 geotechnical report continue to remain applicable to this project.  All 
recommendations of the 2009 Geotechnical Report and this Update Report should be closely followed 
during the design and construction phases of the project.  Any unexplained discrepancies between the 
original  report  and  this  update  should  be  brought  to  the  immediate  attention  of  the Geotechnical 
Engineer for clarification.   
 
In our opinion unreinforced 1:1 horizontal to vertical side slopes for the proposed backflush pit are too 
steep  for  long  term  stability under  saturated conditions.   Side  slopes  constructed  to  these gradients 
without slope reinforcement will be subject to erosion and sloughing, requiring continued maintenance 
over the lifetime of the project, and could potentially undermine improvements adjacent to the top of 
slope.  
 
The proposed pond expansion will require raising existing grades along the north and west sides with up 
to 4 to 5 feet of fill.   In addition, existing grades at the base of the expanded pond will be lowered by 
about 5 to 6 feet.  This will create a condition where the pond slopes will be comprised of cut overlain 
by fill.  As recommended in the soil report, fill slopes to be constructed above cut slopes should be set 
back a minimum of 8 feet horizontally from the top of the cut slope.  This is especially important where 
structural improvements such as the chemical loading rack, new access roads or new utility corridors will 
come within close proximity to the pond slopes.  Alternatively, the slope below the chemical loading rack 
pad may be constructed of engineered fill at a maximum gradient of 2:1 horizontal.  The fill slope should 
be constructed in accordance with the recommendations of the 2009 geotechnical report and Figure No. 
1 attached.   
 
If space constraints preclude the construction of 2:1 fill slopes, the pond slope below the chemical loading 
rack area may be constructed at a maximum gradient of 1:1 horizontal to vertical provided the slope is 
designed and constructed as a reinforced soil slope (RSS) with geosynthetic reinforcing.  Please refer to 
Figure No. 2 for a general schematic of a reinforced soil slope.  The geosynthetic reinforcement layers 
should extend a minimum length of 1.0 times the total vertical height of the RSS system, with vertical 
spacing not exceeding 2 feet. The reinforcing should be wrapped at the slope face with a minimum 3‐foot 
overlap as shown on Figure No. 2.   Final spacing, reinforcing type and length should be determined by 
the project design professional.  All engineered fill should be placed and compacted in accordance with 
the recommendations of our 2009 report.    It is anticipated that the onsite soils will be suitable for use 
as engineered fill for this project.   
 
Reinforced soil slopes should be constructed where ever structural, roadway and/or pipelines will come 
within 20 feet of the adjacent slope face, or 10 feet beyond the perimeter of the chemical loading rack pad, 
whichever is greater.  The RSS system should be faced with an erosion control blanket as determined by 

EXHIBIT 16-A 346



Santa Margarita Well Site ASR Pond Expansion      Project No. 0922.1‐M242‐E12   

February 4, 2018 

Revised February 23, 2018 

     

 

 
 
 

Page 3 
 

 

the project civil engineer.   The performance of erosion control measures should be routinely monitored 
and areas where the geosynthetic has been exposed should be repaired and replanted.   
 
In  other  areas  of  the  backflush  pit  expansion where  there  is  low  potential  for  undermining  adjacent 
improvements consideration should be given to constructing side slopes at gradients no steeper than 2:1 
horizontal to vertical.  Where site constraints preclude these gradients the Owner should be made aware 
of  the potential  for erosion, sloughing and  long  term  instability  requiring continued maintenance.   As a 
minimum, erosion control measures should be considered for oversteepened pond slopes.   
 
Pipelines or other utility  improvements  should be  setback a minimum of 15  feet horizontally  from  the 
outboard edge of all unreinforced slopes.   We note  that 30” RW  line may be  in close proximity  to  the 
backcut for a RSS slope below the chemical  loading rack pad and this will need to be considered when 
planning backfill methods for the utility trench.  Care should be taken not to damage the reinforcing layers 
when performing earthwork adjacent to RSS slopes.   
 
The proposed CMU wall may be designed and constructed using the lateral earth pressures and foundation 
design criteria provided in the 2009 geotechnical report for fully drained conditions.   
 
The following updated CBC design criteria should be used in the design of structural improvements for this 
project.    Structural  improvements  should  be  designed  and  constructed  in  accordance  with  the 
recommendations of  the 2009 geotechnical  report and  the most  recent CBC  requirements as outlined 
below.   

Table No. 1 ‐ 2016 CBC Seismic Design Parameters 1 

 

Seismic Design Parameter  ASCE 7‐10 Value 

Site Class  D 

Spectral Acceleration for Short Periods  Ss = 1.471g 

Spectral Acceleration for 1‐second Period  S1 = 0.529g 

Short Period Site Coefficient  Fa = 1.0 

1‐Second Period Site Coefficient  Fv = 1.5 

MCE Spectral Response Acceleration for Short Period  SMS = 1.471g 

MCE Spectral Response Acceleration for 1‐Second Period  SM1 = 0.794g 

Design Spectral Response Acceleration for Short Period  SDS = 0.981g 

Design Spectral Response Acceleration for 1‐Second Period  SD1 = 0.529g 

Seismic Design Category2  D 
 

Note 1:    Design values have been obtained by using the Ground Motion Parameter Calculator available on the USGS 
website at http://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/designmaps/usdesign.php. 

Note 2:      The Seismic Design Category assumes a structure with Risk Category  I,  II or  III occupancy as defined by 
Table 1604.5 of  the 2016 CBC.   Pacific Crest Engineering  Inc. should be contacted  for  revised Table 1 
seismic design parameters if the proposed structure has a different occupancy rating than that assumed. 

 

EXHIBIT 16-A 347



Santa Margarita Well Site ASR Pond Expansion      Project No. 0922.1‐M242‐E12   

February 4, 2018 

Revised February 23, 2018 

     

 

 
 
 

Page 4 
 

 

This report is issued as an addendum to our April 30, 2009 geotechnical report and should be reviewed in 
conjunction with  that  document.    Except  as modified  herein,  all  recommendations  of  the April  2009 
geotechnical report remain applicable to the design and construction of the project.   
 
We respectfully request an opportunity to review the project plans and specifications during preparation 
and before bidding to ensure that the recommendations of this report have been included and to provide 
additional  recommendations,  if needed.   These plan  review  services  are  also  typically  required by  the 
reviewing agency.  Misinterpretation of our recommendations or omission of our requirements from the 
project plans and specifications may result in changes to the project design during the construction phase, 
with the potential for additional costs and delays in order to bring the project into conformance with the 
requirements  outlined  within  this  report.    Services  performed  for  review  of  the  project  plans  and 
specifications  are  considered  “post‐report”  services  and  billed  on  a  “time  and materials”  fee  basis  in 
accordance with our latest Standard Fee Schedule.   
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service.  If you have any questions regarding this update  letter, 
please contact our office.   
 
Sincerely,  
 
PACIFIC CREST ENGINEERING INC. 

 
Elizabeth M. Mitchell, GE 
President/Principal Geotechnical Engineer 
GE 2718, Expires 12/13/18 
 
Copies:  2 to Client 
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 348



EXHIBIT 16-A 349



Pa
ci

fi
c 

C
re

st
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 In

c.

EXHIBIT 16-A 350

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
min

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM OF POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" TW

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RW

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H min

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' max

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'min

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOSYNTHETIC REINFORCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
444 Airport Blvd., Suite 106

AutoCAD SHX Text
Watsonville, CA 95076

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ph: (831) 763-6191

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fax: (831) 763-6195

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA MARGARITA WELL SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASR SITE EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIGURE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawing No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rev:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MJM 2/23/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0922.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSS SECTION A-A'



Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates    

 

ATTACHMENT 4 

 

APPROVED MMRP FOR THE AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY PROJECT 

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 351



Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates    

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 352



Chapter 4 
Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

CEQA requires that when a lead agency makes findings of significant effects 
identified in an EIR, it must also adopt a program for reporting and monitoring 
mitigation measures that were adopted or made conditions of project approval.  
NEPA requires that the lead agency must include a monitoring and enforcement 
program for each mitigation measure identified in an EA or Environmental 
Impact Statement.  The objectives of the monitoring are to: 

� ensure that mitigation measures are properly implemented, 

� provide feedback to agency staff and decision makers about the effectiveness 
of their actions, 

� provide learning opportunities for improving mitigation measures on future 
projects, and 

� identify the need for enforcement action before irreversible environmental 
damage occurs. 

This Mitigation Monitoring Plan (MMP) is designed to ensure that the mitigation 
measures identified in the EIR/EA are fully implemented.  The MMP contains 
each mitigation measure found in the EIR/EA and is organized by topic in the 
same order as the contents of the EIR/EA.  The agency responsible for 
monitoring is identified for each measure.  The MMP will be considered by the 
MPWMD in conjunction with project review.  

Vegetation and Wildlife 

Mitigation Measure BIO-1:  Minimize or Prevent Disturbance to 
Adjacent NRMA 
To prevent disturbance of the adjacent NRMA, management measures will be 
carried out during project construction and operation to minimize construction 
effects and the potential for introducing invasive nonnative species.  The 
construction contractor will implement BMPs to prevent the spread outside the 
construction area of construction materials, oil and fuel, sidecast soil, dust, or 
water runoff.  All invasive nonnative plants, such as iceplant or pampas grass, 
will be removed from the construction area prior to site disturbance to avoid the 
spread of plant fragments or seeds.  A firebreak consistent with the requirements 
of the Presidio of Monterey Fire Department and acceptable to the City of 

 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-1 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 353



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District  Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan

 

Seaside Fire Department will be located and maintained by MPWMD between 
the well site and the adjacent NRMA. 

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during construction. 

Mitigation Measure BIO-2:  Remove Trees and Shrubs during the 
Nonbreeding Season for Most Birds (September 1 To February 15) 
Clearing of the site for inspection, maintenance and cleaning, and construction of 
the well and associated facilities and the pipeline, and subsequent inspection and 
maintenance and cleaning activities will result in the removal of trees and shrubs 
that provide suitable nesting habitat for migratory birds.  To avoid the loss of 
active migratory bird nests, tree and shrub removal will be conducted only during 
the nonbreeding season for migratory birds (generally September 1 to February 
15).  Removing woody vegetation during the nonbreeding season will ensure that 
active nests will not be destroyed by removal of trees supporting or adjacent to 
active nests. 

Monitoring:  Prior to initiation of construction activities, MPWMD will ensure 
that this mitigation measure is implemented.  MPWMD is responsible for 
ensuring compliance for the duration of the project. 

Aquatic Resources 

Mitigation Measure AR-1:  Conduct Annual Survey Below River Mile 
5.5 and Monitor River Flow in January–June Period. 
Even though the project impact is beneficial and no mitigation is required, the 
following mitigation is proposed to ensure adequate monitoring of the lower 
Carmel River.   At the beginning of each diversion season and following each 
storm with a peak flow greater than 3,000 cfs, MPWMD shall conduct a survey 
of the river channel below RM 5.5 and identify five specific locations where low 
flows or the channel configuration could potentially block or impair upstream 
migration of adult steelhead.1  During the period from December 1 through May 
31 when water is being diverted from the Carmel River and injected into the 
Seaside Groundwater Basin, MPWMD shall monitor flow at the Highway One 
Bridge, and water currents, depths, and channel configuration at each of the five 
sites previously identified.  If evidence of impairment or blockage is found, 
MPWMD shall cease diverting until flow increases or until the channel 
configuration is modified so as to alleviate the blockage or impairment.  In the 
event that channel conditions improve or deteriorate for more than two seasons, 
the bypass flow criteria shall be reexamined and may be modified by among 
between NOAA Fisheries, CDFG, and the MPWMD. 

                                                      
1 Potential impairment or blockage shall be monitored by measuring water depths at the shallowest points at 2-foot 
intervals along the crest of riffles.  For the purpose of monitoring and assessing the need for channel modifications, 
the potential for impairment and/or blockage shall be based on the following criteria:  blockage, if the width and 
depth of a continuous section is less than 5 feet wide and > 0.6 feet deep; impaired, if the width and depth of a 
continuous section is five to ten feet wide and > 0.6 feet deep, and no impairment, if the width and depth of a 
continuous section is ≥ 10 feet wide and > 0.6 feet deep.  
 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-2 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 354



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District  Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan

 

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during project 
operation. 

Mitigation Measure AR-2:  Cooperate to Help Develop a Project to 
Maintain, Recover, or Increase Storage in Los Padres Reservoir and 
If Needed, Continue Funding Program to Rescue and Rear Isolated 
Juveniles 
To ensure the continued benefit of the Proposed Project to the Carmel River and 
dependent resources during future low-flow periods, MPWMD will encourage 
and work with Cal-Am, CDFG, and NOAA Fisheries to investigate and develop 
a project to improve summer flows and the quality of releases by maintaining, 
recovering, or increasing storage capacity in the existing Los Padres Reservoir.  
MPWMD will provide staff expertise and data, as requested.  Cal-Am, as owner 
and operator of Los Padres Dam and Reservoir, is responsible for maintenance of 
the dam and compliance with existing regulations, including water right 
conditions.  MPWMD will request that Cal-Am develop an updated elevation-
capacity curve for Los Padres Reservoir that provides current estimates of the 
amount of storage capacity available at various elevations in the reservoir area. 

In the meantime, MPWMD will continue funding and operation of its program to 
rescue and rear juvenile steelhead that are stranded downstream of the USGS 
gaging station at Robles del Rio (RM 14.4).  This program is part of MPWMD’s 
mitigation program that was adopted in 1990 when the MPWMD Board certified 
the MPWMD Water Allocation Program EIR.  Without significant progress in 
maintaining storage capacity in Los Padres Reservoir, the rescue program will be 
needed in most years.   

Monitoring:  Cal-Am is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  Cal-Am will conduct on-site monitoring of Los Padres Reservoir 
during project operation.  MPWMD will provide staff expertise and data, as 
requested, and continue funding and operation of its program to rescue and rear 
juvenile steelhead. 

Cultural Resources 

Mitigation Measure CR-1:  Stop Work If Buried Cultural Deposits Are 
Encountered during Construction Activities  
If buried cultural resources such as chipped stone or groundstone, historic debris, 
building foundations, or human bone are inadvertently discovered during ground-
disturbing activities, the construction contractor will stop work in that area and 
within a 100-foot radius of the find until a qualified archaeologist can assess the 
significance of the find and, if necessary, develop appropriate treatment 
measures.  Treatment measures typically include avoidance strategies or 
mitigation of impacts through data recovery programs such as excavation or 
detailed documentation.  

 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-3 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 355



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District  Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan

 

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during construction. 

Mitigation Measure CR-2:  Stop Work If Human Remains Are 
Encountered during Construction Activities 
If human skeletal remains are encountered, the construction contractor will notify 
MPWMD and the county coroner immediately.  MPWMD will ensure the 
construction specifications include this order.  

If the county coroner determines that the remains are Native American, the 
coroner will be required to contact the Native American Heritage Commission 
(pursuant to Section 7050.5 [c] of the California Health and Safety Code) and the 
County Coordinator of Indian Affairs.  A qualified Jones & Stokes archaeologist 
will also be contacted immediately.  

If human remains are discovered in any location other than a dedicated cemetery, 
there will be no further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area 
reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent human remains until: 

� the coroner of the county has been informed and has determined that no 
investigation of the cause of death is required; and 

� if the remains are of Native American origin: 

� the descendants of the deceased Native Americans have made a 
recommendation to the landowner or the person responsible for the 
excavation work for means of treating or disposing of with appropriate 
dignity the human remains and any associated grave goods as provided 
in Public Resources Code Section 5097.98; or 

� the NAHC was unable to identify a descendent or the descendent failed 
to make a recommendation within 24 hours after being notified by the 
commission. 

According to the California Health and Safety Code, six or more human burials 
at one location constitute a cemetery (Section 8100), and disturbance of Native 
American cemeteries is a felony (Section 7052).  Section 7050.5 requires that 
construction or excavation be stopped in the vicinity of discovered human 
remains until the coroner can determine whether the remains are those of a 
Native American.  If the remains are determined to be Native American, the 
coroner must contact the NAHC. 

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during construction. 

 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-4 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 356



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District  Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan

 

Surface and Groundwater Hydrology and Water 
Quality 

Mitigation Measure GWH-1:  Comply with Performance Standards in 
NPDES Permits   
All construction activities, vehicle storage, and discharges associated with project 
construction and operation, including well discharges, shall be accomplished in 
accordance with NPDES permits from the RWQCB to ensure no degradation of 
surface or groundwater quality.  All performance standards contained in the 
permit will be met.   

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during construction. 

Mitigation Measure GWH-2:  Operate Project in Compliance with 
SWRCB and DHS Policies   
MPWMD shall operate the Proposed Project in compliance with the SWRCB's 
Anti-Degradation Policy (Resolution 68-16), and applicable DHS regulations 
regarding drinking water quality. 

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during project 
operation. 

Mitigation Measure GWH-3:  Modify Project Operations as Required 
by Results of Monitoring   
Groundwater conditions shall be tracked via the MPWMD’s existing monthly 
monitoring program.  In the event that any adverse impacts to groundwater 
conditions occur, MPWMD shall halt operations and consult with the RWQCB to 
determine appropriate operational changes. 

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during project 
operation. 

Mitigation Measure GWH-4:  Operate Project in Compliance With 
NOAA Fisheries Recommendations and to Reduce Unlawful 
Diversions 

MPWMD shall operate the Proposed Project in accordance with all of the bypass 
terms recommended by NOAA Fisheries in its 2002 report, Instream Flow Needs 
for Steelhead in the Carmel River, Bypass Flow Recommendations for Water 
Supply Projects Using Carmel River Waters.  In addition, Cal-Am shall, to the 
maximum extent feasible, be required to utilize water that is available from the 
Seaside Basin due to the Proposed Project during the low-flow season from June 
1 through November 30 to help reduce unlawful diversions from the Carmel 
River. 

 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-5 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 357



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District  Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan

 

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during project 
operation. 

Noise 

Mitigation Measure NZ-1a:  Prohibit Ancillary and Unnecessary 
Equipment During Nighttime Well Drilling Activities. 
The project applicant shall ensure that the construction contractor prohibit the use 
of all ancillary and unnecessary equipment during nighttime hours.  The only 
equipment that will be allowed to operate during nighttime activities would be 
the drilling and well construction equipment; cleanup and other activities will 
occur only during daytime activities. 

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during construction. 

Mitigation Measure NZ-1b:  Employ Noise-Reducing Construction 
Practices to Meet Nighttime Standards. 
The construction contractor will employ noise-reducing construction practices 
such that nighttime standards (Table 10-3) are not exceeded.  Measures that will 
be used to limit noise include, but are not limited to: 

� using noise-reducing enclosures around noise-generating equipment; 

� constructing barriers between noise sources and noise-sensitive land uses or 
taking advantage of existing barrier features (terrain, structures) to block 
sound transmission; and 

� enclosing equipment. 

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during construction. 

Mitigation Measure NZ-1c:  Prepare a Noise Control Plan.   
The construction contractor will prepare a detailed noise control plan based on 
the construction methods proposed.  This plan will identify specific measurement 
that will be taken to ensure compliance with the noise limits specified above.  
The noise control plan will be reviewed and approved by City of Seaside staff 
before any noise-generating construction activity begins. 

Monitoring:  Prior to initiation of construction activities, MPWMD will ensure 
that this mitigation measure is implemented.  MPWMD is responsible for 
ensuring compliance for the duration of the project. 

Mitigation Measure NZ-1d:  Disseminate Essential Information to 
Residences and Implement a Complaint/Response Tracking 
Program. 
The construction contractor will notify residences within 500 feet of the 
construction areas of the construction schedule in writing prior to construction.  

 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-6 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 358



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District  Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan

 

The construction contractor will designate a noise disturbance coordinator who 
will be responsible for responding to complaints regarding construction noise.  
The coordinator will determine the cause of the complaint and will ensure that 
reasonable measures are implemented to correct the problem.  A contact 
telephone number for the noise disturbance coordinator will be conspicuously 
posted on construction site fences and will be included in the written notification 
of the construction schedule sent to nearby residents. 

Monitoring:  Prior to initiation of construction activities, MPWMD will ensure 
that this mitigation measure is implemented.  MPWMD is responsible for 
ensuring compliance for the duration of the project. 

Mitigation Measure NZ-2:  Design Pump Stations to Meet Local Noise 
Standards. 
MPWMD will design the new pump station and chemical/electrical building so 
that noise levels do not exceed applicable City of Seaside noise standards and 
ordinances.  Prior to field acceptance, MPWMD will retain an acoustical 
consultant to measure noise levels from the operating facility.  If project-
generated noise exceeds the noise ordinance performance standards, additional 
noise attenuation measures will be implemented to meet the standards.  The 
proposed facility will not receive final acceptance until the required noise 
standards are met.  This measure will be made a condition of the final design 
review. 

Monitoring:  Prior to initiation of construction activities, MPWMD will ensure 
that this mitigation measure is implemented.  MPWMD is responsible for 
ensuring compliance for the duration of the project. 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

Mitigation Measure HAZ-1:  Implement MEC Safety Precautions 
during Grading and Construction Activities at the Project Site. 
Because of the proposed well site’s location, the following safety precautions are 
required for on-site activities.  The requirements may be modified upon 
completion of the Munitions Response Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study 
(MR RI/FS) process for the munitions response sites. 

� All personnel accessing the proposed well site will be trained in MEC 
recognition.  This safety training is provided by the U.S. Army at no cost to 
the trainee.  Training may be scheduled by contacting Fort Ord BRAC 
Office, Lyle Shurtleff at 831-242-7919. 

� If an item is discovered that is or could be MEC, it shall not be disturbed.  
The item shall be reported immediately to the Presidio of Monterey Police 
Department at 831-242-7851 so that appropriate U.S. military explosive 
ordnance disposal personnel can be dispatched to address such MEC as 
required under applicable law and regulations at the expense of the army.  

 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-7 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 359



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District  Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan

 

� Ground disturbing activities, including perimeter fence installation, will be 
coordinated with USACE Unexploded Ordnance Safety Specialist so that 
appropriate construction-related precautions may be provided (Fisbeck pers. 
comm.).  The USACE Pamphlet EP 75-1-2 entitled Munitions and 
Explosives of Concern (MEC) Support During Hazardous, Toxic and 
Radioactive Waste (HTRW) and Construction Activities, dated August 1, 
2004, which can be found at http://www.usace.army.mil/inet/usace-docs/eng-
pamphlets/ep75-1-2/toc.htm shall be followed by the USACE Safety 
Specialist to determine the type of construction oversight that will be needed 
based on the type of construction activities to be performed.  

� Construction activities at the project site are subject to Monterey County 
Code, Ordinance 5012, Subsection 1 dated 2005, Title 16 “Environment,” 
Chapter 16.1 “Digging and Excavating on the Former Fort Ord,” which can 
be found at http://municipalcodes.lexisnexis.com/codes/montereyco.  This 
ordinance prohibits excavation, digging, development, or ground disturbance 
unless an excavation permit is obtained and the permit requirements are 
followed.  

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during construction. 

Public Services and Utilities 

Mitigation Measure PS-1:  Coordinate Relocation and Interruptions 
of Service with Utility Providers during Construction 
The construction contractor will contact Underground Service Alert 
(800/642-2444) at least 48 hours before excavation work begins in order to verify 
the nature and location of underground utilities.  In addition, the contractor will 
notify and coordinate with public and private utility providers at least 48 hours 
before the commencement of work adjacent to any utility, unless the excavation 
permit specifies otherwise.  In addition, the service provider will be notified in 
advance of all service interruptions and will be given sufficient time to notify 
customers.  The timing of interruptions will be coordinated with the providers to 
ensure that the frequency and duration of interruptions are minimized. 

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during construction. 

Mitigation Measure PS-2:  Protect All Existing Utilities Slated to 
Remain 
The construction contractor will be responsible for ensuring protection of all 
utilities slated to remain.  All buried lines will be tape-coated in accordance with 
the requirements of American Water Works Association C214.  All new water 
services, fire services, and water mains will be cathodically protected, in 
accordance with contract documents.  In addition, the contractor will be required 
to comply with State Department of Health Services criteria for the separation of 
water mains and sanitary sewers, as set forth in Section 64630, Title 22, of the 

 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-8 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 360



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District  Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan

 

California Administrative Code.  MPWMD will ensure this measure is included 
in the contract specifications. 

Monitoring:  MPWMD is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  MPWMD will conduct on-site monitoring during construction. 

Visual Resources 

Mitigation Measure VIS-1:  Incorporate Light-Reduction Measures 
into the Plan and Design of Exterior Lighting at Well Site. 
Where lighting is required or proposed, MPWMD will incorporate the following 
light-reduction measures into the lighting design specifications to reduce light 
and glare.  The lighting design will also meet minimum safety and security 
standards. 

� Luminaires will be the minimum required for property security to minimize 
incidental light. 

� Luminaires will be cutoff-type fixtures that cast low-angle illumination to 
minimize incidental spillover of light onto adjacent properties and open 
space.  Fixtures that project light upward or horizontally will not be used. 

� Luminaires will be focused only where needed (such as building entrances) 
and should not provide a general “wash” of light on building surfaces. 

� Luminaires will be directed away from habitat and open space areas adjacent 
to the project site. 

� Luminaires will provide good color rendering and natural light qualities.  
Low-pressure sodium and high-pressure sodium fixtures that are not color-
corrected will not be used. 

� Luminaire mountings will be downcast and the height of poles minimized to 
reduce potential for backscatter into the nighttime sky and incidental 
spillover of light onto adjacent properties and open space.  Light poles will 
be no higher than 20 feet.  Luminaire mountings will have nonglare finishes. 

Monitoring:  Prior to initiation of construction activities, MPWMD will ensure 
that this mitigation measure is implemented.  MPWMD is responsible for 
ensuring compliance for the duration of the project. 

Cumulative Impacts 

Mitigation Measure Cume-1:  Coordinate with Relevant Local 
Agencies to Develop and Implement a Phased Construction Plan to 
Reduce Cumulative Traffic, Air Quality, and Noise Impacts 
MPWMD will contact local agencies that have projects planned in the same area 
(i.e., project sites within 1 mile or projects that affect the same roadways) and 
that have construction schedules that overlap with construction of the Proposed 

 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-9 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 361



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District  Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan

 

Project.  MPWMD (or their contractor) will coordinate with local agencies 
responsible for said projects to develop a phased construction plan that includes 
the following components. 

� Evaluate roadways affected by construction activities and minimize roadway 
and traffic disturbance (e.g., lane closures and detours) and the number of 
construction vehicles using the roadways.  This may involve scheduling 
some construction activities simultaneously or phasing. 

� Prepare compatible traffic control plans for construction projects.  If one 
traffic control plan cannot be prepared, the construction contractor for the 
Proposed Project and the relevant local agencies (or their construction 
contractors) will ensure that the traffic control plans for projects affecting the 
same roadways are compatible.  The traffic control plan can be modeled after 
that required for the Proposed Project in Chapter 2.   

� Phase construction activities so NOx and PM10 emissions remain below 
MPUAPCD thresholds.  For medium and large projects (defined as projects 
that involve construction on a 1-acre site or larger because there is a 
reasonable likelihood it could contribute to exceeding the MBUAPCD NOx 
and PM10 emissions thresholds) that will be constructed during the same 
timeframe, MPWMD and the agencies will develop a phased construction 
plan so the cumulative NOx emissions remain below 137 pounds per day and 
the cumulative PM10 emissions remain below 82 pounds per day (or less 
than 2.2 acres per day is disturbed).  The phased construction plan will 
identify planned construction activities and equipment, anticipated emissions, 
and a schedule that can be used to estimate daily emissions.  The phased 
construction plan will be reviewed and approved by the MPUAPCD.  It will 
likely be necessary for proponents of other projects to implement NOx-
reducing construction practices, as well as dust reduction measures, to ensure 
NOx and PM10 emissions are at acceptable levels.  The dust reduction 
measures should include all feasible measures contained in Table 8-2 of 
MBUAPCD’s CEQA Air Quality Guidelines (Getchell pers. comm.), which 
include the following. 

� Limit grading to 8.1 acres per day and grading and excavation to 2.2 
acres per day. 

� Water graded / excavated areas at least twice daily.  Frequency 
should be based on the type of operations, soil and wind exposure. 

� Prohibit all grading activities during periods of high wind (over 15 
mph). 

� Apply chemical soil stabilizers on inactive construction areas 
(disturbed lands within construction projects that are unused for at 
least four consecutive days). 

� Apply nontoxic binders (e.g., latex acrylic copolymer) to exposed 
areas after cut and fill operations, and hydro-seed area. 

� Haul trucks shall maintain at least 2’0” of freeboard. 

� Cover all trucks hauling dirt, sand, or loose materials. 

 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-10 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 362



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District  Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan

 

� Plant tree windbreaks on the windward perimeter of construction 
projects if adjacent to open land. 

� Plant vegetative ground cover in disturbed areas as soon as possible. 

� Cover inactive storage piles. 

� Install wheel washers at the entrance to construction sites for all 
exiting trucks. 

� Pave all roads at construction sites. 

Monitoring:  Prior to initiation of construction activities, MPWMD will ensure 
that this mitigation measure is implemented.  MPWMD is responsible for 
ensuring compliance for the duration of the project. 

Temporary Pipeline Analysis 

Mitigation Measure WLD-1.  Comply with U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service Biological Opinion Terms and Conditions.  The U.S. Army will 
require that any contracts let to construct the proposed temporary pipeline 
include the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service BO terms and conditions for 
Reasonable and Prudent Measures numbers 5, 6, and 7 (U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service 2005, pages 63–65). 

Monitoring:  Prior to initiation of construction activities, Cal-Am will ensure that 
this mitigation measure is implemented.  Cal-Am is responsible for ensuring 
compliance for the duration of the project. 

Mitigation Measure WLD-2:  Remove Trees and Shrubs during the 
Nonbreeding Season for Most Birds (September 1 To February 15)  

The placement and removal of the temporary pipeline may result in the trimming 
of trees and shrubs that provide suitable nesting habitat for migratory birds.  To 
avoid the loss of active migratory bird nests, tree and shrub removal, if necessary, 
will be conducted only during the nonbreeding season for migratory birds 
(generally September 1 to February 15).  Removing woody vegetation during the 
nonbreeding season will ensure that active nests will not be destroyed by removal 
of trees supporting or adjacent to active nests.  

If shrub and tree trimming cannot be accomplished before the breeding season, a 
qualified wildlife biologist will conduct focused nest surveys for active nests of 
migratory bird species.  If active nests are found in the project area, and if 
construction activities must occur during the nesting period, an appropriate “no-
disturbance” buffer around the nest sites will be implement until the young have 
fledged (as determined by a qualified biologist). 

Monitoring:  Prior to initiation of construction activities, Cal-Am will ensure that 
this mitigation measure is implemented.  Cal-Am is responsible for ensuring 
compliance for the duration of the project. 

 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-11 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 363



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District  Revised Mitigation Monitoring Plan

 

Mitigation Measure CUL-1:  Stop Work if Buried Cultural Deposits 
Are Encountered during Construction Activities  

If buried cultural resources such as chipped or ground stone, quantities of bone or 
shell material, or historic debris or building foundations are inadvertently 
discovered during ground-disturbing activities, work will be stopped within a 
100-foot radius of the find until a qualified archaeologist can assess the 
significance of the find.  If, after evaluation by a qualified archaeologist, an 
archaeological site or other find is identified as meeting the criteria for inclusion 
in the NRHP or the CRHR, Cal-Am will retain a qualified archaeologist to 
develop and implement an adequate program for investigation, avoidance if 
feasible, and data recovery for the site, with Native American consultation, if 
appropriate. 

If human skeletal remains are inadvertently encountered during construction of 
the temporary pipeline, the contractor will contact the Monterey County Coroner 
immediately.  If the county coroner determines that the remains are Native 
American, the coroner will contact the NAHC, as required by Section 7050.5[c] 
of the California Health and Safety Code, and the County Coordinator of Indian 
Affairs.  A qualified archaeologist will also be contacted immediately.  

Monitoring:  Cal-Am is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  Cal-Am will conduct on-site monitoring during construction. 

Mitigation Measure HAZ-1:  Provide MEC Training to Construction 
Workers. 

All construction workers that will enter the project site will receive training from 
qualified personnel on the identification and avoidance of MEC prior to 
beginning work.  

Monitoring:  Cal-Am is responsible for ensuring that this mitigation measure is 
implemented.  Cal-Am will conduct on-site monitoring during construction. 

 
MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment

 
4-12 

August 2006

J&S 04637.04
 

EXHIBIT 16-A 364



Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates    

 

ATTACHMENT 5 

BID DRAWINGS FOR SANTA MARGARITA ASR FACILITY SITE EXPANSION, 

PREPARED BY MAC DESIGN ASSOCIATES AND PUEBLO WATER RESOURCES, 

DATED MAY 25, 2018 

  

EXHIBIT 16-A 365



Backflush Basin Expansion  

 

Denise Duffy and Associates    

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

 

EXHIBIT 16-A 366



Pueblo Water Resources
4478 Market St., Suite 705

Ventura, CA 93003

(805) 644-0470

GENERAL INFORMATION

1 of 9

6/14/2018

EXHIBIT 16-A 367



Pueblo Water Resources
4478 Market St., Suite 705

Ventura, CA 93003

(805) 644-0470

KEY  MAP

2 of 9

6/14/2018

EXHIBIT 16-A 368



Pueblo Water Resources
4478 Market St., Suite 705

Ventura, CA 93003

(805) 644-0470

DEMOLITION PLAN

3 of 9

6/14/2018

EXHIBIT 16-A 369



Pueblo Water Resources
4478 Market St., Suite 705

Ventura, CA 93003

(805) 644-0470

FINAL GRADING PLAN

4 of 9

6/14/2018

EXHIBIT 16-A 370



Pueblo Water Resources
4478 Market St., Suite 705

Ventura, CA 93003

(805) 644-0470

FINAL GRADING PLAN

5 of 9

6/14/2018

EXHIBIT 16-A 371



Pueblo Water Resources
4478 Market St., Suite 705

Ventura, CA 93003

(805) 644-0470

FINAL GRADING PLAN

6 of 9

6/14/2018

EXHIBIT 16-A 372



Pueblo Water Resources
4478 Market St., Suite 705

Ventura, CA 93003

(805) 644-0470

CROSS SECTION AND DETAILS

7 of 9

6/14/2018

EXHIBIT 16-A 373



Pueblo Water Resources
4478 Market St., Suite 705

Ventura, CA 93003

(805) 644-0470

RETAINING WALL PROFILE AND DETAILS

8 of 9

6/14/2018

EXHIBIT 16-A 374



Pueblo Water Resources
4478 Market St., Suite 705

Ventura, CA 93003

(805) 644-0470

EROSION CONTROL

9 of 9

6/14/2018

EXHIBIT 16-A 375



SITE DETAILS

A111

-

SHEET NAME:

SET ISSUED:

JOB NO.:

2340 GARDEN ROAD, SUITE 100

MONTEREY, CALIFORNIA 93940

PHONE: 831.649.4642

FAX: 831.649.3530

WWW.WRDARCH.COM

SHEET NO.:

FILE NAME:

CHECKED BY:

PLOT DATE:

PRINT DATE:

6.13.2018

18014

M
P

W
M

D
 
S

A
N

T
A

 
M

A
R

G
U

R
I
T

A
 
P

U
M

P
 
S

I
T

E

F
R

O
N

T
A

G
E

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

  G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 
J
I
M

 
M

O
O

R
E

 
B

L
V

D
.

S
E

A
S

I
D

E
,
 
C

A
A

P
N

#
A

.
P

.
N

.
:

ARCH. DETAIL SHEET   6/12/18

2

1/2"=1'-0"

1

1/2"=1'-0"

Santa Margarita Aquafer Storage and Recovery Facility
1910 General Jim Moore Blvd.

MONTEREY PENNINSULA
WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

173
4"

Varies
With

Height
(6', 7', 8' only)

Base Material

Uniform Zinc Coating
(Hot Dip)

Zinc Phosphate Coating
Epoxy Primer

INDUSTRIAL FLAT
MOUNT BRACKET

Acrylic Topcoat

Bracket Options

RAKING DIRECTIONAL ARROW
Welded panel can be raked
30" over 8' with arrow pointing down
grade.

MONTAGE II     RAIL
Specially formed high strength
architectural shape.

TM

PROFUSION   WELDING PROCESS
No exposed welds,
Good Neighbor profile - Same
appearance on both sides

TM

E-COAT  COATING SYSTEM

BX301BX302/303BX304

INDUSTRIAL UNIVERSAL
 BOULEVARD BRACKET

INDUSTRIAL SWIVEL
BRACKET

NOTES:
1.) Post size depends on fence height and wind loads.
     See MONTAGE II     specifications for post
     sizing chart and setting dimensions.
2.) Third & Forth rail optional.
3.) Available in Flush Bottom.

TM

13
4" MONTAGE II     Rail

(See Cross- Section Below)

TM

Post size varies with Height
(See MONTAGE II     Post-Sizing chart)TM

1

1"      14ga Picket

8' O.C. Nom.

Varies
With

Height

2" Nom.

Standard Heights
3', 31

2', 4', 5',
 6', 7', 8'

8"

2

3

2

TYPICAL33
4"

13
4"

13
4"

MONTAGE II    RAILTM
1

Values shown are nominal and not to be used for
installation purposes. See product specification
for installation requirements.

SCALE:

3

NO SCALE

Provide bolted flange anchorage on steel posts to allow
future fencing removal and installation.

6/14/2018

EXHIBIT 16-A 376



DRAFT 

EXHIBIT 16-B 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-17 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
CERTIFYING ADDENDUM 4  

TO THE AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY EIR/EA  
  

 
WHEREAS,  the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management 

District (MPWMD) has directed that its staff pursue Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) as a 
means to facilitate conjunctive use of local water resources for the benefit of the environment 
and the community; and 

 
WHEREAS, MPWMD adopted Findings Related to the Certification of the MPWMD 

Phase 1 Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project EIR and Determining Compliance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act, adopted the Mitigation and Monitoring Plan, certified the 
Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment (EIR/EA) for the Phase 1 ASR 
Project, and approved the Phase 1 ASR Project on August 21, 2006; and 

 
WHEREAS, MPWMD approved and adopted the April 2012 Addendum to the Phase 1 

ASR EIR/EA, adopted the April 2012 Mitigation Monitoring Plan, and approved the full 
implementation of ASR Water Project 2 on April 16, 2012; and  

 
WHEREAS, MPWMD approved the Hilby Avenue Pump Station and adopted the June 

2016 Hilby Avenue Pump Station Addendum as Addendum 2 to the Aquifer Storage and 
Recovery Project Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment on June 20, 2016; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, MPWMD approved a realignment of a segment of the Monterey Pipeline 

and adopted the February 2017 Monterey Pipeline Addendum as Addendum 3 to the ASR 
EIR/EA on February 22, 2017; and 

 
WHEREAS, MPWMD has followed guidelines of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) and prepared the Backflush Basin Expansion Addendum to modify the 
approved ASR Phase 1 Project by allowing expansion of the backflush pit, also called the Santa 
Margarita backflush basin, constructing a fence, and constructing two sound walls; and  

 
WHEREAS, MPWMD has prepared Findings of Environmental Review for the 

Backflush Basin Expansion Addendum to the ASR EIR/EA, attached hereto as Attachment A 
and hereby incorporated by reference. 

 
  

377



DRAFT 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

 We, the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, 
certify the Backflush Basin Expansion Addendum as a true and accurate statement of the 
environmental impacts of the construction of the Santa Margarita ASR Backflush Basin 
Expansion Project; and 
 
 Adopt the July 2018 Backflush Basin Expansion Addendum as Addendum 4 to the ASR 
EIR/EA, which found that the proposed modifications to the approved ASR Phase 1 Project 
would not result in a measurable increase in environmental impacts over what was previously 
analyzed in the 2006 ASR EIR/EA, the 2012 ASR Phase 2 Addendum, the Hilby Avenue Pump 
Station Addendum, and the Monterey Pipeline Addendum; and  
 
 Directs staff to post a Notice of Determination of this action in accordance with Section 
15094 of the CEQA Guidelines. 

 
 
On motion of Director ________ and second by Director ___________ the foregoing resolution 
is duly adopted this 16th day of July 2018 by the following votes: 
 
 AYES:  
 
 NAYS:  
 
 ABSENT:  
 
  I, David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board of Directors on the Monterey Peninsula 
Water Management District, hereby certify that the foregoing is a resolution duly adopted on the 
16th day of July 2018. 
 
  Witness my hand and seal of the Board of Directors this ___ day of July 2018. 
 
 
     _________________________________________ 
     David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board 
 
 
  

378



DRAFT 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

FINDINGS OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
FOR THE 

BACKFLUSH BASIN EXPANSION ADDENDUM TO THE 
ASR EIR/EA 

 
1) FINDING: The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) Board of 

Directors adopted the Findings Relating to Certification of the MPWMD Phase 1 Aquifer 
Storage and Recovery Project EIR and Determining Compliance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act, adopted the Mitigation Monitoring Plan, certified the Final 
Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Environmental Impact Report/Environmental 
Assessment (EIR/EA) for the Phase 1 ASR Project, and approved the Phase 1 ASR 
Project on August 21, 2006. 

 
EVIDENCE: The ASR EIR/EA and related documents are on file in the MPWMD 
office. 

 
2) FINDING: The MPWMD Board of Directors approved and adopted the April 2012 

Addendum to the Phase 1 EIR/EA (Addendum 1), adopted the April 2012 Mitigation 
Monitoring Plan for ASR Water Project 2, and approved the full implementation of ASR 
Water Project 2 on April 16, 2012. 

 
EVIDENCE: Addendum 1 and related documents are on file in the MPWMD office. 

 
3) FINDING: The MPWMD Board of Directors approved the Hilby Avenue Pump 

Station and adopted the June 2016 Hilby Avenue Pump Station Addendum as Addendum 
2 to the ASR EIR/EA on June 20, 2016  

 
EVIDENCE: Addendum 2 and related documents are on file in the MPWMD office. 

 
4) FINDING: The MPWMD Board of Directors approved a realignment of a segment of 

the Monterey Pipeline and adopted the February 2017 Monterey Pipeline Addendum as 
Addendum 3 to the ASR EIR/EA on February 22, 2017. 

 
EVIDENCE: Addendum 3 and related documents are on file in the MPWMD office. 

 
5) FINDING: MPWMD followed the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

Guidelines Sections 15162 and 15164 to determine that an Addendum evaluating the 
environmental effect of the Backflush Basin Expansion Project and future sound walls 
(together hereinafter referred to as Project) is appropriate based on the following: 

a. The Project would not result in new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and  

b. No changes in circumstances have occurred involving new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects; and  

379



DRAFT 

 
 
 

c. No new information of substantial importance which was not known and could 
not have been known at the time of the previous EIR/EA and Addenda were 
found.   

The MPWMD Board of Directors at their July 16, 2018 meeting reviewed the 
Backflush Basin Expansion Addendum (Addendum 4). 

 
EVIDENCE:  

a. Construction and operation environmental impacts and mitigation measures at the 
Phase 1 ASR Project site (Santa Margarita) were previously considered with the 
ASR EIR/EA; and 

b. Impacts from construction of a backflush basin at the ASR Water Project 2 site 
(Seaside Middle School) were previously considered with Addendum 1; and 

c. The proposed Project requires land clearing, grading, and construction of a second 
driveway entrance with environmental impacts similar to impacts previously 
considered in the ASR EIR/EA and subsequent Addenda including impacts to air 
quality, noise, and sensitive species; and 

d. All appropriate measures to reduce impacts to less than significant described in 
the adopted ASR EIR/EA and Addendum 1 Mitigation and Monitoring Programs 
would apply to the Project; and 

e. The proposed Project would not result in any new significant environmental 
effects that cannot be mitigated with existing, previously identified mitigation 
measures in the ASR EIR/EA and Addendum 1. 

f. The proposed Project would not substantially increase the severity of 
environmental effects identified in the ASR/EIR and its Addenda; and 

g. No new information of substantial importance has been identified or presented to 
MPWMD Board of Directors that the Project would result in significant 
environmental effects not identified in the ASR EIR/EA and its Addenda, more 
severe environmental effects than described in the ASR EIR/EA and its Addenda, 
or require mitigation measures which were previously determined not to be 
feasible or are considerably different from those recommended in the ASR 
EIR/EA and its Addenda; and 

h. The Agenda and supporting documents for the July 16, 2018 Board Meeting are 
on file in the District office. 

 
6) FINDING: Addendum 4 reflects the independent judgement of the MPWMD Board, 

and each participating Director has reviewed and considered the information contained in 
the Addendum and related documents prior to making the decision on the Addendum. 

 
EVIDENCE: Each Director on the Board received a copy of Addendum 4 and 
supporting documents as evidenced by the July 16, 2018 Board meeting packet. 

 
7) FINDING: The MPWMD Board finds that the proposed modifications to the 

approved ASR Phase 1 Project would not result in a measurable increase in 
environmental impacts over what was previously analyzed in the August 21, 2006 ASR 
EIR/EA and subsequent Addenda. 

 
EVIDENCE:  The above stated facts. 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\16\Item-16-Exh-B.docx 

380



ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
17. CONSIDER DECLARING MONTEREY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE 

INAPPLICABLE TO THE SLEEPY HOLLOW STEELHEAD REARING 
FACILITY UPGRADE (CEQA: Does not constitute a “Project” per California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines 15378 (b).) 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David A. Stoldt, Program/ 2-3-1-F 
 General Manager Acct. No.: 24-04-785812 
 
Staff Contact: Larry Hampson Cost Estimate:   N/A 
 
General Counsel Approval:  Yes.  
Committee Recommendation:  N/A  
CEQA Compliance:  Does not constitute a project per CEQA guidelines 15378(b) as it is 
an organizational or administrative activity that will not result in direct or indirect 
physical changes in the environment. 

 
SUMMARY:   The Board will consider whether to exempt construction activities proposed to 
upgrade the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility (SHSRF) from complying with Monterey 
County zoning ordinances under Government Code Section 53096, which provides for such an 
exemption for facilities related to the storage and transmission of water.  Operation of the SHSRF 
is a required mitigation for diversion of Carmel River flows for municipal use. 
 
The District submitted an initial application for permits to upgrade the SHSRF to the Monterey 
County Resource Management Agency (RMA) in March 2017.  RMA staff have indicated that the 
earliest a hearing can be scheduled to consider the project is July 26, 2018, after which there would 
be a one to three-month period to clear permit conditions before construction could commence. 
 
Construction of the facility upgrade must begin in early August 2018 in order to complete certain 
construction activities in the channel of the Carmel River prior to October 1, 2018, which is the 
deadline that the Regional Water Quality Control Board has set to complete work in the channel 
of the Carmel River.  Issuance of permits by Monterey County in late August or September (or 
later) would not allow the District to complete construction of necessary facilities by the October 
1 deadline. 
 
In order to exempt the facility upgrade under Government Code Section 53096, the Board must 
find that there is no feasible alternative and must vote to do so by four-fifths of its members.  For 
a seven-member Board, six votes would be necessary to approve this action. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution 2018-18 (Exhibit 
17-A) declaring Monterey County Zoning Ordinance inapplicable to the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead 
Rearing Facility Upgrade. 

381



DISCUSSION:  The Board certified the Allocation Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
in November 1990 and set limits on how much water the community may use from the Carmel 
River.   A Mitigation Program was adopted to mitigate for impacts associated with the diversion 
and use of Carmel River flows to meet municipal demand.  The Mitigation Program included the 
construction and operation of the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility (SHSRF), which is 
located along the Carmel River about one mile downstream of the former San Clemente Dam site.  
An 800-foot long channel that simulates natural river conditions is the centerpiece of the facility 
and has been operated since 1996 to mitigate for the impacts to steelhead due to Carmel River 
diversions by California American Water and other diverters along the river that dry up the stream 
in the lower nine miles of the river almost annually.  The facility is designed to rear steelhead 
rescued from reaches of the river before it goes dry.  Steelhead are reared for several months at the 
SHSRF and are returned to the river when it reconnects to the lagoon, usually in late fall or early 
winter.   
 
With the removal of San Clemente Dam and an increase in debris and sediment load at the facility’s 
water intake, an upgrade is required to replace the intake and make the facility plumbing and 
filtration capabilities more robust to withstand changing conditions in water quality and quantity.  
In addition, the National Marine Fisheries Service and the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife are requiring the District to operate the facility for longer periods in order to hold fish in 
the facility until habitat conditions in the river are the best possible for steelhead survival.  Because 
river flows can remain very low during drought periods, the facility may also need to operate year-
round, which it is not designed to do currently.  In addition to required operation under the 
Allocation Program EIR, the State Water Resources Control Board has also required that the 
facility continue to operate as a condition of Order 95-10 and subsequent Cease-and-Desist Orders, 
which require Cal-Am to reduce unlawful Carmel River diversions and find replacement supplies. 
 
The Facility Upgrade Project includes: 1) temporarily diverting flow in the Carmel River in order 
to remove the existing intake and install a new intake with erosion protection that will be capable 
of providing flow to the rearing facility under a variety of adverse conditions; and 2) installing 
new pumps, plumbing, filters, a building to house facilities, and other upgrades to allow 
recirculation of a portion of rearing channel flow.  The Project includes mitigation measures to 
reduce potential impacts from the work to a less than significant level. 
 
District staff submitted an initial application to Monterey County in March 2017 for an Amended 
Use Permit to construct the proposed facility upgrade (original construction of the facility was 
completed under a 1996 Use Permit issued by the County).  There were long delays in processing 
the facility upgrade application through Monterey County and there were delays in obtaining 
information and making design changes in response to RMA and Monterey County Water 
Resources Agency comments on the design.  Eventually, in April 2018, the project application was 
considered complete; however, a hearing on the application is not scheduled until July 26, 2018.  
After approval of an Amended Use Permit, the County requires an applicant to obtain a grading 
permit and building permit.  In addition, several conditions attached to the draft Amended Use 
Permit require further County review and approval of several documents and plans before 
construction can begin.  The additional review and approval process by the County was estimated 
by the County planner to take 30 to 60 days if there are no complications during review.  With this 

382



schedule, the soonest the project could start would be late August and more likely late September 
or later if there are complications in meeting permit conditions.   
 
The facility upgrade has been designed to meet the 2016 California Building Code adopted by the 
County as well as Monterey County’s requirements for facilities built adjacent to the Carmel River.  
District staff and third-party inspection services will carry out inspections and monitor 
construction activities to ensure that the project is built according to the design and in compliance 
with permits issued by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board, and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife.  
 
Work in the channel of the Carmel River requires dewatering of a portion of the bottom of the 
river.  There is a limited time during the year when this can occur – usually between July and 
October when Carmel River flows are at their lowest.  At other times of the year, steelhead are 
migrating through the river and would be impacted by in-channel work or river flows are too high 
to work in.   
 
It is important to note that the California Department of Fish and Wildlife and the National Marine 
Fisheries Service have allowed the District to forego operation of the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead 
Rearing Facility in 2018 to accommodate construction of the upgrade in 2018 in a single phase.  
This was an unusual action by these agencies, as the alternative to placing fish at SHSRF that are 
rescued from drying reaches of the river SHSRF is to place them in river reaches with perennial 
flow, which can result in overcrowding and higher loss of steelhead.   
 
If the facility is required to be operation while an upgrade is carried out, completing the upgrade 
would require several phases of construction.  This would increase costs and the complexity of 
completing construction and commissioning the project.  In addition, staff believe that it may not 
be possible to run the SHSRF without completion of the upgrade.  This is due to the large volume 
of sand that was introduced to the river at the SHSRF site after the removal of San Clemente Dam.  
Occasional use of the SHSRF pumps to provide water for routine maintenance in 2017 (a year that 
the facility was not required to be operated due to year-round flow in the river) resulted in large 
volumes of sand passing through the system intake in just a few hours.  The intake and pumps are 
not designed for this type of condition. 
 
Staff estimate that construction in the channel bottom could take eight weeks to complete.  If 
construction of the facility upgrade is approved by the MPWMD Board at the July 16, 2018 
meeting, it is anticipated that construction would start in early August and would be finished by 
the October 1 deadline.  A later start would compromise the feasibility of completing work in the 
channel in 2018 and would trigger phasing and additional costs for the project.  Completion of the 
facility upgrade and commissioning operations of the new facilities would likely be delayed into 
2020, which would be an undesirable outcome for steelhead. 
 
Staff have concluded that it is not feasible to complete construction activities in the Carmel River 
channel in 2018, if the project start must wait for the issuance of all Monterey County permits for 
this project.  It is District staff’s understanding that RMA staff and MCWRA staff would not object 
to the District taking an action under Government Code 53096.  MCWRA staff stated that the re-
design of the facility has satisfied their concern about a potential increase in the 100-year flood 

383



elevation.  In addition, the project was re-designed to meet more stringent seismic safety standards 
recommended in a building-specific geotechnical investigation requested by the County RMA. 
 
CEQA and Government Code Action Required 
Under Government Code 53096, the governing board of a local agency may declare city or county 
zoning ordinance inapplicable to a proposed use of property for facilities related to storage or 
transmission of water.  The Board certified the Allocation Program EIR in November 1990 that 
set a limit on how much water Cal-Am can divert to its system and at the same time adopted a 
Mitigation Program to mitigate for impacts associated with the diversion and use of Carmel River 
flow by Cal-Am and others.  The Mitigation Program included construction and operation of the 
SHSRF.  Thus, the SHSRF meets the test of being a facility related to transmission of water.  The 
proposed facility upgrade was previously approved by the Board at their November 14, 2016 
meeting under a Mitigated Negative Declaration.  The Board subsequently amended the Project 
on January 25, 2017 and July 16, 2018 (see related item in this packet under Public Hearings) and 
the State Coastal Conservancy amended the Project on November 30, 2017. 
 
It is staff’s opinion that it is not feasible to obtain Monterey County permits and complete the 
project in a timely manner.  Completion of the upgrade is necessary to ensure that the facility can 
operate with changed conditions in the Carmel River due to the removal of San Clemente Dam.  A 
delay in completing the facility upgrade would likely result in harm to steelhead present in drying 
reaches of the river due to the risk that those steelhead would not be allowed to be placed into 
perennial flow reaches and create an overcrowding condition. 
 
IMPACT TO DISTRICT RESOURCES:  There would be reduced costs to the District by not 
having to pay additional Monterey County fees associated with obtaining permits.  
 
EXHIBIT 
17-A Resolution 2018-18 Rendering Monterey County Zoning Ordinance Inapplicable to the 

Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility Upgrade 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\17\Item-17.docx 

384



DRAFT 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 

831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  
 

 
EXHIBIT 17-A 

 
RESOLUTION 2018-18 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 OF THE 
 MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
DECLARING MONTEREY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE INAPPLICABLE TO THE 

SLEEPY HOLLOW STEELHEAD REARING FACILITY UPGRADE 
  
 WHEREAS, The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (District) is committed 
to mitigating the environmental impact of diversions from the Carmel River Basin; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Board certified the Allocation Program Environmental Impact Report 
in November 1990 that set limits on how much water the community may use from the Carmel 
River and adopted a Mitigation Program to mitigate for impacts associated with the diversion 
and use of Carmel River flows; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  The Mitigation Program included the construction and operation of the 
Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The District certified an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(IS/MND) and Mitigation and Monitoring Program for the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing 
Facility (SHSRF) Raw Water Intake and Water Supply System Upgrade Project (Project) and 
approved the Project on November 14, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The District applied to Monterey County in March 2017 for permits to 
construct the Project and has received a tentative date from Monterey County of July 26, 2018 for 
an administrative hearing to consider approval of the project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The District must initiate construction of the Project in early August 2018 in 
order to complete certain improvements prior to October 1, 2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The District has reason to believe that Monterey County will not be able to 
issue permits in a manner timely to begin construction of the Project in early August 2018 and 
complete certain improvements in the channel of the Carmel River before October 1, 2018;  
 
 WHEREAS, There is no feasible alternative that would allow construction of the work in 
the channel of the Carmel River to be completed in 2018. 
 
  
 

385

http://www.mpwmd.net/


DRAFT 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
 We, the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, 
determine that the Monterey County Zoning Ordinance shall not apply to the construction of the 
Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility Raw Water Intake and Water Supply System Upgrade 
Project. 
 

On motion of Director ________ and second by Director ___________ the foregoing 
resolution is duly adopted this 16th day of July 2018 by the following votes: 
 
 AYES:  
 
 NAYS:  
 
 ABSENT:  
 
  I, David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board of Directors on the Monterey Peninsula 
Water Management District, hereby certify that the foregoing is a resolution duly adopted on the 
16th day of July 2018. 
 
  Witness my hand and seal of the Board of Directors this ___ day of July 2018. 
 
 
     _________________________________________ 
     David J. Stoldt, Secretary to the Board 
 

 
 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\PublicHrng\17\Item-17-Exh-A.docx 

386



ITEM: ACTION ITEM 
 
18. CONSIDER EXPENDITURE TO CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION AND 

RELATED SERVICES FOR THE SLEEPY HOLLOW STEELHEAD REARING 
FACILITY RAW WATER INTAKE AND WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM UPGRADE 
PROJECT (The Board certified the Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
for this project and adopted the Mitigation and Monitoring and Reporting Plan on 
November 14, 2016.) 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   Yes 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, 

General Manager 
Program/ Protect Environmental 

Quality  
  Line Item No.:   2-3-1-F 
 
Prepared By:                    Larry Hampson Cost Estimate:   $2,000,000 
 
General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on July 
10, 2018 and recommended approval. 
CEQA Compliance:  The Board certified the Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 
Declaration for this project and adopted the Mitigation and Monitoring and Reporting Plan 
on November 14, 2016. 
 
SUMMARY:  Staff proposes to complete an upgrade to the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing 
Facility (SHSRF) located on the Carmel River, about a mile downstream of the former San 
Clemente Dam site.  The facility upgrade includes a new intake structure in the river, new pumps, 
a filtering system, disease control, a recirculating aquaculture system, advanced alarm systems and 
a power upgrade. 
 
The District advertised for bids during the month of June 2018 and received one bid at a cost of 
$1,802,835 as shown in Exhibit 18-A.  Additional work includes setting survey control, inspection 
and testing, and completing record drawings.  Estimated total costs to construct the project are 
shown in Table 1 below. The District and the State Coastal Conservancy have entered into an 
agreement to reimburse the District for up to $1.8 million in expenses associated with the 
construction of the facility upgrade.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Board of Directors should approve the following actions: 
 

1. Authorize the General Manager to enter into a contract with Mercer-Fraser Company for 
construction of the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility Raw Water Intake and Water 
Supply System Upgrade Project at a cost Not-to-Exceed $1,802,835. 

 
2. Authorize the General Manager to approve service contracts for associated tasks for up to 

$30,000. 
 

387



3. Authorize the General Manager to approve change orders to the construction and service 
contracts or for new service contracts for the Project to allow for unforeseen items up to $157,165. 

 
DISCUSSION:  An upgrade of the intake at the SHSRF was first identified in 2001 and has been 
a high priority project to improve management of steelhead since 2005.  The National Marine 
Fisheries Service and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife have requested that 
MPWMD allow steelhead to remain longer at the facility than current operational capability 
allows.  The upgrade project addresses three conditions that can force a shutdown of the facility: 
1) extreme low flow during droughts; 2) increased sediment and debris flow since the removal of 
San Clemente Dam; and 3) high flows in early winter before steelhead are ready to be released.  
 
Staff has applied for necessary permits from local, state and federal agencies.  At their November 
14, 2016 meeting, the Board of Directors adopted findings and certified the Initial Study/Mitigated 
Negative Declaration under CEQA for the Project.  MPWMD has also requested an amendment 
to the operating agreement with California American Water to recognize construction of the new 
improvements.  All authorizations will need to be complete before the Contractor is given a Notice 
to Proceed with the Project. 
 
The low bidder for the project, Company-Mercer Company, has been involved in several heavy 
construction projects recently in Northern California.  A breakdown of project costs is shown in 
Table 1 below. 
 

Table 1 – Summary of Costs 
 

Construction  $           1,802,835          
Sales tax  $              
Survey Control   $                 10,000  
Inspection/testing  $                   5,000  
Record Drawings  $                 25,000  
Contingency  $               157,165  
Total  $            2,000,000  

 
IMPACTS ON STAFF AND RESOURCES:  Several District staff will be involved in the 
project assisting with project management, inspections, permit compliance, fish rescue, 
revegetation, and monitoring. The work will be performed under the direction of the District 
Engineer.   
 
EXHIBIT 
18-A Bid for Construction from Mercer-Fraser Company 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ActionItems\18\Item-18.docx 

388



EXHIBIT 18-A 389



EXHIBIT 18-A 390



EXHIBIT 18-A 391



EXHIBIT 18-A 392



EXHIBIT 18-A 393



EXHIBIT 18-A 394



EXHIBIT 18-A 395



EXHIBIT 18-A 396



EXHIBIT 18-A 397



EXHIBIT 18-A 398



EXHIBIT 18-A 399



EXHIBIT 18-A 400



EXHIBIT 18-A 401



EXHIBIT 18-A 402



EXHIBIT 18-A 403



EXHIBIT 18-A 404



EXHIBIT 18-A 405



EXHIBIT 18-A 406



EXHIBIT 18-A 407



EXHIBIT 18-A 408



EXHIBIT 18-A 409



EXHIBIT 18-A 410



EXHIBIT 18-A 411



EXHIBIT 18-A 412



EXHIBIT 18-A 413



414



 
 

 
SUMMARY:  Staff proposes to complete the Santa Margarita Backflush Basin Expansion Project 
(Project) at MPWMD’s Santa Margarita site located at 1910 General Jim Moore Boulevard 
(GJMB) south of Coe Avenue/Eucalyptus Road.  The Project work includes: 

• tripling the size of the existing backflush basin to accommodate backflush water from up 
to six Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) wells,  

• replacing above-ground pipes with underground pipes to allow space for movement of 
large construction vehicles,  

• construction of a second entrance to facilitate construction during operation,  
• and construction of a fence fronting GJMB.   

 
MPWMD advertised for bids to construct the Project on May 30, 2018.  Bids were opened on July 
2, 2018.  The apparent responsible bidder with the lowest responsive bid is Granite Rock Company.  
 
During construction the owner or an owner representative is required to monitor contract 
compliance and provide quality assurance.  Due to limited staff managing multiple projects, staff 
proposes to enter into a contract for engineering and construction management services for the 
Project. 
 
The Project site is located on the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) owned Environmental 
Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA) Seaside Munitions Response Area (MRA) property.  
Right of Entry to construct and operate on the MRA requires unexploded munitions support 
services during earth disturbing work.   
 

ITEM: ACTION ITEMS 
 
19. CONSIDER EXPENDITURE FOR THE SANTA MARGARITA BACKFLUSH 

BASIN EXPANSION PROJECT CONSTRUCTION AND SUPPORT SERVICES 
(CEQA:  A Resolution to adopt an addendum to the ASR EIR/EA for this project will 
be presented to the Board on July 16, 2018 in advance of the request for the Board to 
approve this project.  See agenda item 16.) 

 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   Yes 
 
From: David J. Stoldt Program/ Water Supply Projects 
 General Manager Line Item: 35-04-786004 
 
Prepared By: Maureen Hamilton Cost Estimate: $688,515  
 
General Counsel  Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee reviewed this item on July 
10, 2018 and recommended approval. 
CEQA Compliance:  A Resolution to adopt an addendum to the ASR EIR/EA for this 
project will be presented to the Board on July 16, 2018 in advance of the request for the 
Board to approve this project. 

415



 
 

The land to be excavated for the Project contains habitat capable of supporting migratory birds and 
other special status wildlife.  Staff proposes to enter into a contract for biological services to 
conduct surveys and relocations in order to reduce the potential for harm to wildlife during the 
Project.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Board of Directors should take the following action:  
 

1. Authorize the General Manager to enter into a contract with Granite Rock Company for a 
contract amount of $479,881, with a 10% contingency to be authorized by MPWMD staff, 
for a total amount not-to-exceed (NTE) $527,869. 

2. Authorize the General Manger to amend the Pueblo Water Resources (PWR) Agreement 
for Professional Services to provide engineering and construction management services for 
Project construction by the amount $87,304, with a 10% contingency to be authorized by 
MPWMD staff, for a total amount NTE $96,034. 

3. Authorize the General Manager to amend the FORA Agreement for Professional Services 
to provide unexploded munitions support services for Project construction by the amount 
$50,195, with a 10% contingency to be authorized by MPWMD staff, for a total amount 
NTE $55,215. 

4. Authorize the General Manager to amend the Denise Duffy & Associates Agreement for 
Professional Services to provide biological support services for Project construction by the 
amount $8,543, with a 10% contingency to be authorized by MPWMD staff, for a total 
amount NTE $9,397. 

 
DISCUSSION:  ASR wells must be backflushed weekly to maintain injection capacity during 
injection season from December 1 through May 31.  Backflush water from Cal Am’s Seaside 
Middle School site is conveyed to MPWMD’s Santa Margarita backflush basin because a basin is 
not permitted on school grounds.  Backflush water from two future Cal-Am ASR wells will be 
conveyed to the Santa Margarita backflush basin because the new ASR site does not have space 
for a backflush basin.  The Santa Margarita backflush basin is not sized to accommodate backflush 
water from six wells and must be expanded.  The expansion will occur within existing approved 
Santa Margarita site land limits. 
 
Major components of the Project must be constructed from June 1 through November 30 so that 
construction does not interfere with frequent backflushing operation required during injection 
season.  Due to the limited construction period and land constraint, the backflush basin expansion 
is scheduled to be constructed this summer.   
 
Construction Contract 
The Project bid documents included two different fencing options in the base bid to encourage 
competitive pricing.  City of Seaside staff will select the fencing option because FORA will deed 
the land to the City of Seaside in the future.  The contract amount will be reduced if the lower price 
fencing option is selected.   
 
A mandatory pre-bid meeting was held on the June 14, 2018; Granite Rock Company and 
Monterey Peninsula Engineering attended.  A second pre-bid meeting was offered on June 26, 

416



 
 

2018 in an effort to encourage additional bidders to encourage competitive pricing; no new 
potential bidders attended.  The bid results are as follows: 
 

Bidder Bid Amount 
Granite Rock Company $591,721 
Monterey Peninsula Engineering $628,000 

 
The contract amount with Granite Rock will be one of the options presented as follows: 
 

Bid Form Options Bid Amount Including 10% 
Contingency 

Project works with CMU fence $479,881 $527,869 
Project works with Iron fence $468,361 $515,197 

 
The contract would be awarded after Board adoption of the ASR EIR/EA Addendum for this work.  
Notice to Proceed would be issued after required permits are received.  Construction contract bid 
details can be found in Exhibit 19-A. 
 
Engineering and Construction Management Services 
During Project construction, staff or a staff representative is required on-site to conduct 
engineering and construction management tasks including: 

• Coordinate and subcontract special inspection and testing for geotechnical, concrete, rebar, 
anchors, and survey ($15,209). 

• Traditional construction management and engineering tasks supporting submittals, RFIs, 
change orders, and progress payment verification ($39,990). 

• Project coordination and closeout tasks including PWR-internal project management, 
coordination of water line inspection and testing with Cal Am, Notice of Completion, and 
final Record Drawings ($21,540) 

• Additionally, this amendment will fund stakeholder outreach work to support disinfection 
facilities design ($10,565). 

 
Pueblo Water Resources (PWR) has been working with MPWMD since 1998 developing, testing, 
constructing, and providing Operations and Maintenance services for the Santa Margarita and 
Seaside Middle School ASR facilities.  PWR designed this Project, is designing future works 
within the Santa Margarita site limits, and is the designer for Cal-Am’s future Fitch Park ASR 
Facility.  PWR is uniquely qualified to provide engineering and construction management services 
for the Project in a manner consistent with Operations and future construction projects. 
 
The agreement payment terms are time and materials.  The agreement amendment will be executed 
only if the Project construction contract is awarded by the Board.  Engineering and Construction 
Management Services proposal details can be found in Exhibit 19-B. 
 
FORA Munitions Support Services during Construction 
The Project site is located on FORA-owned ESCA property.  The categorization of Right of Entry 
(ROE) is called a Type 3_C, which is the most costly ROE since it requires ongoing support and 
review through the duration of the construction.   

417



 
 

MPWMD is required by FORA to fund all consultant and FORA staff costs for the ESCA technical 
and unexploded munitions support for the pre-construction and construction activities related to 
the Project.  On April 9, 2014, the Board approved a Reimbursement Agreement (RA) with FORA 
for pre-construction support costs for the proposed Project in the amount of $24,000.  FORA has 
provided a time and materials estimate of $50,195 to provide Project construction support services.   
 
An amendment to the 2014 RA will be executed only if the Project construction contract is awarded 
by the Board.  Reimbursement Agreement amendment details can be found in Exhibit 19-C. 
 
Biological Support Services during Construction 
To avoid the loss of active migratory bird nests, Staff proposes a nesting bird survey be conducted in 
advance of clearing for the Project.  This practice was followed on the Monterey Pipeline and Pure 
Water Monterey projects as a mitigation measure to ensure nesting birds are not impacted.   
 
Staff also proposes conducting surveys prior-to and during clearing as a best practice to reduce the 
potential for harm to the black legless lizard (Lizard) and Monterey dusky-footed woodrat (Rat).  
If Rat nests are found, the nests will be relocated after young Rats are old enough to survive 
independently.  If Lizards are found, they will be relocated by an experienced biologist. 
 
Survey and nest relocation requires earth disturbance.  Because the Project is located on the MRA, 
biologists must have unexploded munitions training and must take extra care during survey and 
relocation.  Denise Duffy and Associates (DD&A) is uniquely qualified having provided biological 
services on the Pure Water Monterey Injection Wells Facilities project being constructed on the 
same land parcel.   
 
The agreement payment terms are time and materials.  The agreement amendment will be executed 
only if the Project construction contract is awarded by the Board.  Biological Support Services 
proposal details can be found in Exhibit 19-D. 
 
EXHIBITS 
19-A Granite Rock Bid Documents 
19-B Proposal for Construction Support and Engineering Services 
19-C Draft FORA Agreement No. RA-031814 Amended 
19-D ASR Expansion Project Biological Support Services Proposal 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\ActionItems\19\Item-19.docx 

418



EXHIBIT 19-A
419



EXHIBIT 19-A
420



EXHIBIT 19-A
421



EXHIBIT 19-A
422



EXHIBIT 19-A
423



EXHIBIT 19-A
424



EXHIBIT 19-A
425



EXHIBIT 19-A
426



EXHIBIT 19-A
427



EXHIBIT 19-A
428



EXHIBIT 19-A
429



EXHIBIT 19-A
430



EXHIBIT 19-A
431



EXHIBIT 19-A
432



EXHIBIT 19-A
433



EXHIBIT 19-A
434



EXHIBIT 19-A
435



EXHIBIT 19-A
436



EXHIBIT 19-A
437



EXHIBIT 19-A
438



EXHIBIT 19-A
439



EXHIBIT 19-A
440



EXHIBIT 19-A
441



EXHIBIT 19-A
442



EXHIBIT 19-A
443



EXHIBIT 19-A
444



EXHIBIT 19-A
445



EXHIBIT 19-A
446



EXHIBIT 19-A
447



EXHIBIT 19-A
448



EXHIBIT 19-A
449



EXHIBIT 19-A
450



EXHIBIT 19-A
451



EXHIBIT 19-A
452



EXHIBIT 19-A
453



EXHIBIT 19-A
454



EXHIBIT 19-A
455



EXHIBIT 19-A
456



EXHIBIT 19-A
457



EXHIBIT 19-A
458



EXHIBIT 19-A
459



EXHIBIT 19-A
460



PUEBLO WATER RESOURCES, INC 

4478 Market Street, Suite 705 • Ventura, CA 93003 • 805.644.0470

July 5, 2014 
Project No. 12-0045 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
5 Harris Court, Building G 
Monterey, California  93940 

Attention: Maureen Hamilton, Project Manager 

Subject: Proposal for Construction Support and Engineering Services – Santa Margarita ASR 
Site Expansion Project 

Dear Ms. Hamilton: 

In accordance with your request, Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. (PWR) is pleased to 
submit this proposal in association with the ongoing Monterey Peninsula ASR Project.  
Presented in this proposal is a detailed scope of work, estimated costs, and schedule to provide 
engineering and construction management services for the expansion of the Santa Margarita 
ASR Facility at 1910 General Jim Moore Blvd. in Seaside, CA.   

PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

The purpose of the proposed work is to provide construction support and construction 
management services related to the Santa Margarita ASR Facility expansion project.  The tasks 
presented in this proposal are intended to supplement the existing design engineering and 
hydrogeologic services which are currently being performed by Pueblo, and include the 
following.      

• Preconstruction assistance and Stakeholder coordination

• Construction observation and Management Support

• Internal Project Management

• Project closure and Record Drawing documentation

Scope of Services 

Task 1 – Project Contract Award and Preconstruction Assistance 

 This task includes assisting District staff with the project-related items associated with 
bid award and preconstruction activities. These activities cover the time period between contract 
award and the commencement of construction work.  Specific work items in this task include the 
following: 

EXHIBIT 19-B
461



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project – Engineering and Construction Management 
July 5, 2018 (12-0045)  
 

12-0045_S-M_CM_engineering_pro.7.5.2018z.July.5.2018 

- 2 - 

• Review and confirmation of contractor schedule 

• Attend a Preconstruction Meeting 

• Develop suitable exhibits for a presentation to the Seaside City Council for the 
architectural and site improvements 

• Attend a meeting at Seaside City Council to present the project work as an 
informational agenda item. 

For this task we assume that a contract award will be made by the MPWMD Board in a 
timely manner, and no contract award disputes will arise.   

 

Task 2 – Construction Observation and Construction Management Support 

This task includes assisting the District with the oversight and management of 
construction activities by the contractor, and act as liaison between the contractor and the 
District. Services under this task are envisioned to include the following:  

 
• Compliance monitoring for UXO requirements, Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

requirements, Grading and Excavating on the Former Fort Ord permit conditions, 
and Encroachment Permit conditions. 

• Review and coordinate approval of Contractor schedules. 
• Coordinate review and responses for submittals and RFIs. 
• Documentation of field quantities. 
• Review of progress payment requests.  
• Review and evaluation of Change Order requests. 
• Maintain photographic and video records of construction progress. 
• Coordinate Geotechnical inspection and testing. 
• Coordinate special inspections and testing for concrete, masonry, rebar, and 

anchor placement. 
• Coordinate inspection, isolation, flushing, and testing of water lines with Cal-Am. 
• Develop final project Punch List and Final Project Inspection records. 
• Review redline drawings. 

 
As project construction progresses, the magnitude of on-site services may expand due 

to unforeseen subsurface conditions, archeological, environmental, ordnance discoveries, or 
other issues; our proposed on-site observations schedule assumes approximately 16 
hours/week of field time for 10 weeks. Adjustments to field schedule and scope of observation 
services may be warranted as the project progresses. 

 Task 3 – Project Management  (Internal) 

  This task consists of overall project management, including the preparation of routine 
project correspondence, invoices, and monthly budget status updates.  Effective project 
communication is critical for the success of the project.  In consultation with the District, a 
project e-mail distribution list will be established through which routine project status reports will 

EXHIBIT 19-B
462



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project – Engineering and Construction Management 
July 5, 2018 (12-0045)  
 

12-0045_S-M_CM_engineering_pro.7.5.2018z.July.5.2018 

- 3 - 

be provided.   Pueblo will maintain a log of action items and correspondence to ensure routine 
procedural items do not become critical path project delays. 

Task 4 – Project Closure and Record Drawing Documentation  

 Upon completion of contractor punch list items and final project acceptance 
inspection, Pueblo will coordinate and document final project conditions and records for 
District reference files. Activities performed under this task will include the following:   

 
• Provide a final topographic record of survey for the full parcel to serve as a 

record of contract work and as a reference for future phases of site development. 
• Prepare final Record Drawings documenting the as-built conditions of project 

construction.  The drawings will be stamped by the project Engineer of Record.  
• Provide a Letter of Substantial Completion for the project documenting the 

satisfactory completion of the work, and any project anomalies or issues to be 
addressed in subsequent phases of construction. 

 
Materials will be finalized in electronic format (pdf) wherever possible, and two 

hardcopies of the project binder will be provided.  
 

Services Not Included 

Services which are (or may be) necessary for the completion of this project, which are 
not included in our proposal include the following: 

• Water-quality sampling and analyses for water discharges or potable water system 
compliance (assumed District and/or CAW provided);  

• Construction of any site facilities;  

• Permit fees; 

• Cost of water, electricity, or other utilities; 

• Any others items not specifically included in PWR’s scope of services. 

Estimated Fees and Schedule 

Based on the scope of services presented herein, we estimate the fees for our services 
will be $87,304; which will be billed on a time-plus-expenses basis in accordance with our 
current Fee Schedule (attached).  An estimated fee summary worksheet is also attached 
summarizing the estimated man-hours and costs per task/work item.   

We understand that in order to authorize this work, your Board must first approve a 
formal contract amendment.  Based on our current workload, we believe that we can commence 
work within one week of your authorization; based on our estimates of project schedule, we 
believe the work will be completed by the end of calendar year 2018. 

EXHIBIT 19-B
463



Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Monterey Peninsula ASR Project – Engineering and Construction Management 
July 5, 2018 (12-0045)  
 

12-0045_S-M_CM_engineering_pro.7.5.2018z.July.5.2018 

- 4 - 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide assistance to the District on this important 
water supply project.  If you require additional information regarding this or other matters, please 
call us. 

Sincerely, 

PUEBLO WATER RESOURCES, INC. 

              
Stephen P. Tanner, P.E.  

Principal Engineer 
 
RCM:SPT 

Attachments: 2018 Fee Schedule 
Fee Estimation Spreadsheet 

EXHIBIT 19-B
464



12-0045_S-M_CM_services_costs_Rev3 7/9/2018 

Professional Services for MPWMD ASR Expansion - Engr & CM 

Fiscal Year 2017-2018

PWR Project No.: 12-0045

ESTIMATED FEE SUMMARY  

Principal 

Professional

Senior 

Professional

Project 

Professional
Drafting

Hourly Fee $205 $180 $175 $135
Task No. Task Description

1 Stakeholder Presentations and Coordination 24                      12                      36 $6,540
2 Construction Management Support 48                      144                    10                      202 $36,390
3 Project Management and Coordination 16                      -                         12                      28 $5,380

4a Project closure and Record Drawings 16                      10                      8                        34 $6,110
4b Phase 3b base topographic survey 6                        -                         -                         4                        10 $1,770

-                         -                         -                         -                         
-                         -                         -                         -                         
-                         -                         -                         -                         
-                         -                         -                         -                         
-                         -                         -                         -                           

110 0 166 34
$22,550 $0 $29,050 $4,590

Total Labor Hours:

Total Labor Costs:

OTHER DIRECT COSTS (ODC's) Unit No. of

Task No. Item Units Price Units Fee

Vehicle Daily $75 18 $1,350
Travel Per Diem Daily $150 15 $2,250

$0
$0
$0

$3,600

OUTSIDE SERVICES Unit No. of

Task No. Item Units Price Units Fee

1 Architectural renderings for Seaside  presentation LS $3,500 1 $3,500
2 Survey & staking LS $2,875 1 $2,875
2 Geotechnical Inspection & Testing (Compaction) LS $7,500 1 $7,500
2 Special Inspection & testing (conc/rebar/anchors) LS $2,850 1 $2,850
4 Post construction topographis survey LS $7,200 1 $7,200

Subtotal Outside Services: $23,925

Subtotal Outside Services w/ Markup (15%): $27,514

COST SUMMARY

$56,190

Other Direct Costs $3,600

Outside Services $27,514

Subtotal: $87,304

$87,304

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LABOR

Labor

Subtotal ODCs:

Estimated 

Task Cost
Hours by Task

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROJECT COST:

Hours by Labor Category:

Costs by Labor Category:

310

$56,190

EXHIBIT 19-B
465



 
 
 
 

 
PUEBLO WATER RESOURCES, INC • 4478 Market Street, Suite 705 • Ventura, CA 93003 

805.644.0470 • 805.644.0480 FAX 

PUEBLO WATER RESOURCES, INC  
2018 FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

 
Professional Services 
 

Principal Professional............................................................................$205/hr 

Senior Professional...............................................................................$190/hr 

Project Professional..............................................................................$175/hr 

Staff Professional.................................................................................$145/hr 

Technician...........................................................................................$135/hr 

Illustrator............................................................................................$120/hr 

Word Processing..................................................................................$100/hr 

 
Other Direct Charges 
 

Subcontracted Services............................................................... Cost Plus 15% 

Outside Reproduction.................................................................. Cost Plus 15% 

Travel Expenses..........................................................................Cost Plus 15% 

Per Diem*.........................................................................................$150/day 

Vehicle ..............................................................................................$75/day 

 

Equipment  Charges 
 

Drilling Fluid Test Kit........................................................ $100/day, $400/week 

Field Water Quality Meter (Hach DR890)............................... $75/day, $275/week 

Orion ORP/pH/Temp Probe.................................................. $75/day, $275/week 

Water Level Probes (In-Situ Mini-Troll/Level Troll).................$100/day, $300/week 

Fuji Ultrasonic Flowmeter...................................................$200/day, $750/week 

 
 
 
*Regionally and seasonally specific to project. 

EXHIBIT 19-B
466



Agreement No. RA-031814 Amended 

Agreement for Professional Services 

This Agreement for Professional Services (hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”) is by 

and between Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (hereinafter referred 
to as “MPWMD”) and the Fort Ord Reuse Authority, a political subdivision of the State 
of California (hereinafter referred to as “FORA”). 

The parties agree as follows: 

1. SERVICES.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
FORA shall provide MPWMD with services associated with property acquisition as 
described in ATTACHMENT “A”.  Such services will be at the direction of FORA and/or 
their designees. 

2. TERM.  FORA shall commence work under this Agreement effective on June
28, 2018 and will diligently perform the work under this Agreement until December 31, 
2020 or until the maximum amount of the compensation as noted below is reached. 
The term of the Agreement may be extended upon mutual concurrence and 
amendment to this Agreement. 

3. COMPENSATION AND OUT OF POCKET EXPENSES.  The overall 
maximum amount of compensation to FORA over the full term of this Agreement is not-
to-exceed $50,195 (Fifty Thousand One Hundred and Ninety-Five Dollars) including 
out of pocket expenses without written consent of both parties.  MPWMD shall pay 
FORA for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement at the times and in the manner 
set forth in ATTACHMENT “A.”   

MPWMD will reimburse FORA for all costs associated with the preparation 
review and approval of all required MPWMD closure documents.  FORA will 
coordinate the required services and billing at their cost or for contractors and 
regulatory oversight FORA’s contract rate plus 15% overhead to handle FORA 
accounting costs as set forth in ATTACHMENT “A.”  

4. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT.  MPWMD facilities and service requirements
are limited to the areas shown on the attached site map known as ATTACHMENT “C.” 

5. GENERAL PROVISIONS.  The general provisions set forth in 
ATTACHMENT “B” are incorporated into this Agreement.  In the event of any 
inconsistency between said general provisions and any other terms or conditions of this 
Agreement, the other term or condition shall control only insofar as it is inconsistent with 
the General Provisions. 

EXHIBIT 19-C 467



Page 2 of 7 
MPWMD / FORA agreement - DRAFT 
Agreement No. RA-031814 Amended 
 
 

6. ATTACHMENTS.  All Attachments referred to herein are attached hereto 
and are by this reference incorporated herein. 
 

 ATTACHMENT A – Scope of Services 
 

 ATTACHMENT B – General Provisions 
 

 ATTACHMENT C – Site Map 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, FORA and MPWMD execute this Agreement as 
follows: 
 
 
 
 

By: ________________________ By: ________________________ 
 Michael A. Houlemard, Jr.  David J. Stoldt 
 Executive Officer  General Manager 
    

Date: ________________________ Date: ________________________ 
 

EXHIBIT 19-C 468



Page 3 of 7 
MPWMD / FORA agreement - DRAFT 
Agreement No. RA-031814 Amended 
 
 

 
 ATTACHMENT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 
The Scope of Services enables the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) to provide the 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) with the services of the FORA 
Real Property and Facilities Manager, the FORA Senior Project Manager, FORA Special 
Counsel and their engineering/munitions remediation contractors, ARCADIS and Weston 
Solutions and other contractors, as required and at FORA’s discretion, to assist MPWMD to: 
 
 Provide guidance regarding the process for acquisition and transfer of lands adjacent to the 

Santa Margarita Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) site that are for the planned 
expansion of the ASR site, for which the MPWMD has an easement from the Army. 

 
 Review, prepare and process appropriate closure documents required by the US 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), California Department of Toxic Substance Control 
(DTSC), Army, City of Seaside, and any other agencies, to enable implementation of the 
planned extension of the Santa Margarita ASR site. 

 
 Review, prepare, and process the Right of Entry as may be required for implementation of 

the planned site extension work. 
 
 Provide UXO Construction Support Services to support MPWMD contractors during 

construction activities that require ground disturbing activities including but not limited to; 
underground excavations, grading soils, borings, cuts and fill as part of the site extension 
work. 

 
 Provide MPWMD with Unexploded Ordnance (UXO) Construction Support during 

construction activities including but not limited to:  
 

A. Final Construction Support Plan completion, 
B. On-call construction support for one 24- and/or one 48-hour emergency response 

activities in the event a suspect munition is encountered (Anomaly avoidance and on-
call/on-location construction support was not requested)  

C. UXO Construction Support related project coordination/management/set-up,  
D. UXO Munitions Recognition and Safety Training,  
E. Meetings/conference calls (as requested by FORA and or MPWMD),  
F. Construction Support Plan memoranda (if required), and  
G. After-action reporting.. 

 
FORA billings for its staff, contractors and the estimated services of the US EPA and California 
DTSC shall be submitted quarterly at the first of the quarter for any work performed in the 
previous quarter and shall be paid in full by MPWMD within forty-five (45) days of receipt of the 
billing statement. 
 
FORA will provide the following services of: 
 

EXHIBIT 19-C 469



Page 4 of 7 
MPWMD / FORA agreement - DRAFT 
Agreement No. RA-031814 Amended 
 
 

A. FORA ESCA Senior Program Manager at the rate of $134.32 per hour. 
B. FORA ESCA Program Coordinator at the rate of $83.94 per hour. 
C. FORA Accountant at the rate of $46.67 per hour. 
D. FORA Executive Officer at the rate of $238.49 per hour  
E. FORA Controller at the rate of $126.30 per hour. 
F. FORA Special Counsel at the rate of $355.00 per hour. 

 
FORA shall arrange for and provide the service of the following at FORA’s cost plus 15% to 
cover FORA Accounting and Administrative costs: 
 

A.  ARCADIS 
B. Weston Solutions 
C. U.S. EPA  
D. California DTSC 
E. Other contracting or agency services if needed 

 
The services above are to be provided to support MPWMD’s needs for: 
 

 Site visits as required; 
 Participating in UXO escorts meetings as required; 
 Reviewing MPWMD documents and plans as required; 
 Reviewing MPWMD and its contractor’s requests(s) to enter the FORA Environmental 

Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA) property and developing/approving any Right 
of Entry, as may be required; and  

 Participating in U.S. EPA, California DTSC, Army, City of Seaside and other agency 
meetings as required. 

 

EXHIBIT 19-C 470



Page 5 of 7 
MPWMD / FORA agreement - DRAFT 
Agreement No. RA-031814 Amended 
 
 

   ATTACHMENT B 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
 
 1. INDEPENDENT Contractor.     At all times during the term of this Agreement, FORA 
shall be an independent Contractor and shall not be an employee of MPWMD.  MPWMD’s 
rights are limited to those specified in this Agreement. 
 
 2. TIME.    FORA shall devote such services pursuant to this Agreement as may be 
reasonably necessary for satisfactory performance of FORA’S obligations pursuant to this 

Agreement.  FORA shall adhere to the Schedule of Activities shown in ATTACHMENT “A”. 
 
 3. FORA NO AGENT.  Except as MPWMD may specify in writing, FORA shall have no 
authority, express or implied to act on behalf of MPWMD in any capacity whatsoever as an 
agent.  FORA shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement, to bind 
MPWMD to any obligation whatsoever. 
 
 4. PERSONNEL.    FORA shall assign only competent personnel to perform services 
pursuant to this Agreement.  In the event that MPWMD, in its sole discretion, at anytime during 
the term of this Agreement, desires the removal of any person or persons assigned by FORA, 
FORA shall remove any such person immediately upon receiving notice from MPWMD of the 
desire of MPWMD for the removal of such person or person. 
 
 5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.    FORA shall perform all services required 
pursuant to this Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a 
competent practitioner of the profession in which FORA is engaged in the geographical area in 
which FORA practices his profession.  All products and services of whatsoever nature, which 
FORA delivers to MPWMD pursuant to this Agreement, shall be prepared in a substantial, first-
class, and workmanlike manner, and conform to the standards of quality normally observed by 
a person practicing in FORA’S profession.   
 
 6. CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT.     Either party may cancel this Agreement at 
any time for its convenience, upon written notification.   FORA shall be entitled to receive full 
payment for all services performed and all costs incurred to the date of receipt of written notice 
to cease work.  FORA shall be entitled to no further compensation for work performed after the 
date of receipt of written notice to cease work and all prior completed work products shall 
become the property of MPWMD.   
 
 7. PRODUCTS OF CONTRACTING.     All completed work products of FORA, once 
accepted, shall be the property of MPWMD.  MPWMD shall have the right to use the data and 
products for research and academic purposes. 
 
 8. INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS.     FORA and MPWMD are to indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless each other, their officers, agents, employees and volunteers from all 
claims, suits, or actions of every name, kind and description, brought forth on account of 
injuries to or death of any person or damage to property arising from or connected with the 
willful misconduct, negligent acts, errors or omissions, ultra-hazardous activities, activities 
giving rise to strict liability, or defects in design by each other or any person directly or indirectly 
employed by or acting as agent for each other in the performance of this Agreement, including 

EXHIBIT 19-C 471



Page 6 of 7 
MPWMD / FORA agreement - DRAFT 
Agreement No. RA-031814 Amended 
 
 

the concurrent or successive passive negligence of each other, their officers, agents, 
employees or volunteers. 
  
 It is understood that the duty of FORA and MPWMD to indemnify and hold harmless 
includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.  
Acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does 
not relieve FORA and MPWMD from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless 
clause.  This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such 
insurance policies have been determined to be applicable to any of such damages or claims for 
damages. 
 
 9. PROHIBITED INTERESTS.  No employee of FORA shall have any direct financial 
interest in this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be voidable at the option of MPWMD if this 
provision is violated. 
 
 

EXHIBIT 19-C 472



 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

MPWMD Santa Margarita Well Site Map 

 

EXHIBIT 19-C 473



474



Denise Duffy & Associates, Inc. 
 PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING 

June 28, 2018 

Maureen Hamilton 

Subject: ASR Expansion Biological Monitoring 

Dear Maureen: 

Denise Duffy & Associates, Inc. (DD&A) is pleased to submit a Scope of Work (SOW) and Cost Estimate 
to perform biological support services for Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) 
ASR Expansion Project (project). DD&A will provide pre-construction surveys, and biological monitoring, 
to ensure project remains in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
environmental documentation. If the attached SOW and Cost Estimate are acceptable, please sign the 
attached Task Order form and DD&A will schedule the work accordingly. 

Sincerely, 

Matt Johnson, Project Manager 
DENISE DUFFY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

EXHIBIT 19-D 475



Scope of Work ASR Expansion Project 
  Biological Support Services  
 

1 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
Task 1. Pre-Construction Kick-Off Meeting 
 
DD&A will attend a pre-construction kick-off meeting with MPWMD and the project contractor prior to 
the start of construction. This task includes coordination for this meeting and preparation of any materials 
necessary to facilitate the meeting. 
 
Task 2. Pre-Construction Surveys and Reporting 
 
DD&A will conduct pre-construction surveys for potential rare, listed, or other sensitive species prior to 
commencement of project construction. Surveys will be conducted within the work area and all access 
routes, including appropriate buffer distances as described below, to avoid and minimize incidental take, 
confirm previous observations, identify any areas occupied by listed or sensitive species, and clearly mark 
all resources to be avoided by project activities.  
 
Monterey Dusky-Footed Woodrat 
DD&A will conduct a pre-construction survey of the project area and a 25-foot buffer at least 5 days prior 
to any surface disturbing actions for Monterey dusky-footed woodrat nests (MDFW). All nests will be 
identified, and their locations mapped and flagged to be avoided during construction activities.  
 
Nesting Bird Species 
For project activities, including vegetation pruning, that begin between February 15 and September 1, a 
qualified DD&A biologist will conduct pre-construction surveys for nesting birds and to identify active 
nests on and within 500 feet of the project area with direct line of sight to the proposed work areas. The 
surveys will be conducted no more than 14 days prior to the beginning of any construction activities 
between February 15 and September 1. A second survey will be conducted no more than 48 hours prior to 
the beginning of any construction activities between February 15 and September 1.  
 
DD&A will provide to MPWMD the results of the pre-construction surveys for all species. 
 
Assumptions: DD&A assumes that all pre-construction wildlife surveys will return with a negative finding. 
If special status wildlife species are identified during the pre-construction survey effort, coordination with 
USFWS/CDFW and relocation of individuals may require a budget amendment. If, for any reason, 
construction does not begin within the permit designated survey windows, additional surveys may be 
required.  
 
Task 3. Construction Phase Biological Monitoring 
 
DD&A will provide construction phase biological monitoring for the project during vegetation removal to 
relocate special-status species if there are observed within the project site. 
 
Assumptions: This SOW assumes that the duration of vegetation removal will be two, if the vegetation 
removal duration exceeds this schedule a budget amendment may be required. 
 
BUDGET 
 
The costs per task to complete the ASR Expansion Project Biological Support Services are detailed in the 
attached spreadsheet. The total budget of $8,543.00 is a not-to-exceed total and is to be billed by task. 
 

EXHIBIT 19-D 476



Se
ni

or
 E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l 
Sc

ie
nt

is
t

A
ss

t S
ci

en
tis

t

G
ra

ph
ic

s/
G

IS

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

D
D

&
A

 C
os

ts
 b

y 
T

as
k

Hourly Rate $128.00 $94.00 $100.00 $61.00

Pre-Construction Kick-off Meeting 8             4             2             $1,522

Preconstruction Wildlife Survey and Report 10           30           6             2             $4,822

Biological Monitoring During Vegetation Removal 6             24           2             $3,146

Total Hours by Staff 16           54           6             4             

Subtotal for DD&A Labor $2,048 $5,076 $600 $244 $7,968

Estimated Expenses:
Mileage, copying, supplies, GIS and phone $500
Administrative Fee $75

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST $8,543

Task 3

ASR Expansion Biological Monitoring

Staff

Estimated Budget 

Task 2

Task 1

EXHIBIT 19-D 477



478



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 
 
20. LETTERS RECEIVED 
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 
Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15378. 
 
A list of letters that were submitted to the Board of Directors or General Manager and received 
between June 11, 2018 and July 10, 2018 is shown below. The purpose of including a list of 
these letters in the Board packet is to inform the Board and interested citizens.  Copies of the 
letters are available for public review at the District office.  If a member of the public would like 
to receive a copy of any letter listed, please contact the District office.  Reproduction costs will 
be charged.   The letters can also be downloaded from the District’s web site at 
www.mpwmd.net.    
 
Author Addressee Date Topic 
Mark Fogelman Eileen Sobeck – 

copy to David 
Stoldt 

6/29/18 May 9, 2018 Petition to Modify Board Resolution 
2016-0040 

Mary L. Adams Larry Hampson 6/15/18 Nomination of Gary Briant to the Carmel River 
Advisory Committee 

John Moore Arlene Tavani – 
to MPWMD 
Board 

6/13/18 Comment Letter-Proposed Recycled Water 
Amendment 

 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\20\Item-20.docx 

479

http://www.mpwmd.net/


480



 
 

ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 
 
21. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 
Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
Attached for your review as Exhibits 21-A and 21-B are final minutes of the committee meetings 
listed below. 
 
EXHIBIT 
21-A Final Minutes of June 11, 2018 Administrative Committee Meeting 
21-B Final Minutes of April 18, 2018 Water Demand Committee Meeting 
  
  
  

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\21\Item-21.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 

481



482



 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 

831-658-5600        Fax 831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  
 

 
EXHIBIT 21-A 

 
FINAL MINUTES 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Administrative Committee 

June 11, 2018 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 3:36 PM in the District Conference Room.    
 
Committee members present: Brenda Lewis – Chair (arrived at 3: 42 PM) 
 Andrew Clarke 
 Ralph Rubio 
      
Staff present: Suresh Prasad, Administrative Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer 

Stephanie Locke, Water Demand Manager 
Larry Hampson, Water Resources & Engineering Manager/District Engineer 
Kevan Urquhart, Sr. Fisheries Biologist 
Maureen Hamilton, Water Resources Engineer 
Mark Dudley, Information Technology Manager 

 Sara Reyes, Sr. Office Specialist 
 
Oral Communications 
None 
 
Items on Board Agenda for June 18, 2018 
 
1. Consider Adoption of Minutes of May 14, 2018 Committee Meeting 

On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the minutes of the May 14, 2018 meeting were approved 
on a vote of 2 – 0 by Rubio and Clarke.  Director Lewis was absent for this item.   

 
2. Consider Approval of Service Agreement for the Provision of Election Services with Monterey 

County Registrar of Voters for November 6, 2018 General Election 
On a motion by  Clarke and second by Rubio, the committee recommended the Board enter into the 
agreement with the Registrar of Voters for the provision of election services.  The motion was 
approved on a vote of  2 – 0 by Clarke and Rubio.  Director Lewis was absent for this item.  

 
3. Consider Approval of Expenditure for Phone System and Server Network Upgrade 

On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee recommended the Board authorize 
expenditure of funds to purchase and upgrade the phone system, network cabling, server room 
relocation, and server room air conditions at a not-to-exceed price of $60,000.  The motion was 
approved on a vote of 2 – 0 by Rubio and Clarke.  Director Lewis was absent for this item.  

 
4. Authorize Expenditure for Software Maintenance Agreements for FY 2018-2019 

On a motion by Clarke and second by Rubio, the committee voted to recommend the Board authorize 
expenditures not-to-exceed $96,575 to purchase the items presented in the table.  The motion was 
approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Clarke, Rubio and Lewis. 

 

483

http://www.mpwmd.net/


Final Minutes – MPWMD Administrative Committee – June 11, 2018 

 
  

Product Price 
ESRI ArcGIS Standard concurrent $4,400 
ESRI ArcGIS Standard stand-alone 1,650 
ESRI Extensions  2,500 
Latitude Geographics GeoCortex 6,000 
ESRI EDN 1,650 
ArcGIS Server Two Core 1,400 
Server networking 3,500 
Backup, antivirus and MS office  9,500 
Docuware (Financial) 8,000 
Tyler Technologies (Financial) 22,500 
GovInvest (Financial) 6,500 
Accela Support (Water Demand) 30,000 
TOTAL $97,600 

 
 

5. Consider Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Agreement with Regional Government Services 
Authority for Management and Administrative Services  
On a motion by Clarke and second by Rubio, the committee voted to recommend the Board authorize 
the General Manager or Administrative Services Manager/CFO to sign Amendment No. 2 to existing 
Agreement with RGS to provide management and administrative services for an amount not-to-exceed 
$70,000.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Clarke, Rubio and Lewis. 

 
6. Consider Expenditure for Temporary Agency Employee to Assist with Electronic Document 

Storage During FY 2018-2019 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board authorize 
the expenditure of funds for a local staffing agency to provide an individual, or successive individuals 
if necessary, for six months to perform scanning project for the District.  The motion was approved on 
a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 
 

7. Consider Approval of Agreement with Lynx Technologies for Geographic Information System 
(GIS) Services 
On a motion by Clarke and second by Rubio, the committee voted to recommend the Board authorize 
the General Manager or the Administrative Services Manager/CFO to enter into an agreement with 
Lynx Technologies to provide GIS services for an amount not-to-exceed $35,000.  The motion was 
approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Clarke, Rubio and Lewis. 
 

8. Authorize Funds to Contract for Limited-Term Field Positions During FY 2018-2019 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board authorize 
the expenditure of funds to hire several limited-term Water Resources Assistants for up to a total of 
1,5000 hours of work, several Fisheries Aides for up to 1,000 hours between July 1, 2017 and June 
30, 2018.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 
 

9. Consider Approval of Three Temporary Field Staff Positions Funded through the Interagency 
Contract Between MPWMD and NMFS to Provide for a Cooperative Research and Monitoring 
Projects 

484



Final Minutes – MPWMD Administrative Committee – June 11, 2018 

 
  

On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board approve 
three temporary field staff positions for cooperative research and monitoring projects with the 
NOAA/NMFS for fiscal year 2018-2019.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke 
and Lewis. 
 

10. Consider Renewal of Standard License Agreement with CoreLogic Information Solutions, Inc. 
On a motion by Clarke and second by Rubio, the committee voted to recommend the Board authorize 
expenditure of up to $14,000 to continue use of CoreLogic’s RealQuest Professional services.  The 
motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Clarke, Rubio and Lewis. 
   

11. Approve Expenditure to Corporation Service Company – Recording Fees 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board approve 
the expenditure of up to $100,000 for recording fees for the Fiscal Year 2018-2019.  The motion was 
approved on a 3 - 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 
 

12. Consider Expenditure for Water Conservation Messaging Materials 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board support 
an expenditure of up to $25,000 to renew the District’s stock of water conservation signage.  The 
motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 
 

13. Consider Funding Rebates in the California American Water System Between July 1, 2018 and 
the Availability of Funding from the Cal-Am General Rate Case 
On a motion by Clarke and second by Rubio, the committee voted to recommend the Board support 
the continued front funding of rebates from the General Fund pending approval of Cal-Am’s GRC 
budget.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Clarke, Rubio and Lewis.  
 

14. Consider Continuance of Contract with Zone 24x7 for Water Demand Database Improvements 
and Maintenance 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend authorizing the 
General Manager or the Chief Financial Officer to enter into an agreement with Zone 24x7 for an 
amount of $60,000.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 
  

15. Consider Expenditure to Amend Contract with Pueblo Water Resources to Provide 
Hydrogeologic Review for Water Distribution System Permits 

On a motion by Clarke and second by Rubio, the committee voted to recommend the Board authorize 
the General Manager to amend the current District professional services contract with Pueblo for a 
not-to-exceed amount of $2,000 for FY 2018-2019.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by 
Clarke, Rubio and Lewis. 
 

16. Consider Approval to Purchase Expendable PIT Tags and Other Disposable Tagging Supplies 
for the Remainder of Calendar Year 2018 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board authorize 
additional expenditure of budgeted funds in the amount of $12,000 for FY 2017-2018 and $8,000 for 
FY 2018-2019 to cover solely the costs of expendable/disposable PIT tags and tagging supplies, not 
including other miscellaneous ongoing operational expenses to support the program.  The motion was 
approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 

485



Final Minutes – MPWMD Administrative Committee – June 11, 2018 

 
  

17. Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Increase the Level of Indemnification in a Right-
of-Entry and Project Permission Agreement with Quail Lodge, Inc. for the Carmel River Bank 
Stabilization Project at Rancho San Carlos Road 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board authorize 
the General Manager to negotiate with Quail Lodge, Inc. to increase the level of indemnification for 
Quail Lodge, Inc. up to $30,000.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and 
Lewis. 

 
18. Consider Funding an Addendum to the MPWMD Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project 

Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board authorize 
the General Manager to contract with Denise Duffy and Associates for preparation of an Addendum 
to the ASR EIR/EA for the proposed Project in an amount not-to-exceed $17,185 with a 10% 
contingency for a total authorization not-to-exceed $19,652.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote 
by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 

 
19. Consider Funding a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan Development and Monitoring 

Services for ASR Expansion 
On a motion by Clarke and second by Rubio, the committee voted to recommend the Board authorize 
the General Manager to enter into a contract with Schaaf and Wheeler for development of a SWPPP 
in an amount not-to-exceed $15,000.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Clarke, Rubio and 
Lewis. 
 

20. Consider Renewal of Contract with JEA & Associates for Legislative and Administrative 
Services 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board approve 
the contract with JEA & Associates for a not-to-exceed amount of $35,000 for Fiscal Year 2018-2019.  
The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 
 

21. Consider Renewal of Contract with the Ferguson Group for Legislative and Administrative 
Services 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend that the Board 
authorize the General Manager to enter into an agreement with the Ferguson Group for FY 2018-2019.  
The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis.   
 

22. Consider Renewal of Contract for District Public Outreach and Communications Services with 
TBC Communications and Media 
On a motion by Clarke and second by Rubio, the committee voted to recommend the Board approve 
a contract with TBC Communications & Media.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Clarke, 
Rubio and Lewis. 
 

23. Consider Adoption of Resolution 2018-12 Certifying Compliance with State Law with Respect 
to the Levying of General and Special Taxes, Assessments, and Property-Related Fees and 
Charges 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board adopt 
Resolution 2018-12 and authorize the County of Monterey for collection of Water Supply Charge on 
the property tax bill.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 
 

486



Final Minutes – MPWMD Administrative Committee – June 11, 2018 

 
  

24. Consider Adoption of Resolution 2018-13 Establishing Article XIII (B) Fiscal Year 2018-2019 
Appropriations Limit 
On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board adopt 
Resolution 2018-13 - Establishing an Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 in the amount 
of $1,718,220.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 

 
25. Consider Adoption of Resolution 2018-14 Update to Rule 24, Table 3, Capacity Fee History 

On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board adopt 
Resolution 2018-14 – Update to Rule 24, Table 3, Capacity Fee History.  The motion was approved 
on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 

 
26. Consider Authorization to Provide Funds to Monterey One Water for the Pure Water Monterey 

Project 
On a motion by Clarke and second by Rubio, the committee voted to recommend the Board approve 
authorization of $2 million from reimbursement of preconstruction costs to be reserved as contingency 
for Monterey One Water to be used towards the Pure Water Monterey Project. 

 
27. Consider Adoption of Treasurer’s Report for April 2018 

On a motion by Rubio and second by Clarke, the committee voted to recommend the Board adopt the 
April 2018 Treasurer’s Report and financial statements, and ratification of the disbursements made 
during the month.  The motion was approved on a 3 – 0 vote by Rubio, Clarke and Lewis. 

 
28. Review Draft June 18, 2018 Board Meeting Agenda 

A revised agenda was distributed to the committee for their review.  The committee made no changes. 
 
Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:40 PM.   
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\21\Item-21-Exh-A.docx 

487



488



 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 

831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  
 

 
EXHIBIT 21-B 

 
FINAL MINUTES 

Water Demand Committee of the 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

April 18, 2018 
   

Call to Order   
The meeting was called to order at 3:35 pm in the MPWMD conference room. 

   
Committee members present: Andy Clarke, Chair 

 Jeanne Byrne 
 Molly Evans 
   

Committee members absent: None  
   

Staff members present: David Stoldt, General Manager 
 Stephanie Locke, Water Demand Division Manager 
 Gabriela Ayala, Conservation Analyst 
 Arlene Tavani, Executive Assistant 
  

District Council present: No 
  

Comments from the Public: No comments.   
  
Action Items  
1. Consider Adoption of November 20, 2017 Committee Meeting Minutes 
 On a motion by Byrne and second of Evans, minutes of the November 20, 2017 

committee meeting were adopted unanimously on a vote of 3 – 0 by Byrne, 
Clarke and Evans. 

  
Discussion Items 
2. Discuss Group I and Group II Non-Residential Water Use Factors  
 The committee discussed the issue.  A summary of their comments is presented 

here.  (a) Group 1 and Group II could be combined under the Group II water use 
factor because they are likely similar. (b) Combining groups could save staff time 
and be more equitable for property owners. (c) Could charge a fee to move from a 
Group I use to a Group II use. (d) Suggest remove “dry cleaner with on-site 
laundry” from Group II.  (e) Develop a stronger definition of “restaurant.” (f) 
Concerned that water use would increase by allowing a site with the previous use 
of a futon store to take on a Group II use. (g) Grandfather properties with Group 1 
uses to the Group II factor. (h) Calculate the water use per square foot of a space 
based on its actual water use, and then compare that to the District’s factor for the 
use.  The savings could be identified and allocated to the change in the factor.  (i) 

489

http://www.mpwmd.net/


Final Minutes – April 18, 2018, Water Demand Committee Meeting -- Page 2 of 2 
 

 
  

On average, implementation of Best Management Practices at a business with a 
Group II use will reduce the water use to that of a Group I category.  

  
3. Discuss Conservation Offset Program 
 The committee reviewed the questions for discussion presented in the staff note.  

There was consensus regarding the following: (a) Project Specifications: project 
could be either District or developer designed. (b) Offset or credit ratio: continue 
with the District practice of allocating 15% of savings to benefit the river and 
10% for a District reserve. (c) Permanence: offset benefits should accrue 
permanently.  (d) Additionality:  consensus that a project must create new water 
savings or supply that would not/is not expected to have happened anyway, either 
through District conservation programs, building code changes, expected 
customer behavior, etc. (e) An ordinance could be developed and brought to the 
Board after a determination is made on Condition 2 of Order 2009-0060. 

  
4. Discuss Fire Service Requirement 
 The committee discussed this item.   A summary of their comments follows.  (a) 

Continue with current requirement. (b) Consider a deed restriction along with the 
current requirement. (c) Develop a waiver (determined by the General Manager) 
for those circumstances where the optimal installation cannot be implemented.  

  
Set Next Meeting Date:  No future meeting date was scheduled. 
 
Adjournment:  The meeting was adjourned at 5:10 pm. 
 

 
 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\21\Item-21-Exh-B.docx 

 

490



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEM/STAFF REPORTS 
 
22. MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program:  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.: 
 

Prepared By: Gabriela Ayala Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY: As of June 30, 2018, a total of 24.721 acre-feet (7.2%) of the Paralta Well 
Allocation remained available for use by the Jurisdictions.  Pre-Paralta water in the amount of 
35.923 acre-feet is available to the Jurisdictions, and 28.932 acre-feet is available as public water 
credits. 

  
Exhibit 22-A shows the amount of water allocated to each Jurisdiction from the Paralta Well 
Allocation, the quantities permitted in June 2018 (“changes”), and the quantities remaining.  The 
Paralta Allocation had one debit in June 2018. 

 
Exhibit 22-A also shows additional water available to each of the Jurisdictions and the information 
regarding the Community Hospital of the Monterey Peninsula (Holman Highway Facility).  
Additional water from expired or canceled permits that were issued before January 1991 are shown 
under “PRE-Paralta.”  Water credits used from a Jurisdiction’s “public credit” account are also 
listed.  Transfers of Non-Residential Water Use Credits into a Jurisdiction’s Allocation are 
included as “public credits.”  Exhibit 22-B shows water available to Pebble Beach Company and 
Del Monte Forest Benefited Properties, including Macomber Estates, Griffin Trust. Another table 
in this exhibit shows the status of Sand City Water Entitlement and the Malpaso Water Entitlement. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The District’s Water Allocation Program, associated resource system supply 
limits, and Jurisdictional Allocations have been modified by a number of key ordinances.  These 
key ordinances are listed in Exhibit 22-C. 
 
EXHIBITS 
22-A Monthly Allocation Report 
22-B Monthly Entitlement Report 
22-C District’s Water Allocation Program Ordinances 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\22\Item-22.docx 

491



492



  

 
EXHIBIT 22-A 

MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 
Reported in Acre-Feet 

For the month of June 2018 
 
 

 

  

 

 
* Does not include 15.280 Acre-Feet from the District Reserve prior to adoption of Ordinance No. 73. 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\22\Item-22-Exh-A.docx 

 
Jurisdiction 

 
Paralta 

Allocation* 

 
Changes 

 
Remaining 

 
PRE- 

Paralta 
Credits 

 
Changes 

 
Remaining 

 
Public 
Credits 

 
Changes 

 
Remaining 

 
Total  

Available 

 
Airport District 

 
8.100 

 
 0.000 

 
5.197 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
5.197 

 
Carmel-by-the-Sea 

 
19.410 

 
0.001 Cr 

 
1.398 

 
1.081 

 
0.000 

 
1.081 

 
0.910 

 
0.000 

 
0.182 

 
2.661 

 
Del Rey Oaks 

 
8.100 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.440 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
Monterey 

 
76.320 

 
0.000 

 
0.263 

 
50.659 

 
0.000 

 
0.030 

 
38.121 

 
0.000 

 
2.325 

 
2.618 

 
Monterey County 

 
87.710 

 
0.000 

 
10.717 

 
13.080 

 
0.000 

 
0.352 

 
7.827 

 
0.000 

 
1.775 

 
12.844 

 
Pacific Grove 

 
25.770 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
1.410 

 
0.000 

 
0.022 

 
15.874 

 
0.000 

 
0.133 

 
0.155 

 
Sand City 

 
51.860 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.838 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
24.717 

 
0.000 

 
23.373 

 
23.373 

 
Seaside 

 
65.450 

 
0.111 

 
7.146 

 
34.438 

 
0.000 

 
34.438 

 
2.693 

 
0.000 

 
1.144 

 
42.728 

 
TOTALS 

 
342.720 

 
0.110 

 
24.721 

 
101.946 

 
0.000 

 
35.923 

 
90.142 

 
0.000 

 
28.932 

 
89.576 

 
Allocation Holder 

 
Water Available 

 
Changes this Month 

 
Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 
Remaining Water 

Available 

 
Quail Meadows 

 
33.000 

 
0.000 

 
32.320 

 
0.680 

 
Water West 

 
12.760 

 
0.000 

 
9.372 

 
3.388 

493



494



EXHIBIT 22-B 
MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 

ENTITLEMENTS 
Reported in Acre-Feet 

For the month of June 2018 
 

Recycled Water Project Entitlements  
 

Entitlement Holder 
 

Entitlement 
 

 
Changes this Month 

 
Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 
Remaining Entitlement/and 

Water Use Permits Available 

 
Pebble Beach Co. 1 

 
228.260 

 
0.600 

 
31.431 

 
196.829 

 
Del Monte Forest Benefited 

Properties 2 
(Pursuant to Ord No. 109) 

 
136.740 

 
0.393 

 
  50.539 

 

 
86.201 

 
Macomber Estates 

 
10.000 

 
0.000 

 
9.595 

  
0.405 

 
Griffin Trust 

 
5.000 

 
0.000 

 
4.829 

 
0.171 

CAWD/PBCSD Project 
Totals 

380.000 0.993 96.394 283.606 

 
 

Entitlement Holder 
 

Entitlement 
 

 
Changes this Month 

 
Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 
Remaining Entitlement/and 

Water Use Permits Available 

 
City of Sand City 

 
206.000 

 
0.000 

 
4.353 

 
201.647 

 
Malpaso Water Company 

 
80.000 

 
0.078 

 
9.315 

 
70.685 

 
D.B.O. Development No. 30 

 
13.950 

 
0.000 

 
1.088 

 
12.862 

 
City of Pacific Grove 

 
66.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
66.000 

 
Cypress Pacific 

 
3.170 

 
0.000 

 
3.170 

 
0.000 

                                                 
Increases in the Del Monte Forest Benefited Properties Entitlement will result in reductions in the Pebble Beach Co. Entitlement. 
 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\22\Item-22-Exh-B.docx 

495



 

496



EXHIBIT 22-C 
  

District’s Water Allocation Program Ordinances 
  

Ordinance No. 1 was adopted in September 1980 to establish interim municipal water allocations 
based on existing water use by the jurisdictions.  Resolution 81-7 was adopted in April 1981 to 
modify the interim allocations and incorporate projected water demands through the year 2000.  
Under the 1981 allocation, Cal-Am’s annual production limit was set at 20,000 acre-feet. 
  
Ordinance No. 52 was adopted in December 1990 to implement the District’s water allocation 
program, modify the resource system supply limit, and to temporarily limit new uses of water.  As a 
result of Ordinance No. 52, a moratorium on the issuance of most water permits within the District 
was established.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 52 reduced Cal-Am’s annual production limit to 
16,744 acre-feet. 
  
Ordinance No. 70 was adopted in June 1993 to modify the resource system supply limit, establish a 
water allocation for each of the jurisdictions within the District, and end the moratorium on the 
issuance of water permits.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 70 was based on development of the Paralta 
Well in the Seaside Groundwater Basin and increased Cal-Am’s annual production limit to 17,619 
acre-feet.  More specifically, Ordinance No. 70 allocated 308 acre-feet of water to the jurisdictions 
and 50 acre-feet to a District Reserve for regional projects with public benefit. 
  
Ordinance No. 73 was adopted in February 1995 to eliminate the District Reserve and allocate the 
remaining water equally among the eight jurisdictions.  Of the original 50 acre-feet that was 
allocated to the District Reserve, 34.72 acre-feet remained and was distributed equally (4.34 acre-
feet) among the jurisdictions. 
  
Ordinance No. 74 was adopted in March 1995 to allow the reinvestment of toilet retrofit water 
savings on single-family residential properties.  The reinvested retrofit credits must be repaid by the 
jurisdiction from the next available water allocation and are limited to a maximum of 10 acre-feet.  
This ordinance sunset in July 1998.   
  
Ordinance No. 75 was adopted in March 1995 to allow the reinvestment of water saved through 
toilet retrofits and other permanent water savings methods at publicly owned and operated facilities.  
Fifteen percent of the savings are set aside to meet the District’s long-term water conservation goal 
and the remainder of the savings are credited to the jurisdictions allocation.  This ordinance sunset 
in July 1998.  
  
Ordinance No. 83 was adopted in April 1996 and set Cal-Am’s annual production limit at 17,621 
acre-feet and the non-Cal-Am annual production limit at 3,046 acre-feet.  The modifications to the 
production limit were made based on the agreement by non-Cal-Am water users to permanently 
reduce annual water production from the Carmel Valley Alluvial Aquifer in exchange for water 
service from Cal-Am.  As part of the agreement, fifteen percent of the historical non-Cal-Am 
production was set aside to meet the District’s long-term water conservation goal. 
  

497



Ordinance No. 87 was adopted in February 1997 as an urgency ordinance establishing a 
community benefit allocation for the planned expansion of the Community Hospital of the 
Monterey Peninsula (CHOMP).  Specifically, a special reserve allocation of 19.60 acre-feet of 
production was created exclusively for the benefit of CHOMP.  With this new allocation, Cal-Am’s 
annual production limit was increased to 17,641 acre-feet and the non-Cal-Am annual production 
limit remained at 3,046 acre-feet. 
  
Ordinance No. 90 was adopted in June 1998 to continue the program allowing the reinvestment of 
toilet retrofit water savings on single-family residential properties for 90-days following the 
expiration of Ordinance No. 74.  This ordinance sunset in September 1998. 
  
Ordinance No. 91 was adopted in June 1998 to continue the program allowing the reinvestment of 
water saved through toilet retrofits and other permanent water savings methods at publicly owned 
and operated facilities.   
  
Ordinance No. 90 and No. 91 were challenged for compliance with CEQA and nullified by the 
Monterey Superior Court in December 1998. 
  
Ordinance No. 109 was adopted on May 27, 2004, revised Rule 23.5 and adopted additional 
provisions to facilitate the financing and expansion of the CAWD/PBCSD Recycled Water Project. 
 
Ordinance No. 132 was adopted on January 24, 2008, established a Water Entitlement for Sand 
City and amended the rules to reflect the process for issuing Water Use Permits.  
 
Ordinance No. 165 was adopted on August 17, 2015, established a Water Entitlement for Malpaso 
Water Company and amended the rules to reflect the process for issuing Water Use Permits. 
 
Ordinance No. 166 was adopted on December 15, 2015, established a Water Entitlement for 
D.B.O. Development No. 30. 
 
Ordinance No. 168 was adopted on January 27, 2016, established a Water Entitlement for the City 
of Pacific Grove. 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\22\Item-22-Exh-C.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

498



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITESM/STAFF REPORTS 
 
23. QUARTERLY WATER USE CREDIT TRANSFER STATUS REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
   
Prepared By: Gabriela Ayala Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
Information about Water Use Credit transfer applications will be reported as applications are 
received. There are no pending Water Use Credit transfer applications. 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\23\Item-23.docx 

 
 
 

499



500



 ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEM/STAFF REPORTS  
 
24. WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM REPORT   
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.: 
 

Prepared By: Kyle Smith Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
I. MANDATORY WATER CONSERVATION RETROFIT PROGRAM 

District Regulation XIV requires the retrofit of water fixtures upon Change of Ownership or 
Use with High Efficiency Toilets (HET) (1.28 gallons-per-flush), 2.0 gallons-per-minute 
(gpm) Showerheads, 1.2 gpm Washbasin faucets, 1.8 gpm kitchen, utility and bar sink 
faucets, and Rain Sensors on all automatic Irrigation Systems.  Property owners must certify 
the Site meets the District’s water efficiency standards by submitting a Water Conservation 
Certification Form (WCC), and a Site inspection is often conducted to verify compliance.   

 
A. Changes of Ownership 

Information is obtained monthly from Realquest.com on properties transferring 
ownership within the District.  The information compared against the properties that have 
submitted WCCs.  Details on 105 property transfers that occurred in June 2018 were 
added to the database.      
 

B. Certification  
The District received 50 WCCs between June 1, 2018, and June 30, 2018.  Data on 
ownership, transfer date, and status of water efficiency standard compliance were entered 
into the database. 

 
C. Verification 

In June, 75 properties were verified compliant with Rule 144 (Retrofit Upon Change of 
Ownership or Use).  Of the 75 verifications, 44 properties verified compliance by 
submitting certification forms and/or receipts.  District staff completed 47 Site 
inspections.  Of the 47 properties inspected, 31 (52%) passed inspection. None of the 
properties that passed inspection involved more than one visit to verify compliance with 
all water efficiency standards.  

 
Savings Estimate 
Water savings from HET retrofits triggered by Rule 144 verified in June 2018 are 
estimated at 0.760 Acre-Feet Annually (AFA). Water savings from retrofits that exceeded 
the requirement (i.e., HETs to Ultra High Efficiency Toilets) is estimated at 0.190 AFA 
(19 toilets).  Year-to-date estimated savings from toilet retrofits is 6.530 AFA. 
 

501



D. CII Compliance with Water Efficiency Standards 
Effective January 1, 2014, all Non-Residential properties were required to meet Rule 143, 
Water Efficiency Standards for Existing Non-Residential Uses. To verify compliance 
with these requirements, property owners and businesses are being sent notification of the 
requirements and a date that inspectors will be on Site to check the property. This month, 
District inspectors performed 20 inspections.  Of the 20 inspections certified, 13 (65%) 
were in compliance.  None of the properties that passed inspection involved more than 
one visit to verify compliance with all water efficiency standards; the remainder complied 
without a reinspection.  

 
MPWMD is forwarding its CII inspection findings to California American Water (Cal-
Am) for their verification with the Rate Best Management Practices (Rate BMPs) that are 
used to determine the appropriate non-residential rate division.  Compliance with 
MPWMD’s Rule 143 achieves Rate BMPs for indoor water uses, however, properties 
with landscaping must also comply with Cal-Am’s outdoor Rate BMPs to avoid Division 
4 (Non-Rate BMP Compliant) rates.  In addition to sharing information about indoor Rate 
BMP compliance, MPWMD notifies Cal-Am of properties with landscaping.  Cal-Am 
then conducts an outdoor audit to verify compliance with the Rate BMPs.  During June 
2018, MPWMD referred four properties to Cal-Am for verification of outdoor Rate 
BMPs. 

 
E. Water Waste Enforcement 

In response to the State’s drought emergency conservation regulation effective June 1, 
2016, the District has increased its Water Waste enforcement. The District has a Water 
Waste Hotline 831-658-5653 or an online form to report Water Waster occurrences at 
www.mpwmd.net or www.montereywaterinfo.org. There were three Water Waste 
responses during the past month. There were no repeated incidents that resulted in a fine.  
 

II. WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT 
 

A. Permit Processing 
District Rule 23 requires a Water Permit application for all properties that propose to 
expand or modify water use on a Site, including New Construction and Remodels.  
District staff processed and issued 115 Water Permits in June 2018.  Eight Water Permits 
were issued using Water Entitlements (Pebble Beach Company, Malpaso Water, etc.).  
No Water Permits involved a debit to a Public Water Credit Account.   

 
All Water Permits have a disclaimer informing applicants of the Cease and Desist Order 
against California American Water and that MPWMD reports Water Permit details to 
California American Water.  All Water Permit recipients with property supplied by a 
California American Water Distribution System will continue to be provided with the 
disclaimer. 

 
District Rule 24-3-A allows the addition of a second bathroom in an existing Single-
Family Dwelling on a Single-Family Residential Site. Of the 115 Water Permits issued in 
June, fourteen were issued under this provision. 

 
B. Permit Compliance 

District staff completed 72 Water Permit final inspections during June 2018.  Seven of 
the final inspections failed due to unpermitted fixtures.  Of the 46 passing properties, 28 

502

http://www.mpwmd.net/
http://www.montereywaterinfo.org/


passed inspection on the first visit. In addition, nine pre-inspection were conducted in 
response to Water Permit applications received by the District. 

 
C. Deed Restrictions 

District staff prepares deed restrictions that are recorded on the property title to provide 
notice of District Rules and Regulations, enforce Water Permit conditions, and provide 
notice of public access to water records.  In April 2001, the District Board of Directors 
adopted a policy regarding the processing of deed restrictions.  In the month of June, the 
District prepared 79 deed restrictions.  Of the 115 Water Permits issued in June, 54 
(47%) required deed restrictions.  District staff provided Notary services for 72 Water 
Permits with deed restrictions.  

 
III.  JOINT MPWMD/CAW REBATE PROGRAM 

Participation in the rebate program is detailed in the following chart. The table below 
indicates the program summary for Rebates for California American Water Company 
customers. 

 

REBATE PROGRAM SUMMARY June-2018 2018 YTD 
1997 - 

Present 

I. Application Summary               

 
A. Applications Received 112 729 25,578 

 
B. Applications Approved 76 528 19,961 

 
C. Single Family Applications 110 678 23,172 

 
D. Multi-Family Applications 2 32 1,263 

 
E. Non-Residential Applications 0 16 341 

II. Type of Devices Rebated 

Number 
of 

devices 
Rebate 

Paid 
Estimated 

AF 
Gallons 
Saved 

2018 YTD 
Quantity 2018 YTD Paid 

2018 YTD 
Estimated 

AF 

 
A. High Efficiency Toilet (HET) 3 225.00 0.125244 40,811 55 4,300.00 2.29614 

 
B. Ultra Low Flush to HET 25 1650.00 0.250000 81,463 143 10,575.00 1.43 

 
C. Ultra HET 0 0.00 0.000000 0 11 1,399.00 0.11 

 
D. Toilet Flapper 0 0.00 0.000000 0 3 45.00 0 

 
E. High Efficiency Dishwasher 12 1500.00 0.036000 11,731 96 14,750.00 0.288 

 
F. High Efficiency Clothes Washer 37 18396.70 0.595700 194,109 239 120,589.76 3.8479 

 
G. Instant-Access Hot Water System 2 399.00 0.000000 0 10 1,998.99 0 

 
H. On Demand Systems 1 100.00 0.000000 0 2 200.00 0 

 
I. Zero Use Urinals 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

 
J. High Efficiency Urinals 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

 
K. Pint Urinals 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

 
L. Cisterns 2 375.75 0.000000 0 14 21,015.75 0 

 
M. Smart Controllers 0 0.00 0.000000 0 5 659.00 0 

 
N. Rotating Sprinkler Nozzles 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

 
O. Moisture Sensors 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

 
P. Lawn Removal & Replacement 0 0.00 0.000000 0 2 2,435.00 0.19967 

 
Q. Graywater 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

 
R. Ice Machines 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

III.  Totals: Month; AF; Gallons; YTD 82 22646.45 1.006944 328,114 580 177,967.50 8.17171 

   
          2018 YTD 

1997 - 
Present 

IV. Total Rebated: YTD; Program 177,967.50 6,115,960.09 
V. Estimated Water Savings in Acre-Feet Annually* 8.171710 550.497285 

        
    

* Retrofit savings are estimated at 0.041748 AF/HET; 0.01 AF/UHET; 0.01 AF/ULF to HET; 0.003 AF/dishwasher; 0.0161 AF/residential washer; 
0.0082 AF/100 square feet of lawn removal. 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\24\Item-24.docx 

503



504



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 
 
25. CARMEL RIVER FISHERY REPORT FOR JUNE 2018 
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
   
Prepared By: Beverly Chaney Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 
General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
AQUATIC HABITAT AND FLOW CONDITIONS:  Releases from Los Padres Reservoir 
were reduced in June to maintain storage as the inflow dropped to summer levels. River flows in 
the lower river remained above the long-term daily median, but fish rescues were started in late 
June as rearing conditions for juvenile steelhead dropped to “fair” below the narrows.  All lower 
valley tributaries are dry at the confluence. 

Mean daily streamflow at the Sleepy Hollow Weir dropped from 28 to 16 cfs (monthly mean 
21.3cfs) resulting in 1,270 acre-feet (AF) of runoff, while mean daily streamflow at the Highway 
1 gage dropped from 23 to 4 cfs (monthly mean 12.1 cfs), resulting in 717 AF of runoff. 

There were 0.00 inches of rainfall in June as recorded at Cal-Am’s San Clemente gauge. The 
rainfall total for WY 2018 (which started on October 1, 2017) is 13.52 inches, or 64% of the 
long-term year-to-date average of 21.05 inches.  

CARMEL RIVER LAGOON:  The lagoon mouth is now closed for the summer and the water 
surface level remained relatively stable, ranging from approximately 9.8 to 11.2 feet above 
mean-sea-level (see graph below). 
  
Water quality depth-profiles were conducted at five sites on June 5 while the lagoon was closed 
and a river inflow was 19 cfs. Steelhead rearing conditions at all sites were generally “good” 
down to 1.5 meters depth and “fair” in the deeper locations, with salinity increasing with depth 
(0.6-29 ppt), temperature ranging from 64-73 degrees F, and dissolved oxygen (DO) levels of 4-
8 mg/l. 
  
LIFE CYCLE MONITORING:  
  
Tributary Rescues – Staff conducted nine fish rescues in two tributaries (Cachagua and Garza 
Crs.) in June, collecting a total of 1,911 young-of-the-year (YOY) and age 1+ juvenile fish that 
were released into the Carmel River. As of June 30th, 2,164 fish have been rescued from the tribs, 
including 1,856 YOY, 295 1+, 13 mortalities (0.6%), 152 fish were tagged, and there were 21 
recaptures (in Potrero Cr.). 

505



Mainstem Carmel River Rescues - Staff began mainstem rescues on June 25th at the Highway 1 
Br. As of June 30th, 288 fish have been rescued, including 100 YOY, 185 1+, 3 mortalities 
(1.0%), 233 fish were tagged, and there was 1 recapture. 
  
Tagging – Rescued fish larger than 65 mm are now being tagged with Passive Integrated 
Transponder (PIT) tags. District staff is currently operating four PIT tag arrays on the Carmel 
River in a partnership between the District and the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS). 
Data is being collected for future analysis and reporting. 
  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\25\Item-25.docx 

506



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 
 
26. QUARTERLY CARMEL RIVER RIPARIAN CORRIDOR MANAGEMENT 

PROGRAM REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted: N/A 
 

From: Dave Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 

Prepared By: Thomas Christensen and Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 Larry Hampson   
                              

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
IRRIGATION OF RIPARIAN VEGETATION: The supplemental watering of riparian 
restoration plantings has resumed for the summer season in 2018 at five Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District (District) riparian habitat restoration sites.  The following irrigation systems 
were in use May through June: deDampierre, Trail and Saddle Club, Begonia, Schulte, and Schulte 
Bridge. 
 
 Water Use in Acre-Feet (AF) 
 (preliminary values subject to revision) 
  
 January - March 2018   0.82 AF 
 April - June 2018     3.43  
 Year-to-date       4.25 AF 
 
MONITORING OF RIPARIAN VEGETATION:   Starting in June 2018, staff recorded 
monthly observations of canopy vigor on target willow and cottonwood trees to provide an 
indication of plant water stress and corresponding soil moisture levels.  Four locations (Rancho 
Cañada, San Carlos, Valley Hills, and Schulte) are monitored monthly for canopy ratings based 
on a scale from one to ten. This scale evaluates characteristics such as yellowing leaves and 
percentages of defoliation (see scale on Exhibit 26-A).  A total of 12 willows and 12 cottonwoods 
at these locations provide a data set of established and planted sample trees that are representative 
of trees in the Carmel River riparian corridor. Combined with monthly readings from the District’s 
array of monitoring wells and pumping records for large-capacity Carmel Valley wells in the 
California American Water service area, the District’s monitoring provides insight into the status 
of soil moisture through the riparian corridor. 
 
Current monitoring results for the 2018 monitoring season to date show that riparian vegetation is 
below threshold moisture stress levels.  At present, the Carmel River is still flowing to the Lagoon 
and providing plenty of water for established plants along the riparian corridor. The graph in 

507



Exhibit 26-A shows average canopy ratings for willows and cottonwoods in selected restoration 
sites in lower Carmel Valley.  The graph in Exhibit 26-B shows impacts to water table elevations.  
 
The types of monitoring measurements made during June 2018 are as follows: 
 
 Monitoring Measurement     
 
 Canopy ratings    (See Exhibit 26-A for trends.)  
 Groundwater levels (monitoring wells) (See Exhibit 26-B for trends.)  
 Groundwater pumping (production wells) 
 
OTHER TASKS PERFORMED SINCE THE APRIL 2018 QUARTERLY REPORT: 
 
1. Carmel River Vegetation Management Project Notification: On April 15, 2018, 

District staff notified the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, NOAA Fisheries, U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service, California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), and the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board of thirteen sites that are scheduled for vegetation 
management activities this fall. A total of approximately 1,800 square feet of stream 
encompassing approximately 0.04 acres in the channel bottom will be affected by this 
year’s project.  The goal of the vegetation management activities is to reduce the risk of 
streambank erosion along riverfront properties where vegetation encroachment could 
potentially divert river flows into streambanks during high flow periods. 

 
2. Riparian Irrigation Tune-up:  District staff (Mark Bekker and Daniel Atkins) have been 

tuning up multiple irrigation systems along the Carmel River that are designed to water 
new mitigation plantings for Vegetation Management. Tune-ups include replacement of 
clogged emitters, leak repair, and trouble shooting well pumps and pressure tanks. 
 

EXHIBITS 
26-A Average Willow and Cottonwood Canopy Rating 
26-B Depth to Groundwater 
   
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\26\Item-26.docx 

508



EXHIBIT 26-A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\26\Item-26-Exh-A.docx 

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

C
a
n

o
p

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

Date

Carmel River Riparian Vegetation:
Average Canopy Rating for Cottonwoods and Willows

Cottonwoods

Willows

Stress Level

1= Green, obviously vigorous none, no irrigation required
2= Some visible yellowing low, occasional irrigation required
3= Leaves mostly yellowing moderate, regular irrigation required
4= < 10% Defoliated moderate, regular irrigation required
5= Defoliated 10% to 30% moderate, regular irrigation required
6= Defoliated 30% to 50% moderate to high, additional measures required
7= Defoliated 50% to 70% high stress, risk of mortality or canopy dieback
8= Defoliated 70% to 90% high stress, risk of mortality or canopy dieback
9= > 90% Defoliated high stress, risk of mortality or canopy dieback

10=  Dead consider replanting

     Canopy Rating Scale

509



510



 
EXHIBIT 26-B 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\26\Item-26-Exh-B.docx 

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

35.00

40.00

De
pt

h 
to

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 (f
ee

t)

Date

Carmel Valley Alluvial Aquifer: Depth to Groundwater

Cañada East Area

Schulte Area

Valley Hills Area

511



512



 

 
Exhibit 27-A shows the water supply status for the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System 
(MPWRS) as of July 1, 2018.  This system includes the surface water resources in the Carmel River Basin, 
the groundwater resources in the Carmel Valley Alluvial Aquifer and the Seaside Groundwater Basin.  
Exhibit 27-A is for Water Year (WY) 2018 and focuses on four factors: rainfall, runoff, and storage.  The 
rainfall and Streamflow values are based on measurements in the upper Carmel River Basin at Sleepy 
Hollow Weir.   

 
Water Supply Status:  Rainfall through June 2018 totaled 0.0 inches and brings the cumulative rainfall 
total for WY 2018 to 13.52 inches, which is 65% of the long-term average through June.  Estimated 
unimpaired runoff during June totaled 1,136 acre-feet (AF) and brings the cumulative runoff total for WY 
2018 to 31,376 AF, which is 47% of the long-term average through June.  Usable storage for the 
MRWPRS was 29,580 acre-feet, which is 96% of average through June, and equates to 79% percent of 
system capacity   
 
Production Compliance:  Under State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Cease and Desist Order 
No. 2016-0016 (CDO), California American Water (Cal-Am) is allowed to produce no more than 8,310 
AF of water from the Carmel River in WY 2018.  Through June, using the CDO accounting method, Cal-
Am has produced 5,956 AF from the Carmel River (including ASR capped at 600 AF, Table 13, and Mal 
Paso.)  In addition, under the Seaside Basin Decision, Cal-Am is allowed to produce 1,820 AF of water 
from the Coastal Subareas and 0 AF from the Laguna Seca Subarea of the Seaside Basin in WY 2018.  
Through June, Cal-Am has produced 1,965 AF from the Seaside Groundwater Basin.  Through May, 532 
AF of Carmel River Basin groundwater have been diverted for Seaside Basin injection; 0 AF have been 
recovered for customer use, and 153 AF have been diverted under Table 13 water rights.  Cal-Am has 
produced 7,071 AF for customer use from all sources through June.  Exhibit 27-C shows production by 
source.  Some of the values in this report may be revised in the future as Cal-Am finalizes their production 
values and monitoring data.  The 12 month moving average of production for customer service is 9,935 
AF, which is below the rationing trigger of 10,130 AF for WY 2018. 
 
EXHIBITS 
27-A Water Supply Status: July 1, 2018 
27-B Monthly Cal-Am Diversions from Carmel River and Seaside Groundwater Basins:  WY 2018 
27-C Monthly Cal-Am production by source: WY 2018 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\27\Item-27.docx 

ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORT 
 
27. MONTHLY WATER SUPPLY AND CALIFORNIA AMERICAN WATER 

PRODUCTION REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: July 16, 2018 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
   
Prepared By: Jonathan Lear Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  Exempt from environmental review per SWRCB Order Nos. 95-10 and 2016-
0016, and the Seaside Basin Groundwater Basin adjudication decision, as amended and Section 
15268 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, as a ministerial project; 
Exempt from Section 15307, Actions by Regulatory Agencies for Protection of Natural Resources. 

513



514



 
 

EXHIBIT 27-A 
 

 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Water Supply Status 

July 1, 2018 
 

           Factor Oct to Jun 2018  Average 
To Date 

Percent of 
Average 

Water Year 2017  

 
Rainfall 
(Inches) 

13.52 
 

20.95 
 

65% 32.22 
 

 
 Runoff 
 (Acre-Feet) 

31,376 
 

66,298 47% 193,013 
 
 

 
 Storage 5 
 (Acre-Feet) 

29,580 30,820 96% 31,554 
 

      
 
Notes: 
 

1. Rainfall and runoff estimates are based on measurements at San Clemente Dam.  Annual rainfall and runoff at 
Sleepy Hollow Weir average 21.1 inches and 67,246 acre-feet, respectively.  Annual values are based on the water 
year that runs from October 1 to September 30 of the following calendar year.  The rainfall and runoff averages at 
the Sleepy Hollow Weir site are based on records for the 1922-2017 and 1902-2017 periods respectively. 

 
2. The rainfall and runoff totals are based on measurements through the dates referenced in the table.  
 
3. Storage estimates refer to usable storage in the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System (MPWRS) that 

includes surface water in Los Padres and San Clemente Reservoirs and ground water in the Carmel Valley 
Alluvial Aquifer and in the Coastal Subareas of the Seaside Groundwater Basin.   The storage averages are end-of-
month values and are based on records for the 1989-2017 period. The storage estimates are end-of-month values 
for the dates referenced in the table. 

 
4. The maximum storage capacity for the MPWRS is currently 37,639 acre-feet.   

 
 

 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\27\Item-27-Exh-A.docx 

515



516



(All values in Acre-Feet)

WY 2017 Actual 4,797 1,535 200 1,735 6,532 591 491 181 1,263

1.  This table is current through the date of this report.

2.  For CDO compliance, ASR, Mal Paso, and Table 13 diversions are included in River production per State Board.

3.  Sand City Desal, Table 13, and ASR recovery are also tracked as water resources projects.

4.  To date, 530 AF and 153 AF have been produced from the River for ASR and Table 13 respectively.
5.  All values are rounded to the nearest Acre-Foot.

6.  For CDO Tracking Purposes, ASR production for injection is capped at 600 AFY.

7.  Table 13 diversions are reported under water rights but counted as production from the River for CDO tracking.

                  

Oct-17 532 396 0 0 14 3 945
Nov-17 421 331 0 0 3 3 758
Dec-17 399 339 0 0 26 1 765
Jan-18 400 267 0 0 25 7 699

Feb-18 413 264 0 0 21 7 704

Mar-18 374 189 0 98 0 7 667
Apr-18 579 91 0 55 3 7 735
May-18 740 113 0 0 25 0 878
Jun-18 692 197 0 0 23 8 919
Jul-18

Aug-18

Sep-18

Total 4,551 2,185 0 153 140 42 7,071

WY 2017 3,707 1,735 591 491 181 69 6,774
1.  This table is produced as a proxy for customer demand.

2.  Numbers are provisional and are subject to correction.

12 Month Moving Average 
1 9,935 10,130 Rule 160 Production Limit

1.  Average includes production from Carmel River, Seaside Basin, Sand City Desal, and ASR recovery produced for Customer Service.

Carmel Seaside Groundwater Basin
MPWRS 

Total

Water 

Projects and 

Rights Total
River Laguna Ajudication ASR

Table 13 
7Year-to-Date

Actual 
4 5,234 1,965 220 2,185

Production vs. CDO and Adjudication to Date: WY 2018

MPWRS Water Projects and Rights

7,056

Sand

Values Basin 
2, 6 Coastal

Target 5,956 1,100 0 1,100

2927,419

Seca Compliance Recovery City 
3

0 227 200 427

0 153 140

0 74 60 135Difference 722 -865 -220

Rationing Trigger: WY 2018

Monthly Production from all Sources for Customer Service: WY 2018
(All values in Acre-Feet)

Carmel River 

Basin
Seaside Basin

ASR 

Recovery
Table 13 Sand City Mal Paso Total

-1,085 -363

Exhibit 26B

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\27\Item-27-Exh-B.xlsx.xls_tab_ Prod Compliance WY2012/Production Complience tab

517



518



EXHIBIT 27-C

California American Water Production by Source: Water Year 2018

Actual Anticipated

Acre-Feet 

Under Target Actual Anticipated Under Target

Upper Lower Upper Lower Upper Lower Coastal LagunaSeca Coastal LagunaSeca Coastal LagunaSeca

acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet

Oct-17 0 532 0 550 0 18 368 29 350 0 -18 -29 928 900 -28 14 25 11
Nov-17 0 421 0 383 0 -38 301 30 350 0 49 -30 752 733 -19 3 25 22
Dec-17 0 399 0 728 0 329 315 24 100 0 -215 -24 738 828 90 26 25 -1
Jan-18 0 400 0 673 0 273 247 19 100 0 -147 -19 667 773 106 25 25 0
Feb-18 0 413 0 559 0 146 242 22 100 0 -142 -22 677 659 -18 21 25 4
Mar-18 183 630 0 716 -183 86 170 18 100 0 -70 -18 1002 816 -186 0 25 25
Apr-18 0 824 0 881 0 58 71 20 100 0 29 -20 914 981 67 3 25 22
May-18 0 740 0 985 0 245 85 28 100 0 15 -28 853 1,085 232 25 25 0
Jun-18 0 692 0 1,044 0 352 166 31 47 0 -119 -31 889 1,091 203 23 25 2
Jul-18

Aug-18

Sep-18

To Date 183 5,051 0 6,519 -183 1,468 1,965 220 1,347 0 -618 -220 7,419 7,866 447 140 225 85

Total Production: Water Year 2018

Oct-17 925
Nov-17 758
Dec-17 853
Jan-18 798
Feb-18 684
Mar-18 841
Apr-18 1,006
May-18 1,110
Jun-18 1,116
Jul-18

Aug-18

Sep-18

To Date 8,0917,559 532

911 205

1,002 -161
917 89
878 232

764 89
692 106
698 -14

Actual Anticipated Acre-Feet Under Target

942 -17
755 3

Carmel Valley Wells 
1

Seaside Wells 
2

Total Wells Sand City Desal

Actual Anticipated 
3

Under Target Actual Anticipated Under Target

1.   Carmel Valley Wells include upper and lower valley wells.  Anticipate production from this source includes monthly production volumes associated with SBO 2009-60, 20808A, and 20808C water rights.  Under these water 
rights,  water produced from the Carmel Valley wells is delivered to customers or injected into the Seaside Groundwater Basin for storage.

2.  Seaside wells anticipated production is associated with pumping native Seaside Groundwater (which is regulated by the Seaside Groundwater Basin Adjudication Decision) and recovery of stored ASR water (which is 
prescribed in a MOA between MPWMD , Cal-Am, California Department of Fish and Game, National Marine Fisheries Service, and as regulated by 20808C water right.

3.   Negative values for Acre-Feet under target indicates production over targeted value.

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2018\20180716\InfoItems\27\Item-27-Exh-C.xlsx

519






















	July-16-2018-Board-Mtg-Agenda
	Item-1
	Item-1-Exh-A
	Item-2
	Item-2-Exh-A
	Item-3
	Item-3-Exh-A
	Item-3-Exh-B
	Item-4
	Item-4-Exh-A
	Item-5
	Item-6
	Item-7
	Item-8
	Item-8-Exh-A
	Item-9
	Item-9-Exh-A
	Item-9-Exh-B
	Item-9-Exh-C
	Item-9-Exh-D
	Item-9-Exh-E
	Item-13
	Item-13-Exh-A
	Item-14
	Item-14-Exh-A
	Item-14-Exh-B
	Item-14-Exh-C
	Item-15
	Item-15-Exh-A
	Item-15-Exh-B
	Item-16
	Item-16-Exh-A
	Item-16-Exh-B
	Item-17
	Item-17-Exh-A
	Item-18
	Item-18-Exh-A
	Item-19
	Item-19-Exh-A
	Item-19-Exh-B
	Item-19-Exh-C
	Item-19-Exh-D
	Item-20
	Item-21
	Item-21-Exh-A
	Item-21-Exh-B
	Item-22
	Item-22-Exh-A
	Item-22-Exh-B
	Item-22-Exh-C
	Item-23
	Item-24
	Item-25
	Item-26
	Item-26-Exh-A
	Item-26-Exh-B
	Item-27
	Item-27-Exh-A
	Item-27-Exh-B
	Item-27-Exh-C
	LettersRecd



